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VISION 

 

To be an internationally acclaimed centre of 

excellence in higher learning producing 

dynamic leaders and nation builders to 

guide the destiny of Sri Lanka. 

 

MISSION 

 

To search for and disseminate knowledge, 

promote learning, research and training to 

produce men and women proficient in 

their respective disciplines possessing 

practical skills and positive attitudes 

enabling them to contribute towards the 

manpower requirements of the nation. The 

university will be a centre of excellence for 

research and development for Sri Lanka in 

general and the Sabaragamuwa Province in 

Sri Lanka. 
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GOALS 

 

Be a centre of excellence in higher learning. 

 

Produce graduates in keeping with the 

development needs of the country. 

 

Enhance the development of the personality of 

staff and students. 

 

Achieve the status of an internationally 

acclaimed regional institute of research and 

development. 

 

Enhance continuing professional programme in 

the areas of national relevance. 

 

Be a resources centre to enhance the quality of 

the life in the region. 
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UNIVERSITY EMBLEM 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The university logo is a symbolic representation of the region and people which it serves as 

the ideals for which it stands. The traditional oil lamp and ray of light denote impartiality of 

the knowledge and enlightenment. 

 

The Book :  Education 

The Samanala Mountains :  The Sabaragamuwa Province 

Gems :  The Ratnapura District 

Sheaves of Paddy  :  Material Prosperity  

 
 

UNIVERSITY FLAG 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The university flag is comprised with two colors, Maroon and Gold Maroon denoting the 

maturity. Gold is for the knowledge tempered by discipline. The university logo is at the 

center of the flag. 
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UNIVERSITY ANTHEM 

 

  මේ ඔමේ සවියයි 

  (Me Obe Sawiyai) 

  මේ මමේ සවියයි 

  (Me Mage Sawiyai) 

  සබරගමුව සරසවියයි ..... //   

  (Sabaragamuwa Sarasawiyai.….) // 

   

  සමනල වැව පිපි මනළුේ මනලා මගන 

  (Samanala Wewa Pipi Nelum Nelagena) 

  ගිරිකුළු වන රද මතින් ගලා යන 

  (Girikula Wanarada Mathin Galayana) 

  ජීවිතමේ කඳු මුදුන් මසායා මගන 

  (Jeewithaye Kandu Mudun Soyagena) 

  හාගල කන්ද නගින්මන් ..... // 

  (Hagala Kanda Naginne.….) // 

    

  සිරිපා පහනින් එළිය ලබා මගන 

  (Siripa Pahanin Eliya Labagena) 

  මනරේ විදුණැන අකුරු දරාමගන  

  (Manaram Widunana Akuru Daragena) 

  කළුගං පතුමේ රුවන් මසායාමගන  

  (Kalugan Pathule Ruwan Soyagena) 

  උඩුගේ බලා ඇමදන්මන් ..... // 

  (Udugam Bala Adenne.….) // 

   

  මදරමේ උරුමය මලාවට මබදාමගන 

  (Derane Urumaya Lowata Bedagena) 

  සිප් කගගින් රුදු අඳුර නසාමගන  

  (Sip Kagagin Rudu Andura Nasagena) 

  ඔමබත් මමගත් හීනය කලඑළි වන  

  (Obeth Mageth Heenaya Kalaeli Wana) 

  දිනය උදා වන්මන් ..... // 

  (Dinaya Uda Wanne.….) // 

 

  මේ ඔමේ සවියයි 

  (Me Obe Saawiyai) 

  මේ මමේ සවියයි  

  (Me Mage Sawiyai) 

  සබරගමුව සරසවියයි ..... // 

  (Sabaragamuwa Sarasawiyai.….) // 
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UNIVERSITY MAP 
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VICE-CHANCELLOR'S REVIEW – 2020 

 

It is a great pleasure to write a message to the Annual Report 

2020 at the occasion, Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka 

celebrating its Silver Jubilee for being 25 years as a National 

University of Sri Lanka. The Sabaragamuwa University of Sri 

Lanka is located at Pambahinna, 162 kilometers away from the 

capital on the Colombo – Badulla A4 highway near the town of 

Belihuloya and covers an area of approximately 267 acres. 

 

At present, the University consists of eight (08) Faculties. They 

are; Faculty of Graduate Studies, Faculty of Agricultural Sciences, 

Faculty of Applied Sciences, Faculty of Geomatics, Faculty of Management Studies, Faculty 

of Social Sciences and Languages, Faculty of Technology and Faculty of Medicine. The 

Faculty of Medicine is located in Kuruwita, Ratnapura. 

 

Construction of the first part of the second phase of the Faculty of Applied Sciences has 

commenced as well as the construction of the second phase of the Faculty of Agricultural 

Sciences and the Para Clinical and Administrative Building Complex of the Faculty of 

Medicine in 2020. Completion of the development work of the Chemistry Laboratory of the 

Faculty of Applied Sciences, renovation of the internal roads of the University, provision of 

internet facilities for the academic study building of the Agricultural Sciences at 

Mungastenna and converting the old auditorium for the use of conducting lectures for the 

students in the Faculty of Technology and which can be identified among the achievements 

of the University last year. Also the Ministry of Education already approved the funds 

required for the construction of the second part of the third phase of the Faculty of 

Management Studies and the necessary actions to submit the concept paper related to the 

construction of the administration building which remains in the final stage. Now, all the 

faculties of the University are connected internally with each other by a special fiber optic 

backbone and it will be upgraded in the future. Approximately, the number of internal 

students of the Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka in the year 2020 was 5995. The 

number of internal students enrolled in the University this year was 1522 and 96 students 

were enrolled for postgraduate studies. In addition, 2349 students were registered for the 

courses offered by the Centre for Open and Distance Learning. Due to the COVID 19 

pandemic situation, the General Convocation of the year 2020 could not be held as planned 

and it is scheduled to be held on 02nd and 10th March 2021.  

 

The University focused on improving the welfare and recreational facilities for the students 

as well as the staff. Accordingly, the University has provided accommodation facilities for 

93.3% of the internal students. Arrangements have also been made to improve the internet 

facilities for academic activities. Utilizing the existing resources of the University, 
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accommodation facilities have been provided for the academic, administrative and non – 

academic staff as much as possible. 

 

The University has also taken steps to facilitate students and academic staff to enhance the 

research culture of the University. In the year 2020, two international conferences were 

conducted via online and the Faculty of Social Sciences and Languages and the Faculty of 

Geomatics conducted research conferences for the students. The University has also 

received an international patent for researches conducted by the academic staff members 

and the University which has provided financial support to many of them in presenting their 

research findings at the foreign research conferences. At the same time, signing of five 

Memorandum of Understanding (MoUs) to introduce new researches to the market and to 

enhance researches was among the special activities carried out during that year. 

 

Talented human resources have been a strength of the Sabaragamuwa University of Sri 

Lanka. The University has consisted with a total academic staff of 281, 36 administrative and 

executive staff, 19 academic support staff and 399 non – academic staff. The University has 

also taken steps to provide training sessions to academic and administrative staff with the 

aim of impartial training sessions under various headings and understanding of different 

working cultures in 2020 for the staff development skills. 

 

Also, I gratefully remember the University Grants Commission, all the Ministries affiliated to 

the Ministry of Education and the officials who provided the visionary leadership to carry 

out all these activities in the face of the COVID epidemic. My heartfelt thanks also go to our 

University community for their dedicated work. 

 

 

 

Prof. R.M.U.S.K. Rathnayake 

Vice Chancellor 
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1. THE UNIVERSITY 

 

1.1 HISTORY OF THE UNIVERSITY 

 

The history of Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka (SUSL) can be traced back to 1991 

when it was initially established as an Affiliated University College at Belihuloya. In 1995, a 

committee was appointed by the Minister of Education and Higher Education to study the 

possibilities of re-structuring the Affiliated University Colleges in the country. In accordance 

with the recommendations made by the Committee, the government decided to upgrade 

Sabaragamuwa Affiliated University College to the status of a National University by 

amalgamating it with two other Affiliated University Colleges located at Rahangala and 

Buttala. They were renamed as Uva Campus of Sabaragamuwa University. Before the 

amalgamation, the Affiliated Colleges at Belihuloya and Buttala were affiliated to the 

University of Sri Jayewardenepura. Rahangala Affiliated University College was 

amalgamated with the University of Peradeniya. With the three amalgamated affiliated 

University Colleges, the Sabaragamuwa University was ceremonially declared the opening 

on February 2, 1996.  

 

Subsequently, the Affiliated University Colleges at Rahangala and Buttala were converted 

into the Faculties of Agricultural Sciences and Applied Sciences and shifted to Belihuloya 

main campus in 2001 and 2008 respectively. 

 

1.2 INTRODUCTION  

 

Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka is situated to the left of the way to Samanalawewa 

reservoir and is approximately 160 kilomitres away from the Colombo – Badulla highway.  
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The University comprises of eight (08) Academic Faculties, namely: 

 

 Faculty of Graduate Studies 

 Faculty of Agricultural Sciences  

 Faculty of Applied Sciences 

 Faculty of Geomatics 

 Faculty of Management Studies 

 Faculty of Medicine 

 Faculty of Social Sciences and Languages 

 Faculty of Technology 

 

In addition to these 08 Faculties, there are 09 study centres. They are as follows: 

 Centre for Computer Studies  

 Career Guidance Unit   

 Centre for Open and Distance Learning (CODL) 

 Staff Development Centre (SDC) 

 Centre for Indigenous Community Studies 

 Centre for Research and Knowledge Dissemination 

 Centre for Quality Assurance 

 University Business Linkage Cell (UBLC) 

 University Museum 

 

Following facilities are available for the students and staff. 

 Hostel facilities for all students 

 Accommodation facilities for Staff  

 Ayurveda Centre 

 Pre-School 

 Agri-Fac Farm Stay 

 Guest Houses 

 Medical Center 

 Playground and Gymnasium 

 “Sith Arana” Counselling Centre 

 

Annual Conferences done by the University: 

 International Conference of Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka (ICSUSL) 

 International Conference of Agricultural Sciences (AgInsight) 

 Annual Research Session (ARS) 

 International Conference on Management Research (ICMR) 

 Student Research Session on Social Sciences and Languages (SRS) 

 Management Undergraduate Research Session (MURS) 
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1.3 CHANCELLOR 

 

Ven. Professor Kumburugamuwe Vajira Thero 

 

1.4 OFFICERS OF THE UNIVERSITY 

 

The Officers of the university, as stipulated in Section 33 of the Universities Act. No. 16 of 

1978 as subsequently amended, were as follows: 

 

 VICE-CHANCELLOR 

  

Prof. R.M.U.S.K. Rathnayake 
BScHons (Sp.) in Agriculture (RUH), MSc (Biotechnology) (PDN), PhD (AIT) Thailand 

(From 02nd November 2020) 

 

Prof. W.K. Athula C. Gnanapala (Acting Vice Chancellor) 
BSc (Tourism Management) (SUSL), MSc (SJP), PhD (Xiamen-P R, China) 

(From 19th May 2020 to 01st November 2020) 

 

Prof. M. Sunil Shantha 
BAHons (SJP), MA in Economics (SJP), PhD (UOC) 

(Up to 18th May 2020) 

 

 DEANS OF THE FACULTIES  

 

DEAN, FACULTY OF GRADUATE STUDIES 

  Prof. H.M.S. Priyanath 
  BA (SJP), MA (SJP), PhD (CMB) 

 

DEAN, FACULTY OF AGRICULTURAL SCIENCES  

Prof. M.M.P. Sumith 
BVSc (Sri Lanka), MSc (Kobe - Japan), PhD (Kobe – Japan) 

 

DEAN, FACULTY OF APPLIED SCIENCES  

Dr. R.S. Sabaragamuwa 
BScHons (Sp.) (PDN), MPhil (PDN), PhD (UoA, New Zeeland) 
(From 03rd October 2020) 

 

Prof. R.M.U.S.K. Rathnayake 
BScHons (Sp.) in Agriculture (RUH), MSc (Biotechnology) (PDN), PhD (AIT) Thailand 

 (Up to 02nd October 2020) 
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DEAN, FACULTY OF GEOMATICS 

Dr. H.M. Indika Prasanna 
BScHons (Surveying Sciences) (SUSL), MPhil (Geodesy) (SJP), PhD (Geodesy) The Polytechnic 

University, Hong Kong 

 

DEAN, FACULTY OF MANAGEMENT STUDIES  

Prof. W.K. Athula C. Gnanapala 
BSc (Tourism Management) (SUSL), MSc (SJP), PhD (Xiamen-P R, China) 

 

DEAN, FACULTY OF MEDICINE 

Prof. M.N. Wickramaratne 
PhD in Biochemistry Loyola University, Chicago Chicago, Illinois USA 

 

DEAN, FACULTY OF SOCIAL SCIENCES AND LANGUAGES 

 Dr. M.A.C.S.S. Fernando 
 BScHons (Statistics) (SJP), MPhil (PDN), PhD (University of Auckland) 

 (From 13th October 2020) 

 

Dr. W. Manoj Ariyaratne 
BAHons (SJP), MA (SJP), PhD (Pune) 

(Up to 12th October 2020) 

 

DEAN, FACULTY OF TECHNOLOGY 

Dr. A.D. Ampitiyawatta 
BSc (Agriculture) (RUH), MSc (Agriculture) (PDN), D.Eng (Water Resource Engineering) 

(Wuhan, PR China) 

 

REGISTRAR 

 

Mr. Kamal Gunawardana 
BSc, MBA (Human Resource Management) (OUSL)  

(From 30th March 2020) 

 

Mr. V.D. Kithsiri 
BComHons (Sp.) (SJP), PGDM (SJP), EMBA (PIM – SJP), ICA PI, Dip English (Aquinas, ACHE, SLIDA), Dip 

(computer Studies), ICDL 

(Up to 29th March 2020) 

 

LIBRARIAN 

 

Mrs. T.N. Neighsoorei 
BA (KLN), MSSc (LIS) (KLN), Chartered Librarian 
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BURSAR 

 

Mr. K.A.R.S. Jayakody 
BCom (SJP), PGD (IGNOU), APFA (SL), Dip (Accountancy), ICA PI, AAT (SL)  

 

1.5 THE COUNCIL 

 

The Council, which is the governing authority of the university, as stipulated in section 44 of 

the Universities Act. No. 16 of 1978 as subsequently amended, comprised of the following 

members: 

 

EX-OFFICE MEMBERS 

 

Prof. R.M.U.S.K. Rathnayake   Vice Chancellor - Chairman 

(From 02nd November 2020) 

Prof. W.K. Athula C. Gnanapala   Acting Vice Chancellor - Chairman 

(From 19th May 2020 to 01st November 2020) 

Prof. M. Sunil Shantha  Vice Chancellor - Chairman 

   (Up to 18th May 2020)    

Prof. H.M.S. Priyanath    Dean, Faculty of Graduate Studies 

Prof. M.M.P. Sumith Dean, Faculty of Agricultural Sciences 

Dr. R.S. Sabaragamuwa   Dean, Faculty of Applied Sciences 

(From 03rd October 2020) 

Prof. R.M.U.S.K. Rathnayake   Dean, Faculty of Applied Sciences 

     (Up to 02nd October 2020) 

Dr. H.M. Indika Prasanna   Dean, Faculty of Geomatics 

Prof. W.K. Athula C. Gnanapala  Dean, Faculty of Management Studies 

Prof. M.N. Wickramaratne Dean, Faculty of Medicine 

Dr. M.A.C.S.S. Fernando   Dean, Faculty of Social Sciences and Languages 

     (From 13th October 2020) 

Dr. W. Manoj Ariyaratne Dean, Faculty of Social Sciences and Languages 

(Up to 12th October 2020) 

Dr. A.D. Ampitiyawatta Dean, Faculty of Technology 

 

SENATE REPRESENTATIVES 

 

Dr. Saman Koswatte    Faculty of Geomatics 

Dr. K.V.D.E. Menike    Faculty of Social Sciences and Languages 

 

 

 



 
Draft Annual Report 2020 / Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka 

 

15 

MEMBERS APPOINTED BY THE UNIVERSITY GRANTS COMMISSION 

 

Rev. Karagoda Uyangoda Maithri Moorthi Maha Nayaka Thero  

Ven. Anunayaka Dampahala Seelananda Thero  

Prof. Ven. Kongastenne Ananda Thero 

Prof. A. Bamunuarachchi  

Mr. Piyathissa Ranasinghe  

Mr. H.W. Gunadasa 

Mr. M.M. Rafeek 

Dr. S.P.A.L. Ranaweera 

Mr. Deshabandu Sooriyapatabandi 

Mr. Thilak Dharmaratne 

Dr. Anoja Rodrigo 

Ms. Visaka Ellawala (Up to May 2020) 

Mr. W.M.S.S. Weerasekara (From September 2020) 

 

SECRETARY TO THE COUNCIL 

 

Mr. Kamal Gunawardana  - Acting Registrar 

(From 30th March 2020) 

 

Mr. V.D. Kithsiri   - Registrar 

(Up to 29th March 2020) 

 

 

The Council held 12 meetings during the year 2020. 

 

1.6 THE SENATE 

 

The Senate, which is the academic authority of the university, stipulated in section 46 of the 

Universities Act No. 16 of 1978, as subsequently amended comprised of the following 

members. 

 

CHAIRMAN 

 

Prof. R.M.U.S.K. Rathnayake  Vice Chancellor 

(From 02nd November 2020) 

Prof. W.K. Athula C. Gnanapala  Acting Vice Chancellor 

(From 19th May 2020 to 01st November 2020) 

Prof. M. Sunil Shantha Vice Chancellor 

     (Up to 18th May 2020)   



 
Draft Annual Report 2020 / Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka 

 

16 

MEMBERS OF THE SENATE 

 

Prof. H.M.S. Priyanath   Dean, Faculty of Graduate Studies 

Prof. M.M.P. Sumith Dean, Faculty of Agricultural Sciences 

Dr. R.S. Sabaragamuwa  Dean, Faculty of Applied Sciences 

(From 03rd October 2020) 

Prof. R.M.U.S.K. Rathnayake  Dean, Faculty of Applied Sciences 

    (Up to 02nd October 2020) 

Dr. H.M. Indika Prasanna  Dean, Faculty of Geomatics 

Prof. W.K. Athula C. Gnanapala Dean, Faculty of Management Studies 

Prof. M.N. Wickramaratne Dean, Faculty of Medicine 

Dr. M.A.C.S.S. Fernando  Dean, Faculty of Social Sciences and Languages 

    (From 13th October 2020) 

Dr. W. Manoj Ariyaratne Dean, Faculty of Social Sciences and Languages 

(Up to 12th October 2020) 

Dr. A.D. Ampitiyawatta Dean, Faculty of Technology 

 

Professors 

Prof. R.P. Mahaliyanaarachchi Senior Professor, Department of Agribusiness 

Management 

Prof. A.A.Y. Amarasinghe Senior Professor, Department of Export Agriculture 

Prof. C.P. Udawatte Senior Professor, Department of Physical Sciences and 

Technology 

Prof. Lal P. Vidana Arachchi                  Senior Professor, Department of Export Agriculture 

Prof. D.M.A. Gunarathne Professor, Department of Livestock Production   

Prof. G.M.L.P. Aponsu                           Professor, Department of Physical Sciences and 

Technology     

Prof. M. Esham  Professor, Department of Agribusiness Management 

Prof. P.M.A.S. Karunaratne                  Professor, Department of Export Agriculture 

Prof. P.I. Yapa Professor, Department of Export Agriculture    

Prof.  R.M.W. Rathnayake Professor, Department of Tourism Management 

Prof. S K Gunathilake Professor, Department of Natural Resources 

Prof. D.A.I. Dayaratne Professor, Department of Accountancy and Finance 

Prof. J.M.C.K. Jayawardana Professor, Department of Natural Resources 

Prof. M.S.M. Aslam Professor, Department of Tourism Management 

Prof. M.L.M.C. Dissanayake Professor, Department of Export Agriculture 

Prof. C.N. Walpita Professor, Department of Livestock Production 

Prof. T.L. Dammalage Professor, Department of Remote Sensing and GIS 

Prof. A. Sarath Ananda Professor, Department of Social Sciences 

Prof. M. Sunil Shantha Professor, Department of Economics and Statistics 

Prof. A. Aruna Shanthaarachchi Professor, Department of Economics and Statistics 
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Prof. S.S.A. Senevirathne Professor, Department of Languages 

Prof. K.P.L. Nishantha Professor, Department of Geography and 

Environmental Management 

Prof. S.D.A. Sandanayake Professor (Chair), Department of Physical Sciences and 

Technology 

Prof. H.A.D. Ruwandeepika  Professor, Department of Livestock Production 

 

Librarian 

Mrs. T.N. Neighsoorei   Librarian 

 

Heads 

Prof. D.A.M. de Silva Head, Department of Agribusiness Management 

       Dr. P.K. Dissanayake Head, Department of Export Agriculture   

  (Up to August 2020) 

Prof. P.M.A.S. Karunaratne  Head, Department of Export Agriculture 

     (From Sept. 2020) 

Dr. T.S.P. Jayaweera                              Head, Department of Livestock Production 

Dr. H.R.S. Bandara           Head, Department of Surveying and Geodesy 

Dr. S. Koswatte Head, Department of Remote Sensing and GIS 

Dr. B.T.G.S. Kumara  Head, Department of Computing and Information 

Systems (up to March 2020) 

Prof. S. Vasanthapriyan  Head, Department of Computing and Information 

  Systems (from June 2020) 

Dr. E.P. Kudavidanage              Head, Department of Natural Resources 

Prof. G.M.L.P. Aponsu                          Head, Department of Physical Sc. and Technology     

Mrs. T.S.H. Perera Head, Department of Sports Sciences and Physical 

Education 

Mrs. R.S. Sabaragamuwa Head, Department of Food Science and Technology  

   (Up to September 2020) 

Dr. W.S.M. Senevirathne Head, Department of Food Science and Technology 

   (From Oct. 2020) 

Dr. R.S.S.W. Arachchi                             Head, Department of Tourism Management 

    (Up to Sept. 2020) 

Dr. P.K.S. Munasinghe Head, Department of Tourism Management 

   (From Oct. 2020) 

Mr. D. Jasinghe                                       Head, Department of Marketing Management    

Dr. H.P.R. Priyankara Head, Department of Business Management   

Prof. D.A.I. Dayaratne   Head, Department of Accountancy and Finance 

      (Up to March 2020) 

Dr. D.G. Dharmarathna  Head, Department of Accountancy and Finance  

     (From July 2020) 
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Dr. M.A.C.S.S. Fernando              Head, Department of Economics and Statistics 

  (Up to Sept. 2020) 

Dr. R.A.H.M. Rupasinghe  Head, Department of Economics and Statistics 

     (From Dec. 2020) 

Dr. K.V.D.E. Menike Head, Department of Geography and Environmental 

      Management   

Dr. K.S.N. Prasangani                             Head Department of English. Lang. Teaching 

Dr. R.G.S. Rathnayake   Head, Department of Languages 

Mr. S.K. Handaragama Head, Department of Social Sciences  

Dr. K.R. Koswattage                Head, Department of Engineering Technology 

Dr. W.G.M.S. Perera                         Head, Department of Bio System Technology 

Dr. M.M.J.A. Jayawardena               Head, Department of Physiology 

Dr. G.N. Pushpakumara                  Head, Department of Anatomy 

Dr. Amal Wageesha  Head, Department of Biochemistry 

 

FACULTY BOARD REPRESENTATIVE 

 

Dr. A.W. Wijerathne   Faculty of Agricultural Science 

Dr. C.N. Walpita   Faculty of Agricultural Science 

     (Up to July 2020)  

Dr. M.S.J. Perera   Faculty of Applied Science 

Prof. S. Vasanthapriyan  Faculty of Applied Science 

Mrs. R.P.S.H. Hettiarachchi  Faculty of Social Sciences and Languages 

Dr. K.R.W.K.H. Abeywickrama Faculty of Social Sciences and Languages 

     (From October 2020) 

Dr. H.A. Nalini    Faculty of Geomatics 

     (Up to March 2020) 

Dr. P.G.R.N.I. Pussella   Faculty of Geomatics 

     (From August 2020) 

Dr. H. Divithura   Faculty of Geomatics  

Dr. D.G. Dharmarathna  Faculty of Management Studies 

     (Up to March 2020) 

Dr. L.M.C.S. Menike   Faculty of Management Studies 

     (From August 2020) 

Dr. W.M.P.S.B. Wahala  Faculty of Management Studies 

Dr. Kaveesha Wijesinghe  Faculty of Medicine 

     (From June 2020) 

Mr. B.A.P.M.L. Pathirana   Faculty of Social Sciences and Languages 

Mrs. R.P.S.H. Hettiarachchi  Faculty of Social Sciences and Languages  

Dr. P.K.G.S. Bandara   Faculty of Technology 

      (From June to September 2020) 

Dr. R.M.K.T. Rathnayaka  Faculty of Applied Sciences 

     (from October 2020) 
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SECRETARY TO THE SENATE 

 

Mr. Kamal Gunawardana  Acting Registrar 

(From 30th March 2020) 

 

Mr. V.D. Kithsiri   Registrar 

(Up to 29th March 2020) 

 

 

The Senate held 10 meetings and 2 special Senate meetings during the year 2020. 
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1.7 ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE 
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2. FACULTIES 

 

2.1 FACULTY OF GRADUATE STUDIES  

 

2.1.1 BRIEF HISTORY  

 

Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka (SUSL) offers its graduate qualifications through the 

Faculty of Graduate Studies (FGS). The University Grants Commission, at its 928th meeting 

held on November 9, 2015, granted the approval to establish the Faculty of Graduate 

Studies.   

 

Within this broader spectrum, FGS offers a wide range of postgraduate studies related to 

the fields such as Agricultural Sciences, Computing & Information Systems, Geomatics, 

Humanities, Management, Physical & Natural Sciences, Social Sciences, Sports Sciences and 

Physical Education. The students who follow the graduate degree programmes available in 

these fields certainly benefit in widening their research based knowledge not only to 

enhance the career progression, but also to redefine the existing ontologies to reach 

beyond national spatiotemporal horizons.  

 

At present the FGS offers three taught programmes leading for the graduate qualifications 

at master level and research higher degree programme leading to MPhil and PhD 

qualifications. Altogether there are 318 active postgraduate students at present and 

another 100-120 prospective students have been applied for the enrolment in 2020.  Thus, 

the objective of the FGS is to provide an opportunity as well as to facilitate effective and 

efficient delivery of study programmes through quality teaching and research training to 

produce individuals with graduate qualifications in their respective disciplines who are 

competent in facing the challenges of development both locally and internationally. 

 

2.1.2 FACULTY MANAGEMENT 

 

Dean    Prof. H.M.S. Priyanath 
   BA (SJP), MA (SJP), PhD (CMB) 

    

Assistant Registrar  Ms. G.W.N.R. Wijerathne (Acting Assistant Registrar) 
    BA (SUSL), Dip (English) 

    (From 14th December 2020) 

 

    Mr. D.S.R.C. Sawanawadu (Acting Assistant Registrar) 
    MSc (Computer Sciences) (UOC), BSc (BIT) (SLIIT) 

    (From 02nd December 2020 up to 13th December 2020) 
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Mr. A. Hisnathas 

    BBA (EUSL), MBA (SEUSL) (Reading) 

    (Up to 01st December 2020) 

 

Assistant Bursar  Mr. V.K.S. Chathumal 

    BSc (Finance) (CMB) 

    (From 06th January 2020)     

 

    Ms. N.W.N.P. Wijendra 

    BSc (Business Administration) (SJP) 

    (Up to 05th January 2020) 

 

2.1.3 DEGREE PROGRAMMES CONDUCTED BY THE FACULTY 

 

 Postgraduate Diploma in Business Administration  

 Postgraduate Diploma in English & Education  

 Master of Business Administration 

 Master of Business Administration (Finance) 

 Master of Business Administration (Marketing) 

 Master of Business Administration (Tourism) 

 MSc in Ayurvedic Hospital Management 

 MSc in Surveying Sciences   

 

 

2.1.4 AREAS OF CONSENTRATION 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 Agribusiness Management 

 Agricultural Environment & 

Resource Management  

 Animal Bio-resource Management 

 Aquatic Bio-resource Management 

 Crop Improvement & Plant 

Protection 

 Crop Production Technology 

 Food Business Management 
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 Computer Science 

 Information Technology 

 Software Engineering 

 

 Geodesy 

 Geography Information Systems 

 Hydrography 

 Land Management 

 Land Surveying 

 Remote Sensing 

 

 English 

 German 

 Media Studies 

 Sinhala 

 Tamil 

 

 Environmental management 

 Finance 

 Marketing 

 Parks & Recreation 

 Tourism 
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 Applied Physics 

 Chemical Technology 

 Conservation Biology 

 Earth Sciences 

 Environmental Sciences 

 Food Science aaaa7 Technology 

 Physucal Sciences 

 

 Biostatistics 

 Business Economics & Statictics 

 Development Economics 

 Development Studies 

 Economectrics 

 Environmental Economics 

 Financial Economics 

 Hazard Disaster Management 

 Human Resource Economics 

 Land Use Planning 

 Library & Information Science 

 Medical Sociology 

 Regional & Cultural Studies 

 Regional Development & Planning 

 

 Physical Education 

 Sport Sciences 
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2.2 FACULTY OF AGRICULTURAL SCIENCES 

 

2.2.1 BRIEF HISTORY 

 

The Faculty of Agricultural Sciences of Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka was initially 

established at Rahangala in 1995 and was shifted to the main premises at Belihuloya in 

2001. Academic programs were conducted with limited facilities at Belihuloya from 2001. 

The faculty was able to win competitive World Bank grants of Rs. 82.5 million and Rs. 120 

million respectively to develop infrastructure and other academic facilities in 2005 & 2018. 

A comprehensive curriculum revision was undertaken and the degree programme was 

renamed as Agricultural Sciences and Management. 

 

2.2.2 FACULTY MANAGEMENT 

 

Dean       Prof. M.M.P. Sumith 
BVSc (Sri Lanka), MSc (Kobe-Japan), PhD (Kobe – 

Japan) 

   

Heads 

 

Department of Agribusiness Management   Prof. D.A.M. De Silva 
BSc (Agri.) (RUH), MBA in Agribusiness 

Management (PDN), PhD (Hiroshima University, 

Japan) 

 

Department of Export Agriculture   Prof. P.M.A.S. Karunaratne 
BScHons (Agriculture) (PDN), MPhil (Crop 

Physiology) (PDN), PhD (Crop Modelling) 

(University of Nottingham, United Kindom) 

 

Department of Livestock Production   Dr. T.S.P. Jayaweera 
BVScHons (PDN), MSc (Food Science and 

Nutrition) (Ghent University, Belgium) 

 

Assistant Registrar Ms. M.D.N.K. Maddage  
BAHons (KLN), MA (Human Resource 

Management) (IHRA, UOC)  

 

2.2.3 DEGREE PROGRAMMES CONDUCTED BY THE FACULTY 

 

The Faculty is composed of three Departments of study such as Agribusiness Management, 

Export Agriculture and Livestock Production.The Faculty of Agricultural Sciences offers the 

following four year honours degree programmes. 
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 BSc Hons (Agricultural Sciences and Management) (students can specialize in four 

fields such as Agribusiness Management, Agri-Environmental Resource 

Management, Crop Improvement & Plant Protection, Crop Production Technology, 

Animal Bio-resource Technology & Management, Aquatic Bio-resource Technology & 

Management) 

 

 BSc Hons (Food Business Management)  

 

The Department of Export Agriculture offers three academic modules as Agri-Environmental 

Resource Management, Crop Improvement & Plant Protection and Crop Production 

Technology. During the first four semesters (first 2 years), students need to follow core-

courses for their general study on Agriculture followed by specialization either in 

Agribusiness Management, Agri-Environmental Resource Management, Crop Improvement 

& Plant Protection, Crop Production Technology and Animal Bio-resource Technology & 

Management, Aquatic Bio-resource Technology & Management for two more semesters (in 

the 3rd year). Students must select their field of specialization at the end of the second year, 

according to their preferences. Farm Practice, Computer Sciences and English courses are 

offered in the first three years and students must reach a satisfactory grade for each course 

in each semester to complete the degree. In addition, elective courses are offered during 

the third year second semester and final year first semester. Students must select two 

elective courses in third year and four elective courses at final year according to their 

preferences. The second semester of the final year BSc Agricultural Sciences and 

Management student is allocated for industrial training while both semesters to the final 

year of Food Business Management Degree Programme allocated for industrial training 

which is a vital and specific component of the degree programs and students must 

undertake a research in the specialized field. The medium of instruction of the degree 

program is English. 

 

The Faculty organizes programs as the practical components of the degree programme in 

collaboration with farmers in the area to ensure that knowledge and skills are exchanged 

between students and farmers. As a result, the Faculty of Agricultural Sciences has 

developed close links with the surrounding communities. Furthermore, students are given 

an opportunity to visit various industries to get exposure to operational aspects of the 

industry and research organizations.   

 

2.2.4 FACULTY FARM 

 

Agriculture Faculty Farm Organized in 2003 at Mungasthenna Area. It is consisted with 33 

acres. There are three main units as Live- stock production Unit, Crop production Unit and Farm 

Stay Unit. It is mainly targeted for the fulfilment of student’s practical purpose and research 

purpose.  
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When considering Livestock Unit, it consists following Units. 

 

 Swine Unit  

 Poultry Unit 

1. Layer Unit 

2. Broiler Unit 

 Dairy Cattle Unit 

 Rabbit Unit 

 Goat Unit 

 Miscellaneous Unit 

Following activies are taking place at the Faculty Farm 

 

 Herbal Gardening 

 Feeding Farm Animals 

 Milking 

 Animal Restraining 

 Guided Farm Tour 

 You Pick Operations 

 Protected Agricultural Practice 

 Bird Watching 

 Jungle Tracking 

 Hiking 
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Crop Production Unit 

 

Mainly, the farm consists with perennial field crops. 

 

Agrifac Farm Stay 

 

Agrifac Farm Stay is nested in the 

Belihuloya Ranges, Sabaragamuwa 

Province, Sri Lanka which is 

managed by the Department of 

Agribusiness Management. It is a 

perfect stopover on the Colombo-

Badulla Highway and a charming 

and peaceful holiday destination 

for much needed "gateway-from-

it-all" restful break. 

 

There are three main cabanas in the Agrifac Farm Stay   

 Lake View 

 Farm View 

 Mountain View 
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2.3 FACULTY OF APPLIED SCIENCES 

 

2.3.1 BRIEF HISTORY 

 

The Faculty of Applied Sciences of the Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka was initially 

started as the Buttala Affiliated University College (BAUC) on 21st June 1993. The BAUC offered 

two diploma courses, one in Food Science and Technology and the other in English Language. 

With the elevation of the Affiliated University Colleges to fully fledged national Universities in 

early 1996, three Affiliated University Colleges; Sabaragamuwa Affiliated University College, 

Uva Affiliated University College and Buttala Affiliated University College were amalgamated to 

form the Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka and the BAUC became the Faculty of Applied 

Sciences of the Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka.  

 

The faculty has been relocated in the main university premises at Belihuloya with the effect 

from March 2008. 

 

2.3.2 FACULTY MANAGEMENT 

 

Dean           Dr. R.S. Sabaragamuwa 
BScHons (Sp.) (PDN), MPhil (PDN), PhD (UoA, 

New Zeeland) 
(From 03rd October 2020) 

 

Prof. R.M.U.S.K. Rathnayake 
BScHons (Sp.) in Agriculture (RUH), MSc in 

Biotechnology (PDN), PhD (AIT) Thailand 

(Up to 02nd October 2021) 
 

Heads 

 

Department of Natural Resources        Dr. E.P. Kudavidanage   
BScHons (Sp.) (UOC), MSc (UOC), PhD (NUS, 

Singapore) 

 

Department of Food Sciences & Technology  Dr. W.S.M. Senevirathne 
BSc (OUSL), MSc (South Korea), PhD (South 

Korea) 
       (From 03rd October 2020) 

 

Mrs. R.S. Sabaragamuwa   
         BScHons (Sp.) (PDN), MPhil (PDN) 

(Up to 02nd October 2020) 
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Department of Physical Science & Technology  Dr. C.H. Baduraliya 
       BScHons (Sp.) (SJP), MSc (PDN), PhD (UK) 

       (From 04th October 2020)  

 

Prof. G.M.L.P. Aponsu  
BScHons (Sp.) (UOC), MPhil (UOC), PhD (SJP) 

       (Up to 03rd October 2020)  

   

Department of Computing and    Prof. S. Vasanthapriyan 

Information Systems BScHons (Sp.) (PDN), MSc (Einhoven University 

of Technology, Nettherland), PhD (Wuhan 

University of Technology, China)  
       (From 01st May 2020) 

 

       Dr. B.T.G.S. Kumara 
BScHons (Sp.) (SUSL), MSc (PDN), PhD (Japan) 

       (Up to 30th April 2020) 

 

Department of Sport Sciences and Physical   Mrs. T.S.H. Perera 

Education      BScHons (Sp.) (SUSL), MSc (China)  

        

Assistant Registrar     Mr. M. Sutharshan 
BSc in Nursing (PDN), Dip in Sports Sciences & 

Excercises (PDN) 

       (From 07th December 2020) 

 

Mrs. A.A.Y. Abeysinghe 
PGD (UOC), BA (Social Sciences, OUSL) 

(Up to 06th December 2020) 

 

2.3.3 DEGREE PROGRAMS CONDUCTED BY THE FACULTY 

 

The Faculty comprises five departments: Department of Natural Resources, Department of 

Physical Sciences & Technology, Department of Food Science & Technology, Department of 

Computing & Information Systems and Department of Sport Science and Physical Education.  

 

The Faculty offers B.Sc. (Special) degree programs in Food Science and Technology, 

Environmental Sciences and Natural Resource Management, Chemical Technology, 

Computer Science and Technology, Applied Physics, Computing and Information Systems, 

Sport Sciences and Management and Physical Education for the students who can gain 

direct entry to the Faculty on the basis of their performance at the GCE (Advanced Level) 

examination. 
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The degree programs are designed to be four-year degree programs with an exit point at 

three years for the students who graduate with a general degree in B.Sc. in Physical Sciences 

and Technology and Environmental Sciences and Management. The rest of the degree 

programs are strictly four-year degree programs.  

 

The selection of the students for the B.Sc. degree programs in Sport Sciences and 

Management and Physical Education is done on the basis of the G.C.E. (A/L) results as well 

as the performance at a selection test (Written examination). The students who wish to get 

enrolled for the degree programs in Sport Sciences and Management and Physical Education 

are also required to face an examination for physical fitness in addition to the selection test. 

However, the selection procedure has been changed by the UGC through a circular and 

there will not be any further aptitude tests for the recruitment of undergraduates for the 

Faculty.   

 

All degree programs offered through the faculty are designed to cater the current job trends 

and demands both nationally and internationally. They are conducted exclusively in English. 

These degree programs are designed as interdisciplinary by incorporating subjects as 

Computer Science, Economics, Management, etc. that has facilitated our students to 

perform well once graduating serving a wider field than being specific and narrowed to than 

specialized field.   

 

Apart from the academic activities, the Faculty also contributes to the development of the 

community and the nation through extension and knowledge dissemination programs.  The 

staff and the students participate for such activities annually.   

 

Degree Programs Offered by the Faculty of Applied Sciences 

 

Bachelor of Science Honours in Information Systems 

Bachelor of Science Honours in Food Science and Technology 

Bachelor of Science in Environmental Sciences and Natural Resource Management 

Bachelor of Science Honours in Environmental Sciences and Natural Resource Management 

Bachelor of Science in Physical Sciences 

Bachelor of Science Honours in Applied Physics 

Bachelor of Science Honours in Chemical Technology 

Bachelor of Science Honours in Computer Science and Technology 

Bachelor of Science Honours in Physical Education 

Bachelor of Science Honours in Sport Sciences and Management 
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Department of Computing and Information Systems 

 

The Department of Computing and Information Systems offers a B.Sc. Honours in 

Information Systems was established in 01st March 2011, though the Degree programme 

was initiated back in 2008. The curriculum is specifically designed to produce skilled 

graduates both in Computing and Information Technology. At present the department has 

three well established laboratories and the student capacity of the department is 312. 

  

The demand for the above degree programme has greatly increased thorough out the years 

and annual intake has reached the maximum capacity of 80 students per batch. The 

department has close collaborations with private computer industries to obtain technical 

support in conducting lectures and practical as well as to provide opportunities for the 

undergraduates to carry out their mini projects and final year projects. This also has 

increased the opportunity for the undergraduates to secure job opportunities immediately 

after graduation. The staff of the Department consists of one professor, five senior lecturers 

and seven probationary lecturers. 

 

Department of Food Science and Technology 

 

The Department of Food Science and Technology was established in 2005 even though the 

B.Sc. degree in Food Science and Technology was offered under the Department of Natural 

Resources since the inception of the Faculty in 1996.  The range of the study areas includes 

Food Science Technology core, Applied Food Technologies, General Sciences, Statistics, 

Computer Science & Technology, Food Marketing, Industrial Economics and courses in 

scientific communication and career development. The degree program is designed for the 

students who wish to pursue professional careers in the field of Food Science and 

Technology. The knowledge and skills gained from the degree program enable the graduates 

to cater the growing demand for Food Scientists & Technologists both in government and 

the private sector, locally and abroad. The degree also paves an excellent path for 

postgraduate studies in related disciplines of Food Science and Technology. At present, the 

Department academic staff comprises one professor, seven senior lecturers and two 

probationary lecturers. There are several eminent senior academics and industrial experts 

who contribute as visiting Professionals in their specialized fields. The Department has five 

well-equipped laboratories for conducting undergraduate lab sessions and relevant 

research, namely; Food Analysis Laboratory, Food Microbiology Laboratory, Food Processing 

Laboratory, Meat Processing Laboratory and Dairy Processing Laboratory and the current 

student capacity of the department is 150. 
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Department of Natural Resources 

 

The Department of Natural Resources was established in 1996 offering a B.Sc. General 

degree in Natural Resources. The degree program offered by the Department is designed to 

cater the current job market in the fields of Environmental Protection, Natural Resource 

Management and Conservation, Biodiversity Conservation and Management, Environmental 

Advocacy and Ecology both in Sri Lanka and around the world. 

 

In 2006, the Degree Programme which was initially offered as B.Sc. in Natural Resources as a 

three-year general degree program was upgraded and restructured to offer a Degree 

programme as Environmental Science and Natural Resources Management which has 

improved the job opportunities for the graduates. Currently the degree program is oriented 

in three major streams viz. Environmental Science, Biological Science and Earth Science with 

awarding two degree programs as B.Sc. (Special) in Environmental Science and Natural 

Resources Management – 4 years and B.Sc. (General) in Environmental Science and Natural 

Resources Management – 3 years. The degree also paves an excellent path for postgraduate 

studies. The Department has the capacity to enroll sixty students per year. At present, the 

academic staff of the department consists of ten faculty members including two professors, 

seven senior lecturers and one lecturer.   

 

Department of Physical Sciences & Technology  

  

The Department of Physical Sciences & Technology conducts degree courses in three major 

disciplines; namely, Chemical Technology, Applied Physics and Computer Science & 

Technology. Mathematics, Statistics, and Management Studies are conducted as supporting 

tools for the programme. The Department offers four-degree programs namely: B.Sc. 

(Applied Sciences) Special Degree in Chemical Technology (Duration: 4 years), B.Sc.  (Applied 

Sciences) Special Degree in Computer Science & Technology (Duration: 4 years) B.Sc. 

(Applied Sciences) Special Degree in Applied Physics (Duration: 4 years) and B.Sc. (Applied 

Sciences) Degree in Physical Sciences (Duration: 3 years). 

 

All theoretical course units conducted by the department are heavily supported by a 

practical component which provides the preliminary experience to perform confidently. And 

also, the Mini projects conducted throughout the third and the fourth academic years 

stimulate the students & creative and innovative thinking. The Final year project (research 

or industrial training) for one entire semester exposes the undergraduates to the working 

environment and provides hand on experience in industry before the graduation. The 

environment in the campus and the teaching programs were all designed in a manner to 

establish this goal and also to produce specialists in their respective fields. Additionally, it is 

also creditable that the Department offers the only Degree in Applied Physics in the entire 

University System in the country. The Department has four (04) well-equipped laboratories 
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namely; Physics Laboratory, Chemistry Laboratory I, Chemistry Laboratory II & Chemistry 

Research Laboratory and the student capacity of the department is 117. The staff of the 

department consists of one Chair Professor, one Senior Professor, one professor, eight 

senior lecturers, seven probationary lecturers, one temporary assistant lecturer, and two 

temporary lecturers. 

 

Department of Sport Sciences and Physical Education 

 

Two-degree programs namely B.Sc. Special Degree in Sport Sciences & Management and 

B.Sc. Special Degree in Physical Education have been awarded since 2008 through the 

Faculty of Applied Sciences. The Department of Sport Sciences and Physical Education was 

established in 01st March 2011. The courses of Sport Sciences & Management degree 

programme is specially designed to produce graduates with basic scientific sport skills and 

management skills required for today’s teaching sports at primary, secondary and tertiary 

education levels and at other industries and organizations. The degree programme in 

Physical Education is specially designed to produce graduates who are competent the 

scientific basis of physical education activities and practices. The duration of the degree 

programs are four years and at present there is a great demand for the degree programme 

which is significantly shown by the increasing number of student intake each year and at 

present the intake has reached the maximum capacity. The both degree programs are well 

supported by practical activities and projects that has enabled to produce skilled and 

competent graduates within four years. The department also has many collaborations with 

sports organizations facilitating the students to participate in many national and 

international gaming competitions and couching programs. The Department has two well-

equipped laboratories namely; Exercise biochemistry Laboratory and Research 

Laboratory and the student capacity of the department is 374. The staff comprises of six 

senior lecturers, two lecturers, five probationary lecturers, two instructors and three 

temporary assistant lecturers. The service of eminent sport specialist is also obtained to 

conduct both practical and theory courses for the students. 
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2.4 FACULTY OF GEOMATICS 

 

2.4.1 BRIEF HISTORY 

 

The Faculty of Geomatics is one of the eight faculties of the Sabaragamuwa University of Sri 

Lanka and which was established in 2004. It is the successor to the Department of Surveying 

Sciences, which introduced the B.Sc. (Surveying Sciences) Degree Programme in 1997. This 

was the first time in the history of the university system in Sri Lanka that such a degree 

programme was introduced by a university fulfilling a much felt need of the country. The 

Degree Programme is a four-year course leading to a special degree. The first batch of 

students admitted to the degree programme in 1997 and graduated in 2002. 

 

2.4.2 FACULTY MANAGEMENT   

 

Dean       Dr. H.M. Indika Prasanna 
BScHons (Surveying Sciences) (SUSL), MPhil 

(Geodesy) (SJP), PhD (Geodesy) Polytechnic 

University, Hong Kong 

       

Heads    

 

Department of Surveying and Geodesy   Mr. P.G.V. Abeyratne 
BSc (Surveying Geodesy, Photogrammetry), MSc 

(Photogrammetry and Geoinformatics, Stuttgart 

University of Applied Sciences, Germany) 

       (From 09th December 2020) 

 

Dr. H.R.S. Bandara 
BSc (SUSL), MSc (PDN), PhD (Civil Engineering) 

(Monash University, Australiya) 

       (Up to 08th December 2020) 

 

Department of Remote Sensing GIS   Dr. R.M.K.G.S.P.B. Koswatte 
       BSc (Surveying Sciences, SUSL), MPhil (PDN), PhD 

(Spatial Scieces, USQ, Australia) 

 

Assistant Registrar     Mrs. H.H.K.N. Dharmasiri 
       BScHons (PDN), MSc (PGIA, PDN) 
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2.4.3 DEGREE PROGRAMMES CONDUCTED BY THE FACULTY 

 

The faculty offers BSc Surveying Sciences degree in five areas of Specialization. They are: 

   

1) Bachelor of Science Honours in Surveying Sciences in Surveying & Geodesy 

2) Bachelor of Science Honours in Surveying Sciences in Land Management 

3) Bachelor of Science Honours in Surveying Sciences in Hydrographic Surveying 

4) Bachelor of Science Honours in Surveying Sciences in Remote Sensing 

5) Bachelor of Science Honours in Surveying Sciences in Geographic Information 

System 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The English Camp for the Freshers 
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2.5 FACULTY OF MANAGEMENT STUDIES 

 

2.5.1 BRIEF HISTORY 

 

The Faculty of Business Studies commenced its programs by offering a three-year degree 

under the Department of Accountancy & Finance & the Department of Business 

Management in September 1996.  After the completion of the Foundation Year and two 

specialization years, a Bachelor of Science degree could be obtained in the fields of Financial 

Management, Business Management, Marketing Management and Tourism Management. 

Accordingly, six batches of undergraduate students obtained their B.Sc. Special Degrees in 

Financial Management, Business Management, Marketing Management and Tourism 

Management and passed out in the years of 1997, 1998, 1999, 2000, 2001 and 2002. 

 

The Faculty of Business Studies was renamed as the Faculty of Management Studies with 

the approval of the University Grants Commission (UGC) in the year 2003. The duration of 

the degree Programmes conducted by the Faculty was also changed from three years to 

four years with the approval of the UGC, at the same time.  

 

Currently, the Faculty of Management Studies comprises with four departments; i.e. 

Department of Accountancy & Finance, Department of Business Management, Department 

of Marketing Management and Department of Tourism Management. 

 

2.5.2 FACULTY MANAGEMENT 

 

Dean      Prof. W.K. Athula C. Gnanapala 
BSc (Tourism Management) (SUSL), MSc (SJP), PhD 

(Xiamen- P R China) 

      

Heads 

 

Department of Accountancy & Finance Dr. D.G. Dharmarathne 
BSc (Financial   Management) (SUSL), MBA (PDN), PhD 

(CMB)  

 

Department of Business Management Dr. H.P.R. Priyankara 
BSc (Bus Admin) (HRM) (SJP), MBA (HRM) (CMB), PhD 

(WUT) (China) 

 

Department of Marketing Management Mr. D. Jasinghe 
BSc (Bus Admin) (SJP), MSc (SJP) 
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Department of Tourism Management Dr. P.K.S. Munasinghe 
BSc (Tourism Management) (SUSL), MBA (PIM - SJP), PhD 

(New Zealand) 

 

Assistant Registrar    Mrs. R.N. Neluwapathirana 
BSc (Business Administration) (SJP), MA (Sp.) 

(Development Managemet) (OUSL), LLB (AIM, 

Philippines) 

 

2.5.3 DEGREE PROGRAMMES CONDUCTED BY THE FACULTY 

 

The four departments of the faculty conduct seven undergraduate level courses with 

specialization and each course is of four year duration.  

 

Department Degree Programme(s) 

Department of Business Management  B.Sc. Honours in Business Management  

Department of Marketing  Management B.Sc. Honours in Marketing Management 

Department of Accountancy & Finance   B.Sc. Honours in Financial Management 

B.Sc. Honours in Banking & Insurance  

Department of Tourism  Management B.Sc. Honours in Tourism Management 

B.Sc. Honours in Eco-Business Management  

B.Sc. Honours in Hospitality Management  

 

 

Details of Knowledge Dissemination to the General Public during the year 2020 

 

World Environment Day Celebrations at New Normal: Virtual Learning Programme 2020 

 

Outline of the programme 

 

The programme was organized by EcoBusiness Management Degree programme, 

Department of Tourism Management, Faculty of Management Studies in collaboration with 

Hayleys PLC. Initially, the participants were enrolled to the entire programme via online 

registration. Upon registration completion, the participants were provided with the tailor-

made tool kit to supplement their learning experience during the programme. Online 

assessments, challenges and online talks were the integral components of the programme. 

 

Date of Comencement of Programme 

 

From June 05th – 15th 2020 
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Online Assessments 

 

Three online assessments namely: Pre-assessment, Mid-Assessment and Final-Assessment 

were conducted in order to ensure the continual improvements of the participants 

throughout the programme. 

 

Challenges 

 

Four nature-based challenges (Upcycle Challenge, Nature Art Challenge, Nature Quote 

Challenge, Ocean Day Challenge,) were conducted during the programme to enhance the 

involvement and knowledge of the participants. 

 

Online talks 

 

Six virtual talks were conducted by involving academic and industrial professionals. 

 

Session Session Title Resource Persons 

Session 01 Indian Pangolins: Science and 

Conservation 

Dr. Priyan Perera 

University of Jayawardenapura, Sri 

Lanka 

Session 02 Cleaner Production Applications Over 

Green Business 

Eng. Samantha Kumarasena 

CEO, National Cleaner Production 

Centre 

Session 03 Biodiversity Journey of Hayleys Plantations 

Sector 

Dr. Roshan Rajadurai 

Managing Director,  

Hayleys Plantations 

Session 04 Sri Lanka Biodiversity Way Forward Prof. Sarath Kotagama 

University of Colombo 

Session 05 Importance of Circular Economy and 

Industrial Symbiosis as the New Normal 

Prof. Ajith De Alwis 

University of Moratuwa 

Session 06 Biodiversity vs Industry Practices Ecologist Amila Sumanapala 

University of Colombo 
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2.6 FACULTY OF MEDICINE 

 

2.6.1 BRIEF HISTORY 

 

The Faculty of Medicine at Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka is the latest addition to 

the chain of Medical Faculties in Sri Lanka. It was established in the year 2018 under Gazette 

Notice No. 2082/32 of August 01, 2018. It becomes the 8th Faculty at the Sabaragamuwa 

University of Sri Lanka. The medical profession caters to one of the most crucial needs of the 

society. Therefore, it stands to reason that medical degrees are among the most challenging 

and competitive qualifications to pursue. This Faculty comprises with 15 Departments which 

are dedicated to achieve all aspects of its academic mission and objectives. The academic 

elements in the MBBS Degree Program are based on four main disciplinary pillars; 

theoretical education, clinical care, community engagement, and research. The Faculty of 

Medicine is established in Rathnapura where the first year of the degree program will be 

conducted in the land adjacent to the Provincial General Hospital, Ratnapura at the 

Batuhena Faculty premises. A new faculty building and the professorial unit are currently 

being constructed at the land adjacent to the Provincial General Hospital, Ratnapura, which 

would serve as the teaching hospital for the Faculty of Medicine providing all clinical training 

facilities for the students. The Faculty would accommodate 75 students per intake and will 

furnish with all the facilities required to conduct the medical academic programs which are 

established. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Faculty Musium 
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2.6.2 FACULTY MANAGEMENT 

 

Dean      Prof. M.N. Wickramaratne 
Graduateship in Chemistry (Institute of Chemistry), PhD 

in Biochemistry, Loyola University, Chicago Chicago, 

Illinois USA  

 

Heads 

 

Department of Biochemistry   Dr. Amal Wageesha 
PhD in Biochemistry (UOC), MPhil in Biochemistry (SJP), 

Graduateship in Cemistry (Institute of Chemistry), MI 

Chem C. 

 

Department of Physiology   Dr. Janya Janyawardena (Acting Head) 
MBBS (SJP) 

 

Department of Anatomy   Dr. Nilantha Gamalathge 
MBBS (SL) (Res), MD (Res), DTCD (UOC), MSc (UK) DOHS 

(UOC), PGCME (UOC), AET (UK)  

 

Senior Assistant Registrar  Mrs. A.A.S. Priyadarshanee  
BA (Sp.), MPhil (Economics) (PDN), Dip in English, Dip in 

HRM 

  

2.6.3 DEGREE PROGRAMMES CONDUCTED BY THE FACULTY 

 

MBBS – Bachelor of Medicine and Bachelor of Surgery. 

 

The Faculty of Medicine consists of following departments. 

1. Department of Anatomy 

2. Department of Biochemistry 

3. Department of Physiology 

4. Department of Parasitology 

5. Department of Microbiology 

6. Department of Forensic Medicine and Toxicology 

7. Department of Pathology 

8. Department of Community Medicine 

9. Department of Family Medicine 

10. Department of Pharmacology 

11. Department of Surgery 

12. Department of Medicine 

13. Department of Pediatrics 

14. Department of Obstetrics and Gynaecology 

15. Department of Psychiatry 
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2.7 FACULTY OF SOCIAL SCIENCES AND LANGUAGES  

 

2.7.1 BRIEF HISTORY 

 

The Faculty of Social Sciences and Languages had its beginning at the same time, when the 

University commissioned its study programs in 1996. The Faculty initially possessed two 

Departments of studies i.e. the Department of Languages and the Department of Social 

Sciences. The third Department of the Faculty, the Department of English Language 

Teaching was initiated in 2004 while the fourth, the Department of Economics and Statistics 

commenced in 2009. The Department of Geography and Environmental Management was 

established as the fifth Department in 2015. The Faculty began its academic operations in 

November 1996 with the intake of students from the former affiliated University Collage, 

who were permitted, with their Diplomas in English, to study for a degree after two years. 

The Faculty started to register students with Advanced Level qualification only from the 

year 1998. 

 

In pursuit of its vision and mission, the Faculty offers Honors Degrees through its 

Departments. Breaking from the initial concept of three year Honors degrees in the Faculty, 

in 2007, the Faculty introduced four-year Honors Degree Programs in Economics, Statistics, 

Geography, Political Science, Sociology and Anthropology in addition to its three year Social 

Sciences Honors Degree Program. Four-year Honors Degree Programs in Sinhala, Tamil, 

English, German, Japanese, Chinese and Hindi have also been introduced with the effect 

from 2013. In 2014, the Faculty introduced Bachelor of Arts Honors in Information & 

Communication Technology and in 2015, Bachelor of Arts Honors in Translation Studies. At 

present, the Faculty offers four-year Honors Degrees and three-year General Degrees only. 

 

The Faculty of Social Sciences and Languages prepares students for professional careers by 

providing them with a broad understanding of the humanistic tradition in combination with 

a sound knowledge of subjects in several disciplines. Our programs emphasize the ability to 

apply this knowledge to problems and tasks in the contemporary world of work. We strive 

to develop students' capacity for independent and critical thought, logical analysis, effective 

communication, and informed participation in teamwork. Therefore, the Bachelor of Arts 

program integrates classroom work and students' independent reading and writing with 

hands-on research and project work.  
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Confucius Classroom held its 01st Spring Festival, Gala 
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2.7.2 FACULTY MANAGEMENT  

 

Dean       Dr. M.A.C.S.S. Fernando 

BScHons (Statistics) (SJP), MPhil (PDN), PhD 

(University of Auckland) 

      (From 13th October 2020) 

 

Dr. W. Manoj Ariyaratne                                                                

BAHons (SJP), MA (SJP), PhD (Pune)  

       (Up to 12th October 2020) 

 

Heads 

 

Department of Economics and Statistics  Dr. R.A.H.M. Rupasingha 

BSc (Computing and Information Systems) 

(SUSL), MSc (Computer Science and Engineering) 

(University of Aizu, Japan), PhD (Computer 

Sciences and Engineering) (University of Aizu, 

Japan) 

       (From 13th November 2020) 

 

       Prof. H.M.S. Priyanath (Acting Head) 

       BA (SJP), MA (SJP), PhD (CMB) 

       (From 12th October to 12th November 2020) 

 

Dr. M.A.C.S.S. Fernando 

BScHons (Statistics) (SJP), MPhil (PDN), PhD 

(University of Auckland) 

       (Up to 11th October 2020)  

      

Department of English Language Teaching  Dr. K.S.N. Prasangani 

BAHons (Languages) (SUSL), MA in Linguistics 

(KLN), PhD (Applied Linguistics) (University 

Malaysia, Sarawak)  

  

Department of Geography & Environmental  Dr. K.V.D.E. Menike 

Management BA (Geography), MA (Geography) (SJP), PhD 

(Geography) (SJP) 

  

Department of Languages Dr. R.G.S. Rathnayake 

BA (Sp.) (Hindi) (KLN), MPhil (Hindi) (KLN), PhD 

(Hindi) (MGAHV, India) 
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Department of Social Sciences                              Mr. S.K. Handaragama 
BAHons (Sp.) (Sociology) (UOC), MA (Sociology) 

(UOC) 

        

Assistant Registrar     Mrs. Yashodha Chandrasekara 
       LL.BHons (Law) (UOC)   

 

 

2.7.3 DEGREE PROGRAMS CONDUCTED BY THE FACULTY 

 

The Faculty of Social Sciences and Languages consists of five Departments namely; the 

Department of Economics and Statistics, the Department of Geography & Environmental 

Management, the Department of Languages, the Department of Social Sciences and the 

Department of English Language Teaching.  

 

The Faculty offers the following Degree Programs: 

1. Bachelor of Arts (Special) Degree (Four years) 

2. Bachelor of Arts General Degree (Three years) 

 

The Faculty conducts the BA General Degree program with the support of all the 

Departments in the Faculty, while the BA (Special) Degrees in relevant subjects are 

conducted as follows: 

 

DEPARTMENT OF ECONOMICS AND STATISTICS 

 

Bachelor of Arts (Special) in Economics 

Bachelor of Arts (Special) in Statistics  

Bachelor of Arts (Special) in Information and Communication Technology 

(Offered in English Medium Only) 

 

DEPARTMENT OF GEOGRAPHY AND ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT 

 

Bachelor of Arts (Special) in Geography  

 

DEPARTMENT OF LANGUAGES 

 

Bachelor of Arts (Special) in Sinhala  

Bachelor of Arts (Special) in Tamil    

Bachelor of Arts (Special) in English 

Bachelor of Arts (Special) in German 

Bachelor of Arts (Special) in Japanese  

Bachelor of Arts (Special) in Chinese 
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Bachelor of Arts (Special) in Hindi 

Bachelor of Arts (Special) in Translation Studies 

 

DEPARTMENT OF SOCIAL SCIENCES 

 

Bachelor of Arts (Special) in Political Science  

Bachelor of Arts (Special) in Sociology 

 

DEPARTMENT OF ENGLISH LANGUAGE TEACHING (DELT) 

 

The DELT offers Teaching English as a Second Language (ESL) as a major/minor subject and 

English Language Courses throughout students’ university career. 
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2.8 FACULTY OF TECHNOLOGY 

 

2.8.1 BRIEF HISTORY 

 

By the virtue of the powers vested on Lakshman Kiriella, Minister of Higher Education and 

Highways by Section 27(1) of the Universities Act, No. 16 of 1978, on the recommendation 

of the University Grants Commission, by the order under the Section 21 of the University 

Act, published in Gazette Extraordinary No. 896/2 of November 07, 1995 which specifies the 

Faculties and Departments of the Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka, the Faculty of 

Technology and the corresponding two (02) departments namely; Department of 

Engineering Technology and Department of Biosystems Technology were legally established. 

 

2.8.2 FACULTY MANAGEMENT  

 

Dean       Dr. A.D. Ampitiyawatta 

BSc (Agriculture) (RUH), MSc (Agriculture) (PDN), 

D.Eng (Water Resource Engineering) (Wuhan, PR 

China) 

 

Heads 

 

Department of Engineering Technology  Dr. K.R. Koswattage 

BSc (Sp.) (Physics) (UOC), MSc (Kobe University, 

Japan), PhD (Kobe University, Japan) 

 

Department of Biosystems Technology  Dr. W.G.M.S. Perera 

BScHons (Sp.) (Chemistry) (PDN), PhD 

(Chemistry) (University of Texas at San Antonio, 

USA)  

 

Assistant Registrar     Mr. D.S.R.C. Sawanawadu 

BSc (Information Technology) (SLIIT), MSc 

(Computer Sciences), (PDN) 

 

2.8.3 DEGREE PROGRAMS CONDUCTED BY THE FACULTY 

 

Bachelor of Biosystems Technology Honours degree: BBSTHons 

 

Bachelor of Engineering Technology Honours degree: BETHons 
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Opening Ceromony of Chemistry Laboraory and Biology Laboratory of Faculty 

of Technology 
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3. TEACHING RESOURCES 

 

3.1 THE LIBRARY  

 

3.1.1 DESCRIPTION OF THE LIBRARY 

 

The Main Library provides its services for the Sentire University to achieve the standard of 

excellence in their academic programs.  The Management Faculty Library serves for the 

needs of the Faculty of Management Studies. The Agricultural Sciences Library serves for the 

needs of the Faculty of Agricultural Sciences. The Faculty of Medicine owns separate branch 

Library. The collections and services of the library are designed to match the needs that 

range from basic support of the curriculum to the advanced research requirements of 

patrons.  

 

The SUSL Libraries deliver customer focused quality information products, services and 

programs, creatively adjust to changing information needs and innovatively respond to new 

challenges at National and International level. 

 

The collection of books of all libraries in the end of 2020 was approximately 134000 

(Purchased + Donation 133694) including purchased books, donation books, pamphlets, 

audio visual materials and e-resources received to the Library. 

 

The SUSL Library is using as KOHA open-source software for Library automation. Collection 

has been organized as Lending Section, Reference Section, Permanent Reference Section, 

Periodical Section, Other Collection & Past paper Collections. 

 

3.1.2 IN HOUSE ACTIVITIES 

 

Library Committee 

 

The Library Committee, the Sub-committee of the Senate is the principal management body 

of the Sabaragamuwa University Library. The Library Committee has been scheduled to be 

held on each and every month regularly. The Librarian plays the role of Secretary of the 

Committee. The Chairman of the committee is generally the Vice Chancellor of the 

University. 

 

Objectives of the Libraries 

 

In fulfilling the main objective of developing the university through self-studies and self-

improvement, the university libraries in the country play a major role. The Sabaragamuwa 
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University has three branch libraries: the library of the Faculty of Management Studies, the 

library of the Faculty of Agricultural Sciences and the Faculty of Medicine Library, in addition 

to the Main library. The Main library serves for the needs of five faculties at the moment - 

the Faculty of Social Sciences and Languages, the Faculty of Applied Sciences, the Faculty of 

Geomatics, the Faculty of Technology and the Faculty of Graduate Studies. The Faculty 

libraries for Agricultural Sciences, Management Studies and Medicine serve the needs of 

their undergraduates. At present SUSL is actively involved in developing e-information 

provision.  

 

The SUSL network expects to expand its facilities for patrons with development of the new 

library building for the main library. Enhancing physical resources such as bibliographic 

material received from doners and purchased by the library will be focused on this direction 

apart from the human resources that would expect to increase quantitatively as well as 

qualitatively align with establishing of the new building. 

 

3.1.3 OTHER ACTIVITIES - 2020 

 

Appointments, Promotions & Events 

 

 The Senior Assistant Librarian, Dr. P.K.C.M. Wijewickrama was promoted to the post 

of Senior Assistant Librarian Gr. I, in the Main Library with effect from 03.09.2018. 

 

 Mr. Susil Hettiarachchi, Ms. M.H.P.V. Kumari and Mr. D.K.S Gamini was promoted to 

the post of Senior Staff Assistant in the Main Library and Faculty of Management 

Studies Library. 

 

 The review team of the Institutional Review 2019/2020 of SUSL conducted by Centre 

for Quality Assurance visited library on 27th January 2020 and received B grade for 

Criterion 04 - Learning resources, student support & progression. 

 

 Dr. P.K.C.M. Wijewickrama was appointed as the Secretary of the 10th Annual 

Research Session of the Sabargamuwa University of Sri Lanka which was held on 

16th December, 2020 at the Faculty of Geomatics. 
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The Review Team of the Institutional Review of Sabaragamuwa University of 

Sri Lanka conducted by Centre for Quality Assurance visited library on 27th 

January 2020 
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3.2 CENTRE FOR COMPUTER STUDIES 

 

3.2.1 INTRODUCTION 

 

The Centre for Computer Studies provides many IT related academic and technical services 

to the Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka. The centre has been conducting and 

supervising academic programmes of different faculties, preparing IT curricula and providing 

training for academic and non academic staff as well as academic supportive staff. The CCS 

has been providing University web service and email facility for the entire university 

community. Campus-wide Internet and networking facility, virtual learning environment 

with other network services, e-learning facility and hardware & software maintenance 

services are the technical services provided by the Centre for Computer Studies. 

 

3.2.2 HISTORY 

 

The history of Sabaragamuwa University Computer Centre goes back to the time of 

inauguration of Affiliated University College (AUC) of Sabaragamuwa Province in 1991. It 

started at one of the residential building then own to Samanalawewa Hydro Electrical Power 

Project and now D1-4 quarters of Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka. Initially, it 

equipped with 10 numbers of Tatung 286 computers featured 1Mb RAM, 40MB Hard disks 

and an OKI 9-pin dot-matrix printer and at the time of inauguration of AUC, late Hon. 

President Ranasinghe Premadasa unveiled the plaque of the centre. 

 

At that time AUC enrolled students for Diploma programmes and conducted three diploma 

courses called Diploma in Accounting & Finance, Diploma in Tourism Management and 

Diploma in English. The Core Course of Computing offered by the computer centre was 

compulsory component to obtain the diploma produced by all programmes.  

 

After some times, with the donation of Rs. 15,000/= from the Balangoda District Judge who 

launched a program to donate funds for social works from the fines collected from the drugs 

victims, initiated to start the construction of existing computer centre building with the help 

of the staff, students and villagers by “Shramadana Campaign” and finally completed using 

the government funds. It was the first building constructed simultaneous with the old 

auditorium for the AUC in addition to the buildings acquiring from the Samanalawewa 

Project. 

 

Initially it was recruited one staff member to the computer centre as an Instructor-in-

Computer-Technology for conducting the lectures and practical for the core courses. 

Meanwhile, two other instructors were recruited to the computer centre cadre to extend 
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the work which carried out and it was the only centre which had an approved cadre in the 

AUC system. 

 

After upgrading the AUC into full-fledged national university as Sabaragamuwa University of 

Sri Lanka in 1996, computer centre started to render its services to the different degree 

programs. Especially for non-IT, faculties by means of designing and preparing course 

materials for IT related subjects and conducting lectures and practical classes. Further, 

center contributed technological knowledge for preparing and evaluating tender documents 

for purchasing of computers and other ICT related equipment for the university and training 

of clerical staff of the university for effectively use of ICT for their day to day works as well 

as helping to academic staff for preparing their postgraduate thesis and in preparing 

teaching materials etc. 

 

With the expansion of the university and its functions, computer centre was renamed as 

Centre for Computer Studies and re-organized under a Director. It stated to offer assistance 

for conducting ICT related courses for the degree programmes especially for Faculty of 

Management Studies and Faculty of Social Sciences & Languages. Another building adjacent 

constructed in the existing centre for broadening its services. At the same time university 

Local Area Network was planned and commissioned and got connection to the Internet via 

LEARN and started to provide and to maintain the Internet and network services to the 

entire university community. Launching Sabaragamuwa University Web Site and providing E-

Learning environment are such land marking services offered. 

 

Meanwhile, to strengthen the services provided by the Centre for Computer Studies the 

cadre provisions have been increased according to the 2012 approved cadre list of UGC. 

 

 

3.2.3 PERMANENT STAFF 

 

Director - Mr. R.L. Dangalla 

  Senior Lecturer - Grade II / Faculty Applied Sciences 

 

Name Designation Email Address 

Mr. R.V.S.P.K. Ranathunga Senior Lecturer (Gr.II) spkr@ccs.sab.ac.lk 

Mr. R.M.N.B. Rathnayake Senior Lecturer (Gr.II) nevil@ccs.sab.ac.lk 

Dr. H.K. Salinda Premadasa Senior Lecturer (Gr.II) salinda@ccs.sab.ac.lk 

Mr. N.J. Malraj Silva Lecturer malraj@ccs.sab.ac.lk 

Mr. S. Nimishan Lecturer (Probationary) nimishan@ccs.sab.ac.lk 
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Details of the Academic Supportive Staff 

 

Name Designation Email Address Recruited 

Place 

Mr. W.H.D. Premawardana Instructor in CT (Gr.I) ccwhd@ccs.sab.ac.lk CCS/AGR 

Mr. W.R.Y.S. Samarasekara Instructor in CT (Gr.II) yasantha@ccs.sab.ac.lk CCS/SSL 

Ms. A.C. Nanayakkara 

(on study leave) 

Instructor in CT (Gr.II) chethana@ccs.sab.ac.lk CCS/SSL 

Mr. H.M.M.A. Herath Instructor in CT (Gr.II) mahesh@ccs.sab.ac.lk CCS/MGT 

Mr. A.C.P.K. Siriwardana 

(on study leave) 

Instructor (Gr.II) chaminda@geo.sab.ac.lk CCS/AGRI 

Ms. K.T. Dananjali Temporary Instructor dananjali@ccs.sab.ac.lk CCS/SSL 

Mr. W.G.S. Sameera Temporary 

Demonstrator 

sameera@ccs.sab.ac.lk CCS/SSL 

Mr. E.S.A. Gunasinghe Assistant Network 

Manager (Gr.I) 

suranjith@ccs.sab.ac.lk CCS 

Mr. S.A.S.K.J. Perera Assistant Network 

Manager (Gr.II) 

sadeepa@ccs.sab.ac.lk CCS 

 

These permanent Instructors in Computer Technology are assigned to four faculties; Faculty 

of Agricultural Sciences, Faculty of Applied Sciences, Faculty of Social Sciences & Languages 

and Faculty of Management Studies, to conduct/instruct the IT related lectures/practical on 

request. 

 

Mr. HMMA Herath is the coordinator of the computer center of Faculty of Management 

Studies and is maintaining the faculty and university web sites in addition to working as an 

instructor.  

 

Mr. W.R.Y.S Samarasekara is conducting IT related practicals for the Faculty of Social 

Sciences & Language request of the respective Dean. 

 

Mr. Pemawardena who is the Senior Instructor acted as an IT coordinator for the Faculty of 

Agricultural Sciences. Coordinators, who have participated in respective Faculty Boards, are 

coordinated with the Director of the Centre for Computer Studies to allocate human 

resources and other IT related services needed for the faculties.  

 

Ms. K.T. Dananjali is conducting IT related lectures and practicals for the Faculty of Social 

Sciences & Language. 

 

Assistant Network Managers, Mr. E.S.A. Gunasinghe and Mr. S.A.S.K.J. Perera are 

responsible for maintaining and improving the performance of the university LAN as well as 

implementing new network services when required under the supervision of the Director. 

mailto:ccwhd@ccs.sab.ac.lk
mailto:yasantha@ccs.sab.ac.lk
mailto:chethana@ccs.sab.ac.lk
mailto:mahesh@ccs.sab.ac.lk
mailto:chaminda@geo.sab.ac.lk
mailto:ktdananjali@gmail.com
mailto:suranjith@ccs.sab.ac.lk
mailto:sadeepa@ccs.sab.ac.lk
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Details of the Non Academic Staff: 

 

Name Designation Email Address Recruited 

place 

Service offering 

places & nature 

of duty 

Mr. P.S. Premalal Computer 

Application 

Assistant (Gr.I) 

sanjewa@ccs.sab.ac.lk CCS SUSL / Software 

Maintenance 

Mr. H.J.C. Senarath Technical 

Officer (Gr.II) 

hjcsenarath@gmail.com CCS SUSL / Hardware 

Maintenance 

Mr. D.A. Chathuranga Labourer 

(Gr.III) 

asithachathuranga5@gmail.com CCS CCS 

Mr. G.A.R. Indika Lab Attendant 

(Lower Gr) 

ranilindika2244@gmail.com CCS CCS 

 

Computer Applications Assistant and the Technical Officer are assigned for the solving of 

software and hardware problems of computers and accessories in faculty computer centers 

in addition to the other places such as centers and offices of the entire university.  Mr. 

Sanjeewa Premalal and Mr. Janaka Senarath are currently involving to do such work as well 

as to report about the faultier of equipment to the respective authorities to get decisions to 

repair them. 

 

3.2.4 CURRENT STATUS 

 

CCS Helpdesk 
 

The CCS Helpdesk is the first point of contact for all of the IT related technology needs and 

issues at the Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka. The Helpdesk handles email and in-person 

requests from students, faculty, academic staff, administrative staff and non-academic staff on 

IT related matters of their day to day activities. 

 

CCS Student Helpdesk 

 

The CCS Student Helpdesk is staffed technical workers employed by CCS to assist users in the 

residence computer centers under the CCS of each faculty with computer related issues. 

 

Services 

 

The service center staff of the CCS handles all the engineering, technical, electronic, 

electrical, computer repairing, troubleshooting inside the University. This will help to carry 

out all the University activities such as not only the academic activities but also 

administrative activities very smoothly and effectively. 
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Main services rendered by the Centre for Computer Studies are: 

 Technical Support and Preventive Maintenances of Computer Systems 

 Network Installation, Configuration and Troubleshooting 

 Electronic, Electrical, Telephone System Maintenance 

 Technical Support for Lectures, Special Events, Event Handling at the Auditoriums 

and Computing Service Centre Training Programs. 

 

Service Description 

Reinstalling 

Operating 

Systems 

The reinstallation of a computer's operating system, the latest security 

patches for that operating systems software and all appropriate hardware 

drivers are included as one service. 

Software 

Installation 

Provide and install all necessary software for all academic programs not only 

for computers in the computer centres but also personal laptop computers of 

lecturers, administrative staff members, non-academic staff members and 

students. 

Virus, Software 

and Adware 

Removal 

The removal of malicious code usually referred to as adware, spy-ware, and 

viruses, which affect a computer's performance, functionality and poses a 

security risk on the University network. 

Network 

Connectivity/ 

Troubleshooting 

Troubleshooting and resolution of wired or wireless network connectivity 

issues that limit a  Internet access of the University community due in part to 

configuration settings, software drivers or malware such as viruses and 

external disasters such as lightening, electricity distortions etc. 

Applications 

Troubleshooting 

(Microsoft Office) 

Troubleshooting Microsoft Office applications for irregular and inconsistent 

performance. 

 

 

Services 

 

University Web Mail 

The CCS provides e-mail facility with unlimited storage capacity for all the academic and 

administrative staff members and all the students under the xxx.sab.ac.lk university 

domain.  

 

SUSL Mail 

The CCS joining with the Microsoft Corporation and provides other e-mail facilities with 1 GB 

storage capacity for all the academic, administrative, non-academic and all the students 

under the ms.sab.ac.lk domain. 
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Virtual Learning Environment (VLE) 

The CCS provides necessary infrastructure facilities for the e-learning and Virtual Learning 

Management for all the academic and students. 

 

Present Status: 

Presently, on the request of the different faculties, the academic services provided by the 

centre are mainly limited for conducting the IT Degree programme and computer minor 

programme of the Faculty of Social Sciences & Languages, some IT related subjects and 

practical components of the different departments of Faculty of Management Studies and 

to the Faculty of Agricultural Sciences. Other IT services such as Internet and web service are 

provided for entire university community. Other than that, computer center is providing 

maintenance-support for services running in the network which are installed by other 

parties such as library system, IP Phone system, IP Camera system, Wireless networks etc. 

  

At present most of the faculties have built their own complexes and they have their own 

computer centers within faculty premises for conducting their IT related academic 

programs. Therefore, no need of using the existing buildings of the Centre for Computer 

Studies for conducting their programs further, instead they can be utilized for widen the 

services offered by the Centre such as conducting training programmes for non-academic 

and administrative staff as well as assisting the academic staff to fulfilling their IT-related 

needs.  

 

The Centre for Computer Studies supervises all computer related academic activities in 

these five computer centers and maintains the campus-wide network including all the 

servers required to provide network services such as web, e-learning, DNS, email, digital 

library system, student information service and network troubleshooting services. 

 

In year of 2013, infrastructure facilities and academic programs related with IT have further 

improved due to allocations from the consolidated fund by the Sabaragamuwa University of 

Sri Lanka. With this fund, the university managed to increase the Internet bandwidth from 

20Mbps to 100Mbps and increase the number of computer facilities to all academic and 

administrative staff members at their work places. 

 

Due to the high demand of the internet usage of the university, internet providers 

requested to increased bandwidth up to 225 Mbps in 2018. It is increased up to 700 Mbps 

with the dialog 100Mbps backup link along with the SLT.   Accordingly, the computer center 

proposed to increase the internal bandwidth of the fiber backbone and currently the 

university internet connections which are running with the bandwidth of 600Mbps. 

 

Free Wi-Fi areas implemented for the students inside the university to provide a better 

learning environment to them. According to that, all faculties covered with Wi-Fi facility. 
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Furthermore, CCS has initiated free Wi-Fi project with the ministry of education to increase 

Wi-Fi zones for the student’s hostels and study areas.   

 

Campus-Wide Network 

 

Our campus-wide Local Area Network is run and maintained by the Centre for Computer 

Studies. It is administrated by our Assistant Network Managers within the server room. The 

server room is consisted with CISCO routers, proxy server, DNS server, CISCO switches, web 

server, e-learning sever, virus guard server (centralized server) etc. Performance of the 

network functions and the E-learning system are increased by upgrading the three servers 

namely Proxy, DNS and E-learning during the year 2014. Separating and partitioning of the 

server room from the existing computer lab, physical security and the easiness of 

maintenance of the servers are assured. Also by commissioning the alternative power 

generating system using a 20KVA standby generator and four 2KVA UPS systems, availability 

of network functions are guaranteed during the 24 hours a day and 7 days a week.  

 

All the eight faculties are now inter-connected with fiber optic backbone and willing to 

upgrade the backbone in next few years. At present our commodity Internet bandwidth is 

600Mbps and physical link is capable of handling signals of 100Mbps bandwidth. 

 

Goals of the Year 2020: 

 

 New installation and repairing of the fiber connection of the Students’ Affairs 

Division and Staff Development Centre. 

 New installation and repair the fiber connection of the all guest houses. 

 Provide facilities to web-cast special university events. 

 Creating a fiber backup link for the entire university from the ISP Dialog Axiata. 

 Creating a LAN connection with the fiber backbone to the Chemistry, Biology and 

Physics Laboratories. 

 Provide Wi-Fi facilities for all the student hostels and Staff quarters of SUSL 

 Upgrading the University website 

 Creating and maintaining university social media pages as official pages (Facebook, 

YouTube, LinkedIn and Twitter)  

 Creating and maintaining university digital repository as a digital library to collect, 

and preserves digital material of Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka. 

 Enhancing the Wi-Fi access points of the Geomatics, Agriculture, and Social Sciences 

Faculties. 

 Upgrade the Wi-Fi access points of the Medical faculty (Phase I and Phase II). 

 Upgrade the Wi-Fi access points of the faculty of Graduate Studies. 

 Conducting ICT related Workshops for the University staff to improve the 

productivity.  



 
Draft Annual Report 2020 / Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka 

 

59 

Goals Achieved during the year: 

 

 Provided internet connection for the Faculty of Medicine with Wi-Fi network and 

LAN network. 

 Provided internet connection for Faculty of Graduate Studies. 

 Enhanced and installed new Wi-Fi facility for the Faculty of Technology. 

 New network installed for the computer lab of the Department of Geography and 

Envirnmental Management (FSSL). 

 New network installed for the Mungasthenna building complex of the Faculty of 

Agricultural Sciences.  

 Provided facilities and services to the outside parties such as CDB bank and provided 

an opportunity to earn money for the University. 

 Upgraded the University web site with a newer version of Drupal Content 

Management System. 

 Initiated and collaborated with Ministry of Education on implementing the campus 

wide Wi-Fi project 

 Created and acquired the university social media pages and maintaining the latest 

news and updates in every social media page to get more organic reach to the 

university  

 Installed a newer version of Moodle software to facilitate the university virtual 

teaching and learning activities 

 Created and maintaining university digital repository as a digital library to collect, 

and preserves digital material of Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka. 

 

ACTIVITIES CONDUCTED IN 2020 

 

New Web Template  

Installed a new updated web template with a customisable content management system to 

the entire university web interface and configured all the faculty, centre pages. Conducted 

few instructive sessions for faculty web coordinators.  

 

Digital Repository 

Installed and configured a new web repository to provide digital service that collects, and 

preserves digital material of Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka. The digital repository 

has E–Books, General Publications, Research Publications and Thesis and Dissertations as 

archived collections. 

 

Upgraded the University Learning Management System 

University LMS is upgraded with a new version of Moodle and created new user accounts, 

categories entirely for the university excluding Faculty of Applied Sciences. Conducted and 

facilitated student and staff workshops on working with new virtual learning environment. 
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Abstract Publications 

 

Title of the 

Abstract 

Name of the Main Author Names of the 

Co-authors 

Name of the 

Conference Title 

(Mr./MS/ 

Mrs/Rev.) 

Initials Last Name 

ICT Usage, 

Bounded 

Rationality and 

Business 

Performance: An 

Empirical 

Investigation of 

SMEs in Sri Lanka 

Mr. R.V.S.P.K. Ranatunga Prof. H.M.S. 

Priyanath,  

 

Prof. R.G.N. 

Meegama 

10th Annual 

Research Session 

2020, 

Incorporated by 

3rd Graduate 

Colloquium, 

Sabaragamuwa 

University of Sri 

Lanka 

 

Books Published as an Author 

 

Title of the Book 

Name of the Main Author 

Title 

(Mr./MS/ 

Mrs/Rev.) 

Initials Last Name 

Fundamentals of Database 

Design 
Mr. N.J.M.  Silva 
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3.3    DEPARTMENT OF PHYSICAL EDUCATION  

 

 
3.3.1 STAFF 

 

Director    Mr. W.A. Lalith Rohana 

 

Instructors    Mrs. B.K. Samantha Princy Lalani 

     Mr. G.S.K. Bopitiya 

     Mr. P.D.D.I. Gunathilaka 

 

3.3.2 ANNUAL PROGRAMME 2020 

 

The following activities were scheduled for the year 2020. Due to the spread of COVID-19 

pandamic situation of the country these activities were not held and university could not 

participate for the scheduled events. 
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Month Scheduled Programme Venue 

January Training Sessions. SUSL 

Practice Matches (For all Games)   - 

Training Sessions for all sports - 

Coaching Camps (For all Games)   - 

Senior National Basketball  & Hockey Tournament - 

Selection trial for World University Road Race 

Championship  

Peradeniya 

Invitational Inter University Tournaments & Other 

Invitational Tournaments (Organizing and Participating) 

- 

Friendly matches for all sports - 

Fresher’s Sports Meet. SUSL 

SLUSA Meeting University of Colombo 

Inter University Weight Lifting Tournament (Women) SUSL 

International Invitational Chess Tournament  SUSL 

Sevens tournament  University of Sri 

Jayawardenepura/ COL/MOR 

Sports Advisory Board Meeting SUSL 

Colour Night  2019 

February Inter Batches Tournaments (For all Games)   - 

Inter Faculty Sports Meet SUSL 

Training Sessions. (For all Games)   SUSL 

Fresher’s Sports Meet. SUSL 

Work Shop for Captain & Vice Captain - 

Invitational Inter University Tournaments & Other 

Invitational Tournaments (Organizing and Participating) 

- 

Friendly Matches. (For all Games)   - 

Physical Fitness Testing Programme SUSL 

Coaching Camps (For all Games)   - 

Organizing Invitational Tournament (All Games) - 

GS Meet Balangoda 

Divisional Tournament  - 

Uva Vs Sabra big Match (Rugby) - 

Karate Grading test SUSL 

SLUSA Meeting University of Colombo 

Sports Advisory Board Meeting SUSL 

March Training Sessions. SUSL 

Inter Faculty Sports Meet SUSL 

District Sports Meet. Rathnapura 

Coaching Camps (For all Games)   - 

Friendly Matches (For all Games)   - 

Conducting Open & School Invitational Chess  

Tournament  

SUSL 
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Month Scheduled Programme Venue 

March Inter Students Ranking Tournament SUSL 

World University Championship Cross Country  - 

Asian University Hockey tournament  - 

World University Championship Selection trail  University of Colombo/SJP  

Invitational Inter University Tournaments & other 

Invitational Tournaments (Organizing and Participating) 

- 

Inter Faculty Freshers' Games SUSL  

SLUSA Meeting University of Colombo 

Sports Advisory Board Meeting SUSL 

April Training Sessions. (For all Games)   SUSL 

Friendly Matches. (For all Games)   - 

Coaching Camps (For all Games)   - 

Staff Badminton Tournament. SUSL 

Workshop for Sports Captains and Vice Captains  SUSL 

Invitational Inter University Tournaments & other 

Invitational Tournaments (Organizing and Participating) 

- 

Invitational Inter University Mora cup Tournament  University of Moratuwa 

Invitational Inter University Swimming Championship 
(KEL/COL/PERA/SUSL) 

Colombo 

Divisional Matches - 

World University Selection trail  University of Colombo/SJP 

World University Cross Country Tournament - 

Special Swimming Coaching Camp  University of  Sri 
Jayawardenepura 

SLUSA Meeting University of Colombo or 

Moratuwa  

May Training Sessions. SUSL 

Coaching Camps (For all Games)   - 

Friendly Matches (For all Games)   - 

Practice Matches (For all Games)   - 

Invitational Inter University Tournaments & other 

Invitational Tournaments (Organizing and Participating) 

- 

Organizing Invitation Inter University tournament  SUSL 

Provincial Sports Meet. Kegalle 

Inter University Rugger & Cricket Tournament  - 

Divisional Matches (Cricket, Rugger) - 

Six aside tournaments  - 

World University Selection trail  University of Colombo 

Sports Advisory Board Meeting SUSL 

SLUSA Meeting University of Colombo 

June Training Sessions. SUSL 

Coaching Camps (For all Games)   - 

Friendly Matches (For all Games)   - 
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Month Scheduled Programme Venue 

June Practice Matches (For all Games)   - 

Special training sessions at Indoor for Inter University 

Games. 

Colombo /Peradeniya 

Organizing Invitation Inter University Tournaments SUSL 

Divisional Matches (Cricket, Rugger) - 

SLUSA Meeting University of Colombo 

Sports Advisory Board Meeting SUSL 

July Training Sessions. (For all Games)   SUSL 

Friendly Matches. (For all Games)   - 

Practice Matches (For all Games)   - 

Sevens Matches 

 

University of Moratuwa / 

Colombo 

Practices for selected students for World University 

Championship 

- 

Coaching Camps  

  Special 03 days Coaching Camp for Athletic 

Diyagama or Sugathadasa 

Stadium 

Invitational Inter University Tournaments & Other 

Invitational Tournaments 

(Organizing and Participating) 

- 

Invitation Badminton Championships - Staff University of Colombo 

Organizing Invitation Inter University tournament SUSL 

Inter University Games (Organizing and Participating)) - 

Divisional Matches Rathnapura 

SLUSA Meeting University of Colombo 

Sports Advisory Board Meeting SUSL 

August Training Sessions. (For all Games)   University of Peradeniya 

Friendly Matches. (For all Games)   - 

Practice Matches. (For all Games)   - 

Anatomy Carpow Open Chess Tournament. Kandy 

Invitational  Inter University Tournaments & Other   

Invitational Tournaments (Organizing and Participating) 

Not Yet Conformed 

Coaching Camps(For all Games)   - 

Six aside/ Sevens/ 3x3 Tournaments - 

Asian  University Beach Volleyball Championship - 

Mora Kings International Ranking Championship University of Moratuwa 

Sri Lanka University Games (SLUG) - 

World University Games - 

SLUSA Meeting University of Colombo 

Sports Advisory Board Meeting SUSL 

September Training Sessions. University of Colombo 

Friendly Matches. (For all Games)   SUSL or other Universities 

Coaching Camps (For all Games)   - 
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Month Scheduled Programme Venue 

September Six aside/ Sevens/3x3 Tournaments 

(Basketball, Rugger, Football, Cricket) 

- 

Invitational  Inter University Tournaments & Other    

Invitational Tournaments 

University of Ruhuna 

Open club Netball Tournaments. University of Colombo 

Workshop on Sports Medicine for Students and Staff  SUSL 

SLUSA Meeting University of Colombo 

Sports Advisory Board Meeting SUSL 

October Training Session Udawalawa 

Coaching camps - 

Invitational Rating Chess Tournament  - 

Six aside/ Sevens/ 3x3 Tournaments (Basketball, Rugger, 

Football, Cricket) 

- 

Asian University Championship - 

Organizing Swimming life serving Camp  SUSL 

SLUSA Meeting University of Colombo 

Sports Advisory Board Meeting SUSL 

November Training Session SUSL/Colombo 

Coaching camps(For all Games)   - 

3x3 Tournaments - 

National Olympic Academy Program Bandarawela 

World University Championship. - 

Sevens Tournaments  Rathnapura 

Divisional Tournaments - 

SLUSA Awards Colombo 

Invitational  Inter University Tournaments & Other    

Invitational Tournaments 

- 

SLUSA Meeting Colombo 

Sports Advisory Board Meeting SUSL 

December Training Session SUSL 

Coaching camps (For all Games)   - 

Singapore Chess Society Open Tournament.(Sri Lanka) - 

Asian University Games. - 

Overseas Tournament  - 

International Inter University Chess Championship  

(Foreign) 

- 

Grading test   (Karate 3) SUSL 

International Karate Championship  India 

Workshop for Captain & Vice Captain - 

Physical Fitness Testing Programme - 

Buddhi International Rated Chess Championship - 

SLUSA Meeting Colombo 

Sports Advisory Board Meeting SUSL 
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4. STUDY CENTRES 

 

4.1 CAREER GUIDANCE UNIT 

 

4.1.1 STAFF 

 

Director  - Dr. S. Malavipathirana 

   Faculty of Applied Sciences 

 

Career Advisor  - Mr. Deepal Wijayasekara 

 

4.1.2 PROGRAMMES CONDUCTED IN 2020 

 

Personal Groomimg Programme 

 

As the 1st webinar of the year, this programme was successfully conducted for the Faculty of 

Geomatics, mostly for the 03rd year and final year undergraduates. The major objective of 

the programme was empowering undergraduates with the aweareness of the personal 

programming and social etiquettes with a special concerning of the professional life and 

cooperate sector requirements. This webinar was conducted by Mr. Deepal Wijayasekara, 

Career Advisor of SUSL on 05th May 2020 from 02.00 p.m. to 04.00 p.m. with the 

participation of the nearly 100 undergraduates of the Faculty. 

 

Career Vision Development Programme 

 

This programme was conducted as a webinar for the undergraduates of the Faculty of 

Geomatics. The main objective of the programme was keeping the focus and the 

momentum of the undergraduates due to the COVID-19 home staying period. Even though 

the key target group of the webinar the 01st and 02nd year undergraduates of the Faculty, all 

the interested undergraduates are invited for the programme. The programme was 

successfully held on 19th May 2020 from 02.00 p.m. to 04.00 p.m. and conducted by Mr. 

Deepal Wijayasekara, Career Advisor of SUSL with the participation of nearly 100 

participants and the programme was conducted on the request of the Faculty. 

 

Report Building Programme 

 

This was a tailor made progamme conducted for the university administration staff. The key 

objectives of the programme were empowering the targeted group with awearness of the 

communication skills enhancing the potentials of report building capacity among the 

audience. The programme conducted as a workshop, enriched with individual and group 

activities. This was conducted by Mr. Deepal Wijayasekara, Career Advisor of SUSL on 12th 
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August 2020 from 02.00 p.m. to 04.00 p.m. at the Staff Development Centre of the 

University. 

 

CV Writing Programme 

 

This programme was conducted for the final year undergradautes of the Faculty of 

Agricutural Sciences. The objective of the programme was preparing the audience with the 

skills of curriculum vitae writing for applying the opportunities of the world of work. The 

programme was successfully conducted by Mr. Deepal Wijayasekara, Career Advisor of SUSL 

on 29th November 2020 from 10.00 a.m. to 01.00 p.m. in an online platform with the 

participation of around 60 undergraduates. As a part of this programme CGU allowed 

participants to submit their CVs for futher developments. 

 

Career Vision Development Programme 

 

This webinar also conducted for the undergraduates of the Faculty of Agricultural Sciences. 

The purpose of this programme was developing a sound career intention among the 1st 

year undergraduates of the faculty. The programme was successfully conducted by Mr. 

Deepal Wijayasekara, Career Advisor of SUSL on 10th December 2020 from 10.00 a.m. to 

1.00 p.m. The two programmes conducted for the Faculty of Agricultural Sciences was 

conducted on the request of the faculty. 

 

Series of the Programme Named "Vision for the New Beginning" 

 

As a concept of the Director of CGU, CGU started a series of a programme titled "Vision for 

the New Beginning". The major scope of this programme series is strengthen 01st year 

undergraduates for a sound career oriented university life from their very first beginning. As 

the first step of this series CGU conducted the webinar for the Faculty of Technology on 10th 

December 2020 from 10.00 a.m. to 12 Noon with a highly satisfactory volume of 

participation of the faculty. 

 

As the second step of this series CGU conducted the programme successfully for the 

undergraduates of the Faculty of Applied Sciences on 30th December 2020 from 10.00 a.m. 

to 12 Noon. These programmes were conducted by Mr. Deepal Wijayasekara, Career 

Advisor of SUSL. 

 

"Vision for the Journey" Programme for the University of Colombo 

 

On an invitation of the Career Guidance Unit (CGU) of University of Colombo, SUSL-CGU 

conducted a programme for the undergraduates of the University of Colombo on 22nd 

December 2020 from 10.00 a.m. to 12 Noon as a webinar. The objective of the programme 
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was to build focused career intention and enhance the updated awareness of the world of 

work among the undergraduates. CGU of SUSL considered this opportunity as rewarded 

regard for Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka. The programme was conducted by Mr. 

Deepal Wijayasekara, Career Advisor of SUSL. 

 

Accomplishment 

 

Apart from the above programmes, CGU is glad to mention, under an entrepreneurship 

development programme conducted by CGU in collaboration with the National Enterprise 

Development Authority (NEDA) under the Ministry of Industry and Commerce named 

“Upadhidari Vyavasayake Udanaya”, four (04) graduates of SUSL by representing Faculty of 

Agricultural Sciences, Faculty of Management Studies and Faculty of Social Sciences and 

Languages received their business development grants (Rs. 150,000.00 per each graduate) 

in order to commence their own business. The award ceremony of this programme was held 

glamorously on 08th December 2020 at the Bandaranaike Memorial International 

Conference Hall (BMICH). 
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4.2 CENTRE FOR OPEN AND DISTANCE LEARNING 

 

4.2.1 BRIEF HISTORY 

 

The history of the External Unit of the Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka goes back to 

the beginning of Sabaragamuwa Affiliated University College in 1992, far before the 

establishment of the Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka. 

 

Initially, the unit was a Community Development Centre with the aim of providing job 

oriented certificate programmes on selected fields to the youth in the area. 

 

After establishing the SUSL in 1996, the Centre was renamed as the External Degree 

Programmes and Extension Services Unit (EDPESU) in 2000 with the expectation of helping 

and guiding the needy population in the area in a wider scope. And further the External 

Degree Programmes and Extension Services Unit (EDPESU) was renamed as Centre for Open 

and Distance Learning (CODL) with effect from 2015. 

 

4.2.2 MEMBERS OF THE MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

 

Prof. R.M.U.S.K. Rathnayake  - Vice Chancellor - Chairman 

(From 02nd November 2020) 

Prof. W.K. Athula C. Gnanapala  - Acting Vice Chancellor - Chairman 

(From 19th May 2020 to 01st November 2020) 

Prof. M. Sunil Shantha - Vice Chancellor - Chairman 

   (Up to 18th May 2020)    

Dr. M.A.C.S.S. Fernando  - Dean - Faculty of Social Sciences and Languages 

     (From 13th October 2020) 

Dr. W. Manoj Ariyaratne - Dean - Faculty of Social Sciences and Languages 

(Up to 12th October 2020) 

Prof. M.M.P. Sumith   -  Dean, Faculty of Agricultural Sciences 

Prof. W.K. Athula. C. Gnanapala -  Dean, Faculty of Management Studies 

Dr. R.S. Sabaragamuwa   Dean - Faculty of Applied Sciences 

(From 03rd October 2020) 

Prof. R.M.U.S.K. Rathnayake  - Dean - Faculty of Applied Sciences 

     (Up to 02nd October 2020) 

Mr. Kamal Gunawardana  - Acting Registrar 

(From 30th March 2020) 

Mr. V.D. Kithsiri   - Registrar 

(Up to 29th March 2020) 

Mr. W.A.M.P. Senadeera  -  Acting Bursar 
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Mr. D. Jasingha   -  Director, CODL (Secretary of the Committee) 

Ven. G. Buddhananda Thero  -  UGC Appointed Member 

Mr. H.W. Gunadasa  -  Council Member 

Dr. P.K. Dissanayake -  Chairman, Board of Study, Faculty of 

Agricultural Sciences 

Prof. D.A.I. Dayaratne   -  Chairman, Board of Study, Faculty of 

Management Studies 

Mr. S.K. Handaragama  -  Chairman, Board of Study, Faculty of Social  

Sciences and Languages        

Dr. B.T.G.S. Kumara   -  Chairman, Board of Study, Faculty of Applied  

Sciences  

Ms. S.N. Priyadarshani  -  Senior Assistant Registrar, CODL 

Ms. N.P. Wijendra   -  Assistant Bursar, CODL  

 

4.2.3 PERMANENT STAFF 

 

Senior Assistant Registrar  - 01 

Assistant Bursar   - 01 

Management Assistants  - 05 

Pre-School Assistant   - 01 

Machine Operators   - 01 

Work Aids    - 03 

 

4.2.4 HIGHER DIPLOMAS, DIPLOMA AND CERTIFICATE COURCES 

 

1. Higher Diploma in English 

2. Higher Diploma in Co-operative Business Management 

3. Diploma in English 

4. Diploma in Pre School Teachers Training 

5. Diploma in Business Management 

6. Diploma in Tourism and Hospitality Management 

7. Diploma in Financial Management 

8. Diploma in Software Engineering 

9. Certificate Course in English 

10. Certificate in Computer and Information Technology 

11. Certificate in Web Based Application Development 

12. Certificate in Advanced Java Programming 

13. Certificate in Advanced Computer Aided Drawing 
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4.2.5 ENROLLEMENT OF STUDENTS FOR THE EXTERNAL COURCES 

 

Programme of Study Year of 

Study 

New Entrants 

(January-December 2020) 

Student Enrolment 

(total no. of registered 

students) 

(as at 31st December 2020) 

Male Female Total Male Female Total 

Higher Diploma Programmes 

Higher Diploma in 

English 

2018 - - - 11 44 55 

Higher Diploma in Co-

operative Business 

Management  

2018 - - - 14 27 41 

Diploma Programmes 

Diploma in Business 

Management  

2018 - - - 31 23 54 

2019 - - - 39 46 85 

Diploma in Tourism & 

Hospitality Management  

2019    7 6 13 

2020 9 9 18 9 9 18 

Diploma in Financial 

Management  

2017 - - - 10 3 13 

Diploma in English 2019 - - - 86 391 477 

Diploma in Pre School 

Teachers Training 

2019 - - -  28 28 

Diploma in Software 

Engineering 

2019/II - - - 62 28 90 

Certificate Programmes 

Certificate in English 2019/II - - - 324 612 936 

2020 /I 110 227 337 110 227 337 

Certificate in Web Based 

Application Development 

2019 - - - 23 09 32 

Certificate in Advanced 

Java Programming 

2019 - -- - 17 07 24 

Certificate in Computer 

& Information 

Technology 

2019 - - - 24 96 120 

Certificate in Advanced 

Computer Aided Drawing 

2019 - - - 18 08 26 
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4.3 CENTRE FOR INDIGENOUS KNOWLEDGE AND COMMUNITY STUDIES 

 

4.3.1 BRIEF HISTORY 

 

Centre for Indigenous Knowledge and Community Studies was established on 18th 

December 2006 at the Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka with the aim of providing 

facilities for those who are interested in postgraduate studies in Indigenous Knowledge and 

Community Studies. Accordingly, the centre has introduced three courses of studies namely 

Postgraduate Diploma (PGD), Master of Philosophy (MPhil) and Doctor of Philosophy (PhD). 

The candidate from any discipline who wish to follow the above courses in the Centre for 

Indigenous Knowledge and Community Studies are encouraged pursue the indigenous 

studies pertaining to Sri Lanka or any other country in the world. The Center intends to 

increase the student capacity yearly and motivate them to complete their research degrees 

successfully. 

 

4.3.2 STAFF 

 

Director  -  Dr. W.M.J. Welgama 

Faculty of Social Sciences and Languages 

 

4.3.3 ACHIEVEMENTS IN 2020 

 

 Evaluation of Five MPhil theses.  

 Evaluation of One PhD theses.  

 Conduct Research Methodology course and examination for 2019 batch 

 Evaluation of Seven Proposals (MPhil / PhD) 

 Seven Proposals Defences (MPhil / PhD) 

 Issue one volume of the E- Journal - Akhyana  

 Ten New Candidates were registered MPhil / PhD for year 2019 by the month January, 

2020. 

 Completion of Research Methodology course and examination for 2019 batch 

 Advertised for 2020 batch and the Centre received 16 applications.  

 Selection interviews completed for 2020 batch.  
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4.4 STAFF DEVELOPMENT CENTRE 

 

4.4.1 BRIEF HISTORY 

 

The Staff Development Centre (SDC) of Sabaragamuwa University always aims to enhance 

the knowledge and the skills of the communities in the university system in Sri Lanka to 

obtain an efficient and effective service from the staff in a friendly environment and to 

contribute to the national development. The centre organizes training programs, workshops 

and other activities for higher management, academic staff, executive and staff categories, 

academic support staff, technical officers and non – academic and administrative staff to 

improve their knowledge, skills and attitudes. 

 

4.4.2 STAFF 

 

SDC of Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka is categorized under Tier II SDCs.  Hence the 

cadre provisions for coordinators have not been prescribed. However, a part time Director 

and a part time Programme Manager have been appointed. 

 

SDC is placed directly under the purview of Vice Chancellor and is managed by a part time 

Director. 

 

Director    - Prof. Aruna Shanthaarachchi 

    Faculty of Social Sciences Languaes 

(From 02nd June 2020) 

 

Dr. S.T.C. Amarasinghe 

Faculty of Agricultural Sciences 

(Up to 01st June 2020) 

   

Programme Manager  - Mrs. Y.S. Chandrasekara 

Assistant Registrar / Faculty of Social Sciences & 

Languages 

(From 11th August 2020) 

 

Mrs. H.H.K.N. Dharmasiri 

     Assistant Registrar / Faculty of Geomatics 

     (Up to 31st July 2020) 

 

Audio-visual Technician / Officer is yet to be recruited to the centre. 
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4.4.3 MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

 

Prof. R.M.U.S.K. Rathnayake  - Vice Chancellor - Chairman 

(From 02nd November 2020) 

Prof. W.K. Athula C. Gnanapala  - Acting Vice Chancellor - Chairman 

(From 19th May 2020 to 01st November 2020) 

Prof. M. Sunil Shantha - Vice Chancellor - Chairman 

   (Up to 18th May 2020)    

Prof. Aruna Shanthaarachchi  - Director / SDC – Secretary to MC 

(From 02nd June 2020) 

Dr. S.T.C. Amarasinghe  - Director / SDC – Secretary to MC 

(Up to 01st June 2020) 

Prof. H.M.S. Priyanath   - Dean / Faculty of Graduate Studies 

Prof. M.M.P. Sumith   - Dean / Faculty of Agricultural Sciences 

Dr. R.S. Sabaragamuwa   Dean - Faculty of Applied Sciences 

(From 03rd October 2020) 

Prof. R.M.U.S.K. Rathnayake   Dean / Faculty of Applied Sciences 

     (Up to 02nd October 2020) 

Dr. H.M. Indika Prasanna  - Dean / Faculty of Geomatics 

Prof.  W.K. Athula C. Gnanapala - Dean / Faculty of Management Studies 

Prof. M.N. Wickramaratne  - Dean / Faculty of Medicine 

Dr. M.A.C.S.S. Fernando   Dean / Faculty of Social Sciences and Languages 

     (From 13th October 2020) 

Dr. W. Manoj Ariyaratne Dean / Faculty of Social Sciences and Languages 

(Up to 12th October 2020) 

Dr. A.D. Ampitiyawatta  - Dean / Faculty of Technology 

Mr. Kamal Gunawardana  - Acting Registrar 

(From 30th March 2020) 

Mr. V.D. Kithsiri   - Registrar 

(Up to 29th March 2020) 

Mrs. T.N. Neighsoori   - Librarian 

Mr. W.A.M.P. Senadeera  -  Acting Bursar 

Prof. M.S.M. Aslam    -  Department of Tourism Management / Faculty 

of Management Studies 

Dr. E.P.N. Udayakumara  - Department of Natural Resources / Faculty of 

     Applied Sciences 

Dr. Anoja Rodrigo   - Council Member 

Ms. Vishaka Ellawala    -  Council Member 

 

4.4.4 PROGRAMME COMMITTEE 

 

Prof. Aruna Shanthaarachchi  - Director / SDC – Secretary to MC 

(From 02nd June 2020) 
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Dr. S.T.C. Amarasinghe  - Director / SDC – Secretary to MC 

(Up to 01st June 2020) 

Mrs. Y.S. Chandrasekara  - Programme Manager – Secretary of SDC 

(From 11th August 2020) 

Mrs. H.H.K.N. Dharmasiri  - Programme Manager – Secretary of SDC 

       (Up to 31st July 2020) 

Prof. Lal P. Vidhana Arachchi  - Faculty of Agricultural Sciences 

Prof. G.M.L.P. Aponsu - Faculty of Applied Sciences 

Mrs. J.A.S. Jayakody - Faculty of Geomatics 

Mr. C.N.R. Wijesundara - Faculty of Management Studies  

Dr. Aruna Shanthaarachchi                   - Faculty of Social Science and Languages 

Dr. K.R. Koswattage                   - Faculty of Technology 

Dr. Amal Wageesha   - Faculty of Medicine 

Dr. G.D.K. Kumara   - Faculty of Agricultural Sciences 

Dr. H.K.S. Premadasa   - Centre for Computer Studies 

Prof. S. Vasanthapriyan  - Director / Centre for Computer Studies 

Dr. K.S.N. Prasangani   - Head / Department of English Language 

      Teaching 

Mr. D. Jasinghe   - Director / Centre for Open and Distance 

Learning 

Dr. S. Malavipathirana  - Director / Career Guidance Unit 

 

4.4.5 WORKSHOPS CONDUCTED DURING IN 2020 

 

Date of the 

Workshop held 

Name of the 

Workshop 

Name of the Resource 

Person 

Target Group 

03rd January 2020 Strategic Planning & 

Management 

Prof. K.D.R. Renuka Silva Academic Staff selected for 

induction training 

programme of teaching 

methodology 2018 / 2019 

31st January 2020 Workshop on Teaming 

up for a Quality 

University 

Dr. Chalinda Benaragama 

28th & 29th July 2020 Online Teaching, 

Learning & Evaluation 

Prof. Roshan G. Ragel 

Dr. Chalinda Benaragama 

Dr. Asitha Bandaranayake 

Academic Staff 

24th August 2020 Training on Typing Mr. K.L.S.N. Bandara Non Academic Staff 

10th October 2020 Orientation as 

University Teacher 

Dr. Chalinda Benaragama Academic Staff selected for 

induction training 

programme of teaching 

methodology 2020 / 2021 

18th & 25th September 

2020  

Personal Development 

& Counselling 

Dr. W.M.J. Welgama - 

02nd & 23rd October & 

06th November 2020 

Teaching & Learning 

Methods 

Prof. M.M.P. Sumith - 
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4.5 CENTRE FOR RESEARCH AND KNOWLEDGE DISSEMINATION 

 

4.5.1 BREIF DESCRIPTION 

 

The Centre for Research and Knowledge Dissemination at the Sabaragamuwa University of 

Sri Lanka (CRKD-SUSL) is a venue to promote researches among the academics within the 

University, to make opportunities for presenting and publishing research findings for local 

and International Researchers and to disseminate knowledge to the community. Apart from 

teaching, the University academics are entrusted to explore the novel knowledge through 

advanced research activities and to serve to the community through various activities 

towards national development. The Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka, realizing the 

significance of such roles of the academics, has already created the required set ups to 

enhance research activities and to serve the community but in an ad hoc manner. 

Therefore, the CRKD-SUSL is established, to formalize the ongoing activities for an efficient 

service. 

 

The main objective of the CRKD-SUSL is to assist the academics in the university to 

contribute to the national development through high quality research and disseminating 

such research knowledge to the community through local and international scientific 

meetings and university-community partnership programs. 

 

4.5.2 GOALS 

 

 To upgrade the University as a Research University in Sri Lanka within next five years 

 To appear the University within next two years as the prominent urgency for strategic 

solutions and skills to anticipate emerging issues and challenges 

 To receive a higher percentage of institutional and individual research grants from 

various agencies 

 To obtain a higher number of problem solving and skill building projects at local, 

regional, national and international levels 

 To raise the University Rank to reach within 2000 in next five years 

 

4.5.3 FUNCTIONS 

 

 Promoting research culture 

 Encouraging and publish research outputs 

 Provide avenues and platform to enhance knowledge of internal stakeholders 

 Generate channels and opportunities to disseminate knowledge 

 Enterprise and assist to market the university 

 Assist to anticipate needs and wants of stakeholders 
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4.5.4 STAFF 

 

Director    - Prof. M.L.M. Chandrika Dissanayake 

      Faculty of Agricultural Sciences 

 

Editor, SUSL Journal   - Prof. M. Esham 

      Faculty of Agricultural Sciences 

 

Editor, Sinhala Journal  - Dr. D.K. Champa De Silva 

Faculty of Social Sciences and Languages 

 

Coordinating Editor, SUSL Journal - Mr. H.R.N.S. Bandara 

      Faculty of Applied Sciences 

 

Coordinating Editor, SUSL Sinhala - Mr. R.C. Palliyaguruge 

Journal      Faculty of Social Sciences and Languages 

 

Editor, Newsletter SUSL  - Dr. Manjula Wijewickrama   

      Senior Assistant Librarian 

 

Chairperson, SUSL Symposium  - Dr. Enoka P. Kudavidanage 

      Faculty of Applied Sciences 

 

Copy Editor, Newsletter SUSL  - Mr. Mahesha Hapugoda 

      Faculty of Social Sciences and Languages 

 

Coordinating Editor, Newsletter - Dr. R.K.C. Jeewanthi 

      Faculty of Agricultural Sciences 

 

Coordinating Editor, Newsletter - Mr. Sameera Perera 

      Faculty of Applied Sciences 

 

Coordinating Editor, Newsletter - Mr. Dilshan Jayathilake 

      Faculty of Geomatics 

 

Coordinating Editor, Newsletter - Ms. Vithiyalani Muththusami 

      Faculty of Management Studies 

 

Coordinating Editor, Newsletter - Dr. Chamalika Weerakoon 

      Faculty of Medicine 
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Coordinating Editor, Newsletter - Ms. U.B.H.N. Perera 

      Faculty of Social Sciences & Languages 

 

Coordinating Editor, Newsletter - Mrs. Pabasara Attanayaka 

      Faculty of Technology 

 

4.5.5 ACTIVITIES CONDUCTED IN 2020 

 

Activities Brief Description 

Publication of 

Newsletter 

Newsletter Vol.16, No: III (2019, July – December) has completed 

 

Newsletter Vol. 17, No: I (2020, January – June) has completed 

 

*Note: The newsletter is not printed due to the circular of UGC No: 4/2020 has to 

hold the print 

Conducted 

Annual 

Research 

Session – 2020 

The 10th Annual Research Session 2020 was held on 16th December 2020 at the 

Faculty of Geomatics, Sabaragamuwa University of Sri lanka. ARS 2020 is a 

multidisciplinary scholarly platform that allows sharing an insight into the recent 

researches conducted by the University academics, the postgraduate students 

and the undergraduate students. The conference was organized by the Centre for 

Research and Knowledge Dissemination (CRKD). ARS 2020 uncovered major areas 

of academic disciplines which includes Agricultural Sciences, Applied Sciences, 

Geomatics, management Studies, Medicine and Social Sciences & Languages. ARS 

2020 is conducted incorporating with 03rd Graduate Colloquium of Faculty of 

Graduate Studies. This year the conference featured a renowned keynote 

speaker, Prof. Rangika halwatura, attached to the Department of Civil 

Engineering, University of Moratuwa, presented the keynote speech on “Natural 

Science Vs Artificial Science”.   

Publication of 

University 

Journals 

Sinhala Journal (Sabaragamuwa University Shastreeya Sangrahaya) Volume 10, 

2019 – June is in the final process. 

 

Sabaragamuwa University Journal Volume 18, No: 01 (The English Journal)is in the 

final process. 
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4.6 CENTRE FOR QUALITY ASSURANCE (CQA) 

 

4.6.1 VISION 

 

Centre for Quality Assurance of Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka looks up to achieve 

the excellence in undergraduate and post graduate degree programmes to strengthen the 

ranking at national Global scale. 

 

4.6.2 MISSION 

 

Create and activate a concrete quality assurance system in all the components of the higher 

education system in Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka and sustain the process of 

continuous improvements for all teaching, learning and student support axes and 

institutional development, based on local and international academic standards, compatible 

with the mission and vision of the University and consequently, achieve overall satisfaction 

and harmony with the requirements of stakeholders qualifying the University to be 

nationally accredited.   

 

4.6.3 BRIEF HISTORY 

 

Centre for Quality Assurance (CQA) of Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka was 

established in complying with the Commission Circular No. 04/2015 as a coordinated body 

of University Grants Commission’s Quality Assurance Council funded by HETC project. CQA is 

primarily safeguard academic standards and quality of higher education qualifications and 

to inform and encourage continuous improvement in the management of the quality of 

higher education. 

 

CQA of Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka oversees quality assurance for all teaching 

and learning processes, student support and institutional development. CQA ensures that 

the university operates in conformity with the Sri Lankan Qualification Framework (SLQF) 

and academic standards set forth by Quality Assurance Council of Sri Lanka. The University’s 

internal quality assurance processes are complying within the Internal Quality Assurance 

Policy Framework. 

 

The head of the CQA is a Director, who is guided by the Senate Standing Committee on 

Quality Assurance (SSC-QA). Faculty level quality assurance activities are managed by the 

Faculty Quality Assurance Cells, which were established as per the quality assurance By-

laws. 
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4.6.4 CURRENT STATUS OF CENTRE FOR QUALITY ASSURANCE (CQA) 

 

STAFF 

 

Director - Prof. H.A.D. Ruwandeepika / Faculty of Agricultural Sciences 

  (Acting Director) 

 (From 12th October 2020) 

  

 Prof. J.M.C.K. Jayawardana / Faculty of Applied Sciences 

 (Up to August 2020)  

 

Secretary - Mrs. H.K.I.P. Abeysinghe 

  Assistant Registrar / Office of the Vice Chancellor 

  (From June 2020) 

   

Mrs. M.P.G. Silva  

Assistant Registrar / Non Academic Establishments Branch 

 (Up to May 2020) 

 

GOVERNING STRUCTURE: SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE ON QUALITY ASSURANCE  

 

Committee Composition and Meetings 

 

The composition of the Senate Standing Committee on Quality Assurance is consisted with 

the following composition according to the Circular No. 04 / 2015 and Circular No. 09 / 

2019. The participation of the Vice Chancellor at the Senate Standing Committee on Quality 

Assurance in the University is emphasized so that the true position of QA work in 

Universities is discussed and QA work should not be over powered by the administrative 

body. 

 

Prof. Udaya Rathnayake  - Vice Chancellor 

      (From 02nd November 2020) 

Prof. W.K. Athula C. Gnanapala - Acting Vice Chancellor 

      (From 19th May 2020 to 01st November 2020) 

Prof. M. Sunil Shantha  - Vice Chancellor 

      (Up to 18th May 2020) 

Dr. (Mrs.) H.A.D. Ruwandeepika - Acting Director / CQA 

      (From 12th October 2020) 

Prof. J.M.C.K. Jayawardana  - Director / CQA 

- (Up to August 2020) 

Prof. H.M.S. Priyanath   - Dean / Faculty of Graduate Studies 

Dr. M.M.P. Sumith   - Dean / Faculty of Agricultural Sciences 
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Dr. (Mrs) R.S. Sabaragamuwa  - Dean / Faculty of Applied Sciences 

      (Form 03rd October 2020) 

Prof. R.M.U.S.K. Rathnayake  - Dean / Faculty of Applied Sciences 

      (Up to 02nd October 2020) 

Dr. H.M. Indika Prasanna  - Dean / Faculty of Geomatics 

Prof. W.K. Athula C. Gnanapala - Dean / Faculty of Management Studies 

Prof. M.N. Wickramaratne  - Dean / Faculty of Medicine 

Dr. M.A.C.S.S. Fernando  - Dean / Faculty of Social Sciences and Languages 

      (From 13th October 2020) 

Dr. W. Manoj Ariyaratne  - Dean / Faculty of Social Sciences and Languages 

      (Up to 12th October 2020) 

Dr. A.D. Ampitiyawatta  - Dean / Faculty of Technology 

Mr. Kamal Gunawardana  - Acting Registrar 

      (From 30th March 2020) 

Mr. V.D. Kithsiri   - Registrar 

      (Up to 29th March 2020) 

Mrs. T.N. Neighsoorie   - Librarian 

Prof. Aruna Shanthaarachchi  - Director / Staff Development Centre 

      (From 02nd June 2020) 

Dr. S.T.C. Amarasinghe  - Director / Staff Development Centre 

      (Up to 01st June 2020) 

Dr. D.D. Wickramanayake  - Coordinator / Faculty of Agricultural Sciences 

      (From 18th March 2020) 

Dr. Ruwini Mutucumarana  - Coordinator / Faculty of Agricultural Sciences 

      (Up to 17th March 2020) 

Dr E.P.N. Udayakumara  - Coordinator / Faculty of Applied Sciences 

Dr. M.D.E.K. Gunathilake  - Coordinator / Faculty of Geomatics 

Dr. W.M.P.S.B. Wahala  - Coordinator / Faculty of Management Studies 

Dr. Amal Wageesha   - Coordinator / Faculty of Medicine 

Dr. U.P. Lekamge - Coordinator / Faculty of Social Sciences and 

Languages 

Dr. K.R. Koswattage   - Coordinator / Faculty of Technology 

Mrs. H.K.I.P. Abeysinghe  - Secretary / CQA  

   (Assistant Registrar / Office of the Vice 

Chancellor) 

      (From June 2020) 

Mrs. M.P.G. Silva   -  Secretary / CQA  

     (Assistant Registrar / Non Academic 

Establishments Branch) 

   (Up to May 2020) 

 

Quorum 

 

Quorum is 50% of the membership. 
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Meetings 

 

The Senate Standing Committee on Quality Assurance of CQA meets on a monthly basis and 

also considers matters by correspondence. The number of meetings per year is not less than 

ten. 

 

Meeting no Date No of participants 

18 23.01.2020 23* 

19 05.03.2020 18 

20 15.06.2020 12 

21 16.07.2020 17 

22 20.08.2020 14 

23 22.10.2020 18 

24 24.11.2020 17 

25 25.12.2020 17 

*Participated Chairpersons & Secretaries of Institutional Review Criteria as invitees 

 

FACULTY QUALITY ASSURANCE CELL (FQAC) 

 

Each Faculty has FQACs comprised with the following members to perform duties related to 

quality assurance at faculty level. 

 

Faculty of Agricultural Sciences 

  

S. No Position Name of the Officer 

01 Chairman of the FQAC Prof. M.M.P. Sumith / Dean 

02 Coordinator Dr. D.D. Wickramanayake / Senior Lecturer / 

Department of Livestock Production 

03 Heads of the Department Prof. D.A.M. De Silva / Department of Agribusiness  

Management 

Dr. P.K. Dissanayake / Senior Lecturer / Department of 

Export  Agriculture 

Dr. T.S.P. Jayaweera / Senior Lecturer / Department of 

Livestock Production 

04 A Representative from Each 

Department 

Dr. A.W. Wijerathne / Senior Lecturer / Department of 

Agribusiness  Management 

Dr. G.D.K. Kumara / Senior Lecturer / Department of 

Export  Agriculture 

Dr. R.M.A.S. Bandara / Senior Lecturer / Department of 

Livestock Production 
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S. No Position Name of the Officer 

05 One Professor of the Faculty Prof. P.I. Yapa / Department of Export Agriculture 

06 Two Students 

Representatives 

Mr. W.W.M.W.M.W.I.B. Wijethunga 

Ms. K.M.O.N. Karunarathna 

07 One Representative from 

the Technical/Laboratory 

Staff 

Ms D.G. Yasawathie / Technical Officer 

 

08 One Representative from 

the Secretarial/Office Staff 

Ms. H.M.S.N. Kularathna / Staff Management Assistant 

 

09 Convener Ms. M.D.N.K. Meddage / Assistant Registrar 

 

Faculty of Applied Sciences: 

 

S. No Position Name of the Officer 

01 Chairperson of the FQAC Dr. R.S. Sabaragamuwa / Dean 

02 Coordinator Dr. E.P.N. Udayakumara / Senior Lecturer / 

Department of Natural Resources 

03 Heads of the Department Prof. S. Vasanthapriyan / Department Computing and 

Information Systems  

Dr. W.S.M. Senevirathne / Senior Lecturer / 

Department of Food Sciences and Technology 

Dr. E.P. Kudavidanage / Senior Lecturer / Department 

of Natural Resources  

Dr. C.H. Baduraliya / Senior Lecturer / Department of 

Physical Sciences and Technology 

Mrs. T.S.H. Perera / Senior Lecturer / Department of 

Sport Sciences and Physical Education 

04 A Representative from Each 

Department 

Dr. Piumi Ishanka / Senior Lecturer / Department 

Computing and Information Systems 

Mr. Janitha Liyanage / Senior Lecturer / Department of 

Food Sciences and Technology 

Dr. D.N.S. Wanniarachchi / Senior Lecturer / 

Department of Natural Resources 

Mr. H.R.N.S. Bandara / Lecturer (Probationary) / 

Department of Physical Sciences and Technology 

Ms. L.R.N.D. Weerarathna / Senior Lecturer / 

Department of Sport Sciences and Physical Education 
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S. No Position Name of the Officer 

05 One Professor of the Faculty Prof. J.M.C.K. Jayawardana / Department of Natural 

Resources 

06 Two Students 

Representatives 

R.M.P.P.S. Deepatha 

D.M.C.C. Amarasinghe 

07 One Representative from 

the Technical/Laboratory 

Staff 

Mr. S.A.A.C.K. Hemachandra 

08 One Representative from 

the Secretarial/Office Staff 

Ms. P.M.H.K. Priyakanthi 

09 Convener Ms. A.A.Y. Abeysinghe / Assistant Registrar 

 

Faculty of Geomatics 

  

S. No Position Name of the Officer 

01 Chairman of the FQAC Dr. H.M.I. Prasanna / Dean 

02 Coordinator Dr. M.D.E.K. Gunathilaka / Senior Lecturer / 

Department of Surveying & Geodesy 

03 Heads of the Department Dr. Saman Koswatte / Senior Lecturer / Department of 

Remote Sensing and GIS 

Dr. H.R.S. Bandara / Senior Lecturer / Department of 

Surveying and Geodesy 

04 A Representative from Each 

Department 

Mrs. J.A.S. Jayakody / Senior Lecturer / Department of 

Remote Sensing and GIS 

Mrs. D.S. Munasinghe / Senior Lecturer / Department 

of Surveying and Geodesy 

05 One Professor of the Faculty - 

06 Two Students 

Representatives 

Mr. R. Viduranath 

Mr. C. Sulochana 

07 One Representative from 

the Technical/Laboratory 

Staff 

Mr. G. Kandegedara / Technical Officer 

08 One Representative from 

the Secretarial/Office Staff 

Ms. H.H.K.N. Dharmasiri / Assistant Registrar 

09 Convener Dr. M.D.E.K. Gunathilaka / Senior Lecturer / 

Department of Surveying and Geodesy 
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Faculty of Management Studies: 

 

S. No Position Name of the Officer 

01 Chairman of the FQAC Prof. W.K. Athula C. Gnanapala / Dean  

02 Coordinator Dr. W.M.P.S.B. Wahala / Senior Lecturer / Department 
of Tourism Management 

Co - coordinator Mr. I.A. Ekanayake / Lecturer (Probationary) / 
Department of Business Management 

03 Heads of the Department Prof. D.A.I. Dayaratne / Department of Accountancy 
and Finance 

Dr. H.P.R. Priyankara / Senior Lecturer / Department of 
Business Management 

Dr. R.S.S.W. Arachchi / Senior Lecturer / Department of 
Tourism Management 

Mr. D. Jasinghe / Senior Lecturer / Department of 
Marketing Management 

04 A Representative from Each 
Degree Program 
 

Ms. A.W.G.C.N. Wijethunga / Lecturer (Probationary) / 
Department of Accountancy & Finance 

Ms. Miyuni Shamika / Lecturer (Probationary) / 
Department of Accountancy & Finance 

Ms. I.M. Katuwandeniya / Lecturer (Probationary) / 
Department of Business Management 

Ms. J.A.R.C. Sandaruwani / Lecturer (Probationary) / 
Department of Tourism Management 

Mr. G.V.H. Dinusha / Lecturer (Probationary) / 
Department of Tourism Management 

Mr. R.A.D.C. Ranathunga / Lecturer (Probationary) / 
Department of Tourism Management 

Ms. P.L.G.S.D. Piumali / Lecturer (Probationary) / 
Department of Marketing Management 

05 One Professor of the Faculty Prof. M.S.M. Aslam / Department of Tourism 
Management 

06 Two Students 
Representatives 

R.M.U.V. Rathnayake 

Mr. W.S. Samantha 

07 One Representative from 
the Technical/Laboratory 
Staff 

Mr. S.M.D. Bandara 
Mr. Namal Nirosh 

08 One Representative from 
the Secretarial/Office Staff 

Mr. Indrani Swarnalatha 

09 Convener Ms. Roshini Neluwapathirana / Assistant Registrar 

10 Administrative Secretary Ms. A.W. Thiranagama / Lecturer (Probationary) / 
Department of Business Management 
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Faculty of Medicine 

 

S. No Position Name of the Officer 

01 Chairperson of the FQAC Prof. M.N. Wickramaratne / Dean 

02 Coordinator Dr. Amal Wageesha / Senior Lecturer / Department of 

Biochemistry 

03 Heads of the Department Dr. Nilantha Gamalathge / Senior Lecturer / 

Department of Anatomy 

Dr. Janya Jayawardena / Lecturer (Probationary) / 

Acting Head / Department of Physiology 

Dr. I.H.V. Nicholas / Senior Lecturer / For Head / 

Department of Biochemistry 

04 A Representative from Each 

Department 

Ms. T.C.S. Weerakoon  / Lecturer (Probationary) / 

Department of Anatomy 

05 One Professor of the Faculty Prof. Deepthi Samarage / Visiting Lecturer / 

Department of Physiology 

06 Two Students 

Representatives 

Ms. Dunya Jayasekara 

Mr. Osura Vithanage 

07 One Representative from 

the Technical / Laboratory 

Staff 

Mr. Dammika Piyasena 

08 One Representative from 

the Secretarial / Office Staff 

Mr. Anil Ranasinghe 

09 Convener - 

 

Faculty of Social Sciences and Languages 

 

S. No Position Name of the Officer 

01 Chairman of the FQAC Dr. Manoj Ariyaratne / Dean 

02 Coordinator Dr. Upul Lekamge  

03 Heads of the Department Mr. Saman Handaragama / Department of Social 

Sciences 

Dr. Niluka Prasanganie / Department of Languages 

Dr. Sampath Fernando / Department of Economics 

and Statistics 

Mrs. Deepani  Edirisooriya /  Department of 

Geography and Environmental Management 

Dr. Sangeeth Rathnayaka /   Department of English 

Language Teaching 
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S. No Position Name of the Officer 

04 A Representative from Each 

Department 

Mrs. Shanthi Hemalatha / Department of Social 

Sciences 

Dr. Chandana Dissanayake / Department of 

Languages 

Mr. Nuwan Weerarathne / Department of Economics 

and Statistics 

Mrs. E.M.T.K. Senawirathne / Department of 

Geography and Environmental Management 

Mrs. Lakmini Basnayake / Department of English 

Language Teaching 

05 One Professor of the Faculty Prof. H.M.S. Priyanath 

06 Two Students 

Representatives 

Ms. I.D. Liyanapathirana 

Ms. W.K.A. Pavithra Janani 

07 One Representative from 

the Technical/Laboratory 

Staff 

Mr. Chamith Bandara 

08 One Representative from 

the Secretarial/Office Staff 

Ms. Ishani Perera 

09 Convener Mrs. Yashodha Chandrasekara / Assistant Registrar 

 

Faculty of Technology 

 

S. No Position Name of the Officer 

01 Chairman of the FQAC Dr. A.D. Ampitiyawatta / Dean 

02 Coordinator Dr. K.R. Koswattage / Senior Lecturer / Department of 

Engineering Technology 

03 Heads of the Departments Dr. K.R. Koswattage / Senior Lecturer / Department of 

Engineering Technology 

Dr. W.G.M.S. Perera / Senior Lecturer / Department of 

Biosystems Technology) 

04 A Representative from Each 

Department 

Ms. N.D. Hettiarachchi / Department of Engineering 

Technology 

Mr. Dasith Wijesekara / Lecturer (Probationary) / 

Department of Biosystems Technology 

05 One Professor of the Faculty None 

06 Two Students 

Representatives 

Mr. Hasindu Kumara 

Mr. Kasun Sudaraka 
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S. No Position Name of the Officer 

07 One Representative from 

the Technical/Laboratory 

Staff 

Mr. Prasad Iddamalgoda 

08 One Representative from 

the Secretarial/Office Staff 

Mrs. Balika Priyadarshani 

09 Convener Mr. D.S.R.C. Sawanawadu / Assistant Registrar 

 

Coordinator of the FQAC is appointed by the Faculty Board or equivalent body. 
 

Quorum 
 

Quorum is 50% of the membership. 
 

Meetings 
 

The Committee meets at least once within two months and it considers matters by 

correspondence. 
 

Terms of Office 
 

Terms of Office for appointed members of this Committee is one year. 
 

APPOINTMENT OF CQA DIRECTOR 
 

Position Within the University 
 

1. The post of Director CQA should ideally be a full time position. Since this may not be 

achievable in the near future, the Director should obtain a reduction in the academic 

workload by 50%. As the Director needs the support of all the Deans and other senior 

academics / administrative staff, it is important to position the Director at an 

appropriate level. Hence the position of the Director can be specified in the HEI 

Organogram at the level of the DVC or at last at the level of a Director or a Dean. 

2. The Director CQA should be free of other major administrative responsibilities in order 

to implement QA process effectively. Since academic auditing is a part of internal quality 

assurance, the person should not be a DVC, Dean or an administrative head of 

department, in order to maintain the transparency of the quality assurance process. 

3. He / she should be a senior academic / professor with significant experience in 

administration (at last three years), as well as in the QA processes and have knowledge 

of the external review process, since a Director bears important responsibility in this 

process. Where the Director CQA is not a Professor, he / she should be an invited 

member of the Senate. 
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4. He / she should be appointed for a period of three years, with the concurrence of the 

UGC. He / she will be eligible reappointment for not one more than of three years. 

 

Logistics of the Director 

 

1. The Director, CQA should receive an honorarium of 25% of the basic salary per month, 

and a telecommunication allowance approved by the Council of the university as per the 

commission circular No. 06 / 2015. 

2. He / she should be provided with transport whenever necessary for official purposes. 

3. The university authorities should provide a suitable permanent office space for the CQA, 

together with internet and telephone facilities with a dedicated line. 

4. The university/HEI should provide a support staff (an incumbent Assistant Registrar, a 

Management Assistant and a Works Aid) on a permanent basis for the CQA to carry out 

their duties smoothly, as recommended in the previous UGC, QA Circular letter of 30th 

October 2017 (ref UGC/QAAC/IQAU). 

 

RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES 

 

Director CQA 

 

1. Develop regulation for the CQA and obtain approval from the university council for the 

same. 

2. Prepare operational guidelines for the CQA in accordance with the general guidelines 

developed by QAC of the UGC, and customized for the university’s governance 

structure/organogram and specific implementation arrangement. 

3. Develop a 3-years strategic Plan for the CQA, obtain approval from the university Senate 

and council and concurrence of the QAC of the UGC, before implementation. 

4. Develop the annual work plan for the CQA and obtain approval from the university 

senate and council at the commencement of each calendar year. 

5. Develop the annual budget estimates submitted to the Treasury, and obtain Finance 

Committee and council approval. 

6. Ensure that the CQA is established in the university website and details are updated 

regularly. 

7. Report regularly on QA activities and progress to the university Senate and council. 

8. Circulate notices of QA activities in the university community and other universities. 

9. Conduct University and Faculty level awareness programs on QA. 

10. Initiate and support preparation of SER for Institutional Reviews. 
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11. Motivate and support study programs to prepare SERs for Program Reviews. 

12. Provide necessary trainings and workshops for self-Assessment Report (SER) 

preparation. 

13. Motivate and support academic staff to showcase best practices in QA. 

14. Develop relationship and liaise with international agencies and the university on QA 

activities. 

15. Support academic staff in the process preparing proposals for the conduct of new 

degree programmes, and ensure that applications submitted to the UGC for approval in 

this regard are compliant with the Sri Lanka Qualification Framework. 

16. Report on University QA activities at the UGC Standing Committee on QA. 

17. Submit an annual report of the CQA to the QAC of the UGC. 

18. Convent and facilitate for all meetings of CQA and FQACs. 

19. Assist manual preparation on QA aspect in Faculties. 

20. Make available to all staff and external stakeholders the results of external and internal 

reviews, including student surveys. 

 

Coordinator of the Faculty Quality Assurance Cell 

 

1. Promote a quality culture in the Faculty in all QA related activities as a representative. 

2. Liaise with the Director, Centre for Quality Assurance (CQA) of the University to 

coordinate university level Quality Assurance (QA) activities. 

3. Organize Faculty level QA meetings on two months basis. 

4. Prepare the annual Faculty quality assurance report at the end of each year. 

5. Address on specific issues as recommended by the University Senate Standing 

Committee on Quality Assurance from time to time. 

6. Provide guidance in preparation of self-evaluation reports (SER) for programme review. 

7. Liaise with professional quality assurance and accreditation bodies on matters 

pertaining to QA and accreditation, if required. 

8. Monitor the collation and analysis of Faculty level QA data such as peer review forms 

and student feedback forms. 

9. Coordinate with other related committees and units within the Faculty on matters 

related to QA activities. 

10. Answer and address issues related to QA raised by the faculty members in general 

Report the activities of the Faculty QA Cell to the Faculty Board and IQAC regularly. 

11. Report the activities of the Faculty QA Cell to the Faculty Board and CQA regularly. 
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INTRODUCTION OF NEW DEGREE PROGRAMMES 

 

1. Faculties shall be responsible for identifying a new degree programmes based on the 

demand and need. 

2. Proposal of the new programme shall be submitted to the Director / CQA, together with 

the recommendation of the Faculty Board. 

3. The Director / CQA shall forward the proposal to the Senate with its observations on a 

adherence to the UGC guidelines, for the consideration of the Senate. 

4. The Senate shall appoint two external reviewers to review the detailed proposal. 

5. Based on the recommendation made by the external reviewers, the relevant Faculty 

shall revise the detailed proposal and forward the same to the Director / CQA. The 

Director CQA shall ensure that the recommendation made by the external reviewers are 

addressed in the revised detailed proposal. 

6. The Director CQA shall submit the revised proposal to the Senate to proceed via the 

Council to the UGC. 

 

MODIFICATION TO THE CURRICULUM OF AN EXISTING ACADEMIC PROGRAMME 

 

1. Modifications identified by department / s or the Faculty shall be reported to the 

Director / CQA in a specified format, with the recommendation of the Faculty Board. The 

Director CQA shall forward the modifications with its observations to the Senate to 

proceed for the UGC approval. 

2. The department/s or Faculty shall implement the modified curriculum with the next 

immediate intake of students. 

 

FACILITATING AND MONITORING OF SELF EVALUATION OF ACADEMIC PROGRAMMES 

AND THE UNIVERSITY 

 

1. The CQA shall make the necessary arrangements to prepare Self Evaluation Reports and 

review all academic programmes and the university based on UGC guidelines. 

2. Implementation and monitoring of recommendation made by the QAC. 

3. Each academic programme and the University shall be responsible for implementing the 

recommendation made by the external reviewers. 

4. The CQA shall monitor the implementation of such recommendations by the relevant 

academic programmes and the University for Self Evaluation. 
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4.6.5 INSTITUTIONAL REVIEW / PROGRAMMES REVIEWS 

 

Site Visit of the Institutional Review of Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka was held from 

27th January 2020 to 1st February 2020. 
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Day 01 – 27th January 2020 
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Day 02 – 28th January 2020 
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Day 03 – 29th January 2020 
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Day 04 – 30th January 2020 

 

Day 05 – 31st January 2020 
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Day 06 - 1st February 2020 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Site Visit of the Faculty of Agricultural Sciences of Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka was 

held from 03rd February 2020 to 06th February 2020. 
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The Self Evaluation Report (SER) of the Programme Review of Faculty of Geomatics was 

submitted to the University Grants Commission on 30th June 2020. 

 

The Self Evaluation Report (SER) of the Programme Review of Faculty of Applied Sciences 

was submitted to the University Grants Commission on 31st July 2020. 

 

4.6.6 ANNUAL ACTIVITY CALENDAR APPROVED BY THE SENATE 

 

QA Activity Month of the Year 2020 

Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec 

Awareness on programme on Institutional Review             

Awareness on programme reviews               

Quality assurance of academic programmes 1             

Quality assurance of academic programmes 2             

Quality assurance of academic programmes 3             

Quality assurance of academic programmes 4             

Workshop for  Administrative officers             

Quality assurance of non-academic staff             

Quality assurance of postgraduate programmes             

Faculty of Agricultural Sciences Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec 

One-day Workshop on Examination Procedures, 

Rules and Regulations 

            

A Workshop on Continuous Assessments, Paper 

Setting, Moderation and Paper Marking 

            

A workshop on ‘Scope of Work’ for the non-

academic staff 

            

Residential Workshop to revise/develop the 

Faculty By-Laws 

            

One-day workshop on Development of Students’ 

Soft Skills and Personality 

            

Post-SER Activities: Implementation of the Action 

Plan of the Programme Review 
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Faculty of Applied Sciences Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec 

Workshop on file handling and file system 

management (1 day workshop conducted by 

internal/external resource persons) 

            

Final workshop for SER preparation of the SPs 

conducted by the Faculty (2-day residential 

workshop-conducted by an external resource 

person) 

            

Facilitate student centered learning including 

introduction of LMS including web based to 

increase accessibility to knowledge 

            

Capacity Building/CPD/Training: 

Leadership and Soft  Skills Development 

Programme (1 day interactive workshop 

conducted by internal resource persons and an 

external resource person) 

            

Workshop on research proposal preparation and 

awareness on local and international funding 

sources (conducted by resource persons from 

NRC, NSF, NASTEC and COSTI) 

            

Excursion to a hi-tech analytical laboratory to gain 

exposure on lab management and good 

laboratory practices (1- workshop) 

            

Faculty of Geomatics Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec 

Workshops (students)             

Workshops (Staff)             

Student & Staff training             

Program review related activities             

Faculty of Management Studies Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec 

Continuation of ISO 9001:2015 Quality 

Management System Certification Process in the 

faculty (Documentation, Implementation and 

Verification) 

            

Initiating and setting up Occupational Health and 

Safety Management Systems ISO 45001:2018 in 

the faculty  

(Developing an Emergency Management Team in 

FMS 

Providing trainings and certifications for selected 

group of students on First aid and Safety) 

            

Continuation of innovation analysis to optimize 

the process architecture of FMS and 

Implementation of activities identified through 

Process Innovation Analysis  

            

Mini Projects to improve conducive environment 

of FMS through outcome-based learning   
 

Ex. Change Management (BM 4142), Lean &TQM, 

Process excellence (BM, EBM, MM) 
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Faculty of Medicine Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec 

Appointment of Curriculum revision committee 

under the curriculum development committee 

(CDC) to do the required modifications and 

refining the current curriculum. 

            

Facilitate student centered learning, including the 

introduction of LMS with web based to increase 

accessibility to the knowledge. 

            

Enhance the quality of academic and non- 

academic staff. 

(Development of performance management 

system) 

            

Development of student extracurricular activities 

such as sports, students’ clubs and development 

of supportive infrastructure facilities 

            

Workshop on preparation of MCQs and SAQs             

Registration fees for workshops and conferences              

Faculty of Social Sciences and Languages Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec 

Aligning University education to the context of 

Quality Assurance 

            

Integrating soft-skills into Learning-teaching 

context 

            

Student-centred learning made easy             

Research in Tertiary Education – Technicalities in 

professional writing and publishing 

            

Quality improvement in undergraduate research 

and industrial Training   

            

Faculty of Technology Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec 

Preparations of Operations manual.  

Good Laboratory Practice and Laboratory 

Management for technical officers and non 

academic staff.  

Development of office/lab management 

protocols and Work Procedures/Scope of Work 

for the non-academic staff 

            

ICT-based teaching workshop for academic staff             

Learning Centered Teaching workshop             

Project-based and Problem-based learning 

workshop (01 day) for students (1st  year 

undergraduates, preparing workshop for subjects 

such as creative problem solving) 

            

Teaching and communication (with student) 

enrichment- workshop with students feedback 

etc 

            

Attending Local Conference / Workshop 

(members in quality assurance cell in Faculty of 

Technology) 
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4.6.7 WORKSHOPS/TRAINING PROGRAMMES CONDUCTED BY THE CENTRE FOR QUALITY 

ASSURANCE (CQA) AND FACULTY QUALITY ASSURANCE CELLS (FQACS) 

 

Date Topic Target Group No. of 

Participants 

Centre for Quality Assurance 

05th November 

2020 

An online awareness session on 

“Mechanism for Implementing Academic 

Accountability and Work Load Policy of 

SUSL” conducted by CQA 

Academic Staff 17 

01st December 

2020 

Awareness program on standard setting in 

student assessment conducted by CQA 

Management Comiittee 

Members 

12 

Faculty Quality Assurance Cell – Faculty of Agricultural Sciences 

23rd December 

2020 

Academic Accountability, Work Norm and 

Introduction to Work Load Calculation 

Academic Staff 17 

Faculty Quality Assurance Cell – Faculty of Applied Sciences 

23rd January 

2020 

Workshop on file handling and file system 

management 

Non Academic Staff 20 

18th January 

2020 

Workshop on SER Preparation Academic Staff & 

Acadmeic Supportive 

Staff 

80 

18th November 

2020 

Leadership and Soft Skills Development 

Programme 

Final Year & 03rd Year 

Undergraduates 

133 

25th November 

2020 

Excursion to a hi-tech analytical laboratory 

to gain exposure on lab management and 

good laboratory practices 

Laboratory Staff 16 

27th November 

2020 

Facilitate student – centered learning 

method including the introduction of LMS 

including web-based 

Entire students of the 

Faculty 

125 

30th November 

2020 

Mechanism for Implementing Academic 

Accountability and Workload Policy of SUSL 

Academic Staff & 

Academic Supportive 

Staff 

80 

07th December 

2020 

Developing yourself as a scientist Final Year 

Undergraduates 

106 

Faculty Quality Assurance Cell – Faculty of Geomatics 

06th May 2020 Online Seminar on ‘Professionalism’ All Final Year Students 

of the Faculty 

68 

22nd May 2020 Online Seminar on ‘Restart Thinking’ All 03rd  Year Students of 

the Faculty 

92 

27th May 2020 Online Seminar on ‘Career Goal Setting’ All Final Year Students 

of the Faculty 

69 
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Date Topic Target Group No. of 

Participants 

Faculty Quality Assurance Cell – Faculty of Maagement Studies 

26th to 28th 

February 2020 

ISO 45001:2018 - Occupational Health and 

Safety (OH&S) Management System Auditor 

Training conducted by Sri Lanka 

Accrediatation Board (SLAB) 

Faculty Quality 

Assurance Cell members 

were participated [As a 

requirment for 

implementing ISO 

45001:2018 in the 

Faculty] 

4 

10th May 2020  Webinar on "Basics of Internet Law" by Mrs. 

Aparajitha Ariyadasa, ATD Legal Associates 

and Legal Consultant  

Open webinar for all 

those who interested  

50 

12th October 

2020  

Webinar on "Initial awarenss for ISO 

9001:2015 Quality Management Systems" 

by Mr. Ajitha Prasanna, Head of 

Certifications, Laughs  

Faculty Quality 

Assurance Cell 

Members [As a 

requirment for 

implementing ISO 

45001:2018 in the 

Faculty]  

11 

05th November 

2020  

Workshop on "Developing policy and 

procedures on psychological counseling" for 

the Faculty of Management Studies (Session 

01) by Dr. Jayaprasad Welgama, Faculty of 

Social Sciences and Languages, SUSL  

Academic Staff 

Members of the Faculty  

30 

18th November 

2020  

Workshop on "Developing policy and 

procedures on psychological counseling" for 

the Faculty of Management Studies (Session 

02) by Dr. Jayaprasad Welgama, Faculty of 

Social Sciences and Languages, SUSL  

Academic Staff 

Members of the Faculty  

18 

23rd November 

2020  

Workshop on "Developing policy and 

procedures on psychological counseling" for 

the Faculty of Management Studies (Session 

03) by Dr. Jayaprasad Welgama, Faculty of 

Social Sciences and Languages, SUSL  

Academic Staff 

Members of the Faculty  

20 

01st December 

2020  

Webinar on "Psychological Counseling" by 

Dr. Yasira Doluweera, Acting consultant 

Psychiatrist, District General Hospital, 

Embilipitiya.  

Academic Staff 

Members of the Faculty  

22 

30th December 

2020  

Webinar on "Initial awarenss for ISO 

45001:2018 - Occupational Health and 

Safety (OH & S) Management Systems" by 

Mr. Chamal Indrajith, Quality Environmental 

Safety and Health Country Officer at 

Siemens Gamesa  

Faculty Quality 

Assurance Cell 

Members [As a 

requirment for 

implementing ISO 

9001:2015 in the 

Faculty]  

11 
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Date Topic Target Group No. of 

Participants 

Faculty Quality Assurance Cell – Faculty of Medicine 

28th September 

2020  

Workshop on 'Assessment principles; 

putting into practice'  

All Academic staff of the 

Faculty  

18 

15th October 

2020  

Workshop on curriculum design and 

alignment for Para-clinical subjects  

All Para-clinical 

academic staff members  

8 

Faculty Quality Assurance Cell – Faculty of Social Sciences & Languages 

16th June 2020  Aligning University education to the context 

of Quality Assurance  

Academic staff 

members  

26 

Faculty Quality Assurance Cell – Faculty of Technology 

11th November 

2020  

Webinars on “Introduction to the Quality 

Assurance”  

Academic  26 

12th November 

2020  

Webinars on “Outcome based education 

and student centered Learning: Principles 

and Best Practices”  

Academic Staff  8 

16th November 

2020  

Webinars on “Evaluation and Examination 

Procedure”  

Academic Staff  10 

19th November 

2020  

Webinars on “Assessment Methods and 

Developing Effective Assessment Rubrics”  

Academic Staff  10 

07th December 

2020  

ICT-based teaching for academic staff  Academic Staff  9 

10th December 

2020  

Management protocols and work 

procedures/scope of work for the non-

academic staff  

Non-Academic Staff  12 

14th December 

2020  

Preparation of specification, bidding 

document and procurement procedure 

especially in the STHRD project.  

Academic Staff  7 

18th December 

2020  

Operating Policy and Procedure for the 

Academic Accountability  

Academic Staff  14 
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4.6.8 INSTITUTIONAL REVIEW (IR) / PROGRAMME REVIEWS (PR) 
 

Site Visits of External Reviews 
 

IR / PR Name of the Programme / Cluster Dates of Site Visit 

PR  BSc in Agricultural Science and Management (Faculty 

of Agricultural Sciences)  

03rd February 2020 to 06th 

February 2020  

IR  Institutional Review of Sabaragamuwa University of 

Sri Lanka  

27th January 2020 to 1st 

February 2020  

 

4.6.9 PROGRESS REPORTS SUBMITTED TO THE QUALITY ASSURANCE COUNCIL –UGC 

 

Progress reports were submitted to the QAC, UGC for the year 2020 and annual report has 

been prepared. 
 

4.6.10 OTHER ACTIVITIES / HIGHLIGHTS FOR THE YEAR 2020 
 

1. Policy documents of Grievances appeal policy for SUSL and Policy on Student 
Assessment were prepared and obtained the Senate and Council approval.  

 

2. Amended By-laws Governing Internal Quality Assurance was prepared and obtained the 
Senate and Council approval.  

 

3. University policy on student engagement in quality assurance was prepared and 
obtained the Senate approval.  

 

4. Started the process of establishing the quality assurance cell for Centre for open & 
Distance learning (CODL) and for the Faculty of Graduate Studies.  

 

5. Academic accountability and work norm policy of SUSL -Implementing process was 
developed based on the Operating policy and procedure for academic accountability and 
workload calculation for academic staff, SUSL.  

 

6. Templates for moderation of examination papers and second marking of answer scripts 
were developed and obtained the Senate and Council approval.  

 

7. A committee has been appointed for the development of Strategic Management Plan for 
Quality Assurance of SUSL as it was not existing for quality Assurance.  

 

8. Format for approval of proposals to offer programs of study leading to award of sub 
degree level qualifications was developed and granted the Senate approval.  

 

9. Letter head for CQA and certificate for workshop participants were also developed and 
obtained Senate approval.  

 

10. Terms of Reference for CQA Director and Coordinators have been adopted from the 
Bylaws of Quality Assurance in order to maximize the involvement in Quality Assurance.  
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4.7 UNIVERSI TY BUSINESS LINKAGE CELL (UBLC) 

 

4.7.1 BRIEF HISTORY 

 

The University Business Linkage Cell of Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka was 

established on April 2018 with reference to the University Grants Commission Circular 

No.10/2016. The contract between Accelerating Higher Education Expansion and 

Development (AHEAD) Operation and Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka for the 

establishment and development of University Business Linkage Cell, was signed on 27th 

December 2018. The University Business Linkage Cell has taken the responsibility to link the 

University research and innovation activities with external business stake holders. UBLC will 

strive to bridge the gap among Private and State-owned businesses, the academic 

community, faculties, and undergraduates. 

 

UBLC has successfully completed the Phase 01, Phase 02 and Phase 03 of its activities and 

grants were approved as 4 million, 5 million and 4 million respectively. Phase 02 and Phase 

03 was completed on 13th February and 28th October of 2020 respectively.  As well as the 

Action Plans of the Phase 4 are being continued in a certain degree. 

 

4.7.2 STAFF 

 

Director   

 

Professor D.A.I. Dayaratne - Faculty of Management Studies  

 

Advisory Board 

 

Prof. H.M.S. Priyanath   - Dean / Faculty of Graduate Studies 

Prof. M.M.P. Sumith - Dean / Faculty of Agricultural Sciences 

Dr. R.S. Sabaragamuwa  - Dean / Faculty of Applied Sciences 

(From 03rd October 2020) 

Prof. R.M.U.S.K. Rathnayake  - Dean / Faculty of Applied Sciences 

     (Up to 02nd October 2020) 

Dr. H.M. Indika Prasanna  - Dean / Faculty of Geomatics 

Prof. W.K. Athula C. Gnanapala - Dean / Faculty of Management Studies 

Prof. M.N. Wickramaratne - Dean / Faculty of Medicine 

Dr. M.A.C.S.S. Fernando  - Dean / Faculty of Social Sciences and Languages 

     (From 13th October 2020) 

Dr. W. Manoj Ariyaratne - Dean / Faculty of Social Sciences and Languages 

(Up to 12th October 2020) 
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Dr. A.D. Ampitiyawatta - Dean / Faculty of Technology 

Mr. Chamly Gunaseela  - Director / Sabaragamuwa Chamber of 

Commerce and industry 

Mr. P.M. Chamendra Somathunga - Chairman / Food & Nature Pvt. Ltd 

Mr. D.A. De. S. Wickramanayaka - Chairman / Pelawatte Dairy Industries Pvt. Ltd 

Mr. H.M.S. Samarakoon  - Deputy Director / Industry Development Board, 

Ratnapura 

Mrs. P.B.N. Fernando   - Assistant Registrar / Legal & Documentation 

 

Faculty Coordinators 

 

Dr. L. A. Chandima Sajeewanie - Faculty of Management Studies 

Dr. A.L.C. Janitha Liyanage   - Faculty of Applied Sciences 

Dr. N.M.P.M. Piyasena  - Faculty of Geomatics 

Dr. Mahesh Hapugoda  - Faculty of Social Sciences & Languages 

Dr. N.P. Liyanawaduge  - Faculty of Technology 

Dr. Nilantha Gamlathge  - Faculty of Medicine 

Ms. Maheshwari. S. Elapata  - Faculty of Agricultural Sciences 

 

Cell Manager 

 

Ms. M.P.T.R. Sankalpana 

 

4.7.3 ACTIVITIES CONDUCTED IN 2020 

 

Collaboration with External Parties 

 

1. Sabaragamuwa Chamber of Commerce and Industries: University Business Linkage Cell 

has held a meeting with Sabaragamuwa 

Chamber of Commerce and Industries 

on 13th August 2020 at 9.30 a.m. in 

the Board Room of Vice-Chancellor's 

Office to create an environment where 

the university researchers and SMEs 

can meet together for mutual research 

collaboration and innovation. 

Depending on the above meeting we 

have published a newspaper article in 

Daily News on 31st August 2020. 
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2. The University Business Linkage Cell of 

Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka 

through Faculty of Agricultural Sciences has 

entered into a Memorandum of 

Understanding with Sabaragamuwa 

Chamber of Commerce and Industries to 

affirm the industrial, research and academic 

collaboration, on 26th August 2020 at 

Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka.  

 

3. The University Business Linkage Cell of 

Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka has 

entered into a MoU with SULECO Pvt. Ltd 

accelerate the commercialization process 

of the inventions invented by the research 

team of AHEAD Grant RIC STEM HEMS 24 

(Faculty of Geomatics) on 27th October 

2020 at Sabaragamuwa University of Sri 

Lanka. 

 

4. The University Business Linkage Cell of 

Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka has 

entered into a MoU with Cargills Ceylon PLC 

to commercialize two inventions titled 

“Cinnamon Tea Pod” and “A Healthy 

Cinnamon Latte” invented by AHEAD Grant 

RIC STEM HEMS (Faculty of Agricultural 

Sciences), on 17th November 2020 at 

Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka.  

 

5. The University Business Linkage Cell of 

Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka has 

entered into a MoU with Spice Lab by 

Ceylon Pvt. Ltd to commercialize the 

invention titled “A Herbal Soup Mix with 

Anti-Diabetic Activity” invented by the 

research team of AHEAD Grant RIC STEM 

HEMS 18 (Faculty of Applied Sciences) on 

16th December 2020 at Sabaragamuwa 

University of Sri Lanka. 
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6. As well as the UBLC has already liaised the university researchers with the respective 

industry partners in commercialization endeavours as follows; 

 

a. UBLC has connected with Loops Digital Pvt. Ltd to explore the opportunity of 

developing a meat substitute product which has been invented by Faculty of Applied 

Sciences. The meeting was held on 23rd July 2020. 

b. UBLC has liaised the invention titled “Nutmeg Fruit Pericarp Wine” invented by the 

research team of the Faculty of Applied Sciences with CAP Organic Pvt. Ltd. The 

meeting was held on 24th July 2020. 

c. AHEAD Grant RIC STEM HEMS 18: A Herbal Tea Formulation with Anti-Diabetic 

Activity has been linked with Food and Nature Pvt. Ltd. The meeting was held on 17th 

November 2020. 

d. AHEAD Grant RIC STEM HEMS 06: Development of Food Waste Compost Bin has 

been linked with CNR Construction Technology Pvt. Ltd and State Ministry of Urban 

Development. The meetings were held on 06th October and 15th December of 2020 

respectively.  

e. AHEAD Grant RIC STEM HEMS 18: A Soursop based Medicated Wine with Anti-

Diabetic Activity has been linked with Cap Organic Pvt. Ltd. The meeting was held on 

22nd December 2020. 

f. UBLC has invited the Expression of Interest for the Investment (EOI) from the 

Corporate and Private sector organizations to commercialize the technologies 

invented by the University researches which are funded by the AHEAD grants. 

Therefore, we have published a paper advertisement in Sunday Observer on 27th 

September 2020 and we have received some favourable responses from the 

respective industry partners. 

 

Workshops Conducted by UBLC 
 

1. UBLC has conducted an online webinar for undergraduates of the Sabaragamuwa 

University on “Monetization of Intellectual Property of Universities” on 06th July 2020 

and conducted a webinar for the students of the Vishisht School of Management India 

on 24th June 2020. 

2. UBLC has executed the online 

“ImagineIF” program in collaboration 

with Information and Communication 

Technology Agency of Sri Lanka (ICTA) on 

16th September 2020 for the 

undergraduates who are seeking to 

enhance their entrepreneurial mindset. 

Furthermore, we are expecting to carry 

out the physical interactive workshop for 

the above program within the next year.  
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3. UBLC has conducted a workshop on “Intellectual Property Protection and Technology 

Licensing” to aware the University researches about the options available to protect and 

commercialize their Intellectual Properties on 21st October 2020. 

 

Second and Third Advisory Board Meeting of UBLC 

 

The second and third meetings of the Advisory Board of the University Business Linkage Cell 

(UBLC) were held respectively on 03rd January 2020 and 09th July 2020 at the Board Room of 

the Vice-chancellor’s Office.  

 

Patent 

Application No: 
Patent Title 

Principal 

Investigator 

20919 Food Waste Bin: All in one Black Soldier Fly Larvae Mass 

Production Model 

Dr. A.W. Wijeratne 

21011 All in One Artemia Hatching Unit Dr. C.N. Walpita 

21010 A Composition of Components for a Fermented Beverage 

from Nutmeg Fruit Pericarp 

Dr. W.S.M. 

Senewirathne 

21236 All in One Micro Worm Culture Unit Dr. C.N. Walpita 

21235 Submersible Fish Tank Filter with Self- Cleaning Ability Dr. C.N. Walpita 

21328 A Manufacturing Method of Herbal Soup Mix with Anti-

Diabetic Activity 

Prof. R.M.U.S.K. 

Rathnayake 

21327 A Herbal Tea preparation method that a kind of 

controlling Diabetes Mellitus 

Prof. R.M.U.S.K. 

Rathnayake 

 

UBLC has already filed a PCT Application for the research project titled “Extraction of Nano 

Oxide Particles from Sri Lankan Mineral Sands” which is being funded by the University 

Grants (Grant no: SUSL/RG/2016/05). Therefore, the international application number is 

PCT/IB2020/057245 and it is published on 31st July 2020. 

 

Academic Staff - Student Collaborative and Innovative Projects to be considered for Seed 

Capital under AHEAD Grant 

 

University Business Linkage Cell has decided to offer seed capital out of AHEAD grants to 

upgrade the University inventions to a commercially viable product and to liaise them with 

the potential industrial partners. We have been granted the World Bank approval to allocate 

a maximum Rs. 50,000 for developing one product. Depending on that activity we have 

executed six evaluation sessions to select the academic staff - student collaborative 

research projects to be considered for seed capital and 18 projects raised from Faculty of 

Agricultural Sciences and Faculty of Applied Sciences have been selected by the evaluation 

panels. The remaining evaluations have yet to be carried out. The evaluation sessions were 



 
Draft Annual Report 2020 / Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka 

 

111 

held on 27th July, 31st July, 09th August, 08th December and 09th December of 2020 

respectively.  

Financial Progress for the Year of 2020 

 

We have used Rs. 2,729,035.92 out of Rs.9, 000,000.00 up to the date. But for the year of 

2020 we have used Rs. 1,099,413.87 out of the above amount. 

 

 Allocated Amount Utilized Amount during 2020 

Goods Rs. 1,830,000.00  Rs. 59, 600.00  

 

Works 

 

Not allocated - 

Consultancy Services Rs. 250,000.00  Not Utilized 

 

Non-Consultancy Services 

 

Not allocated 

 

- 

Other Value Added Activities 

 

Rs. 6,920,000.00 Rs. 1,039,813.87  

 

Total Rs.9, 000,000.00 Rs. 1,099,413.87 
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4.8 CENTRE FOR GENDER EQUITY AND EQUALITY 

 

4.8.1 BRIEF HISTORY 

 

The Centre for Gender Equity and Equality (CGEE) of Sabaragamuwa University was 

established in January 2017 under the guidance of the University Grants Commission (UGC), 

Sri Lanka. The centre functions directly under the Vice Chancellor. The pioneer director of 

the center was Saman Handaragama, Senior Lecturer in Sociology at the Department of 

Social Sciences of SUSL.  The CGEE has been located next to the Academic and Student 

Affairs Branch and office of the Senior Student Counselor of SUSL.  

 

4.8.2 BRIEF INTRODUCTION 

 

Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka is committed to the promotion of Gender Equity and 

Equality (GEE) and women’s empowerment where all students, academic, administrative 

and support staff, female and male, enjoy equal opportunities, human rights, and free from 

all forms of discrimination and harassment. As such members of the University community 

have the responsibility of ensuring that it is free from gender inequity and Sexual and 

Gender Based Violence (SGBV). 

 

Thus SUSL policy on GEE is designed to promote equality between women and men; to 

eliminate unlawful discrimination and harassment; and to provide an inclusive working, 

learning and social environment in which the rights and dignity of all its staff and students 

are respected to assist them in reaching their full potential. The university will work to 

remove any barriers which might deter people of the highest ability from applying to SUSL 

as staff or students. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

UGC 

Standing Committee for Gender Equity / Equality 

SGBV Redress 
Mechanism 

Research and 
Policy 

Planning 

Training and 
Development 

Administration  
Coordination 

 

Monitoring 
 

University 
SGBV Redress 

 
Mechanism 

University 
Gender Equity 
and Equality 

Cell 

Faculty Gender Equity 
and Equality Cell 

Administratives and Non 
Academic Gender Equity and 

Equality Cell 
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Composition of GEE Cell 

 

1. Vice-Chancellor (Chairperson) 

2. Director – CGEE (Co-Chairperson) 

3. Deans of Faculties 

4. Registrar 

5. Bursar 

6. Director/Staff Development Centre 

7. Two academic representatives from each Faculty (one male and one female) 

8. Two academic support representatives from each Faculty (one male and one female) 

9. Two student representatives from each Faculty (one male and one female) 

 

4.8.3 PERMENANT STAFF 

 

Director   - Dr. U.P. Lekamge / Faculty of Social Sciences & 

Languages 

      

4.8.4 FUNCTIONS OF GEE CELL 

 

1. Providing training on gender equity and equality. 

2. Conducting research, review policies and contributing for the policy inputs in the 

university level. 

3. Doing the curricular reforms to inculcate the concepts and practices of GEE. 

4. Preventing and responding to Sexual and Gender Based Violence. 

5. Identifying ways and means of preventing SGBV in the university and empowering staff 

and students to prevent and respond to SGBV by developing relevant skills. 

6. Enhancing capacity to facilitate and monitor the implementation of the GEE Policy at the 

institutional level. 

7. Inquiring sexual and gender based violence and proposing to university councils for 

disciplinary actions to offenders and facilities to victims. 

 

4.8.5 ACTIVITIES CONDUCTED IN 2020 

 

 Webinar on Sexual and Gender Based Violence on 29th July 2020, Faculty of Medicine 

 

 Webinar on Creating a Gender Responsive Culture on 12th December 2020, Faculty of 

Agricultural Sciences 

 

 

 



 
Draft Annual Report 2020 / Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka 

 

114 

5. NEW ENTRANTS AND STUDENT ENROLMENT IN UNDERGRADUATE (LOCAL 

AND FOREIGN) 

 

5.1 LOCAL STUDENTS NEW ENTRANTS TO INTERNAL UNDERGRADUATE 

DEGREE PROGRAMMES 

 

Faculty Programme of study Year of 

Intake 

Agreed 

Intake 

No. 

Registered 

No. 

following 

the 

course 

Faculty of 

Agricultural 

Sciences 

BSc. in Agricultural Sciences 2019/2020 121 N/A N/A 

BSc. In Food Business 

Management 

123 N/A N/A 

Faculty of 

Applied 

Sciences 

BSc. In Food Science & 

Technology 

79 N/A N/A 

BSc. In Biology Science 95 N/A N/A 

BSc. In Physical Science 93 N/A N/A 

BSc. In Computer & 

Information System 

162 N/A N/A 

BSc. In Sports Sciences & 

Management 

78 N/A N/A 

BSc. In Physical Education 88 N/A N/A 

Bsc. In Software Engineering 50 N/A N/A 

Faculty of 

Geomatics 

Bsc. In Surveying Sciences 148 N/A N/A 

Faculty of 

Management 

Studies 

BSc. In Management Studies 338 N/A N/A 

Bsc. In Tourism & Hospitality 

Management 

99 N/A N/A 

Faculty of 

Medicine 

Bsc. In Medicine and Surgery 89 N/A N/A 

Faculty of 

Social 

Sciences & 

Languages 

Bachelor in Arts 289 N/A N/A 

BA. in Translation Studies 43 N/A N/A 

Faculty of 

Technology 

Bsc. In Engineering Technology 102 N/A N/A 

Bsc. In Bio System Technology 99 N/A N/A 

Total 2096 N/A N/A 
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Faculty Programme of study 

 

Year of 

Intake 

Agreed 

Intake 

No. 

Registered 

No. 

following 

the 

course 

Faculty of 

Agricultural 

Sciences 

BSc. in Agricultural Sciences 2018/2019 110 103 102  

BSc. In Food Business 

Management 

 80 75  75 

Faculty of 

Applied 

Sciences 

BSc. In Food Science & 

Technology 

60 56  56 

BSc. In Biology Science 60 56 54  

BSc. In Physical Science 60 47  43 

BSc. In Computer & 

Information System 

100 95  95 

BSc. In Sports Sciences & 

Management 

50 47  47 

BSc. In Physical Education 50 46  46 

Faculty of 

Geomatics 

Bsc. In Surveying Sciences 100 99  99 

Faculty of 

Management 

Studies 

BSc. In Management Studies 300 292 289 

Bsc. In Tourism & Hospitality 

Management 

70 68 67 

Faculty of 

Medicine 

Bsc. In Medicine and Surgery 75 75  75 

Faculty of 

Social 

Sciences & 

Languages 

Bachelor in Arts 295 290 290  

BA. in Translation Studies 25 23  22 

Faculty of 

Technology 

Bsc. In Engineering Technology 75 73  73 

Bsc. In Bio System Technology 75 75  75 

Total 1585 1520 356 
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5.2 LOCAL STUDENTS ENROLMENT (TOTAL NO. OF STUDENTS) IN INTERNAL 

UNDERGRADUATE DEGREE PROGRAMMES 

 

Faculty Programme of study Year of 

study 

Year 

of 

Intake 

UGC Intake (Local 

Students) 

Male Female Total 

Faculty of 

Agricultural 

Sciences 

BSc. in Agricultural Sciences 1st 

Year 

2018/

2019 

19 84 103 

BSc. In Food Business Management 
 

17 58 75 

Faculty of 

Applied 

Sciences 

BSc. In Food Science & Technology 
 

24 32 56 

BSc. In Biology Science 
 

08 46 54 

BSc. In Physical Science 
 

20 23 43 

BSc. In Computer & Information 

System  

56 39 95 

BSc. In Sports Sciences & 

Management  

24 23 47 

BSc. In Physical Education 
 

15 31 46 

Faculty of 

Geomatics 

Bsc. In Surveying Sciences 

 

65 34 98 

Faculty of 

Management 

Studies 

BSc. In Management Studies 
 

92 200 292 i 

Bsc. In Tourism & Hospitality 

Management  

18 49 67 

Faculty of 

Medicine 

Bsc. In Medicine and Surgery 

 

27 48 75 

Faculty of 

Social 

Sciences & 

Languages 

Bachelor in Arts 
 

47 243 290 

BA. in Translation Studies 

 

1 21 22 

Faculty of 

Technology 

Bsc. In Engineering Technology 63 11 74 ii 

Bsc. In Bio system Technology 28 48 76 iii 

Total 524 990 1513 

 

i. BSc. in Management Studies 

         Three students took deferment and re entered the 2018/2019 batch. 

  

ii. Bsc. in Bio System Technology 

         One student took deferment and re entered the 2018/2019 batch. 

 

iii. Bsc. in Engineering Technology 

         One student took deferment and re entered the 2018/2019 batch. 
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i  BSc. in Surveying Sciences 

 Two students took deferment and re entered the 2017/2018 batch. 

ii BSc. in Management Studies 

 Four students took deferment and re entered the 2017/2018 batch. 

iii Bachelor in Arts 

 Eight students took deferment and re entered the 2017/2018 batch. 
 

The student registrations for the 2017/2018 academic year of the Faculty of Social Sciences and Languages are 

as follows. 
 

Bachelor in Arts 
  

 Eight students took deferment and re entered the 2017/2018 batch. 

 The number of male students in the report on 30.06.2019 was 35 and 37 in the report on 30.06.2020. Two 

students have extended the 2016/2017 academic year. 

 The number of female students in the report on 30.06.2019 was 217 and 222 in the 2010.06.30 report. 06 

students have extended the 2016/2017 academic year. 01 Student has received transfers. 

 Furthermore, the number of additional students in the report dated 30.06.2019 has been mentioned 

separately and it has been included in the Bachelor in Arts in the report dated 30.06.2020. 
 

2017/2018 Batch Male Female 

Bachelor in Arts 31 174 

Additional Intake  + 4 43 

 35 217 

Deferment             + 2 6 

 37 223 

Transfer                 - 0 1 

Total 37 222 

Faculty Programme of study Year 

of 

study 

Year of 

Intake 

UGC Intake (Local 

Students) 

Male Female Total 

Faculty of Agricultural 

Sciences 

BSc. in Agricultural Sciences 2nd 

Year 

2017/ 

2018 

23 64 87 

BSc. In Food Business Management 
 

15 57 72 

Faculty of Applied 

Sciences 

BSc. In Food Science & Technology 
 

17 30 47 

BSc. In Biology Science 
 

11 39 50 

BSc. In Physical Science 
  

17 27 44 

BSc. In Computer & Information System 
  

54 35 89 

BSc. In Sports Sciences & Management 
  

26 22 48 

BSc. In Physical Education 
  

28 19 47 

Faculty of Geomatics Bsc. In Surveying Sciences 
  

79 19 98  i 

Faculty of 

Management Studies 

BSc. In Management Studies 
  

93 194 287 ii 

Bsc. In Tourism & Hospitality Management 
  

26 41 67 

Faculty of Medicine Bsc. In Medicine and Surgery 
  

29 41 70 

Faculty of Social 

Sciences & Languages 

Bachelor in Arts 
  

37 222 259 iii 

BA. in Translation Studies 

 

 
1 22 23 

Faculty of Technology Bsc. In Bio system Technology 
 

14 61 75 

 
Bsc. In Engineering Technology 

 
69 6 75 

Total 539 899 1438 
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Faculty Programme of study Year 

of 

study 

Year of 

Intake 

UGC Intake (Local 

Students) 

Male Female Total 

Faculty of Agricultural 

Sciences 

BSc. in Agricultural Sciences 3rd 

Year 

2016/ 

2017 

31 71 102 

BSc. in Food Business 

Management 

10 48 58 

Faculty of Applied 

Sciences 

BSc. in Food Science & Technology 29 25 54 

BSc. in Biology Science 6 38 44 

BSc. in Physical Science 8 12 20 

BSc. in Computer & Information 

System 

53 37 90 

BSc. In Sports Sciences & 

Management 

22 25 47 

BSc. in Physical Education 22 24 46 

Faculty of Geomatics Bsc. in Surveying Sciences 73 21 94 

Faculty of 

Management Studies 

BSc. in Management Studies 89 186 275 

Bsc. in Tourism & Hospitality 

Management 

27 38 65 

Faculty of Social 

Sciences & Languages 

Bachelor in Arts 30 221 251 

BA. in Translation Studies 2 22 24 

Total 402 768 1170 

Faculty of Agricultural 

Sciences 

BSc. in Agricultural Sciences 3rd 

Year 

2015/ 

2016 

9 49 58 

BSc. in Food Business 

Management 

7 34 41 

Faculty of Applied 

Sciences 

BSc. in Food Science & Technology 11 14 25 

BSc. in Biology Science 4 10 14 

BSc. in Physical Science 10 12 22 

BSc. in Computer & Information 

System 

38 36 74 

BSc. In Sports Sciences & 

Management 

20 20 40 

BSc. in Physical Education 20 21 41 

Faculty of Geomatics Bsc. in Surveying Sciences 59 10 69 

Faculty of 

Management Studies 

BSc. in Management Studies 82 176 258 

Bsc. in Tourism & Hospitality 

Management 

27 32 59 

Faculty of Social 

Sciences & Languages 

Bachelor in Arts 37 227 264 

BA. in Translation Studies 1 18 19 

Total 325 659 984 
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Faculty Programme of study Year 

of 

study 

Year of 

Intake 

UGC Intake (Local 

Students) 

Male Female Total 

Faculty of 

Agricultural 

Sciences 

BSc. in Agricultural Sciences 4th 

Year 

2014/ 

2015 

20 53 73 

BSc. in Food Business Management N/A N/A N/A 

Faculty of Applied 

Sciences 

BSc. in Food Science & Technology 9 10 19 

BSc. in Biology Science 5 9 14 

BSc. in Physical Science 17 11 28 

BSc. in Computer & Information 

System 

45 24 69 

BSc. In Sports Sciences & 

Management 

15 18 33 

BSc. in Physical Education 14 19 33 

Faculty of 

Geomatics 

Bsc. in Surveying Sciences 51 13 64 

Faculty of 

Management 

Studies 

BSc. in Management Studies 85 169 254 

Bsc. in Tourism & Hospitality 

Management 

26 31 57 

Faculty of Social 

Sciences & 

Languages 

Bachelor in Arts 27 188 215 

BA. in Translation Studies N/A 22 22 

Total 314 567 881 

 

 

5.3 FOREIGN STUDENTS ENROLMENT (TOTAL NO. OF STUDENTS) IN 

UNDERGTADUATE DEGREE PROGRAMME   

 

Programme of 

Study 

Year 

of 

Study 

Country Year of 

Intake 

Student Enrolment (Total No. of students) 

Male Female Total 

BSc in 

Surveying 

Sciences 

2017 Maldives 2015 / 2016 01 - 01 

Total 01 - 01 
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6. NEW ENTRANTS AND STUDENT ENROLMENT (TOTAL NO. OF STUDENTS) IN 

POSTGRADUATE PROGRAMMES 

 

6.1 LOCAL STUDENTS NEW ENTRANTS AND ENROLMENT (TOTAL NO. OF 

STUDENTS) IN POSTGRADUATE DEGREE PROGRAMMES 

 

Programme of Study 
Full Time/ Part 

Time 

New Entrants                                                             

(January – December 2020) 

Student Enrolment (total no. 

of registered students) 

(as at 31st December 2020) 

Male Female Total Male Female Total 

                

POSTGRADUATE DIPLOMA (PG.Dip ….)   

Eg. PG Dip. In Computer Science   

PG Diploma in Business 

Administration   

Full Time 
11 2 13 21 6 27 

PG Diploma In English & 

Education  

Full Time 
- 

- - - - - 

MASTER’S DEGREE  (MSc, MA, MBA, …..)   

Eg.  MA in Political Science   

Master of Business Administration Full Time 12 17 29 54 61 115 

MSc Ayurvedic Hospital 

Management 

Full Time 
12 24 36 49 100 149 

MSc Surveying Sciences Full Time - - - 68 20 88 

MA in English & Education Full Time - - - - - - 

MPhil   

Eg.  MPhil in Economics   

MPhil in Agricultural Sciences  Full Time/ Part Time 2 3 5 4 4 8 

MPhil in Computing & Information 

Systems 

Full Time/ Part Time 2 2 4 3 5 8 

MPhil in Humanities Full Time/ Part Time - - - 1 2 3 

MPhil in Physical & Natural 

Sciences 

Full Time/ Part Time 4 - 4 11 7 18 

MPhil in Social Sciences Full Time/ Part Time 2 - 2 3 - 3 

MPhil in Sports Science and 

Physical Education 

Full Time/ Part Time 1 - 1 2 1 3 

PhD   

Eg. PhD in Agriculture   

PhD in Agricultural Sciences  Full Time/ Part Time - - - 2 - 2 

PhD in Computing & Information 

Systems 

Full Time/ Part Time 1 - 1 1 1 2 

PhD in Humanities Full Time/ Part Time - - - 1 - 1 

PhD in Physical & Natural Sciences Full Time/ Part Time 1 - 1 1 1 2 

PhD in Management Full Time/ Part Time - - - 4 - 4 

PhD in Social Sciences Full Time/ Part Time - - - 2 - 2 

Total  48 48 96 227 208 435  
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7. EXAMINATION DATA 

 

7.1 UNDERGRADUATE OUTPUT – INTERNAL 

 

Faculty Program

me of 

Study 

Date of 

Final 

Exam                               

(MM/YY ) 

Effective 

Date  of 

main 

cohort 

(MM/YY) 

Main/ 

Repeat 

Relevant  

UGC 

Intake 

year 

No. Sat 

for the 

Final 

Exam 

Total No. Graduated 

First  

Class 

Second 

Upper 

Second 

Lower 

Pass Total 

M
al

e
 

Fe
m

al
e

 

M
al

e
 

Fe
m

al
e

 

M
al

e
 

Fe
m

al
e

 

M
al

e
 

Fe
m

al
e

 

M
al

e
 

Fe
m

al
e

 

M
al

e
 

Fe
m

al
e

 

Agricultural 

Sciences 

BSc 

(Special) 

Nov/2020 Nov/2020 Main 2014/2015 21 54 - 1 - 4 7 35 8 7 15 47 

Nov/2019 Repeat 2013/2014 - - - - - - - 1 6 5 6 6 

Applied 

Sciences 

BSc 

(Honors) 

Dec/2020 Dec/2020 Main 2014/2015 49 56 - 2 2 7 1 11 5 - 8 20 

Dec/2020 Dec/2020 

Oct/2020 Oct/2020 

BSc 

(Special) 

Dec/2020 Dec/2020 Repeat 2013/2014 14 9 - - - - 1 2 13 7 14 9 

Dec/2020 Dec/2020 

Feb/2020 Feb/2020 

Aug/2020 Aug/2020 

Sep/2020 Sep/2020 

Oct/2020 Oct/2020 

Sep/2020 Sep/2020 

Jul/2020 Jul/2020 

BSc 

(Special) 

CIS 

Sep/2020 Sep/2020 Repeat 2013/2014 1 - - - - - - - 1 - 1 - 

Geomatics BSc 

(Honors) 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 

Management 

Studies 

BSc 

(Honors) 

Nov/2020 Nov/2020 Main 2014/2015 99 195 - 1 3 24 29 116 40 34 72 175 

Nov/2020 Feb/2020 Repeat 2013/2014 13 6 - - - - 1 3 12 3 13 6 

Feb/2020 Nov/2020 

BSc 

(Special) 

Feb/2020 Feb/2020 Repeat 2011/2012 1 - - - - - - - 1 - 1 - 

Social 

Sciences and 

Languages 

BA 

(Genera) 

Sep/2020 Sep/2020 Repeat 2014 2 1 - - - - - - 2 1 2 1 

Sep/2020 

BA 

(Special) 

Sep/2020 Sep/2020 Repeat 2013 1 5 - 1 - 3 1 - - 1 1 5 

Oct/2020 Oct/2020 

Nov/2020 Nov/2020 

BA 

(Special) 

Nov/2020 Nov/2020 Main 2014 25 210 - 18 - 96 5 50 14 29 19 193 

Nov/2020 Nov/2020 

Oct/2020 Oct/2020 

Total 226 536 - 23 5 134 45 218 102 87 152 462 
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7.2 POSTGRADUATE OUTPUT 

 

Faculty Name of the Programme 

of Study 

Degree 

(PD/Master’s/MPhil/ 

PhD/MD*) 

No. Graduated 

Male Female Total 

Faculty of 

Graduate 

Studies 

  

  

  

Physical and Natural 

Sciences  

Master of Philosophy 2 1 3 

PG Diploma in Business 

Administration  

Post Graduate Diploma 2 1 3 

Master of Business 

Administration 

Master’s  9 7 16 

MSc Ayurvedic Hospital 

Management 

Master’s  3 2 5 

MSc Surveying Sciences Master’s  9 - 9 

Total 25 11 36 
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8. HUMAN RESOURCES DATA 

 

8.1 APPROVED CADRE AND PRESENT STAFF 

 

Se
rv

ic
e

 C
at

e
go

ry
 

St
af

f 
C

at
e

go
ry

 

Salary 

Code 

A
p

p
ro

ve
d

 C
ad

re
 Existing Staff 

P
e

rm
an

e
n

t 

C
ad

re
 V

ac
an

ci
e

s 

A
ct

u
a

l C
ad

re
 

V
ac

an
ci

e
s Permanent Temporary Contract Visiting Assignment 

M
al

e
 

Fe
m

al
e

 

To
ta

l 

M
al

e
 

Fe
m

al
e

 

To
ta

l 

M
al

e
 

Fe
m

al
e

 

To
ta

l 

M
al

e
 

Fe
m

al
e

 

To
ta

l 

M
al

e
 

Fe
m

al
e

 

To
ta

l 

(1)   (2)   (3)   (4)   (5)   (6) (1)- 

(2) 

(1)-(2)-

(3)-(4)-

(5)-(6) 

Se
n

io
r 

Le
ve

l 

A
ca

d
em

ic
 

St
af

f 

U-AC 3 to 

U-AC 5 

405 143 138 281 - - - - - - - - - - 2 2 124 122 

U-AC 1 to 

U-AC 2 *5 

169 - - - 25 67 92 - - - - - - - - - 169 77 

Li
b

ra
ry

 S
ta

ff
 

U-AC 5 1 - 1 1 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 

U-AC 4 1 1 - 1 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 

U-AC 3  6 3 - 3 - - - - - - - - - - - - 3 3 

A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 

St
af

f 
&

 

Fi
n

an
ci

al
 S

ta
ff

 U-EX 3 2 1 - 1 - - - - - - - - - - - - 1 1 

U-EX 2 11 6 3 9 - - - - - - - - - - - - 2 2 

O
th

er
 

Ex
ec

u
ti

ve
 

St
af

f 

U-EX 3 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 

U-EX 2 4 4 - 4 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 

M
ed

ic
al

 

O
ff

ic
er

s U-MO 2 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 

U-MO 1 2 - - - - - - - 1 1 1 - 1 - - - 2 - 

Te
rt

ia
ry

 L
ev

el
 

A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 

St
af

f 
&

 

Fi
n

an
ci

al
 S

ta
ff

 U-EX 1 16 3 11 14 - - - - - - - - - - - - 2 2 

O
th

er
 

Ex
ec

u
ti

ve
 

St
af

f 

U-EX 1 7 1 2 3 - - - - - - - - - - - - 4 4 

Te
ch

n
ic

al
 

St
af

f 

U-EX 1 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 

A
ca

d
em

ic
 

Su
p

p
o

rt
 

St
af

f 

U-AS 2  18 12 3 15 1 - 1 - - - - - - 1 - 1 3 1 

U-AS 1 12 3 1 4 - - - - - - - - - - - - 8 8 
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Se
rv

ic
e

 C
at

e
go

ry
 

St
af

f 
C

at
e

go
ry

 

Salary 

Code 

A
p

p
ro

ve
d

 C
ad

re
 Existing Staff 

P
e

rm
an

e
n

t 

C
ad

re
 V

ac
an

ci
e

s 

A
ct

u
a

l C
ad

re
 

V
ac

an
ci

e
s Permanent Temporary Contract Visiting Assignment 

M
al

e
 

Fe
m

al
e

 

To
ta

l 

M
al

e
 

Fe
m

al
e

 

To
ta

l 

M
al

e
 

Fe
m

al
e

 

To
ta

l 

M
al

e
 

Fe
m

al
e

 

To
ta

l 

M
al

e
 

Fe
m

al
e

 

To
ta

l 

(1)   (2)   (3)   (4)   (5)   (6) (1)- 

(2) 

(1)-(2)-

(3)-(4)-

(5)-(6) 

Se
co

n
d

ar
y 

Le
ve

l 

Te
ch

n
ic

al
 S

ta
ff

 

U-MN 4 * - 2 - 2 - - - - - - - - - - - - -2 -2 

U-MN 3 1 1 - 1 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 

U-MN 2 1 1 - 1 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 

U-MN 1 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 

U-MT 1 64 13 1 14 - - - - - - - - - 1 1 2 50 48 

C
le

ri
ca

l &
 A

lli
e

d
 S

ta
ff

 U-MN4 * - 10 38 48 - - - - - - - - - - - - -44 -48 

U-MN 3 16 6 5 11 - - - - - - - - - - - - 5 5 

U-MN 2 1 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 1 1 

U-MN 1 160 32 61 93 - - - - 2 2 - - - - - - 67 65 

P
ri

m
ar

y 
Le

ve
l 

P
ri

m
ar

y 
St

af
f U-PL 3 51 51 7 58 - - - 1 - 1 - - - - - - -7 -8 

U-PL 2 51 16 11 27 - - - 1 - 1 - - - - - - 24 23 

U-PL 1 185 106 38 144 - - - 2 - 2 - - - - - - 41 39 

O
th

er
 Fixed 11 - - - - - - 6 - 6 - - - - - - 11 5 

Total 1195 415 320 735 26 67 93 10 3 13 1 - 1 2 3 5 464 348 

 
*Technical Officer UMN 4 and Clerical and Allied Staff UMN 4 are promotional grades of UMN 1 and UMT 1. 

Therefore, approved cadre is mentioned in UMN 1 and UMT 1 column. 
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8.2 APPROVED CADRE AND PRESENT STAFF – ACADEMIC STAFF 

 

Fa
cu

lt
y 

Staff 
Salary 

Scale 
A

p
p

ro
ve

d
 C

ad
re

   
 Existing Staff 

Permanent 

Cadre 

Vacancies 

Actual 

Cadre 

Vacancies 

Permanent Temporary Contract Visiting Assignment 

M
al

e
 

Fe
m

al
e

 

To
ta

l 

M
al

e
 

Fe
m

al
e

 

To
ta

l 

M
al

e
 

Fe
m

al
e

 

To
ta

l 

M
al

e
 

Fe
m

al
e

 

To
ta

l 

M
al

e
 

Fe
m

al
e

 

To
ta

l 

(1)     (2)     (3)     (4)     (5)     (6) (1)-(2) 
(1)-(2)-(3)-

(4)-(5)-(6) 

Fa
cu

lt
y 

o
f 

G
ra

d
u

at
e

 S
tu

d
ie

s 

Professor 

Chair 

Senior 

Professor 

U-AC 

5 (I) 
Nill 

                                  

Professor 
U-AC 

5 (II) 
                                  

Senior Professor 
U-AC 

5 (I) 

Nill 

                              

  

  

Professor 
U-AC 

5 (II) 
                                

Associate Professor 
U-AC 

4 
                                

Senior Lecturer Gr. I 
U-AC 

3 (I)  
                                

Senior Lecturer Gr. 

II 

U-AC 

3 (II)  
                                

Lecturer 
U-AC 

3 (III) 
                                

Lecturer (Prob.) 
U-AC 

3 (IV) 
                                

Temporary 

Lecturer/ Temp. 

Asst. Lecturer 

U-AC 

2 

(fixed) 

                                    

Temporary 

Research Assistant 

U-AC 

2/U-

AC 1 

(fixed) 

1                                 1 

Temporary 

Demonstrator 

U-AC 

1 

(fixed) 

                                    

Temporary  

Instructor 

U-AC 

1 

(fixed) 

                                    

Temporary Tutor 

U-AC 

1 

(fixed) 

                                    

Total   1                                 1 
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Fa
cu

lt
y 

Staff 
Salary 

Scale 

A
p

p
ro

ve
d

 C
ad

re
   

 Existing Staff 

Permanent 

Cadre 

Vacancies 

Actual 

Cadre 

Vacancies 

Permanent Temporary Contract Visiting Assignment 

M
al

e
 

Fe
m

al
e

 

To
ta

l 

M
al

e
 

Fe
m

al
e

 

To
ta

l 

M
al

e
 

Fe
m

al
e

 

To
ta

l 

M
al

e
 

Fe
m

al
e

 

To
ta

l 

M
al

e
 

Fe
m

al
e

 

To
ta

l 

(1)     (2)     (3)     (4)     (5)     (6) (1)-(2) 
(1)-(2)-(3)-

(4)-(5)-(6) 

Fa
cu

lt
y 

o
f 

A
gr

ic
u

lt
u

ra
l S

ci
e

n
ce

 

Professor 

Chair 

Senior 

Professor 

U-AC 

5 (I) 
3 

2   2                         

1 1 

Professor 
U-AC 

5 (II) 
                              

Senior Professor 
U-AC 

5 (I) 

46 

1   1                         

** 10 10 

Professor 
U-AC 

5 (II) 
5 4 9                         

Associate Professor 
U-AC 

4 
                              

Senior Lecturer Gr. I 
U-AC 

3 (I)  
7 4 11                         

Senior Lecturer Gr. 

II 

U-AC 

3 (II)  
2 2 4                         

Lecturer 
U-AC 

3 (III) 
1 1 2                         

Lecturer (Prob.) 
U-AC 

3 (IV) 
3 6 9                         

Temporary 

Lecturer/ Temp. 

Asst. Lecturer 

U-AC 

2 

(fixed) 

1       1 1 2                     -1 

Temporary 

Research Assistant 

U-AC 

2/U-

AC 1 

(fixed) 

3         3 3                       

Temporary 

Demonstrator 

U-AC 

1 

(fixed) 

14       2 5 7                     7 

Temporary  

Instructor 

U-AC 

1 

(fixed) 

                                    

Temporary Tutor 

U-AC 

1 

(fixed) 

                                    

Total   67 21 17 38 3 9 12                   11 17 
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Fa
cu

lt
y 

Staff 
Salary 
Scale 

A
p

p
ro

ve
d

 C
ad

re
   

 Existing Staff 

Permane
nt Cadre 

Vacancies 

Actual 
Cadre 

Vacancies 

Permanent Temporary Contract Visiting Assignment 

M
al

e
 

Fe
m

al
e

 

To
ta

l 

M
al

e
 

Fe
m

al
e

 

To
ta

l 

M
al

e
 

Fe
m

al
e

 

To
ta

l 

M
al

e
 

Fe
m

al
e

 

To
ta

l 

M
al

e
 

Fe
m

al
e

 

To
ta

l 

(1)     (2)     (3)     (4)     
(5
) 

    (6) (1)-(2) 
(1)-(2)-(3)-
(4)-(5)-(6) 

Fa
cu

lt
y 

o
f 

A
p

p
lie

d
 S

ci
e

n
ce

 

Professor 
Chair 

Senior 
Professor 

U-AC 5 
(I) 

4 

                              

3 3 

Professor 
U-AC 5 
(II) 

1   1                         

Senior Professor 
U-AC 5 
(I) 

89 

1   1                             

Professor 
U-AC 5 
(II) 

3 2 5                         

** 26 26 

Associate Professor U-AC 4                               

Senior Lecturer Gr. I 
U-AC 3 
(I)  

2 1 3                         

Senior Lecturer Gr. II 
U-AC 3 
(II)  

16 14 30                         

Lecturer 
U-AC 3 
(III) 

  1 1                         

Lecturer (Prob.) 
U-AC 3 
(IV) 

11 12 23                         

Temporary Lecturer/ 
Temp. Asst. Lecturer 

U-AC 2 
(fixed) 

7       3 6 9                     -2 

Temporary Research 
Assistant 

U-AC 2 
/U-AC 
1 
(fixed) 

1                                 1 

Temporary 
Demonstrator 

U-AC 1 
(fixed) 

32       5 11 16                     16 

Temporary  
Instructor 

U-AC 1 
(fixed) 

                                    

Temporary Tutor 
U-AC 1 
(fixed) 

                                    

Total   
13
3 

34 30 64 8 17 25                   29 44 
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Fa
cu

lt
y 

Staff 
Salary 

Scale 

A
p

p
ro

ve
d

 C
ad

re
   

 Existing Staff 

Permanent 

Cadre 

Vacancies 

Actual 

Cadre 

Vacancies 

Permanent Temporary Contract Visiting Assignment 

M
al

e
 

Fe
m

al
e

 

To
ta

l 

M
al

e
 

Fe
m

al
e

 

To
ta

l 

M
al

e
 

Fe
m

al
e

 

To
ta

l 

M
al

e
 

Fe
m

al
e

 

To
ta

l 

M
al

e
 

Fe
m

al
e

 

To
ta

l 

(1)     (2)     (3)     (4)     (5)     (6) (1)-(2) 
(1)-(2)-(3)-

(4)-(5)-(6) 

Fa
cu

lt
y 

o
f 

G
e

o
m

at
ic

s 

Professor 

Chair 

Senior 

Professor 

U-AC 5 

(I) 
2 

                              

2 2 

Professor 
U-AC 5 

(II) 
                              

Senior Professor 
U-AC 5 

(I) 

32 

                              

11 11 

Professor 
U-AC 5 

(II) 
1   1                         

Associate Professor U-AC 4                               

Senior Lecturer Gr. I 
U-AC 3 

(I)  
8 5 13                         

Senior Lecturer Gr. II 
U-AC 

3(II)  
3 3 6                         

Lecturer 
U-AC 3 

(III) 
                              

Lecturer (Prob.) 
U-AC 3 

(IV) 
1   1                         

Temporary Lecturer/ 

Temp. Asst. Lecturer 

U-AC 2 

(fixed) 
19       2 8 10                     9 

Temporary Research 

Assistant 

U-AC 

2/U-AC 

1 

(fixed) 

1                                 1 

Temporary 

Demonstrator 

U-AC 1 

(fixed) 
9         6 6                     3 

Temporary  

Instructor 

U-AC 1 

(fixed) 
                                    

Temporary Tutor 
U-AC 1 

(fixed) 
                                    

Total   63 13 8 21 2 14 16                   13 26 
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Fa
cu

lt
y 

Staff 
Salary 

Scale 

A
p

p
ro

ve
d

 C
ad

re
   

 Existing Staff 

Permanent 

Cadre 

Vacancies 

Actual 

Cadre 

Vacancies 

Permanent Temporary Contract Visiting Assignment 

M
al

e
 

Fe
m

al
e

 

To
ta

l 

M
al

e
 

Fe
m

al
e

 

To
ta

l 

M
al

e
 

Fe
m

al
e

 

To
ta

l 

M
al

e
 

Fe
m

al
e

 

To
ta

l 

M
al

e
 

Fe
m

al
e

 

To
ta

l 

(1)     (2)     (3)     (4)     (5)     (6) (1)-(2) 
(1)-(2)-(3)-

(4)-(5)-(6) 

Fa
cu

lt
y 

o
f 

M
an

ag
e

m
e

n
t 

St
u

d
ie

s 

Professor 

Chair 

Senior 

Professor 

U-AC 

5 (I) 
4 

                              

4 4 

Professor 
U-AC 

5 (II) 
                              

Senior Professor 
U-AC 

5 (I) 

62 

                              

** 7 7 

Professor 
U-AC 

5 (II) 
4   4                         

Associate Professor 
U-AC 

4 
                              

Senior Lecturer Gr. I 
U-AC 

3 (I)  
10 6 16                         

Senior Lecturer Gr. 

II 

U-AC 

3 (II)  
11 8 19                         

Lecturer 
U-AC 

3 (III) 
                              

Lecturer (Prob.) 
U-AC 

3 (IV) 
3 13 16                         

Temporary 

Lecturer/ Temp. 

Asst. Lecturer 

U-AC 

2 

(fixed) 

9         5 5                     4 

Temporary 

Demonstrator 

U-AC 

1 

(fixed) 

2         1 1                     1 

Temporary  

Instructor 

U-AC 

1 

(fixed) 

1         1 1                       

Temporary Tutor 

U-AC 

1 

(fixed) 

                                    

Total   78 28 27 55   7 7                   11 16 
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Fa
cu

lt
y 

Staff 
Salary 

Scale 

A
p

p
ro

ve
d

 C
ad

re
   

 Existing Staff 

Permanent 

Cadre 

Vacancies 

Actual 

Cadre 

Vacancies 

Permanent Temporary Contract Visiting Assignment 

M
al

e
 

Fe
m

al
e

 

To
ta

l 

M
al

e
 

Fe
m

al
e

 

To
ta

l 

M
al

e
 

Fe
m

al
e

 

To
ta

l 

M
al

e
 

Fe
m

al
e

 

To
ta

l 

M
al

e
 

Fe
m

al
e

 

To
ta

l 

(1

) 
    (2)     (3)     

(4

) 
    

(5

) 
    (6) (1)-(2) 

(1)-(2)-(3)-

(4)-(5)-(6) 

Fa
cu

lt
y 

o
f 

M
e

d
ic

in
e

 

Professor 

Chair 

Senior 

Professor 

U-AC 5 

(I) 
10 

                              

10 10 

Professor 
U-AC 5 

(II) 
                              

Senior Professor 
U-AC 5 

(I) 

48 

                              

32 30 

Professor 
U-AC 5 

(II) 
  1 1                     2 2 

Associate Professor U-AC 4                               

Senior Lecturer Gr. I 
U-AC 3 

(I)  
                              

Senior Lecturer Gr. II 
U-AC 3 

(II)  
2 3 5                         

Lecturer 
U-AC 3 

(III) 
1   1                         

Lecturer (Prob.) 
U-AC 3 

(IV) 
2 7 9                         

Temporary Lecturer/ 

Temp. Asst. Lecturer 

U-AC 2 

(fixed) 
2                                 2 

Temporary Research 

Assistant 

U-AC 

2/ U-

AC 1 

(fixed) 

                                    

Temporary 

Demonstrator 

U-AC 1 

(fixed) 
30       2 2 4                     26 

Temporary  Instructor 
U-AC 1 

(fixed) 
                                    

Temporary Tutor 
U-AC 1 

(fixed) 
                                    

Total   90 5 11 16 2 2 4               2 2 42 68 
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Fa
cu

lt
y 

Staff 
Salary 

Scale 

A
p

p
ro

ve
d

 C
ad

re
   

 Existing Staff 

Permanent 

Cadre 

Vacancies 

Actual 

Cadre 

Vacancies 

Permanent Temporary Contract Visiting Assignment 

M
al

e
 

Fe
m

al
e

 

To
ta

l 

M
al

e
 

Fe
m

al
e

 

To
ta

l 

M
al

e
 

Fe
m

al
e

 

To
ta

l 

M
al

e
 

Fe
m

al
e

 

To
ta

l 

M
al

e
 

Fe
m

al
e

 

To
ta

l 

(1)     (2)     (3)     (4)     (5)     (6) (1)-(2) 
(1)-(2)-(3)-

(4)-(5)-(6) 

Fa
cu

lt
y 

o
f 

So
ci

al
 s

ci
e

n
ce

 &
 L

an
gu

ag
e

s 

Professor 

Chair 

Senior 

Professor 

U-AC 

5 (I) 
4 

                              

4 4 

Professor 
U-AC 

5 (II) 
                              

Senior Professor 
U-AC 

5 (I) 

73 

                                  

Professor 
U-AC 

5 (II) 
7 1 8                         

** 5 5 

Associate Professor 
U-AC 

4 
                              

Senior Lecturer Gr. I 
U-AC 

3 (I)  
8 9 17                         

Senior Lecturer Gr. II 
U-AC 

3 (II)  
6 11 17                         

Lecturer 
U-AC 

3 (III) 
3 4 7                         

Lecturer (Prob.) 
U-AC 

3 (IV) 
4 15 19                         

Temporary Lecturer/ 

Temp. Asst. Lecturer 

U-AC 

2 

(fixed) 

15       3 9 12                     3 

Temporary Research 

Assistant 

U-AC 

2/U-

AC 1 

(fixed) 

                                    

Temporary 

Demonstrator 

U-AC 

1 

(fixed) 

2                                 2 

Temporary  

Instructor 

U-AC 

1 

(fixed) 

8         5 5                     3 

Temporary Tutor 

U-AC 

1 

(fixed) 

                                    

Total   102 28 40 68 3 14 17                   9 17 
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Fa
cu

lt
y 

Staff 
Salary 

Scale 

A
p

p
ro

ve
d

 C
ad

re
   

 Existing Staff 

Permanent 

Cadre 

Vacancies 

Actual 

Cadre 

Vacancies 

Permanent Temporary Contract Visiting Assignment 

M
al

e
 

Fe
m

al
e

 

To
ta

l 

M
al

e
 

Fe
m

al
e

 

To
ta

l 

M
al

e
 

Fe
m

al
e

 

To
ta

l 

M
al

e
 

Fe
m

al
e

 

To
ta

l 

M
al

e
 

Fe
m

al
e

 

To
ta

l 

(1)     (2)     (3)     (4)     (5)     (6) (1)-(2) 
(1)-(2)-(3)-

(4)-(5)-(6) 

Fa
cu

lt
y 

o
f 

Te
ch

n
o

lo
gy

 

Professor 

Chair 

Senior 

Professor 

U-AC 

5 (I) 
  

                              

    

Professor 
U-AC 

5 (II) 
                              

Senior Professor 
U-AC 

5 (I) 

23 

                              

9 9 

Professor 
U-AC 

5 (II) 
                              

Associate Professor 
U-AC 

4 
                              

Senior Lecturer Gr. I 
U-AC 

3 (I)  
                              

Senior Lecturer Gr. 

II 

U-AC 

3 (II)  
4   4                         

Lecturer 
U-AC 

3 (III) 
  1 1                         

Lecturer (Prob.) 
U-AC 

3 (IV) 
5 4 9                         

Temporary 

Lecturer/ Temp. 

Asst. Lecturer 

U-AC 

2 

(fixed) 

                                    

Temporary 

Research Assistant 

U-AC 

2/U-

AC 1 

(fixed) 

                                    

Temporary 

Demonstrator 

U-AC 

1 

(fixed) 

8       6 1 7                     1 

Temporary  

Instructor 

U-AC 

1 

(fixed) 

                                    

Temporary Tutor 

U-AC 

1 

(fixed) 

                                    

Total   31 9 5 14 6 1 7                   9 10 
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Fa
cu

lt
y 

Staff 
Salary 

Scale 

A
p

p
ro

ve
d

 C
ad

re
   

 Existing Staff 

Permanent 

Cadre 

Vacancies 

Actual 

Cadre 

Vacancies 

Permanent Temporary Contract Visiting Assignment 

M
al

e
 

Fe
m

al
e

 

To
ta

l 

M
al

e
 

Fe
m

al
e

 

To
ta

l 

M
al

e
 

Fe
m

al
e

 

To
ta

l 

M
al

e
 

Fe
m

al
e

 

To
ta

l 

M
al

e
 

Fe
m

al
e

 

To
ta

l 

(1)     (2)     (3)     (4)     (5)     (6) (1)-(2) 
(1)-(2)-(3)-

(4)-(5)-(6) 

C
e

n
te

r 
fo

r 
C

o
m

p
u

te
r 

St
u

d
ie

s 

Professor 

Chair 

Senior 

Professor 

U-AC 

5 (I) 
  

                                  

Professor 
U-AC 

5 (II) 
                                  

Senior Professor 
U-AC 

5 (I) 

5 

                              

    

Professor 
U-AC 

5 (II) 
                              

Associate Professor 
U-AC 

4 
                              

Senior Lecturer Gr. I 
U-AC 

3 (I)  
3   3                         

Senior Lecturer Gr. II 
U-AC 

3 (II)  
                              

Lecturer 
U-AC 

3 (III) 
1   1                         

Lecturer (Prob.) 
U-AC 

3 (IV) 
1   1                         

Temporary Lecturer/ 

Temp. Asst. Lecturer 

U-AC 

2 

(fixed) 

                                    

Temporary Research 

Assistant 

U-AC 

2/U-

AC 1 

(fixed) 

                                    

Temporary 

Demonstrator 

U-AC 

1 

(fixed) 

3       1 1 2                     1 

Temporary  

Instructor 

U-AC 

1 

(fixed) 

1         1 1                       

Temporary Tutor 

U-AC 

1 

(fixed) 

                                    

Total   9 5   5 1 2 3                     1 
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8.3 HIGHEST QUALIFICATIONS OF ACADEMIC STAFF 

 

Qualifications Faculties Total 

Faculty of 

Agricultural 

Sciences 

Faculty of 

Applied 

Sciences 

Faculty of 

Geomatics 

Faculty of 

Management 

Studies 

Faculty of 

Medicine 

Faculty of 

Social 

Sciences 

and 

Languages 

Faculty of 

Technology 

2020 Total 2020 Total 2020 Total 2020 Total 2020 Total 2020 Total 2020 Total 2020 Total 

PhD 02 26 01 30 - 12 01 17 - 04 01 22 01 05 06 116 

MPhil - 01 - 05 - 03 - 01 - 01 - 13 - - - 24 

MSc - 05 - 13 - 04 - 12 - 01 - 04 - - - 39 

MA - - - - - - - 03 - - - 13 - - - 16 

MBA - - - - - - - 07 - - - 01 - - - 08 

MBBS - - - - - - - - - 05 - - - - - 05 

PG Dip - - - - - - - - - - - 01 - - - 01 

BA - - - - - - - - - - - 13 - - - 13 

BSc - 06 - 19 - 01 - 11 - 03 - 01 - 09 - 50 

Other - - - 02 - 01 - 04 - 02 - - - - - 09 

Total 02 38 01 69 - 21 01 21 - 16 01 68 01 14 06 281 

 

 

8.4 INFORMATION OF INTERNATIONAL STAFF VISITED FOR UNDERGRADUATE 

TEACHING / POSTGRADUATE TEACHING / SYMPOSIUM / WORKSHOP IN THE 

YEAR 2020 

 

Faculty Name of the Programme   Country No. of Staff 

Faculty of 

Agricultural 

Sciences 

Fulbright Programme USA 01 

Fulbright Programme India 01 

Faculty of 

Management 

Studies 

Academic Exchange (Erasmus +) Romania 01 

Interdisciplinary Conference of 

Management Researchers (ICMR 

– 2020) 

India, 

Taiwan, 

Malaysia, 

Norway 

04 

Management Undergraduates 

Research Session (MURS – 2020) 
India 02 
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8.5 FOREIGN SCHOLARSHIPS, FELLOWSHIPS AND TRAINING PROGRAMMES 

RECEIVED BY THE UNIVERSITY STAFF 2020 

 

Faculty/ 

Department/ 

Division/ Unit 

Designation 

Type of Programme 

No. of Staff 

received  
(Seminar/Workshops/Staff 

Development/Training/Short 

Courses …etc) 

Faculty of 

Applied 

Sciences 

Applied Jewelry 

Professional 

(Gemological Institute of 

America) 

Colored stone Essentials (Online) 

Diamond Essentials (Online) 

Jewelry Essentials (Online) 

- 

Senior Lecturer Grade II - 

Department of Sports 

Sciences & Physical 

Education 

Asia Awards (RULA) Asia Sport & 

Academic Award 
01 

Faculty of 

Management 

Studies 

 Senior Lecturer Gr.II  Short Courses  01 

 

8.6 DETAILS OF MOUS SIGNED WITH FOREIGN HEIS / RESEARCH INSTITIONS / 

DONAR AGENCIES IN 2020 

 

University/ 

Faculty 

Role of the Activity 

(Student exchange/ 

Staff exchange/ 

Research Project/ 

Training/ facilities 

…..etc) 

Name of the activity Country 

Wuhan 

University 
- - China 

South China 

Sea Institute  

Research 

Collaboration 
- China 

Vienna 

University 
- 

Curriculum enrichment through 

the application of location based 

services to intelligent 

transportation systems. 

Australia 
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8.7 ACADEMIC, ADMINISTRATIVE AND ACADEMIC SUPPORT STAFF 

REGISTERED FOR POSTGRADUATE DEGREES (LOCAL & FOREIGN) IN 2020 
 

Faculty/ 

Department/ 

Division/ 

Unit 

Name of the Staff                          Designation 

Postgraduate 

Degree 

(PhD/ MD/ 

MPhil/ MBA/ 

MSc …etc) 

Source of 

Funding 

(Commonwealth/ 

NFP/ UGC/ 

NCAS/ NRC/ self 

financing ….etc) 

Country 

Faculty of 

Agricultural 

Sciences, 

SUSL 

Mr. M.K.C. 

Priyadarshana 
Demonstrator MPhil AHEAD Sri Lanka 

Ms. K.C. Kaushalya 
Research 

Assistant 
MPhil AHEAD Sri Lanka 

Ms. P.K. Lakmini 
Project 

Assistant 
MPhil AHEAD Sri Lanka 

Mr. P.A.S.S. 

Pushpakumara 
Demonstrator MPhil Self Funding Sri Lanka 

W.M.A.U.K.M 

Wijesekara 

 Lecturer 

(Probationary) 
 PhD Commonwealth UK 

 Mr. P.P.S.K. 

Patabandi  

 Lecturer 

(Probationary) 
 PhD AHEAD Project Malaysia 

Faculty of 

Applied 

Sciences, 

SUSL 

Mr. G.D.K.V. 

Maduwantha 

Temporary 

Demonstrator 
MPhil Self Funding Sri Lanka 

Mr. P.D. 

Sandaruwan 

Temporary 

Demonstrator 
MPhil AHEAD Sri Lanka 

Mr. R.D.M.G. 

Jayalath 

Temporary 

Demonstrator 
MPhil AHEAD Sri Lanka 

Ms. W.D.N. 

Madushani 

Temporary 

Demonstrator 
MPhil Self Funding Sri Lanka 

Ms. K.I.U. Kodagoda 
Temporary 

Demonstrator 
MPhil Self Funding Sri Lanka 

Ms. U.P. 

Kuadagamage 

 Lecturer 

(Probationary) 

MSc in 

computer 

science 

Self-financing Sri Lanka 

Mrs. H.N. 

Gunasinghe 

 Lecturer 

(Probationary) 
PhD AHEAD 

New 

Zealand 

Mrs. C.U. 

Wimalasooriya 

 Lecturer 

(Probationary) 
PhD AHEAD 

New 

Zealand 

Mr. P.P. 

Weerakkody 

 Lecturer 

(Probationary) 

M. Sc in 

Sport 

Management  

Graduate School 

Scholarship, 

Kasetsart 

University 

Thailand 
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Faculty/ 

Department/ 

Division/ 

Unit 

Name of the Staff                          Designation 

Postgraduate 

Degree 

(PhD/ MD/ 

MPhil/ MBA/ 

MSc …etc) 

Source of 

Funding 

(Commonwealth/ 

NFP/ UGC/ 

NCAS/ NRC/ self 

financing ….etc) 

Country 

Faculty of 

Geomatics, 

SUSL 

Ms. I.G.U.D. 

Rathnayake 

Temporary 

Demonstrator 
MPhil Self Funding Sri Lanka 

Faculty of 

Management 

Studies, SUSL 

Ms. K. Manori 

Pathmalatha 

Senior 

Lecturer Gr.II 
 PhD  Self financing - 

Ms. P.M. Shamika 
 Lecturer 

(Probationary) 

MBA/MSc in 

Management 
Self-financing Sri Lanka 

Faculty of 

Social 

Sciences & 

Languages, 

SUSL 

Mr. M.D.R. 

Sachintha 

Temporary 

Assistant 

Lecturer 

MPhil AHEAD Sri Lanka 

University of 

Kelaniya 

Ms. D.M.L.M. 

Dissanayake 

Temporary 

Demonstrator 
MPhil Self Funding Sri Lanka 

General Sir 

John 

Kotelawala 

Defence 

University  

Mr. R.P.S. 

Kathriarachchci 

Senior 

Lecturer 

MPhil leading 

to PhD 
Self Funding Sri Lanka 

General Sir 

John 

Kotelawala 

Defence 

University 

Mr. W.A.A.M. 

Wanniarachchi 

 Lecturer 

(Probationary) 
MPhil Self Funding Sri Lanka 

Faculty of 

Social 

Sciences & 

Languages, 

SUSL 

Ms. M.D.S. 

Gunasena 

Project 

Assistant 
MBA Self Funding Sri Lanka 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
Draft Annual Report 2020 / Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka 

 

138 

8.8 ACADEMIC, ADMINISTRATIVE AND ACADEMIC SUPPORT STAFF WHO 

COMPLETED THE RELEVANT POSTGRADUATE QUALIFICATION IN 2020 

 

Faculty Name of the Staff Designation 

Name of the 

Postgraduate 

Qualification 

received (PhD/ 

MD/ MPhil/ 

MSc/ MBA 

…etc) 

Duration of 

the Course 
Country 

Faculty of 

Agricultural 

Sciences 

Mr. D.N. Madushanka Demonstrator MPhil 02 years Sri Lanka 

M.S. Elapata 
Lecturer 

(Probationary) 

MSc in 

Management 
02 years Sri Lanka 

Dr. J.B.D.A.P. Kumara 

Senior 

Lecturer 

(Grade II) 

PhD - Sri Lanka 

W.M.A.U.K.M. Wijesekara 
Lecturer 

(Probationary) 
PhD 04 years UK 

T.S.P. Jayaweera 

Senior 

Lecturer 

(Grade 1) 

PhD 05 years Sri Lanka 

Mr. D.N. Madushanka Demonstrator MPhil 02 years Sri Lanka 

Faculty of 

Applied 

Sciences 

Dr. R.S. Sabaragamuwa   
Senior 

Lecturer 
PhD 04 years New Zealand 

Mrs. C.U. Wimalasooriya 
Lecturer 

(Probationary) 

ME (Master of 

Engineering) 
01 year New Zealand 

A.Y.L. Fernando 
Lecturer 

(Probationary) 
MPhil 03 years Sri Lanka 

Mr. H.A.C.S. Hapuarachchi Lecturer 
MSc in 

Biostatistics 
01 year Sri Lanka 

Tharindu P.B. Rajakaruna 
Research 

Assistant 
MPhil 03 years Sri Lanka 

Ms. A.Y.L. Fernando 
Lecturer 

(Probationary) 
MPhil 02 years Sri Lanka 
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9. CONSTRUCTONS 

 

SITUATON OF ON GOING / EXISTING PROJECTS AND NEW PROJECTS IN 2020 

 

9.1 REHABILITATIONS ON GOING / EXISTING PROJECTS 

 

Project/ Proposal 
Estimated  

Cost (LKR) 

Estimated 

Project  

Period 

Remarks 

  

Improvement of Internal Road Network at SUSL 635,627.52 14 days Completed  

Proposed Waste Recycle Center   1,240,923.57  60 days Completed  

Restoration of the exploded Chemistry Laboratory – 

Development of Physical Sciences & Technology 
23,475,000.00 90 days Completed  

Installation & Commissioning internet Facilities to the 

Mungasthenna Building Complex of the Faculty of 

Agricultural Sciences 

  1,600,000.00  21 days Completed  

Fabricating of Movable partition Panel for old 

Auditorium Building  
165, 521.66 14 days Completed  

 

9.2 CABINET APPROVED PROJECTS – ON GOING IN 2020 
 

Project/ Proposal 
Estimated  
Cost (LKR) 

Estimated 
Project  
Period 

Remarks 

Design & Construction of New 
Building Complex for the 
University Library  

     
371,800,000.00  

24 
months  

No construction work is going on 
since February 2020. / Tri party 
agreement signed. Construction 
work should be started within 14 
days. New end date 14th Feb. 2022 

Construction of a New Building 
Complex for  the Faculty of 
Applied Sciences, 
Sabaragamuwa University  of 
Sri Lanka stage II - phase I 

     
564,510,000.00  

30 
months  

On going  

Faculty of Medicine (Para 
Clinical Building) 

  
1,096,800,000.00  

18 
months  

On going  

Design & Construction of 
Faculty Building Complex 
(phase I) for the Faculty of 
Agricultural Sciences of the 
SUSL 

     
976,000,000.00  

24 
months  

On going  
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9.3 NEW PROJECTS 

 

Project/ Proposal 
Estimated  

Cost (LKR) 
Remarks 

Construction of Faculty Building 

Phase II Faculty of Management 

Studies 

  734,700,000.00  

Returned from Cabinet to carry out a 

comprehensive assessment of 

effective utilization of available 

buildings 

Construction of Phase II Faculty of 

Social Sciences & Languages  
  750,000,000.00  Preparing the concept paper  

Waste Water and Sewerage 

Treatment Plant for 

Sabaragamuwa University of Sri 

Lanka 

    50,000,000.00  Re- initiating the project   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
Draft Annual Report 2020 / Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka 

 

141 

10. RESEARCH OUTPUT DATA 

 

10.1 NUMBER OF PUBLICATIONS DONE BY THE ACADEMIC STAFF IN 2020 

 

Faculty   Publication Category 

Number 

Remarks Published  

Local 

Published  

Foreign 

Faculty of 

Agricultural 

Sciences 

1 
No. of publications in refereed 

indexed Journals including e-journals                                                                       
 5  15 - 

2 
No. of publications in refereed non-

indexed Journals including e-journals 
 3  6 - 

3 
Conference 

Proceedings 

3.1 No. of papers 

published as full papers 
 3  1 - 

3.2 No. of abstract 

publications 
 16  07 - 

4 No. of Book Chapters published  3  8 - 

5 

No. of 

Books/Text 

Books 

published in 

the area of 

expertise  

5.1 By a publisher  6  6 - 

5.2 By an author  6  10 - 

1 
No. of publications in refereed 

indexed Journals including e-journals                                                                       
1 38 - 

2 
No. of publications in refereed non-

indexed Journals including e-journals 
2 2 - 

3 
Conference 

Proceedings 

3.1 No. of papers 

published as full papers 
11 14 - 

3.2 No. of abstract 

publications 
50 23 - 

4 No. of Book Chapters published 2 7 - 

Faculty of 

Applied 

Sciences 

5 

No. of 

Books/Text 

Books 

published in 

the area of 

expertise  

5.2 By an author 
  

-  

  

1 

 

- 

Faculty of 

Geomatics 

1 
No. of publications in refereed 

indexed Journals including e-journals                                                                       
1 -  - 

3 
Conference 

Proceedings 

3.1 No. of papers 

published as full papers 
2 

  

 - 

- 
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Faculty   Publication Category 

Number 

Remarks Published  

Local 

Published  

Foreign 

Faculty of 

Management 

Studies 

1 
No. of publications in refereed 

indexed Journals including e-journals                                                                       
 01 11 - 

2 
No. of publications in refereed non-

indexed Journals including e-journals 
3 2 - 

3 
Conference 

Proceedings 

3.1 No. of papers 

published as full papers 
 - 2 - 

3.2 No. of abstract 

publications 
16 10 

2nd Management Undergraduates’ 

Research Sessions Published in 

Colloquium SUSL 

4 No. of Book Chapters published 4 5 

"Literaturverfilmung von Märchen. 

Vergleich von Grimms Märchen 

"Aschenputtel" und dessen 

Verfilmung von Uwe Janson" E-book 

ISBN: 9783346265517 

5 

No. of 

Books/Text 

Books 

published in 

the area of 

expertise  

5.1 By a publisher 
 - 

  

3 

  

GRIN Publishing GmbH 

Nymphenburger Str. 86 

80636 Munich, Germany 

 ISBN: 9783346265524 

  

Faculty of 

Medicine 
1 

No. of publications in refereed 

indexed Journals including e-journals                            
-  8 

1.      Wijerathne, H. M. C. S., Yan, D., 

Zeng, B., Xie, Y., Hu, H., & 

Wickramaratne, M. N. (2020). Effect 

of nano - hydroxyapatite on protein 

adsorption and cell adhesion of poly 

( lactic acid )/ nano - hydroxyapatite 

composite microspheres. SN Applied 

Sciences.  

2.      Abeywickrama, C.S., 

Wijesinghe, K.J., Plescia, C.B., Fisher, 

L.S., Goodson III, T., Stahelin, R.V. 

and Pang, Y., 2020. A pyrene-based 

two-photon excitable fluorescent 

probe to visualize nuclei in live 

cells. Photochemical & 

Photobiological Sciences, 19(9), 

pp.1152-1159. 

3.      Wijesinghe KJ, McVeigh L, 

Husby ML, Bhattarai N, Ma J, 

Gerstman BS, Chapagain PP, Stahelin 

RV. Mutation of Hydrophobic 

Residues in the C-Terminal Domain 

of the Marburg Virus Matrix Protein 

VP40 Disrupts Trafficking to the 

Plasma Membrane. Viruses. 2020; 

12(4):482. 

file:///C:/Users/Chamali/Desktop/%20https:/doi.org/10.1007/s42452-020-2531-8
file:///C:/Users/Chamali/Desktop/%20https:/doi.org/10.1007/s42452-020-2531-8
file:///C:/Users/Chamali/Desktop/%20https:/doi.org/10.1007/s42452-020-2531-8
file:///C:/Users/Chamali/Desktop/%20https:/doi.org/10.1007/s42452-020-2531-8
file:///C:/Users/Chamali/Desktop/%20https:/doi.org/10.1007/s42452-020-2531-8
file:///C:/Users/Chamali/Desktop/%20https:/doi.org/10.1007/s42452-020-2531-8
file:///C:/Users/Chamali/Desktop/%20https:/doi.org/10.1007/s42452-020-2531-8
file:///C:/Users/Chamali/Desktop/%20https:/doi.org/10.1007/s42452-020-2531-8
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Faculty   Publication Category 

Number 

Remarks Published  

Local 

Published  

Foreign 

Faculty of 

Medicine 
1 

No. of publications in refereed 

indexed Journals including e-journals                            
 - 8 

4.      Wickramatunga, P. G. T. S., 

Gunawardene, Y. I. N. S., 

Wijesinghe, K. J., Ellepola, A. N., & 

Dassanayake, R. S. (2020). RNAi-

mediated silencing of ARV1 in 

Setaria digitata impairs in-vitro 

microfilariae release, embryogenesis 

and adult parasite 

viability. Veterinary 

Parasitology, 284, 109189. 

5.      Galgamuwa, G.L.S., H. 

Wickramasinghe, D. Iddawela(2020) 

Canine intestinal parasitic infections 

and soil contamination by Toxocara 

spp. in selected areas of Sri Lanka 

Tropical Parasitology 

6.      Galgamuwa, G.L.S., H. R. N. 

Padeniya, G. Thushari, D. H. 

Nissanka, C. Shashika, D. H. 

Munasinghe, D. M. Aberathne, P. L. 

Weerawardena, N. Kumarasinghe, L. 

Liyanage (2020) Maternal coping 

strategies in response to child’s 

oncological diseases in Sri Lanka. 

Acta Oncologica 

7.      Samaranayake U.M.J.P. and Y. 

Mathangasinghe, U.M.N.P. 

Samaranayake, M. Wijayatunga 

(2020) Non-simulator-based 

techniques in teaching direct 

ophthalmoscopy for medical 

students: a systematic review. 

International Journal of 

Ophthalmology 

8.       Samaranayake U.M.J.P. and Y. 

Mathangasinghe, B.N. Dolapihilla, 

D.J. Anthony, A.P. Malalasekera 

(2020) Morphology of ejaculatory 

ducts: A systematic review. Clinical 

Anatomy 
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Faculty   Publication Category 

Number 

Remarks Published  

Local 

Published  

Foreign 

Faculty of 

Medicine 
3 

Conference 

Proceedings 

3.2 No. of abstract 

publications 
5 2 

Open access/ Poster presentation at 

Annual Research Sessions 2020, 

Faculty of Medicine, University of 

Colombo - December 2020  

Oral presentation at Annual 

Research Sessions, Sabaragamuwa 

University of Sri Lanka – 2020 

December 

Faculty of 

Social 

Sciences & 

Languages 

1 
No. of publications in refereed 

indexed Journals including e-journals                                                                       
 - 5 - 

2 
No. of publications in refereed non-

indexed Journals including e-journals 
5 32 - 

3 
Conference 

Proceedings 

3.1 No. of papers 

published as full papers 
9 3 - 

3.2 No. of abstract 

publications 
43 13 - 

4 No. of Book Chapters published 2 1 - 

5 

No. of 

Books/Text 

Books 

published in 

the area of 

expertise  

5.1 By a publisher 3 3 - 

5.2 By an author -  1 - 

Faculty of 

Technology 

1 
No. of publications in refereed 

indexed Journals including e-journals                                                                       
 - 8 06 SCI, 01 Non SCI 

3 
Conference 

Proceedings 

3.1 No. of papers 

published as full papers 
 - 1 - 

3.2 No. of abstract 

publications 
6 2 - 
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10.2 LIST OF PUBLICATION IN REFEREED (INDEXED AND NON-INDEXED) 

JOURNALS IN 2020 

 

Fa
cu

lt
y 

Title of the 

paper 

Published 

Year 

Name of the Main Author* 

Names of the Co -

authors 
Name of the Journal 

Whether  

indexed / 

non-

indexed 

 Title 

(Mr./ 

MS/ 

Mrs/ 

Rev.)  

 Initials Last Name 

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) 

Fa
cu

lt
y 

o
f 

A
gr

ic
u

lt
u

ra
l S

ci
en

ce
s 

Adapting food 

systems to the 

twin 

challenges of 

phosphorus 

and climate 

vulnerability 

2020 Dr. D. Cordell 

Elsa Dominish, 

Mohamed Esham, 

Brent Jacobs, 

Madhuri Nanda 

Food Security Indexed 

An Assessment 

of Market 

Landscape of 

Cinnamon in 

Sri Lanka 

 2020   Mr. I.C.  Hettiarachchi 

De Silva, D. A. M., 

Esham, M., 

Liyanagamage, T. 

M., Abeysinghe, A. 

M. I. P., 

Warnakulasooriya, 

S., & Harindra, W. 

A. M. 

Journal of Agricultural 

Sciences – Sri Lanka 
Indexed 

Indexing 

entrepreneuria

l success of 

floricultural 

small 

enterprises: 

evidence from 

Sri Lanka 

2020 Ms. K.A. Kiriveldeniya 

Sivashankar, P., 

Elapata, M. S., 

Mahaliyanaarachc

hi, R. P., & Esham, 

M. 

Agricultural Socio - 

Economics Journal 
Indexed 

An Assessment 

of Market 

Landscape of 

Cinnamon in 

Sri Lanka, - Sri 

Lanka  

2020  Prof.  D.A.M.  De Silva 

Hettiarachchi I.C., 

De Silva D.A.M., 

Esham M., 

Liyanagamage, 

T.M. Abeysinghe 

A.M.I.P., 

Warnakulasooriya 

S. and Harindra 

W.A.M. (2020). 

The Journal of 

Agricultural Sciences 

Non 

Indexded 

Value chain 

analysis of 

underutilized 

crops of 

different 

farming 

systems in Sri 

Lanka.  

2020  Prof.  D.A.M.  De Silva 

Liyanagamage, 

T.M., De Silva, 

D.A.M., 

Karunaratne, A.S., 

O'Reilly, P. and 

Nilmalgoda, H. 

ActaHortic. 
Non 

Indexded 
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lt
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f 

A
gr

ic
u

lt
u

ra
l S

ci
en

ce
s 

Crowd 

sourcing for 

value chain 

management: 

a case of 

market 

decision 

support 

system in Sri 

Lankan 

agriculture 

market. 

2020  Prof.  D.A.M.  De Silva 

Weddagala, 

W.M.T.B., 

Basnayake, 

B.M.R.L., 

Wijesekara, 

H.M.L., 

Dharmathilaka, 

N.R.D.S., 

Kiriveldeniya, 

K.K.A., 

Karunaratne, A.S. 

and De Silva, 

D.A.M 

ActaHortic 
Non 

Indexded 

Black and 

white faces of 

banana value 

chain in Sri 

Lanka: a case 

study.  

2020  Prof.  D.A.M.  De Silva 

Hettiarachchi, I.C., 

De Silva, D.A.M. 

and Karunaratne, 

A.S. 

ActaHortic 
Non 

Indexded 

Consumer 

information 

and food 

labeling: a case 

of beverages in 

Sri Lankan 

market  

2020  Prof.  D.A.M.  De Silva 

M. L.D Nipunika 

and D.A.M. De 

Silva. 

Advances in Social 

Sciences and the 

Humanities 

Non 

Indexded 

Innovations to 

empower 

value chains: a 

case of 

mushroom 

value chain  

2020  Prof.  D.A.M.  De Silva 

A.M.S.M.R.S.G. 

Bandara and 

D.A.M. De Silva. 

Advances in Social 

Sciences and the 

Humanities, 

Non 

Indexded 

Application of 

HEC-ResSim in 

Qinhjiang 

Cascade 

reservoirs 

 2020 Dr.  A.D.   Ampitiyawatta 

 Journal of 

Multidisciplinary 

Engineering 

Science Studies 

 Indexed 
Non 

Indexded 

Cascade 

reservoirs 

optimal 

operation 

through 

combined 

guide curves 

 2020 Dr.  A.D.   Ampitiyawatta 

 Global Journal of 

Engineering and 

Technology 

Advances 

 Indexed 
Non 

Indexded 



 
Draft Annual Report 2020 / Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka 

 

147 

Fa
cu

lt
y 

Title of the 

paper 

Published 

Year 

Name of the Main Author* 

Names of the Co -

authors 
Name of the Journal 

Whether  

indexed / 

non-

indexed 

 Title 

(Mr./ 

MS/ 

Mrs/ 

Rev.)  

 Initials Last Name 

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) 

Fa
cu

lt
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o
f 

A
gr
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u
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u

ra
l S

ci
en

ce
s 

A Comparative 

Study On 

Cascade 

Reservoir 

Operation 

Models 

2020 Dr.  A.D.  Ampitiyawatta - 

Journal of 

Multidisciplinary 

Engineering Science 

Studies 

Non 

Indexded 

Effect of 

Different 

Colour Shading 

on Seedling 

Growth, Fruit 

Morphology 

and 

Phytochemical 

Properties of 

Tomato 

(Solanumlycop

ersicum L. var 

KWR). 

 2020  Mr.  P.K.  Dissanayake 
Wekumbura, W. 

G. 

Journal of 

Experimental 

Agriculture 

International, 

Indexed 

 

Evaluation of 

physic- 

chemical and 

organoleptic 

properties of 

wild tea 

(Camellia 

sinensis) 

compared to 

selected 

commercially 

grown tea 

cultivars in Sri 

Lanka. 

 2020  Mr.  P.K.  Dissanayake 

Aluthgama, 

A.G.S.R.,  Bandara, 

N.P.S.N., 

Dissanayake, 

R.M.B.B.B. 

 Journal of Agriculture 

and Value Addition 

Non- 

indexed 

 

Basic Soil Data 

Requirements 

for Process-

Based Crop 

Models as a 

Basis for Crop 

Diversification 

2020 Mr. E.M. Wimalasiri 

Jahanshiri E, 

Suhairi TASTM, 

Udayangani H, 

Mapa RB, 

Karunaratne AS, 

Vidhanarachchi 

LP, Azam-Ali SN 

Sustainability. 12, 

7781. https:// doi.org/ 

10.3390/ su12187781  

Indexed 
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Fa
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o
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A
gr

ic
u

lt
u

ra
l S

ci
en

ce
s 

The first 

version of 

nation-wide 

open 3D soil 

database for 

Sri Lanka 

2020 Mr. E.M. Wimalasiri 

Jahanshiri E, 

Suhairi TASTM, 

Mapa RB, 

Karunaratne AS, 

Vidhanarachchi 

LP, Udayangani H, 

Nizar NMM, 

Azam-Ali SN 

 Data in Brief. 30, 

106342. https:// 

doi.org/10.1016/ 

j.dib.2020.106342  

Indexed 

Involvement of 

Non-enzymatic 

Antioxidants in 

Circadian 

Rhythm 

Amplitudes of 

UV-C 

Resistance in 

Euglena 

gracilisKlebs 

2020 Mr. C.K. Beneragama 
K. Goto2 and 

G.D.K. Kumara 

The Journal of 

Agricultural Sciences. 

Vol 15, No. 3, Pp 434-

442, http:// doi.org/ 

10.4038/ 

jas.v15i3.9034 

Indexed 

Phenolic 

profiles, 

antioxidant 

activities, and 

antiproliferativ

e activities of 

different mung 

bean 

(Vignaradiata) 

varieties from 

Sri Lanka 

2020 -  

Qiong-

Qiong 

Yang 

 - 

Ying-Ying Ge, Anil 

Gunaratne, Kin-

Weng Kong, Hua-

Bin Li, Khalid Gul, 

Kapila Kumara, 

LalVidhanaArachc

hi, Fan Zhu, Harold 

Corke, Ren-You 

Gan 

Food Bioscience, 

Volume 37, https:// 

doi.org/ 10.1016/ 

j.fbio.2020.100705 

Indexed 

Alcohol 

induced - 

damaged and 

death to 

developing 

and 

differentiated 

neurons 

 2020  Mrs. 

 W.M. 

A.U.K.

M. 

 Wijesekara 
Carter W.G, 

Wijamunige W.B.C 
 The FASEB Journal Indexed 
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Fa
cu

lt
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o
f 

A
gr

ic
u

lt
u

ra
l S

ci
en

ce
s 

Sustainable 

Waste 

Management: 

Green Concept 

of Black soldier 

flyLarvae 

(Hermatia 

Illucense) in 

different bio-

degardable 

waste 

substrates.  

2020 Ms. D.M. Ellewidana Magamage, M.P.S 
Journal of Dry Zone 

Agriculture. 

Non 

Index 

The Impact of 

Social Capital 

on 

Socioeconomic 

Condition of 

Ckdu Patients 

in Sri Lanka: An 

Empirical 

Investigation 

2020 Dr. H.K.S. Premadasa 
Priyanath, H. M. 

S., & Walpita, C. N 

International Journal 

of Scientific Research 

and 

Management, 8(05), 

377-388. https:// 

doi.org/ 10.18535/ 

ijsrm/ v8i05.sh01  

Indexed 

Snakeheads of 

Sri Lanka: A 

Taxonomic and 

Biogeographic 

Review 

2020 Mr. N. Perera 

Perera, Sandun& 

Walpita, 

Chaminda 

&Kodithuwakku, 

Suranga&Perera, 

Lasith 

&Gunawardane, 

Ajith 

Journal of Agricultural 

Sciences – Sri Lanka. 

15. 411-425. 

10.4038/jas.v15i3.903

2 

indexed 

Isolation and 

Identification 

of Salmonella 

spp. from 

Broiler Chicken 

Meat in Sri 

Lanka and 

their Antibiotic 

Resistance.   

2020 Dr. H.A.D. Ruwandeepika, 

Jayaweera, T.S.P., 

Deekshit, V.K., 

Vidanarachchi, 

J.K., 

Kodithuwakku, 

S.P., Karunasagar, 

I. and Cyril, H.W 

Journal of Agricultural 

Sciences–Sri Lanka, 

2020, 15(3). 

Indexed 

in web of 

Science 

International%20Journal%20of%20Scientific%20Research%20and%20Management, 8(05),%20377-388. https:/%20doi.org/%2010.18535/%20ijsrm/%20v8i05.sh01
International%20Journal%20of%20Scientific%20Research%20and%20Management, 8(05),%20377-388. https:/%20doi.org/%2010.18535/%20ijsrm/%20v8i05.sh01
International%20Journal%20of%20Scientific%20Research%20and%20Management, 8(05),%20377-388. https:/%20doi.org/%2010.18535/%20ijsrm/%20v8i05.sh01
International%20Journal%20of%20Scientific%20Research%20and%20Management, 8(05),%20377-388. https:/%20doi.org/%2010.18535/%20ijsrm/%20v8i05.sh01
International%20Journal%20of%20Scientific%20Research%20and%20Management, 8(05),%20377-388. https:/%20doi.org/%2010.18535/%20ijsrm/%20v8i05.sh01
International%20Journal%20of%20Scientific%20Research%20and%20Management, 8(05),%20377-388. https:/%20doi.org/%2010.18535/%20ijsrm/%20v8i05.sh01
International%20Journal%20of%20Scientific%20Research%20and%20Management, 8(05),%20377-388. https:/%20doi.org/%2010.18535/%20ijsrm/%20v8i05.sh01
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ra
l S

ci
en

ce
s 

Measurement 

of endogenous 

phosphorus 

losses in 

broiler 

chickens. 

2020 (An 

advanced 

publicatio

n) 

Dr. 

(Mrs.) 
R.K. Mutucumarana Ravindran V. 

Journal of Poultry 

Science, J-STAGE 

Advance Online 

Publication. 

Indexed 

Effect of 

biochar on 

nitrogen and 

phosphorus 

losses in 

broiler litters, 

2020 
Dr. 

(Mrs.) 
R.K. Mutucumarana 

PremarathneJ.M.U

.K. Journal of Agriculture 

and Value Addition. 

Non-

indexed 

Semage. C. 

Free-choice 

feeding of 

three different 

dietary calcium 

sources and 

their influence 

on egg quality 

parameters of 

commercial 

layers. 

2020 
Dr. 

(Mrs.) 
R.K. Mutucumarana 

 Rathnayaka, 

R.M.D.B.  Andrew, 

M.S. 

 Journal of Agricultural 

Sciences – Sri Lanka, 
Indexed 

Isolation and 

Identification 

of Salmonella 

spp. from 

Broiler Chicken 

Meat in Sri 

Lanka and 

their Antibiotic 

Resistance 

2020 Dr. T.S.P. JAYAWEERA 

Ruwandeepika, 

H.A.D., Deekshit, 

V.K., 

Vidanarachchi, 

J.K., 

Kodithuwakku, 

S.P., Karunasagar, 

I. and Cyril, H.W. 

Journal of Agricultural 

Sciences – Sri Lanka 
Indexed 

Phenolic 

profiles, 

antioxidant 

activities, and 

antiprolifirativ

e activities of 

different mung 

bean (Vigna 

radiate) 

varieties from 

Sri Lanka 

2020 Prof. D.M.  Anil Gunaratne Anil Gunaratne 
Journal of Food 

Bioscience 
Indexed 
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Fa
cu

lt
y 

o
f 

A
gr

ic
u

lt
u

ra
l S

ci
en

ce
s Physicochemic

al properties, 
digestibility 
and expected 
glycemic index 
of high 
amylose rice 
differing in 
length-width 
ratio in Sri 
Lanka 

2020 Prof. D.M.  Anil Gunaratne Anil Gunaratne 
International Journal 
of Food Science and 
Technology 

Indexed 

Fa
cu

lt
y 

o
f 

A
p

p
lie

d
 S

ci
en

ce
s 

Context-Aware 
Web Service 
Clustering and 
visualization 

2020 Dr. B.T.G.S. Kumara I Paik Y.Yaguchi 
International Journal 
of Web services 
Research(JWSR) 

Indexed 

Effect of 
coconut testa  
flour  on 
cookie 
characteristics 

2020 Mr. J.M. 
Nazrim 

Marikkar 

R. Nagarajah, 
Somawathie K.M., 
Hewapathirana 
H.P.T.D, Yalegama 
C., Littardi P. and 
Chiavaro E. 

Ital.J. Food Sci., vol 32 Indexed 

Eco friendly 
raw material 
from nutmeg 
(Myristica 
fragrans) as 
effective 
fungicide 
against 
Fusarium 
oxysporum 
and the 
oleoresin 
profile of 
nutmeg 

2020 Ms. A.Y.L. Fernando 
Senevirathne 
W.S.M. 

Journal of Applied Life 
Sciences International 

Indexed 

Raw Material 
from Nutmeg 
(Myristica 
fragrans) as 
Effective 
Fungicide 
against 
Fusarium 
oxysporum 
and the 
Oleoresin 
Profile of 
Nutmeg 

2020 Mrs. A.Y.L. Fernando 
WSM 
Senevirathne 

Journal of Applied Life 
Sciences International 

Indexed 



 
Draft Annual Report 2020 / Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka 

 

152 

Fa
cu

lt
y 

Title of the 

paper 

Published 

Year 

Name of the Main Author* 

Names of the Co -

authors 
Name of the Journal 

Whether  

indexed / 

non-

indexed 

 Title 

(Mr./ 

MS/ 

Mrs/ 

Rev.)  

 Initials Last Name 

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) 

Fa
cu

lt
y 

o
f 

A
p

p
lie

d
 S

ci
en

ce
s 

Remediation 

of poly- and 

perfluoroalkyl 

substances 

(PFAS) 

contaminated 

soils – to 

mobilize or to 

immobilize or 

to destroy? 

2020 Mr. N. Bolan 

B Sarkar, Y Yan, Q 

Li, H Wijesekara, K 

Kannan, D.C.W 

Tsang, M 

Schauerte, J 

Bosch, H Noll, Y.S 

Ok, K Scheckel, J 

Kumpiene, K 

Gobindlal, M Kah, 

J Sperry, M.B 

Kirkham, H Wang, 

Y.F Tsang, D Hou, J 

Rinklebe 

Hazardous Materials Indexed 

Microplastics 

as a Vector for 

Transport of 

Antibiotic 

Ciprofloxacin 

in Water 

2020 Ms. T. Atugoda 

H Wijesekara, 

D.R.I.B 

Werellagama, 

K.B.S.N Jinadasa, 

N Bolan, M 

Vithanage 

Environmental 

Technology and 

Innovation 

Indexed 

Snakeheads of 

Sri Lanka: A 

taxonomic and 

biogeographic 

review 

2020 Mr. W.P.N. Perera 

Dr. S.J. Perera 

Journal of Agricultural 

Sciences – Sri Lanka 
Indexed 

Prof. C.N. Walpita 

Dr. S.P. 

Kodituwakku, 

Ms. E.M.N.H. 

Mr. L.V. Perera 

Mr. A. 

Gunawardane 

The antler 

cycle and fecal 

testosterone 

of male 

sambar deer 

Rusa unicolor 

unicolor at the 

Horton Plains 

National Park 

in Sri Lanka 

2020 Mr. D.S. Weerasekera 

Dr. S.J. Perera 

BioMed Research 

International 
Indexed 

Dr. D.K.K. 

Nanayakkara 

Mr. H.M.S.S. 

Herath 

Mr. N.L. 

Rathnasekara 

Prof. K.B. 

Ranawana 
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Fa
cu

lt
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o
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A
p

p
lie

d
 S

ci
en

ce
s 

A preliminary 
estimation of 
the sambar 
deer (Rusa 
unicolor 
unicolor) 
Abundance in 
Horton Plains 
National Park, 
Sri Lanka 

2020 Mr. D.S. Weerasekera 

Dr. S.J. Perera 

Sri Lanka Naturalist 
Non 

Indexed 

Ms. S.S. Thadhani 

Dr. N.U. 
Jayawardana 

Mr. N.L. 
Rathnasekara 

Prof. K.B. 
Ranawana 

Outline of 
Fungi and 
Fungi like taxa 

2020 Dr. N.N. 
Wiyeyawardha

na 
More than 50 
authors 

Mycosphere Indexed 

A dynamic 
portal for a 
community 
driven, 
continuously 
updated 
classification 
of Fungi and 
funguslike 
organisms: 
outlineoffungi.
org 

2020 Dr. N.N. 
Wiyeyawardha

na 
More than 50 
authors 

Mycosphere Indexed 

Geochemical 
and isotope 
evidence for 
groundwater 
mineralization 
in a semi-arid 
river basin, Sri 
Lanka Applied 
Geochemistry 

2020 Mr. S. Senarathne 

J.M.C.K. 
Jayawardana, 
Rohana 
Chandrajith, 
E.A.N.V. 
Edirisinghe 

Applied Geochemistry Indexed 

Influence of 
regional 
climatic on the 
hydrogeochem
istry of a 
tropical river 
basin—a study 
from the 
Walawe river 
basin of Sri 
Lanka.  

2020 Mr. S. Senarathne 
Jayawardana 
JMCK, Edirisinghe, 
E.A.N.V. 

Environ Sci Pollut Indexed 
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Fa
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 S
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ce
s 

Modeling 

predictive 

assessment 

of soil erosion 

related 

hazards 

at the Uva 

province in Sri 

Lanka. 

Modeling 

Earth Systems 

and 

Environment 

2020 Mr. D.U.H. Piyathilake 

R. G. I. Sumuduma

li, 

E. P. N. Udayakum

ara, 

L. V. Ranaweera, 

J. M. C. K. Jayawar

dana, 

Modeling Earth 

Systems and 

Environment 

Indexed 

S. K. Gunatilake 

Propagation of 

Polygonatum 

macranthum 

(Maxim.) 

Koidz. 

2020 Mrs. D. Lekamge 

S. Yamamoto, S. 

Morohashi, 
Plant Biotechnology 

Indexed From 

immature 

seeds using a 

new 

sterilization 

procedure 

T.Matsumoto, M. 

Hatamoto, 

T.Yamaguchi, S. 

Maki 

ISSN / eISSN  1342-

4580 (SCIE) 

Best Practices 

for reporting 

individual 

identification 

using camera 

trap 

photographs 

2020 Mr. Y.R. Choo 

YR Choo 

Global Ecology and 

Conservation 
Indexed 

EP Kudavidanage 

TR Amarasinghe 

T Nimalrathna 

 

Leopard 

activity 

patterns in a 

small montane 

protected area 

highlight the 

need for 

integrated, 

collaborative 

landscape 

conservation  

2020 Mr. E.L. Webb 

YR Choo 

Global Ecology and 

Conservation 
Indexed 

EP Kudavidanage 

TR Amarasinghe 

UGSI Bandara 
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Fa
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f 

A
p

p
lie

d
 S

ci
en

ce
s 

Commercial 

Formulation of 

Chlorpyrifos 

Alters 

Neurological 

Behaviors and 

Fertility 

2020 Ms. E.P. Kudavidanage 

DMI Dissanayake 

WL Keerthirathna 

N Nishshanke 

Biology Indexed 

Use and 

Avoidance of 

Pesticides as 

Responses by 

Farmers to 

change 

Impacts in Rice 

Ecosystems of 

Southern Sri 

Lanka 

2020 Mr. F.G. Horgan EP Kudavidanage 
Environmental 

Management 
Indexed 

Farming on the 

edge: Farmer 

training to 

mitigate 

human-wildlife 

conflict at an 

agricultural 

frontier in 

south Sri Lanka 

2020 Mr. F.G. Horgan EP Kudavidanage CropProtection Indexed 

Identifying the 

spatial drivers 

and scale-

specific 

variations of 

soil organic 

carbon in 

tropical 

ecosystems: A 

case study 

from Knuckles 

Forest Reserve 

in Sri Lanka  

2020 Ms. R.P.S.K. Rajapaksha 

S.B. Karunaratne, 

A. Biswas, K. Paul, 

H.M.S.P. 

Madawala, S.K. 

Gunatilake, R.R. 

Ratnayaka 

Forest Ecology and 

Management 
Indexed 
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Fa
cu

lt
y 

o
f 

A
p

p
lie

d
 S

ci
en

ce
s 

Assessment of 

groundwater 

quality using 

water quality 

index (WQI): A 

case study of a 

hard rock 

terrain in Sri 

Lanka  

2020 Ms. W.A.C. Udeshani 

H.M.K.P. 

Dissanayake, 

S.K.Gunatilake, 

Rohana 

Chandrajith 

Groundwater for 

Sustainable 

Development 

Indexed 

Assessing soil 

quality and soil 

erosion 

hazards in the 

Moneragala 

District, Sri 

Lanka.  

2020 Mr. K.H.K. Perera 

Udeshani, W.A.C., 

Piyathilake, 

I.D.U.H., 

Wimalasiri, 

G. E. M.  

Kadupitiya, , 

H. K.,  Udayakuma

ra, 

E. P. N.and Gunatil

ake, S. K. 

SN Applied  Science Indexed 

Modeling 

Predictive 

Assessment of 

Soil Erosion 

Related 

Hazards at the 

Uva Province 

in Sri Lanka 

2020 Mr. 
I.D.U. 

H. 
Piyathilake 

Sumudumali, R. G. 

I., Udayakumara, 

E. P. N., 

Ranaweera, L. V., 

Jayawardana, J. M. 

C. K., & 

Gunatilake, S. K 

Modeling Earth 

Systems and 

Environment 

Indexed 

Quality of 

surface and 

ground waters 

for domestic 

and irrigation 

purposes in 

CKD/CKDu 

prevalent 

areas in 

Moneragala 

District, Sri 

Lanka 

2020 Mr. 
H.M.K.

P. 
Dissanayake 

W.A.C. Udeshani, 

S. Koswatte, K.T. 

Rathnayake, 

S.V.Gunatilake, R. 

Fernando and 

S.K.Gunatilake 

Ceylon Science Journal 
Non 

indexed 
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Assessing soil 

quality and soil 

erosion 

hazards in the 

Moneragala 

District, Sri 

Lanka.  

2020 Mr. K.H.K. Perera 

Udeshani, W.A.C., 

Piyathilake, 

I.D.U.H., 

Wimalasiri, 

G. E. M.  

Kadupitiya, , H. K., 

Udayakumara, 

E.P.N. 

and Gunatilake, S. 

K. 

SN Applied  Science Indexed 

Modeling 

Predictive 

Assessment of 

Soil Erosion 

Related 

Hazards at the 

Uva Province 

in Sri Lanka 

2020 Mr. 
I.D.U. 

H. 
Piyathilake 

Sumudumali, R. G. 

I., Udayakumara, 

E. P. N., 

Ranaweera, L. V., 

Jayawardana, J. M. 

C. K., & 

Gunatilake, S. K 

Modeling Earth 

Systems and 

Environment 

Indexed 

Modeling 

predictive 

assessment of 

soil erosion 

related 

hazards at the 

Uva province 

in Sri Lanka 

2020 Mr. I.D.U.H. Piyathilake 

Sumudumali 

R.G.I., 

Udayakumara, 

E.P.N., 

Ranaweera, L.V., 

J.M.C.K. 

Jayawardana,  

Gunatilake, S.K. 

Modeling Earth 

Systems and 

Environment 

Indexed 

The Impact of 

Brand Loyalty 

on Customer 

Purchase 

Intention: An 

Empirical 

Study on 

Basketball 

Shoe Brands of 

Adidas, Nike 

and Puma in 

Asian 

countries 

2020 Mrs. A.A.L. Madushani 
K.C. de Silva &                               

S.D.S. Jayalath 

Journal of Physical 

Education 
Indexed 
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Let me win… 
but if I cannot 
win, let me be 
courageous in 
the attempt’: 
challenges of 
Paralympic 
athletes in Sri 
Lanka 

2020 Mrs. A.A.L. Madushani Cora Burnett 
Olimpianos–Journal of 
Olympic Studies 

Non-

indexed 

A 
comprehensiv
e review on 
dietary 
assessment 
methods in 
epidemiologica
l research 

2020 Mrs. 
W.A.W.

S. 
Rupasinghe 

Mrs. TSH Perera 
and Dr. Nirmali 
Wickramaratne 

Journal of Public 
Health and Nutrition 

Non-

indexed 

The Model Of 
Shoulder Joint 
Of Gymnast 
Interact With 
The Long 
Swing 
Gymnastic 
Element On 
Parallel Bars 

2020 Mr. A.W.S. Chandana - 
ISBS Proceedings 
Archive 

Indexed 

Injury Patterns 
among Sri 
Lanka Army 
Football 
Players: A 
Population 
Study 

2020 Mrs. K.C. Gunasekara 
Mrs.L.R.N.D. 
Weerarathna and 
R. K. Attygalla 

3rd International 
Conference of Sports 
Sciences - AESA 2020 
Conference 
Proceedings 

Indexed 

The 
Relationship 
between 
Hamstring 
Flexibility with 
Functional 
Disability, H;Q 
Co Activation 
Ratio and 
Pelvic 
Alignment of 
Recreational 
Athletes with 
Nonspecific 
Low Back Pain 

2021 Mrs. 
L.R.N. 

D. 
Weerarathna - 

4th International 
Conference of Sports 
Sciences - AESA 2020 
Conference 
Proceedings 

Indexed 
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Hematological 

and body 

composition 

adaptation 

after three 

distinct 

protocols 

“concurrent” 

training in 

recreationally 

trained men 

2020 Mr. S. Othalawa 
Rubio Arias J.A.  

and Alcaraz P.E. 

VI doctoral research 

conference. UCAM 
Indexed 

Efficiency 

enhancement 

in dye 

sensitized 

solar cells 

irrespective of 

the electrolyte 

medium by 

nanostructure

d tri-layer TiO2 

photoanode 

2020 Mrs. H.N.M. Sarangika 

M. A. K. L. 

Dissanayake, G. K. 

R. Senadeera 

IONICS Indexed 

Phagocytosis 

enhancement, 

endotoxin 

tolerance, and 

signal 

mechanisms of 

immunological

ly active 

glucuronoxylo

mannan from 

Auricularia 

auricula-judae 

2020 Dr. N. Perera 

Feng-Ling Yang , 

Hsiao-Wen Chiu , 

Chih-Yu Hsieh , 

Lan-Hui Li , Yan-

Long Zhang, Kuo-

Feng Hua, Shih-

Hsiung Wu 

International Journal 

of Biological 

Macromolecules 

Indexed 

Single-channel 

properties, 

sugar 

specificity, and 

role of 

chitoporin in 

adaptive 

survival of 

Vibrio cholerae 

type strain O1. 

2020 
Dr. 

(Mrs.) 
H.S.M. Soysa 

Schulte, A., & 

Suginta, W. 

Journal of Biological 

Chemistry (J. Biol. 

Chem.) 

- 

https://www.researchgate.net/publication/341344001_Efficiency_enhancement_in_dye_sensitized_solar_cells_irrespective_of_the_electrolyte_medium_by_nanostructured_tri-layer_TiO2_photoanode?_sg=r4PHO2CIPspOP4toxsquM2lWCaQBowyDml7shD-5-G_w1cxpZFHtjvEgzjmC7hWctgbUbtTGU-BupqmNqVSF76L_LeJ4bYO9ZTqu7AHc.9ArdU3EafwP6074oNyyU4deoAQNAg1mY9QFGQswSS48HH9bpXq27yB7R5SU6TdfXapoZaeB48ONhgRp1Db72NQ
https://www.researchgate.net/publication/341344001_Efficiency_enhancement_in_dye_sensitized_solar_cells_irrespective_of_the_electrolyte_medium_by_nanostructured_tri-layer_TiO2_photoanode?_sg=r4PHO2CIPspOP4toxsquM2lWCaQBowyDml7shD-5-G_w1cxpZFHtjvEgzjmC7hWctgbUbtTGU-BupqmNqVSF76L_LeJ4bYO9ZTqu7AHc.9ArdU3EafwP6074oNyyU4deoAQNAg1mY9QFGQswSS48HH9bpXq27yB7R5SU6TdfXapoZaeB48ONhgRp1Db72NQ
https://www.researchgate.net/publication/341344001_Efficiency_enhancement_in_dye_sensitized_solar_cells_irrespective_of_the_electrolyte_medium_by_nanostructured_tri-layer_TiO2_photoanode?_sg=r4PHO2CIPspOP4toxsquM2lWCaQBowyDml7shD-5-G_w1cxpZFHtjvEgzjmC7hWctgbUbtTGU-BupqmNqVSF76L_LeJ4bYO9ZTqu7AHc.9ArdU3EafwP6074oNyyU4deoAQNAg1mY9QFGQswSS48HH9bpXq27yB7R5SU6TdfXapoZaeB48ONhgRp1Db72NQ
https://www.researchgate.net/publication/341344001_Efficiency_enhancement_in_dye_sensitized_solar_cells_irrespective_of_the_electrolyte_medium_by_nanostructured_tri-layer_TiO2_photoanode?_sg=r4PHO2CIPspOP4toxsquM2lWCaQBowyDml7shD-5-G_w1cxpZFHtjvEgzjmC7hWctgbUbtTGU-BupqmNqVSF76L_LeJ4bYO9ZTqu7AHc.9ArdU3EafwP6074oNyyU4deoAQNAg1mY9QFGQswSS48HH9bpXq27yB7R5SU6TdfXapoZaeB48ONhgRp1Db72NQ
https://www.researchgate.net/publication/341344001_Efficiency_enhancement_in_dye_sensitized_solar_cells_irrespective_of_the_electrolyte_medium_by_nanostructured_tri-layer_TiO2_photoanode?_sg=r4PHO2CIPspOP4toxsquM2lWCaQBowyDml7shD-5-G_w1cxpZFHtjvEgzjmC7hWctgbUbtTGU-BupqmNqVSF76L_LeJ4bYO9ZTqu7AHc.9ArdU3EafwP6074oNyyU4deoAQNAg1mY9QFGQswSS48HH9bpXq27yB7R5SU6TdfXapoZaeB48ONhgRp1Db72NQ
https://www.researchgate.net/publication/341344001_Efficiency_enhancement_in_dye_sensitized_solar_cells_irrespective_of_the_electrolyte_medium_by_nanostructured_tri-layer_TiO2_photoanode?_sg=r4PHO2CIPspOP4toxsquM2lWCaQBowyDml7shD-5-G_w1cxpZFHtjvEgzjmC7hWctgbUbtTGU-BupqmNqVSF76L_LeJ4bYO9ZTqu7AHc.9ArdU3EafwP6074oNyyU4deoAQNAg1mY9QFGQswSS48HH9bpXq27yB7R5SU6TdfXapoZaeB48ONhgRp1Db72NQ
https://www.researchgate.net/publication/341344001_Efficiency_enhancement_in_dye_sensitized_solar_cells_irrespective_of_the_electrolyte_medium_by_nanostructured_tri-layer_TiO2_photoanode?_sg=r4PHO2CIPspOP4toxsquM2lWCaQBowyDml7shD-5-G_w1cxpZFHtjvEgzjmC7hWctgbUbtTGU-BupqmNqVSF76L_LeJ4bYO9ZTqu7AHc.9ArdU3EafwP6074oNyyU4deoAQNAg1mY9QFGQswSS48HH9bpXq27yB7R5SU6TdfXapoZaeB48ONhgRp1Db72NQ
https://www.researchgate.net/publication/341344001_Efficiency_enhancement_in_dye_sensitized_solar_cells_irrespective_of_the_electrolyte_medium_by_nanostructured_tri-layer_TiO2_photoanode?_sg=r4PHO2CIPspOP4toxsquM2lWCaQBowyDml7shD-5-G_w1cxpZFHtjvEgzjmC7hWctgbUbtTGU-BupqmNqVSF76L_LeJ4bYO9ZTqu7AHc.9ArdU3EafwP6074oNyyU4deoAQNAg1mY9QFGQswSS48HH9bpXq27yB7R5SU6TdfXapoZaeB48ONhgRp1Db72NQ
https://www.researchgate.net/publication/341344001_Efficiency_enhancement_in_dye_sensitized_solar_cells_irrespective_of_the_electrolyte_medium_by_nanostructured_tri-layer_TiO2_photoanode?_sg=r4PHO2CIPspOP4toxsquM2lWCaQBowyDml7shD-5-G_w1cxpZFHtjvEgzjmC7hWctgbUbtTGU-BupqmNqVSF76L_LeJ4bYO9ZTqu7AHc.9ArdU3EafwP6074oNyyU4deoAQNAg1mY9QFGQswSS48HH9bpXq27yB7R5SU6TdfXapoZaeB48ONhgRp1Db72NQ
https://www.researchgate.net/publication/341344001_Efficiency_enhancement_in_dye_sensitized_solar_cells_irrespective_of_the_electrolyte_medium_by_nanostructured_tri-layer_TiO2_photoanode?_sg=r4PHO2CIPspOP4toxsquM2lWCaQBowyDml7shD-5-G_w1cxpZFHtjvEgzjmC7hWctgbUbtTGU-BupqmNqVSF76L_LeJ4bYO9ZTqu7AHc.9ArdU3EafwP6074oNyyU4deoAQNAg1mY9QFGQswSS48HH9bpXq27yB7R5SU6TdfXapoZaeB48ONhgRp1Db72NQ
https://www.researchgate.net/publication/341344001_Efficiency_enhancement_in_dye_sensitized_solar_cells_irrespective_of_the_electrolyte_medium_by_nanostructured_tri-layer_TiO2_photoanode?_sg=r4PHO2CIPspOP4toxsquM2lWCaQBowyDml7shD-5-G_w1cxpZFHtjvEgzjmC7hWctgbUbtTGU-BupqmNqVSF76L_LeJ4bYO9ZTqu7AHc.9ArdU3EafwP6074oNyyU4deoAQNAg1mY9QFGQswSS48HH9bpXq27yB7R5SU6TdfXapoZaeB48ONhgRp1Db72NQ
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Chitoporin 

from Serratia 

marcescens: 

recombinant 

expression, 

purification 

and 

crystallization.,  

2020 Ms. 
Rawipo

rn 

Amornloetwatt

ana 

R., Robinson, R. 

C., Soysa, H. S. M., 

van den Berg, B., 

& Suginta, W. 

Acta Crystallographica 

Section F 
- 

Comparison of 

Statistical, 

Graphical, and 

Wavelet 

Transform 

2020 Mrs. 
N.R.A.

M. 
Ruwangika 

Anushka Perera , 

and  Upaka 

Rathnayake 

Hindawi Complexity - Analyses for 

Rainfall Trends 

and Patterns in 

Badulu Oya 

Catchment, Sri 

Lanka 

Suppression of 

external 

quantum 

efficiency roll 

off in organic 

light emitting 

diodes by 

scavenging 

triplet excitons 

2020 

Dr. B.S.B. Karunathilaka 

- 
Nat Commun, 11, 

4926, 2020 
- 

Dr. U. Balijapalli 

Ms. C.A.M. Senevirathne 

Mr. S. Yoshida 

Dr. Y. Esaki 

Prof. K. Goushi 

Prof. T. Matsushima 

Prof. S.D.A. Sandanayaka 

Prof. C. Adachi 

Lasing 

Operation 

under 

Long‐Pulse 

Excitation in 

Solution‐Proce

ssed Organic 

Gain Medium: 

Toward CW 

Lasing in 

Organic 

Semiconductor

s 

2020 

Mr.   Shukla 

- 

Advanced Optical 

Materials, 2000784, 

2020 

- 

Dr. A. Mai 

Ms. V.T.N. Senevirathne 

Dr. C.A.M. Allison 

Dr. I. Lim 

Dr. S.K.M. Lepage 

Dr. R. J. McGrego 

Dr. M. Wood 

Prof. T. Matsushima 

Dr. E.G. Moore 

Dr. E.H. Krenske 

Prof. S.D.A. Sandanayaka 

Prof. C. Adachi 

Prof. E.B. Namdas 

Prof. S. C. Lo 
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Stable room-
temperature 
continuous-
wave lasing in 
quasi-2D 
perovskite 
films 

2020 

Prof. C. Qin 

- 
Nature, 585, 53 - 57, 
2020 

- 

Prof. S.D.A. Sandanayaka 

Dr. C. Zhao 

Prof. T. Matsushima 

Dr. D. Zhang 

Dr. T. Fujihara 

Prof. C. Adachi 

Low amplified 
spontaneous 
emission and 
lasing 
thresholds 
from hybrids 
of fluorenes 
with 
vinylphenylcar
bazole 

2020 

Mr.   Shukla 

- 
Advanced Optical 
Materials, 2000784, 
2020 

- 

Dr. A. Mai 

Miss. V.T.N. Senevirathne 

Dr. C.A.M. Allison 

Dr. I. Lim 

Dr. S.K.M. Lepage 

Dr. R. J. McGrego 

Dr. M. Wood 

Prof. T. Matsushima 

Dr. E.G. Moore 

Dr. E.H. Krenske 

Prof. S.D.A. Sandanayaka 

Prof. C. Adachi 

Prof. E.B. Namdas 

  S. C. Lo 

An organic 
laser dye 
having a small 
singlet-triplet 
energy gap 
makes the 
selection of a 
host material 
easier 

2020 

         Karunathilaka 

- 
Advanced Functional 
Materials, 2001078, 
2020 

- 

Dr. 
     

B.S.B. 
Balijapalli 

Dr. U. Senevirathne 

Miss.Dr
. 

C.A.M. Esaki 

Prof. S. Matsushima 

Prof. T. Sandanayaka 

Prof. S.D.A. Adachi 

  C.   

Nonhazardous 
Process for 
Extracting Pure 
Titanium 
Dioxide 
Nanorods from 
Geogenic 
Ilmenite 

2020 Prof. C.P. Udawatte 
Rajakaruna T. P.B., 
Rajapakse R.M.G 
and Chandrajith R. 

American Chemical 
Society-Omega 

- 
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Optimized 

conditions for 

Cobalt 

diffusion in Sri 

Lankan 

colourless 

topaz with 

Spectro-

chemical 

characterizatio

n 

2021 Mr. S. Illangasinghe 

Udawatte C.P.,  

Abeyweera S.M.S., 

Perera L.R.K., 

Weerasooriya C., 

Sutthirat C., 

Jayasinghe 

R.M.N.P.K., and 

Diyabalanage S., 

Submitted to Physics 

and Chemistry of 

Minerals (October 

2020- now under 

review) 

- 

Fa
cu

lt
y 

o
f 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

St
u

d
ie

s 

 Influence of 

lean–green 

practices on 

organizational 

sustainable 

performance 

 2020  Mrs.  M.P.  Kovilage - 

Journal of Asian 

Business and Economic 

Studies 

indexed 

 Heritage 

Tourism in 

Military 

Landscapes of 

Sri Lanka 

 2020  Prof.  M.S.M.  Aslam - 
Sri Lanka Military 

Academy Journal 

Non-

Indexed 

Contribution 

of 

Microinsuranc

e Towards 

Sustainable 

Development 

Goals in Sri 

Lanka 

2020 Ms. V. Muthusamy Fernando,K 
i-manager's Journal on 

Management, 
- 

Impact of 

Intellectual 

Capital on 

Financial 

Performance 

of Local 

Commercial 

Banks In Sri 

Lanka 

2020 Ms. V. Muthusamy Madhuwanthi,G 
i-manager's Journal on 

Management, 
- 
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 The Impact of 

Public Sector 

Corruption on 

Economic 

Growth in 

Asian Region  

2020 Dr. D.G. Dharmarathna - 

Global Scientific 

Journal, Volume 8, 

Issue 10, 1355-1373. 

- 

 Stock Price 

Reaction to 

Stock Dividend 

Announcemen

ts and 

Information 

Efficiency in Sri 

Lankan Share 

Market  

2020 Dr. D.G. Dharmarathna - 

International Journal 

of Research in Social 

Sciences(IJRSS), 38(1). 

- 

Corporate Tax 

Planning and 

Financial 

Performance 

of Companies 

Listed in 

Colombo Stock 

Exchange (CSE)  

2020 Dr. D.G. Dharmarathna - 

Applied Research 

Journal of Humanities 

and Social Sciences, 

3(2), 1-15. 

- 

Effectiveness 

and 

Repercussion 

of Global 

Economic 

Sanctions. 

2020 Prof. D.A.I. Dayaratne 
Ms A.W.G.C.N. 

Wijethunga 

Sri Lanka Journal of 

Economic Research, 7 

(1), 113-136 

- 

Does Military 

Expenditure 

for Economic 

Growth? Post 

War Evidence 

from Sri Lanka 

2020 Prof. D.A.I. Dayaratne 
Ms A.W.G.C.N. 

Wijethunga 

Sri Lanka Economic 

Journal, 16 (1),37-45 
- 

Effect of Social 

Capital on Firm 

Performance: 

An Empirical 

Study of Small 

Enterprises in 

Sri Lanka 

2020 Dr. 
L.M. 

C.S. 
Menike - 

Journal Of Social 

Science Research, 16, 

108-125. 

- 
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Corporate 

Social 

Responsibility 

and Dividend 

Policy: A Data 

Triangulation 

Approach 

2020 Dr. N.J. Dewasiri Abeysekera, N. 

Journal of Public 

Affairs (Wiley 

Publisher) 

- 

Corporate 

Governance 

and Dividend 

Policy: A Data 

Triangulation 

Approach 

2020 Dr. N.J. Dewasiri 

Weerakoon 

Banda, Y.K., 

Premarathne, S.P. 
Qualitative Research in 

Financial Markets    

(Emerald Publisher) 

- 

H Kent Baker 

Book review: 

IM Pandey 

(Ed.), Financial 

Management 

2020 Dr. N.J. Dewasiri 

Miyuki Shehara 

Peiris, YK 

Weerakoon Banda 

Asia-Pacific Journal of 

Management Research 

and Innovation (Sage 

Publishing) 

- 

A book review 

of Prof. Amila 

Jayarathne’s 

“Competing in 

Customer 

Driven 

Markets: A 

Holistic 

Approach 

2020 Dr. N.J. Dewasiri - 

Sri Lanka Journal of 

Social Sciences    

(National Science 

Foundation)  

- 

A Book review 

of Prof. 

HHDNP 

Opatha’s  

“Sustainable 

Human 

Resource 

Management: 

Expanding 

Horizons of 

HRM” 

2020 Dr. N.J. Dewasiri 
Y. Aunuradha 

Iddagoda 

FIIB Business Review 

(Sage Publishing) 
- 
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d
ie
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Effect of 

Investors’ 

psychology on 

capital market 

investment : 

An application 

of the theory 

of planned 

behaviour 

2020 Ms. 
A.W.G.

C.N. 
Wijethunga E.B. Piumini 

Journal of 

Management Matters 

7(i), 1-10 

- 

Fa
cu

lt
y 

o
f 

M
ed

ic
in

e
 

Effect of nano 

- 

hydroxyapatite 

on protein 

adsorption and 

cell adhesion 

of poly ( lactic 

acid )/ nano - 

hydroxyapatite 

composite 

microspheres. 

2020 Ms. 
H.M.C.

S. 
Wijerathne 

Wijerathne, H. M. 

C. S., Yan, D., 

Zeng, B., Xie, Y., 

Hu, H., & 

Wickramaratne, 

M. N. (2020). 

Effect of nano - 

hydroxyapatite on 

protein adsorption 

and cell adhesion 

of poly (lactic 

acid)/ nano - 

hydroxyapatite 

composite 

microspheres. SN 

Applied Sciences.  

Springer Nature 

Applied Sciences 
Indexed 

 Mutation of 

Hydrophobic 

Residues in the 

C-Terminal 

Domain of the 

Marburg Virus 

Matrix Protein 

VP40 Disrupts 

Trafficking to 

the Plasma 

Membrane  

 2020 
 Dr 

(Mrs).  
 K.J.   Wijesinghe 

Luke McVeigh, 

Monica L Husby, 

Nisha Bhattarai, 

Jia Ma, Bernard S 

Gerstman, Prem P 

Chapagain, Robert 

V Stahelin 

 Viruses Indexed 

file:///C:/Users/Chamali/Desktop/%20https:/doi.org/10.1007/s42452-020-2531-8
file:///C:/Users/Chamali/Desktop/%20https:/doi.org/10.1007/s42452-020-2531-8
file:///C:/Users/Chamali/Desktop/%20https:/doi.org/10.1007/s42452-020-2531-8
file:///C:/Users/Chamali/Desktop/%20https:/doi.org/10.1007/s42452-020-2531-8
file:///C:/Users/Chamali/Desktop/%20https:/doi.org/10.1007/s42452-020-2531-8
file:///C:/Users/Chamali/Desktop/%20https:/doi.org/10.1007/s42452-020-2531-8
file:///C:/Users/Chamali/Desktop/%20https:/doi.org/10.1007/s42452-020-2531-8
file:///C:/Users/Chamali/Desktop/%20https:/doi.org/10.1007/s42452-020-2531-8
file:///C:/Users/Chamali/Desktop/%20https:/doi.org/10.1007/s42452-020-2531-8
file:///C:/Users/Chamali/Desktop/%20https:/doi.org/10.1007/s42452-020-2531-8
file:///C:/Users/Chamali/Desktop/%20https:/doi.org/10.1007/s42452-020-2531-8
file:///C:/Users/Chamali/Desktop/%20https:/doi.org/10.1007/s42452-020-2531-8
file:///C:/Users/Chamali/Desktop/%20https:/doi.org/10.1007/s42452-020-2531-8
file:///C:/Users/Chamali/Desktop/%20https:/doi.org/10.1007/s42452-020-2531-8
file:///C:/Users/Chamali/Desktop/%20https:/doi.org/10.1007/s42452-020-2531-8
file:///C:/Users/Chamali/Desktop/%20https:/doi.org/10.1007/s42452-020-2531-8
https://www.mdpi.com/1999-4915/12/4/482
https://www.mdpi.com/1999-4915/12/4/482
https://www.mdpi.com/1999-4915/12/4/482
https://www.mdpi.com/1999-4915/12/4/482
https://www.mdpi.com/1999-4915/12/4/482
https://www.mdpi.com/1999-4915/12/4/482
https://www.mdpi.com/1999-4915/12/4/482
https://www.mdpi.com/1999-4915/12/4/482
https://www.mdpi.com/1999-4915/12/4/482
https://www.mdpi.com/1999-4915/12/4/482
https://www.mdpi.com/1999-4915/12/4/482
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RNAi-mediated 

silencing of 

ARV1 in 

Setaria digitata 

impairs in-vitro 

microfilariae 

release, 

embryogenesis 

and adult 

parasite 

viability  

2020 Mrs. 
P.G.T. 

S. 

Wickramathun

ga 

Yasanthi Illika 

Nilmini Silva 

Gunawardene, 

Kaveesha Jayani 

Wijesinghe, 

Arjuna NB 

Ellepola, Ranil 

Samantha 

Dassanayake 

Veterinary 

Parasitology 
Indexed 

A pyrene-

based two-

photon 

excitable 

fluorescent 

probe to 

visualize nuclei 

in live cells  

 2020  Mr.  C.S.   Abeywickrama 

Kaveesha J 

Wijesinghe, 

Caroline B Plescia, 

Lloyd S Fisher, 

Theodore 

Goodson III, 

Robert V Stahelin, 

Yi Pang 

 Photochemical & 

Photobiological 

Sciences 

Indexed 

Canine 

intestinal 

parasitic 

infections and 

soil 

contamination 

by Toxocara 

spp. in 

selected areas 

of Sri Lanka 

2020  Mr. G.L.S. Galgamuwa 

H. 

Wickramasinghe, 

D. Iddawela 

Tropical Parasitology Indexed 

Maternal 

coping 

strategies in 

response to 

child’s 

oncological 

diseases in Sri 

Lanka 

2020 Mr. G.L.S. Galgamuwa  

R. N. Padeniya, G. 

Thushari, D. H. 

Nissanka, C. 

Shashika, D. H. 

Munasinghe, D. 

M. Aberathne, P. 

L. Weerawardena, 

N. Kumarasinghe, 

L. Liyanage  

Acta Oncologica Indexed 

https://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/pii/S0304401720301692
https://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/pii/S0304401720301692
https://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/pii/S0304401720301692
https://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/pii/S0304401720301692
https://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/pii/S0304401720301692
https://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/pii/S0304401720301692
https://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/pii/S0304401720301692
https://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/pii/S0304401720301692
https://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/pii/S0304401720301692
https://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/pii/S0304401720301692
https://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/pii/S0304401720301692
https://pubs.rsc.org/en/content/articlehtml/2020/pp/d0pp00107d
https://pubs.rsc.org/en/content/articlehtml/2020/pp/d0pp00107d
https://pubs.rsc.org/en/content/articlehtml/2020/pp/d0pp00107d
https://pubs.rsc.org/en/content/articlehtml/2020/pp/d0pp00107d
https://pubs.rsc.org/en/content/articlehtml/2020/pp/d0pp00107d
https://pubs.rsc.org/en/content/articlehtml/2020/pp/d0pp00107d
https://pubs.rsc.org/en/content/articlehtml/2020/pp/d0pp00107d
https://pubs.rsc.org/en/content/articlehtml/2020/pp/d0pp00107d
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Non-simulator-

based 

techniques in 

teaching direct 

ophthalmosco

py for medical 

students: a 

systematic 

review. 

 2020 Dr. 
U.M. 

J.E. 
Samaranayake 

Y. 

Mathangasinghe, 

U.M.N.P. 

Samaranayake, 

M. Wijayatunga 

International Journal 

of Ophthalmology 
Indexed 

Morphology of 

ejaculatory 

ducts: A 

systematic 

review. 

 2020 Dr. 
U.M. 

J.E 
Samaranayake 

Y. 

Mathangasinghe, 

B.N. Dolapihilla, 

D.J. Anthony, A.P. 

Malalasekera 

Clinical Anatomy Indexed 

Fa
cu

lt
y 

o
f 

So
ci

a 
Sc

ie
n

ce
s 

an
d

 L
an

gu
ag

es
 

Anthracycline- 

Induced 

Cardiotoxicity 

in Breast 

Cancer 

Patients from 

Southern Sri 

Lanka: An 

Echocardiogra

phic Analysis 

2020 Mrs. J.A.N. Sandamali 

R. P. Hewawasam, 

M.A.C.S.S. 

Fernando, 

K.A.P.W. 

Jayatilaka, R.D. 

Madurawe, P.P. 

Sathananthan, U. 

Ekanayake, J. 

Horadugoda 

Bio Med Research 

International 
Indexed 

Impact of 

Macroeconomi

c Variables on 

Colombo Stock 

Exchange: The 

Sri Lankan 

Experience. 

2020 
Dr. 

(Mrs.) 

S.J.M. 

N.G. 
Samarakoon 

Ruwan, J., and 

Kapila,T. 

. Sri Lanka Economic 

Journal Sri Lanka 

Economic Association, 

16(1) pp.21-35. 

non-

indexed 

Joint modelling 

of correlated 

binary 

outcomes 

regarding the 

misconception

s of HIV 

transmission: 

A study with 

reference to 

the tertiary 

and vocational 

education 

trainees in Sri 

Lanka. 

2020 
Dr. 

(Mrs.) 

S.J.M. 

N.G. 
Samarakoon 

Samarakoon T, 

Withanage, N, 

Lekamge, U. & De 

Silva, N. 

International Journal 

Of Community 

Medicine And Public 

Health, 7(4), pp. 2950 - 

2955 

Indexed 
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Determinants 

of Social 

Media 

Addiction of 

Employees in 

Services Sector 

in Sri Lanka 

2020 Ms. 
S.N. 

M.G. 
Perera 

G.R.S.R.C.Samara

weera 

International Journal 

of Research and 

Innovation in Social 

Science 

Non-

indexed 

Female 

Headship and 

Poverty in Sri 

Lanka: A 

Household 

Level Analysis 

2020 Mrs. A. Jayathilaka 
M.D.J.W 

Wijesinghe 

International Journal 

of Research and 

Innovation in Applied 

Science (IJRIAS) 

Non -

indexed 

Causal 

Relationship 

between 

Macroeconomi

c Indicators 

and Stock 

Market: 

Evidence from 

Sri Lanka 

2020 Mrs. U.S. Thathsarani N/A 

International Journal 

of Scientific and 

Research Publications 

Non- 

Indexed 

Identifying the 

Influential 

Socio 

Economic 

Factors on the 

Thought of 

Having Family 

Planning 

Among Youth 

in Rural (With 

Reference 

from 

Porawagama 

Gn Division) 

2020 Mrs. N.M. Wijesekara Lankeshwara, P. 

International Journal 

of Advanced Research 

in Engineering & 

Management 

(IJAREM). 06(06), 1–4. 

Index 

Interpersonal 

trust, 

opportunism 

and business 

performance: 

An empirical 

evidence of 

gem dealers in 

Sri Lanka 

2020 Ms. K.V.P.I. Gamage Priyanath, H.M.S. 

International Journal 

of Business Continuity 

and Risk Management 

Indexed 
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Intellectual 

Capital and 

Business 

Performance 

of Self-

employers in 

Sri Lanka: An 

Empirical 

Investigation 

2020 Ms. P.A. Dulanjani Priyanath, H.M.S. 

International Journal 

of Research and 

Innovation in Social 

Science 

Non-

indexed 

The Impact of 

Social Capital 

on 

Socioeconomic 

Condition of 

CKDu Patients 

in Sri Lanka: An 

Empirical 

Investigation 

2020 Mr. H.K.S. Premadasa 
Priyanath, H.M.S. 

Walpita, C.N. 

International Journal 

of Scientific Research 

and Management 

Non-

indexed 

Digital 

Literacy, 

Business 

Uncertainty & 

Economic 

Performance: 

An Empirical 

Study of Small 

Businesses in 

Sri Lanka. 

2020 Mr. 
R.V.S. 

P.K 
Ranatunga, 

Priyanath, H.M.S. 

Megama, R.G.N. 

International Journal 

of Academic Research 

in Business and Social 

Sciences 

Non-

indexed 

Social Capital, 

Transaction 

Cost and 

Livelihood 

Success: A case 

of Samurdhi 

Community 

Based 

Organization in 

Sri Lanka 

2020 Mr. H.M.S. Priyanath, Lakshika, L.P.C. 

International Journal 

of Management 

Studies and Social 

Science Research 

Non-

indexed 
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The Impact of 

Asymmetric 

Information on 

Opportunism 

and Business 

Performance: 

An Empirical 

Investigation 

of Small 

Enterprises in 

Sri Lanka 

2020 Ms. 
B.Y. 

G.W 

Miththrananda

, 
Priyanath, H.M.S. 

Asian Journal of 

Multidisciplinary 

Studies 

Non-

indexed 

Methods and 

rule- of-

thumbs in the 

determination 

of minimum 

sample size 

when applying 

Structural 

Equation 

Modelling: A 

Review 

2020 Mr. 
R.V.S. 

P.K 
Ranatunga, 

Priyanath, H.M.S. 

Megama, R.G.N. 

Journal of Social 

Science Research/SUSL  

Non-

indexed 

Governing 

Mechanisms, 

Job 

Satisfaction 

and Employee 

Performance: 

An Empirical 

Study of 

Employees in 

Apparel 

Industry in Sri 

Lanka 

2020 Mr. H.M.S. Priyanath, Priyanganie, R.P.S. 

Asian Journal of 

Multidisciplinary 

Studies 

Non-

indexed 
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ICT Usage and 

Business 

Performance 

of SMEs in Sri 

Lanka: The 

Mediation 

Effect of 

Bounded 

Rationality 

2020 Mr. 
R.V.S. 

P.K 
Ranatunga, 

Priyanath, H.M.S. 

Megama, R.G.N. 

Wayamba University 

journal 

Non-

indexed 

Joint modeling 

of correlated 

binary 

outcomes 

regarding the 

misconception

s of HIV 

transmission: a 

study with 

reference to 

the tertiary 

and vocational 

education 

trainees in Sri 

Lanka  

2020 Ms. 
H.H. 

T.P. 
Samarakoon 

W.N.N.K. 

Withanage, 

S.J.M.N.G. 

Samarakoon, U. 

Lekamge, N. De 

Silva 

International Journal 

of Community 

Medicine and Public 

Health 

Indexed 

Analyze the 

impact of 

factors 

affecting 

whale tourism 

satisfaction in 

mirissa area, 

sri lanka. (with 

special 

reference to 

mirissa area 

2020 Mr. N.C. Weeraratne S.L.M. De Silva 

International Journal 

of Research 

Publication 

Non-

indexed 

 Motivation to 

Learn English 

via Online 

during Novel 

COVID 19 

Period 

 2020  Mrs.   K.S.N.  Prasangani  - 

 International Journal 

of Multidisciplinary 

Research 

Non-

indexed 
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 "Teaching 

English for 

Grades One 

and Two: A 

Study of the 

Issues and 

Challenges 

Encountered 

by the 

Teachers in 

Conducting a 

Special English 

Program in the 

Schools of 

Wattegama 

Education 

Zone." 

 2020  Ms. 
U.B.A. 

H.N 
 Perera  - 

International Research 

Conference, Uva 

Wellassa University 

(IRCUWU)- 2020 

Non-

indexed 

 Perspective of 

ESL 

Undergraduate

s on Mobile 

Assisted 

Language 

Learning 

 2020  Ms. 
 N.A.L.

D.R. 
 Silva  - 

 International Research 

Conference, Uva 

Wellassa University - 

2020 

Non-

indexed 

 Film and 

ideology: 

based on a gun 

a ring film 

 2020  Mrs.  J.  Harosana  -  Kuringi tamil, 
Non 

indexed 

The British 

Education 

system and the 

Cultural 

Dilemma: in 

the light of the 

Depiction in 

early Sinhala 

Fictions (1866-

1906) 

2020 Dr. W.M. Ariyarathne - 

International Journal 

of Research and 

Innovation in Social 

Sciences 

(IJRISS)Volume IV,Issue 

III,March 2020/ISSN 

24546186 

Non-

indexed 
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Grammatical 

Usage in 

Colophons in 

the 

Manuscript 

Literature in 

Sri Lanka  

2020 Dr. W.M. Ariyarathne 
Dr.Olaganwaththe 

Chandasiri  

American Journal of 

Humanities and Social 

Sciences Research 

(AJHSSR)2020E-

issn:2378-703X 

Volume-04,issue-06   

Non-

indexed 

Eighteenth 

Centaury 

Dutch 

Missionaries 

and their 

contribution 

for the 

advancement 

of Sinhala 

literature  

2020 Dr. W.M. Ariyarathne 
Prof.Rathnasiri 

Arangala  

American Journal of 

Humanities and Social 

Sciences Research 

(AJHSSR)2020E-

issn:2378-703X 

Volume-04,issue-07   

Non-

indexed 

'' Bharatiya 

Kavya 

Sasthriya 

Siddhanthon 

main prayukt 

Dhvani 

sidhdhant ke 

Vyangarthon 

ka Baratheeya 

Vigyapanon 

main Prayog"  

 -  Dr. 

 R.G. 

Sangee

th 

 Rathnayake  - 

 Research Review 

International Journal 

of Multidisciplinary, 

Volume 5, Issue 4, 

April 2020. 

non-

indexed 

 Bharatiya 

Kavya 

Sasthriya 

Siddhanthon 

main prayukt 

Alankaron ka 

Baratheeya 

Vigyapanon 

main Prayog"  

 -  Dr. 

 RG 

Sangee

th 

 Rathnayake  - 

 International Journal 

of  Research , Volume 

7, Issue 2, April 2020. 

non-

indexed 
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Bharatiya 

Kavya 

Sasthriya 

Siddhanthon 

main prayukt 

Alankaron ka 

Sri Lanka ke 

doordarshan 

ke Vigyapanon 

main Prayog"  

 -  Dr. 

 R.G. 

Sangee

th 

 Rathnayake - 

International Journal 

of Multidisciplinary 

Educational Research, 

Volume 9, Issue 4(7), 

April 2020. 

non-

indexed 

Wakrokthi 

Siddhanth ki 

Varn Vinyas 

tatha pad 

poorvardh 

wakrata ka  

Baratheeya 

Vigyapanon 

main Prayog"  

 -  Dr. 

 R.G. 

Sangee

th 

 Rathnayake - 

 International Journal 

of Humanities and 

Social Science 

Research, Volume 6, 

Issue 3, April 2020. 

non-

indexed 

Bharatiya 

Kavya 

Sasthriya 

Siddhanthon 

main prayukt 

Rason ka 

Bharatiya  

Vigyapanon 

main Prayog"  

 -  Dr. 

 R.G. 

Sangee

th 

 Rathnayake - 

 Shikshan Sanshodhan: 

Journal of Arts, 

Humanites and Social 

Sciences, Volume 3, 

Issue 2, March-April 

2020. 

non-

indexed 

 Bharatiya 

Reethi 

Siddhanth 

main prayukt 

das gunon ka 

Sri Lanka ke 

Vigyapanon 

main Prayog"  

 -  Dr. 

 R.G. 

Sangee

th 

 Rathnayake - 

Research Review 

International Journal 

of Multidisciplinary, 

Volume 5, Issue 5, May 

2020. 

non-

indexed 

Bharatiya 

Kavya 

Sasthriya 

Siddhanthon 

main prayukt 

Reethi ka 

Bharathiya 

Vigyapanon 

main Prayog"  

 -  Dr. 

 R.G. 

Sangee

th 

 Rathnayake - 

 International Journal 

of Hindi Research, 

Volume 6; Issue 3; May 

2020. 

non-

indexed 
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y 

Title of the 
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Published 

Year 

Name of the Main Author* 

Names of the Co -

authors 
Name of the Journal 

Whether  
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indexed 

 Title 
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Rev.)  
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(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) 

Fa
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y 

o
f 

So
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ce
s 

an
d

 L
an

gu
ag

es
 

Aochithya 

Siddhanth ke 

Reethi 

Aochithya  ka 

Bharatiya  

Vigyapanon 

main Prayog"  

-   Dr. 

 R.G. 

Sangee

th 

 Rathnayake - 

Shikshan Sanshodhan: 

Journal of Arts, 

Humanites and Social 

Sciences, Volume 3, 

Issue 3, May-June 

2020. 

non-

indexed 

 Professional 

Development 

(PD) for ESL 

teachers’ 

knowledge 

orientation: An 

empirical 

study 

 2020 Mr. 
  K.R.W. 

K.H. 
 Abeywickrama  W.M.Ariyaratne  

American Journal of 

Humanities and Social 

Sciences Research 

Non-

indexed 

 ESL teachers’ 

perceptions 

and design and 

delivery of 

Professional 

Development. 

 2020  Mr. 
 K.R.W. 

K.H. 
 Abeywickrama - 

 American Journal of 

Humanities and Social 

Sciences Research 

Non-

indexed 

Professional 

development 

and ESL 

teachers’ 

career 

enhancement 

 2020 Mr. 
K.R.W. 

K.H. 
Abeywickrama - 

International Journal 

of Research and 

Innovation in Social 

Science (IJRISS), 

Non-

indexed 

Paścāt 

Yathārthavādī 

Navakatāvehi 

Nirūpita 

Stritvaya hā 

Sabäňduṅu  

Gäṭalu: 

Gabsāva hā 

Liṁgika 

Pracaṅdatvaya 

Piḷibaňda 

Viśēṣa 

Avadhānaya 

Sahita va 

Kerena 

Vimarṣanayaki,  

 2020 
Dr. 

(Mrs)  
 G.K. 

 Champa S de 

Silva 
 W.M Ariyaratne 

Sabaragamuwa 

Śāstrīya Saṁgrahaya 

Vol 10, December 

2019,Sabaragamuwa 

University of Sri Lanka, 

Belihuloya ISSN 1800-

1459 

Non 

Indexed 



 
Draft Annual Report 2020 / Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka 

 

176 

Fa
cu

lt
y 

Title of the 
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indexed 
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(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) 
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y 

o
f 
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al
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ce
s 

an
d

 L
an
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es
 

Dilemma of 

Irregular 

Migration to 

Australia: the 

perspective of 

Southern Sri 

Lankans in 

Post war ear 

Feb-20 Mr. R.C. Palliyaguruge - 

The proceeding of the 

conference.The 

conference theme is 

‘Rethinking 

Peace,Conflict and 

Governance: 

Aconferance to reflect 

on peacebuilding 

issues in the 21st 

Centuary” University 

of New 

England,Australia  

Non 

Indexed 

 Perception of 

Local People 

on Land Use 

Change; 

Belihuloya 

Mini-

cathcment 

area ,Sri Lanka   

 2020 Mrs  H.M.P.  Herath 
 K.W.G Rekha 

Nianthi  

 Examining 

International Land Use 

Policies, Changes, and 

Conflicts 

Non 

Indexed 

Sustainable 

City 

Development 

is Possible? A 

Review of 

Challenges and 

Key Practices 

towards Urban 

Development 

in Developing 

Countries 

 2020 Mrs. R.J.M. Uduporuwa - 

International Journal 

of Scientific and 

Research Publications, 

Volume 10, Issue 9, 

September 2020 ISSN 

2250-3153                                         

DOI: 

10.29322/IJSRP.10.09. 

2020.p10534 

Refereed 

non-

indexed 

Spatial and 

Temporal 

Dynamics of 

Land Use/Land 

Cover in Kandy 

City, Sri Lanka: 

An Analytical 

Investigation 

with 

Geospatial 

Techniques 

2020 Mrs. R.J.M. Uduporuwa - 

American Scientific 

Research Journal for 

Engineering, 

Technology, and 

Sciences (ASRJETS) 

ISSN (Print) 2313-4410, 

ISSN (Online) 2313-

4402 

Refereed 

non-

indexed 
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n
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Measuring of 

Regional 

Growth 

Performance 

using Shift 

Share Analysis 

with Special 

Reference to 

Sabaragamuw

a Province, Sri 

Lanka 

2020 Mrs. R.J.M. Uduporuwa - 

International Journal 

of Humanities and 

Applied Social Science 

(IJHASS) E-ISSN: 2471-

7576 October 2020, 

Vol: 5, Issue: 10                                

DOI: 

10.33642/ijhass.v5n10

p1 

Refereed 

non-

indexed 

Fa
cu

lt
y 

o
f 

Te
ch

n
o

lo
gy

 

Optical 

absorption 

cross-section 

of DNA bases, 

thymine and 

guanine, in the 

energy region 

from 3.1 to 

250 eV (5–400 

nm) 

2020 Dr.  K.R.  Koswattage  
Y. Izumi, K. 

Nakagawa  

Quantum Beam 

Science 

Indexed 

(SCI) 

 Excited-state 

dynamics of 

room-

temperature 

phosphoresce

nt organic 

materials 

based on 

monobenzil 

and bisbenzil 

frameworks 

 2020  Mr.  K.  Maduwantha  

 S Yamada, KR 

Koswattage, T 

Konno, T Hosokai 

- 
Indexed 

(SCI) 

 Influence of 

intermolecular 

interactions on 

the formation 

of 

spontaneous 

orientation 

polarization in 

organic 

semiconductin

g films 

 2020  Dr.  S.  Yamada  

 T Higashida, Y 

Wang, M Morita, T 

Hosokai, K 

Maduwantha, K.R. 

Koswattage, T. 

Konno  

 Beilstein Journal of 

Organic Chemistry 

Indexed 

(SCI) 
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Influence of 

intermolecular 

interactions on 

the formation 

of 

spontaneous 

orientation 

polarization in 

organic 

semiconductin

g films 

2020 Dr.  Y.  Noguchi 

K. Osada, K. 

Ninomiya, 

H.D.C.N. 

Gunawardana, K.R 

Koswattage 

Journal of the Society 

for Information 

Display,  

Indexed 

(SCI) 

 Photoemissio

n investigation 

of interaction 

between 

L‐cysteine and 

silver surface  

 2020  Dr.   K.R.  Koswattage  H. Ishii 
 Surface and Interface 

Analysis, 

Indexed 

(SCI) 

Review on 

applications of 

synchrotron-

based X-ray 

techniques in 

materials 

characterizatio

n 

2020 Mr.  P.  Seidge 
M. Kohedi, K.R. 

Koswattage 
X-Ray Spectrometry 

Indexed 

(SCI) 

Generating 

electricity 

using 

produced 

mechanical 

energy in a 

gymnasium 

2020 Mr.  K.A.  Induranga  

G.D.K.V. 

Maduwantha, 

H.G.N.A. 

Sirisooriya, W.S.M. 

Fernando, P.P. 

Weerakkodi, 

H.D.C. N. 

Gunawardena and 

K.R. Koswattage 

Journal of 

Multidisciplinary 

Engineering Science 

Studies 

Indexed 

The 

Relationship 

between 

Economic 

Growth and 

Electricity 

Consumption 

in Sri Lanka  

2020  Mr. 
K.K. 

C.S.  
Kiriella  

W.L.T. Peiris, 

W.H.A. 

Samarakoon, 

K.T.A.B. 

Samarasinghe, 

W.D.A.S. 

Wijayapala, and 

M.P. Dias 

 Journal of Economics, 

Business and 

Management, Vol. 8 

Indexed 

javascript:void(0)
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10.3 DETAILS OF KNOWLEDGE DISSEMINATION TO THE GENERAL PUBLIC 

DURING THE YEAR 2020 

 

Faculty 

Category 

Title of the Programme 
Number 

Participated 

Target group 

(workshops/training 

programmes/field 

demonstrations/media 

programmes) 

(e.g Mushroom 

Farmers, School 

Children)   

Faculty of 

Agricultural 

Sciences 

Conducting Workshops  

Sustainable farming practices in 

tea sector AHEAD ELTA-ELSE 
35 

Tea smallholders 

and other tea 

sector 

stakeholders 

Workshop on Floral Decorations 

(24th Feb, 2020)  
22 

 University 

community 

Workshop on Bonsai (27th & 28th 

Feb, 2020) 
92  

University 

community and 

Flower Growers 

Conducting training 

programmes/ field 

demonstrations 

  

AHEAD  

  

Organizing exhibitions 

/Public performences 
‘Floriculture Day’  16 

University 

students 

Participating Radio /TV/ 

other media 

programmes 

“GuruGedara”: A series of lessons 

on Biosystems Technology 

conducted over Sri Lanka 

Rupavahini during COVID-19 

Pandemic 

https://www.youtube.com/ 

watch?v=upnwGaGZh-A; 

https://www.youtube.com/ 

watch?v=kYKT4C4UhuU; 

https://www.youtube.com/ 

watch?v=CG98vJuoWKg; 

https://www.youtube.com/ 

watch?v=GMMlxm45tZU 

 Nationwide 

A/L Biosystems 

Technology 

students 

Small-spaced Gardening: ‘My 

Garden’- Siyatha TVprogramme 

to promote home gardening 

during COVID-19 Pandemic 

https://www.youtube.com/ 

watch?v=bu_PtpYMRyE 

  General public 

https://www.youtube.com/
https://www.youtube.com/
https://www.youtube.com/
https://www.youtube.com/
https://www.youtube.com/
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Faculty 

Category 

Title of the Programme 
Number 

Participated 

Target group 

(workshops/training 

programmes/field 

demonstrations/media 

programmes) 

(e.g Mushroom 

Farmers, School 

Children)   

Faculty of 

Agricultural 

Sciences 

Participating Radio /TV/ 

other media 

programmes 

Fruit Tree Management: ‘My 

Garden’- Siyatha TVprogramme 

to promote fruit cultivation 

during COVID-19 Pandemic 

https://www.youtube.com/ 

watch?v=xb5rXzMIqIc&list=RDCM

UCc 30sTBdN9LRSxEuHaXV_ 

bQ&start_radio= 1&t=0&t=0 

-  General public 

Economy and Dairy Production 
 SLBC- 

Subharathie 
- 

Dairy Development 

Sthawehanaya  

SLBC- 

Subharathie 
- 

COVID and Dairy Developement Derana TV- - 

Faculty of 

Applied 

Sciences 

Conducting Workshops  

Inland fish processing in 

Sabaragamuwa Province 
15 

Governor and the 

secretaries of the 

relevant 

ministries of 

Sabaragamuwa 

Province 

Biogas technology Resource 

person - Eng. Namiz Musafer 
152 

Undergraduate 

students of 

Natural resources, 

and Food Science 

and Technology 

departments 

Academic 

members of 

Department of 

Natural resources 

Workshop to celebrate the 

International Humboldt Day 

programme of the International 

Biogeography Society in Sri Lanka, 

organized nationally by the Sri 

Lanka Ecological Association and 

the Royal Botanic Gardens of Sri 

Lanka - Talk under the title “Life 

and works of Alexander von 

Humboldt (1769 – 1859): lessons 

for modern day explorers, 

ecologists and biogeographers”. 

About 20 

local 

participants 

(physically) 

and more 

than 200 

local and 

international 

participants 

virtually 

The community 

interested about 

Biogeography 

http://www.youtube.com/
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Faculty 

Category 

Title of the Programme 
Number 

Participated 

Target group 

(workshops/training 

programmes/field 

demonstrations/media 

programmes) 

(e.g Mushroom 

Farmers, School 

Children)   

Faculty of 

Applied 

Sciences 

Conducting Workshops 

A seminar on “Humboldt to 

hornbills: a tale of a great 

naturalist to avian biogeography 

of Sri Lanka” for the Field 

Ornithology Group of Sri Lanka. 

About 100 

local and 

international 

participants 

virtually. 

Bird lovers 

A workshop on “How to develop 

yourself as a Scientist”, for the 

undergraduate quality 

enhancement. 

About 100 

local 

participants 

Undergraduate 

students 

Workshop for Physical Training 

Instructors of the Sri Lanka 

Electrical and Mechanical 

Engineers Unit and Sri Lanka 

Military Academy 

More than 

200 

Physical Training 

Instructors of the 

Sri Lanka 

Electrical and 

Mechanical 

Engineers Unit 

and Sri Lanka 

Military Academy 

Workshop on Prohibited 

Substances   Use in Sports 

More than 

100 

Undergraduates 

of the 

department of 

Sports Sciences & 

physical 

Education 

workshop on Excursion to a hi-

tech analytical laboratory to gain 

exposure on lab management 

and good laboratory practices 

17 

Technical Officers 

and Laboratory 

Attendants 

the internal orientation program 

for Technical Officers and 

Laboratory Attendants 

12 

Technical Officers 

and Laboratory 

Attendants 

Other (Specify) 

The 3rd Annual general meeting of 

Ratnapura Gem and Greenery 

Association  

 - 

Delivered a guest 

speech explaining 

technological 

development 

related to 

gemology at 

Sabaragamuwa 

University to gem 

mining and 

business 

community in 

Ratnapura 
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Faculty 

Category 

Title of the Programme 
Number 

Participated 

Target group 

(workshops/training 

programmes/field 

demonstrations/media 

programmes) 

(e.g Mushroom 

Farmers, School 

Children)   

Faculty of 

Applied 

Sciences 

Other (Specify) 

Public Talk on Big Cats 

America Si 

Lanka 

Photography 

Society 

600 audience 

Panel Discussion 

The Center 

for 

Environment

al Justice  

100 People 

Podcast talks 

Education 

material 

produced for 

Dilmah 

Conservation 

Global 

Community at 

Dilmah 

International 

Centers 

Olympism in Action - 

International Olympic Day 

Celebration by Prof. Cora 

Burnett-Louw 

More than 

100 

Undergraduates, 

Sports Coaches, 

PTI, PE Teachers 

Sports Scientists 

and Academics 

Breaking Barriers through the 

power of Sports by Mr. Eli A 

Wolff 

More than 

100 

Undergraduates, 

Sports Coaches, 

PTI, PE Teachers 

Sports Scientists 

and Academics 

Ankle Injuries in Sports: 

Conservative Management & 

Rehabilitation by Dr. Ishanka 

Weerasekara 

More than 

100 

Undergraduates, 

Sports Coaches, 

PTI, PE Teachers 

Sports Scientists 

and Academics 

Sports Related Concussion by Mr. 

Dulan Kodikara 

More than 

100 

Undergraduates, 

Sports Coaches, 

PTI, PE Teachers 

Sports Scientists 

and Academics 

Ambush Marketing of Sports 

Event by Dr Geoff Dickson 

More than 

100 

Undergraduates, 

Sports Coaches, 

PTI, PE Teachers 

Sports Scientists 

and Academics 
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Faculty 

Category 

Title of the Programme 
Number 

Participated 

Target group 

(workshops/training 

programmes/field 

demonstrations/media 

programmes) 

(e.g Mushroom 

Farmers, School 

Children)   

Faculty of 

Applied 

Sciences 

Other (Specify) 
New Trends and Way Forward in 

Sport by Mrs Eranga Fernando 

More than 

100 

Undergraduates 

and Alumni 

members of the 

department 

Faculty of 

Geomatics 

Conducting Workshops  
Spatial Standardization  50 

Government 

Organizations 

who provided 

spatial data 

03 workshops conducted for Ministry of Education 

Conducting training 

programmes/ field 

demonstrations 

02 programmes for NIE 

Organizing exhibitions 

/Public performances 
02 events organized 

Participating Radio /TV/ 

other media 

programmes 

10 times participated 

Faculty of 

Management 

Studies 

Conducting Workshops  

“කවිය - නිදහසත් එක්ක" online 

webinar poetry program  

Approximate

ly 350 – 400  

Undergraduates 

and the forum 

kept open for the 

public 

A one-day workshop on Career 

Opportunities and Prospects of 

the Travel and Tourism industry 

70 

Tourism 

management and 

hospitality 

management 

undergraduates in 

3rd year 

Networking and Business 

Negotiation in Tourism and 

Hospitality 

70 

Tourism 

management and 

hospitality 

management 

undergraduates in 

3rd year 

“කවිය - ආදරයත් එක්ක” Sinhalese 

poetry entertainment program 
200-250 

Undergraduates 

and the forum 

kept open for the 

public 
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Faculty 

Category 

Title of the Programme 
Number 

Participated 

Target group 

(workshops/training 

programmes/field 

demonstrations/media 

programmes) 

(e.g Mushroom 

Farmers, School 

Children)   

Faculty of 
Management 

Studies 
Conducting Workshops  

FREE online webinars via zoom 
platform for the undergraduates 
themed on “Learn from Industry 
Intellects” 

Approx. 100 
per each 

programme 

An open forum 
especially for 
undergraduates 
and staff 

1st Webinar - The Art of 
Professional Tourists Guiding 

2nd Webinar - Career Spotlight in 
Hospitality Industry 

3rd Webinar -Networking and 
Business Negotiations 

4th Webinar - Transforming 
Hospitality Spaces to Suit Post-
Covid Lifestyle 

5th Webinar - Strategic Marketing 
for Hospitality Businesses 

6th Webinar - Digital Marketing 
for Tourism and Hospitality 

7th Webinar - Re-energize 
Tourism in Sri Lanka with Synergy 
to adjust ‘New Normal’ 

Qualitative Research 
Methodology 150 

Undergraduate 
students and 
academic staff (Under AHEAD Project) 

Environment, Health and Safety 21 

Project staff of 
Metro Colombo 
Urban 
Development 
Project 

Tuk Tuk Local Tour Guide Training 
Programmes, Arugam Bay 

34 Three drivers 
Surf Club Business Coaching 
Programmes 

Tourism Micro Entrepreneur 
Empowerment Programme   

13 

Male and Female 
Surfing Instructors 
Tourism/Hospitali
ty micro 
entrepreneurs 
and start-ups 
from 
Polannaruawa, 
Ampara, 
Batticaloa and 
Trincomalee 
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Faculty 

Category 

Title of the Programme 
Number 

Participated 

Target group  

(workshops/training 

programmes/field 

demonstrations/media 

programmes) 

(e.g Mushroom 

Farmers, School 

Children)   

Faculty of 

Management 

Studies 

Conducting Workshops  

Community Based Tourism 

Development Programme 

Knuckles 

60 
12 villagers from 

Knuckles region 

German Language 60 hours 

Course in Arugambay – 7 

Female Surfing 

Instructors  in 

Arugambay Sri Lanka 

Workshop on Motivational   50   School Children  

Workshop on Effective Learning 

Techniques 1 (Via Zoom)  
80 

University 

Students  

Workshop on Effective Learning 

Techniques 2 (Via Zoom) 
80 

University 

Students  

Workshop on Introduction to 

Management  
210 Graduates  

Workshop on Management 

Levels and Managerial Skills  
210 Graduates  

Workshop on Motivation  210 Graduates  

Workshop on Controlling  210 Graduates  

Workshop on Communication & 

Communication Process  
80 Graduates  

Workshop on Stress Management  120 Graduates  

Workshop on Motivation  120 Graduates  

Workshop on Organizational 

Behaviour  
210 Graduates  

Workshop on Stress Management  120 Graduates  

Workshop on Online Career 

Guidance  
80 

University 

Students  

Conducting training 

programmes/ field 

demonstrations 

Graduate Training Programme in 

Embilipitiya 200  

Government 

university 

graduates  Topic: “Disaster Management  

Training Project on “Tuk Tuk 

Drivers pathway to Tour Guiding 

in Ampara District” on February 

2020 

30 
Tuk Tuk drivers in 

ArugamBay 

One-day training program on 

“capability building” conducted 

by Aitken Spence School of 

Management held on 21st 

January 2020 

70 

Tourism 

management and 

hospitality 

management 

undergraduates in 

3rd year 



 
Draft Annual Report 2020 / Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka 

 

186 

Faculty 

Category 

Title of the Programme 
Number 

Participated 

Target group  

(workshops/training 

programmes/field 

demonstrations/media 

programmes) 

(e.g Mushroom 

Farmers, School 

Children)   

Faculty of 

Management 

Studies 

Conducting training 

programmes/ field 

demonstrations 

Graduate Training Programme in 

Embilipitiya 200 

Government 

university 

graduates Topic: “Stress Management 

Graduate Training Programme in 

Eheliyagoda Centre 150 

Government 

university 

graduates Topic: “Communication” 

Organizational Behavior in the 

orientation training program 
 120  Graduates  

Government Graduate training 

program 
210 Graduates 

Organizing exhibitions 

/Public performences 

“චිමිනිය - මේ අමප් විදිහට” 

authentic Sri Lankan restaurant 

organized and operated by 

Tourism and Hospitality 

undergraduates in collaboration 

with academic staff on the 1st of 

January 2020 at faculty premises 

 100 

Undergraduates 

and staff of the 

university 

Other  (Specify) 

World Environment Day 

Celebrations: Virtual Learning 

Programme 2020  

Different in 

each session  

 Scientific 

Community 

Faculty of 

Medicine 

Conducting Workshops  Nutritional Intervention    34   Ayurvedic Doctors  

Participating Radio /TV/ 

other media 

programmes 

Nuga sevana 3 General Publics 

Other  (Specify) Short film on Genetic Diseases 3 

Hospital Staff and 

patients in 

Ratnapura District  

Faculty of 

Social 

Sciences and 

Languages 

Conducting Workshops  

Workshop on Philosophy of 

Hypothesis Testing 
100 

University 

Academics 

Workshop on Structural Equation 

Modelling with AMOS and 

SmartPLS 

18 

University 

Academics and 

Research institute 

members 

Curriculum Revision 60 
University 

Academics 
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Faculty 

Category 

Title of the Programme 
Number 

Participated 

Target group  

(workshops/training 

programmes/field 

demonstrations/media 

programmes) 

(e.g Mushroom 

Farmers, School 

Children)   

Faculty of 

Social 

Sciences and 

Languages 

Conducting Workshops  

Stakeholders meeting for 

Curriculum Development 
110 

University 

Academics 

Business experts 

Corporate Communication Skills 

for Employment 
 610 Undergraduates 

Tamil Drama and culture online 

workshop (Mrs. J. Harosana) 
 25  Folk Artists 

Empowering Women through 

Higher Education and Social 

Contribution (25/12/2020) 

48 

Female students, 

who sat for A/L 

examination 

“ශ්‍රී ලාංමක්ය දමිළ සාහිතයමේ දමිල 

විඳියන්මේ සලකුණු” (07/12/2020) 
98 

Sinhala and Tamil 

Writers & Literary 

Activists 

Asma Barlas: An Islamic Female 

Scholar and her research 

contributions (16/10/2020)   

40 - 50 
Worldwide Tamil 

Intellectuals 

Women and Politics (29/08/2020) 30 Women activists  

Contemporary Sri Lankan Tamil 

Poems (16/08/2020) (Mrs. 

Lareena AH) 

35 - 40 
Worldwide Tamil 

Intellectuals 

Participated as a guest lecturer in 

an International webinar titled on 

‘problems and prospects of Indo-

Sri Lanka relations in the time of 

Covid-19 on 18/07/2020. It was 

organized by Department of 

History, Gargaon 

College,(Dibrugarh University) 

Simaluguri,Sivasagar,Assam,India  

165 

Academics, 

Students, Military 

officers and 

general public 

from India,Sri 

Lanka,Nepal and 

Bangaladesh  

Participated as a guest lecturer in 

online-plat form organized by the 

National College (Affiliated to 

Kathmandu University) 

Kathmandu, Nepal.The title of the 

lecturer is ‘Peace Process of Sri 

Lanka: Towards positive peace  

55 
Academics and 

students  
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Faculty 

Category 

Title of the Programme 
Number 

Participated 

Target group  

(workshops/training 

programmes/field 

demonstrations/media 

programmes) 

(e.g Mushroom 

Farmers, School 

Children)   

Faculty of 

Social 

Sciences and 

Languages 

Conducting training 

programmes/ field 

demonstrations 

Workshop on Conflict Resolution  50 Religious Leaders  

Conflict Handling and Pluralism  40 

Officers of Sri 

Lanka 

Administrative 

Service  

Training on Social Cohesion and 

Reconciliation  
40 Political Leaders  

Art and Craft of Academic Writing  80 
Community 

Leaders  

Qualitative Data Analysis for 

Psychology students  
25 

Postgraduate 

students local  

Diploma Program in Local 

Governance  
60 Politicians  

Medical Sociology in Local 

Governance  
30 

Nursing and 

Managers in 

Nursing training 

School 

Organizing exhibitions / 

Public performances 

Water Management for Rice farming  

Organizing a Training 

administrative and non-Academic 

staff for Handing documentations 

and interactive communication 

with stakeholders to  form a 

smart office 

18 

Administrative 

and Non-

academic staff of 

the faculty 

Organizing A/L Seminar 

programme- AHEAD project/ 

Department of Economics and 

Statistics – Online (Nearly 460 

study packs were distributed 

among school children) 

80 

School children 

who sat for GCE 

A/L examination 

in economics, 

statistics and ICT 

Knowledge 

Dissemination 

Forum of the 

research findings in 

Imbulpe Area/ 

AHEAD project/ 

Department of 

Economics and 

Statistics 

17 

Officers in 

imbulpe DSD             

Knowledge 

dissemination 

would benefit for 

the community in 

the Imbulpe DSD 
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Faculty 

Category 

Title of the Programme 
Number 

Participated 

Target group 

(workshops/training 

programmes/field 

demonstrations/media 

programmes) 

(e.g Mushroom 

Farmers, School 

Children)   

Faculty of 

Social 

Sciences and 

languages 

Organizing exhibitions / 

Public performances 

A Talk on youth politics and their participation, centre for poverty 

Alleviation  

Art during Covid-19 poetry 

discussion on a book launch, 

online 

20 
Youth, Social 

Activists  

Film review on Money 

Hiest,Organised by the student 

unions of the Science Faculty, 

University of Kelaniya  

150 Students  

Participating Radio /TV/ 

other media 

programmes 

Education during Covid-19,Radio 

programme organized by Sri 

Palee Campus  

 25  Academics  

Faculty of 

Technology 
Other  (Specify) 

 Webinar on ICT based Teaching 

for Academic Staff  
 8 

Academic Staff, 

Faculty of 

Technology, SUSL 

Library 
Other  (Specify) - Public 

oration 

Public Oration for the celebration 

of National Reading Month and 

World  Childrens day 01st Oct. 

2020. 

Approximatel

y 100 

Keerapathdeniya 

Maha Vidyalaya, 

Pinnawala, 

Balangoda, visited 

the Main Library 

at SUSL.  (School 

Children, 

Teachers ) 
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10.4 NATIONAL & INTERNATIONAL AWARDS RECEIVED IN 2020 

 

Faculty Award category 
Name of the 

Award 

National/ 

International 

Description of the 

award 

Name of the 

awardee 

and country 

Name/s of 

the 

receipient 

(Student/Sta

ff/Departme

nt/ Faculty/ 

University) 

Faculty of 

Applied 

Sciences 

Research/ Innovation 

Research/ 

Innovation 

Investigator 

Driven Grants 

for 2020 

(National 

Research 

Council) 

National 

3 million funds 

(Project title: 

“Microplastics Bound 

Transport and 

Differential 

Bioavailability of 

Pharmaceuticals, 

Personal Care 

Products (PPCPs) and 

Toxic Trace Elements 

in Water”.) 

National 

Research 

Council, Sri 

Lanka 

Dr. Hasintha 

Wijesekara 

and Dr. 

H.S.M.Soysa 

The 42nd JASP 

paper award 
International Paper award Japan 

S.D.A. 

Sandanayaka 

Other  (Please specify) 

Travel Award for Food Safety 

Professionals in a Country with a 

Developing Economy 

International 

Plaque and travel 

funds to attend the 

Annual Meeting of 

the International 

Association for Food 

Protection. 

Presented to food 

safety professionals 

working full-time in 

the field of food 

safety in a country 

with a developing 

economy 

International 

Association 

for Food 

Protection, 

USA 

A.L.C.J. 

Liyanage, 

Senior 

Lecturer, 

Dept. of Food 

Science and 

Technology 

Faculty of 

Geomatics 

Research/ Innovation 

Research & 

Innovation on 

Commercilization 

 AHEAD/RIC 

grants 
 National    World Bank 

 Dr. NMPM 

Piyasena 

Faculty of 

Management 

Studies 

Research/ Innovation 

Research 

Outstanding 

Reviewer 

Award 

International 

Outstanding 

Reviewer Award-

2019: FIIB Business 

Review, SAGE 

Publishing 

FIIB Business 

Review, Sage 
Publishing 

Dr. D.N. 

Jayantha 
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11. HOSTEL DATA – 2020 

 

As the University is in a remote, when considering the difficulties in finding the residential 

facilities for undergraduates by themselves, all the students whose permanent residencies 

are more than 20 km away from the University are provided hostel facilities by the 

University. So, about 89.82% of the undergraduates are received the University provided 

hostel facilities, in each year.   

 

The University has provided accommodation in its own hostels only for 987 male students 

and 1446 female students. Other students have been provided with accommodation in 

rented houses for 498 male students and 1650 female students.   

 

The University spends more than 12 million per annum for rented houses to accommodate 

the students. 

 

11.1 NO. OF STUDENTS SATISFIED AND RECEIVED HOSTEL FACILITIES BY 

FACULTY 2020 

 

Faculty 
Batch 

Year 

Year of 

Intake 

No. of 

Students 

Registered 

No. of Students 

satisfy the selection 

criteria for Hostels 

No. of students 

received Hostel 

facilities  

Male Female Total 

Faculty of 

Agricultural 

Sciences 

1 2018/2019 177 170 35 135 170 

2 2017/2018 159 136 14 122 136 

3 2016/2017 160 140 30 110 140 

4 2015/2016 99 81 12 69 81 

Faculty of 

Applied  

Sciences 

1 2018/2019 341 335 145 190 335 

2 2017/2018 325 297 132 165 297 

3 2016/2017 301 267 125 142 267 

4 2015/2016 216 181 69 112 181 

Faculty of 

Geomatics 

1 2018/2019 99 94 61 33 94 

2 2017/2018 98 81 66 15 81 

3 2016/2017 94 86 67 19 86 

4 2015/2016 69 63 55 8 63 

Faculty of 

Management 

Studies 

1 2018/2019 356 349 103 246 349 

2 2017/2018 354 301 81 220 301 

3 2016/2017 340 274 78 196 274 

4 2015/2016 317 273 75 198 273 
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Faculty 
Batch 

Year 

Year of 

Intake 

No. of 

Students 

Registered 

No. of Students 

satisfy the selection 

criteria for Hostels 

No. of students 

received Hostel 

facilities  

Male Female Total 

Faculty of 

Medicine 

1 2018/2019 75 75 27 48 75 

2 2017/2018 70 70 28 42 70 

Faculty of 

Social 

Sciences & 

Languages 

1 2018/2019 312 304 45 259 304 

2 2017/2018 282 235 25 210 235 

3 2016/2017 275 240 29 211 240 

4 2015/2016 283 249 20 229 249 

Faculty of 

Technology 

1 2018/2019 148 142 88 54 142 

2 2017/2018 150 138 75 63 138 

Total 5100 4581 1485 3096 4581 

 

 

Progress of Students Received Hostel Facilities by Faculty 2020 
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11.2 PERMANENT HOSTELS 

 

Name Location Distance 

from 

University 

No. can be 

Accommodated  

No. Occupied                                                  

(as at 31st 

December 2020)  

Hostel 

Fee per 

student 

per year Male Female Male Female 

Walawa A Pambahinna, Belihuloya 500 m - 392 - 98 500.00 

Walawa B Pambahinna, Belihuloya 500 m - 388 - 76 500.00 

Walawa C Pambahinna, Belihuloya 500 m - 392 - 97 500.00 

Samanala I Pambahinna, Belihuloya 1 km - 72 - 14 500.00 

Samanala II Pambahinna, Belihuloya 1 km - 146 - 16 500.00 

Samanala III Pambahinna, Belihuloya 1 km - 138 - 17 500.00 

Sinharaja I Pambahinna, Belihuloya 500 m 60 - - - 500.00 

Sinharaja II Pambahinna, Belihuloya 500 m 130 - - - 500.00 

Sinharaja III Pambahinna, Belihuloya 500 m 116 - - - 500.00 

Sinharaja IV Pambahinna, Belihuloya 500 m 136 - - - 500.00 

Sinharaja V Pambahinna, Belihuloya 500 m 294 - 25 - 500.00 

Sinharaja VI Pambahinna, Belihuloya 500 m 396 - 98 - 500.00 

Total 1132 1528 123 318 6,000.00 

 

11.3 RENTED FACILITIES 
 

Location Rental Cost 

per year 

No. occupied as at 31st 

December 2020  

Fee per 

student 

per year Male Female Total 

"Manamperi Hostel", Pambahinna, Belihuloya. 29400.00 Due to the COVID 19 

situation students have 

left. 

500.00 

"Jayasooriya Hostel", Pambahinna, Belihuloya.  42000.00 500.00 

"WKK Bandara Hostel", Pambahinna, 

Belihuloya.  

37500.00 500.00 

"Dilani Hostel" , Pambahinna, Belihuloya. 30800.00 500.00 

"Sangamiththa Hostel", Pambahinna, 

Belihuloya. 

30800.00 500.00 

"Gunarathna 1 Hostel", Pambahinna, 

Belihuloya. 

34500.00 500.00 

"Gunarathna 2 Hostel", Pambahinna, 

Belihuloya. 

33750.00 500.00 

" Weerakoon Hostel", Pambahinna, Belihuloya. 83300.00 500.00 

"Walawe Hostel", Pambahinna, Belihuloya. 57400.00 500.00 

"Sirimadura 1 Hostel", Pambahinna, 

Belihuloya. 

39000.00       500.00 

"Sirimadura 2 Hostel", Pambahinna, 

Belihuloya. 

39000.00       500.00 
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Location Rental Cost 

per year 

No. occupied as at 31st 

December 2020  

Fee per 

student 

per year Male Female Total 

"Sirimadura 3 Hostel", Pambahinna, 

Belihuloya. 

52500.00 Due to the COVID 19 

situation students have 

left. 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

   

500.00 

"Mahaweli Hostel", Pambahinna, Belihuloya. 84000.00 500.00 

"Gunawardena Hostel", Pambahinna, 

Belihuloya. 

137200.00 500.00 

"Chithralatha Hostel", Pambahinna, Belihuloya. 32200.00 500.00 

"Ravindra Hostel", Pambahinna, Belihuloya. 123200.00 500.00 

"Sahan Hostel", Pambahinna, Belihuloya. 42750.00 500.00 

"Anjalika 1 Hostel" , Pambahinna, Belihuloya. 53200.00 500.00 

"Anjalika 2 Hostel", Pambahinna, Belihuloya. 19600.00 500.00 

"Sithum Hostel", Pambahinna, Belihuloya. 27000.00 500.00 

"Dayashanthi 1 Hostel" , Pambahinna, 

Belihuloya. 

60000.00 500.00 

"Dayashanthi 2 Hostel" , Pambahinna, 

Belihuloya. 

30000.00 500.00 

"Chandrika Hostel", Pambahinna, Belihuloya. 30000.00 500.00 

"Mapatuna Hostel", Pambahinna, Belihuloya. 27000.00 500.00 

"Malani Hostel", Pambahinna, Belihuloya. 75000.00 500.00 

"Kumarathunga Hostel", Pambahinna, 

Belihuloya. 

30000.00 500.00 

"Amila Hostel", Pambahinna, Belihuloya. 28000.00 500.00 

"Weerasinghe  1 Hostel", Pambahinna, 

Belihuloya. 

28000.00 500.00 

"Weerasinghe  2 Hostel", Pambahinna, 

Belihuloya. 

35000.00 500.00 

"Wijerathna Hostel", Pambahinna, Belihuloya. 15400.00 500.00 

"Sewwandi Hostel", Pambahinna, Belihuloya. 57400.00 500.00 

"Wanasinghe Hostel", Pambahinna, Belihuloya. 27300.00 500.00 

"Asiri Hostel", Pambahinna, Belihuloya. 51800.00 500.00 

"Subadra Hostel", Pambahinna, Belihuloya. 37100.00 500.00 

"Kurunagala Hostel", Pambahinna, Belihuloya. 54000.00 500.00 

"Keerthisinghe Hostel", Pambahinna, 

Belihuloya. 

34500.00 500.00 

"Jayasinghe Hostel", Kuruwita, Rathnapura 60000.00 500.00 

"Witharana Hostel", Kuruwita,  Rathnapura 60000.00 500.00 

Total 1,769,600.00 19,000.00 
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12. MAHAPOLA AND BURSARY SCHOLARSHIPS DATA 

  

12.1 MAHAPOLA SCHOLARSHIP 
 

Out of the total student population of 5995 in the year 2020 only 2485 students were 

received Mahapola Scholarships. This is 41.45% of total students' population. Mahapola 

ordinary installment is Rs. 5,000.00 (monthly) merit installment is Rs. 5,050.00. 

 

12.2 BURSARY 
 

The total numbers of bursary recipients are 1923 in 2020. This is 32.08% of the total student 

population. Installment amount is Rs. 4,000.00.   

 

Total number of students who received financial assistance in the form of Mahapola or 

Bursary are 4408. This is 73.53% of the total student population. 

 

12.3 NO. OF STUDENTS RECEIVED MAHAPOLA & BURSARY IN 2020 
 

Faculty Year of 

Intake 

Year of Study Mahapola Bursary 

No. of 

Students 

Received 

Amount Paid 

(LKR) 

No. of 

Students 

Received 

Amount Paid 

(LKR) 

Faculty of 

Agricultural 

Sciences 

2018/2019 1st year  9 to be paid 114 - 

2017/2018 2nd year  12         160,000.00  89 1,368,000.00  

2016/2017 3rd year  31      1,205,000.00  90 1,252,000.00  

2015/2016 4th year  25         935,000.00  51 800,000.00  

2014/2015 4th year  8         315,000.00  46    158,400.00  

Faculty of 

Applied 

Sciences  

2018/2019 1st year  67         310,000.00  159 - 

2017/2018 2nd year  69   2,230,000.00  157 1,704,000.00  

2016/2017 3rd year  93      3,150,000.00  109 1,208,000.00  

2015/2016 3rd year (2nd Sem) 96 3,370,000.00  73    752,000.00  

2014/2015 4th year  87     3,145,000.00  42    42,000.00  

Faculty of 

Geomatics  

2018/2019 1st year  63 610,000.00  3 - 

2017/2018 2nd year  54 1,835,000.00  10    300,000.00  

2016/2017 3rd year  41    1,510,000.00  26 756,000.00  

2015/2016 3rd year (2nd Sem) 40 1,400,000.00  11   344,000.00  

2014/2015 4th year  33      1,195,000.00  6    152,000.00  
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Faculty Year of 

Intake 

Year of Study Mahapola Bursary 

No. of 

Students 

Received 

Amount Paid 

(LKR) 

No. of 

Students 

Received 

Amount Paid 

(LKR) 

Faculty of 

Management 

Studies  

2018/2019 1st year  139      2,305,500.00  162 2,940,000.00  

2017/2018 2nd year  183   6,080,250.00  105 2,812,000.00  

2016/2017 3rd year  230     7,875,600.00  57 1,612,000.00  

2015/2016 3rd year (2nd Sem) 210     6,390,000.00  48 1,307,300.00  

2014/2015 4th year  232      8,045,300.00  34 1,035,700.00  

Faculty of 

Medicine 

2018/2019 1st year  31  to be paid   N/A N/A 

2017/2018 2nd year  27 1,085,000.00  4 112,000.00  

Faculty of 

Social 

Sciences & 

Languages  

2018/2019 1st year  98   193,550.00  134  516,000.00  

2017/2018 2nd year  95 2,980,000.00  120 3,440,000.00  

2016/2017 3rd year  126 4,375,000.00  79 2,424,000.00  

2015/2016 3rd year (2nd Sem) 112 4,385,000.00  74 2,276,000.00  

2014/2015 4th year  120 4,205,200.00  60 1,724,000.00  

Faculty of 

Technology 

2018/2019 1st year  82   640,000.00  32    448,000.00  

2017/2018 2nd year  72 240,000.00  28   464,000.00  

Total 2485 70,170,400.00 1923 29,947,400.00 

 

 

Progress of Students Received Mahapola 
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Progress of Students Received Bursary 

 

 

 

FAS  - Faculty of Agricultural Sciences 

FAPSC  - Faculty of Applied Sciences 

FG  - Faculty of Geomatics 

FMS  - Faculty of Management Studies 

FOM  - Faculty of Medicine 

FSSL  - Faculty of Social Sciences and Languages 

FT  - Faculty of Technology 
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13. ANNUAL ACCOUNTS - 2020 

 

SABARAGAMUWA UNIVERSITY OF SRI LANKA 

  
      STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

    AS AT 31ST DECEMBER  

     

     

Restated 

   

2020  

 

2019  

 ASSETS  

 

Note  

 

 Rs.  

 

 Rs.  

       Current Assets  

      Cash & Cash Equivalents  2 

 

25,018,058  

 

 17,324,233  

 Receivables  3 

 

   38,011,976  

 

   29,677,918  

 Loans & Advances to Staff  4 

 

   19,075,055  

 

    20,573,720  

 Inventories / Stocks  5 

 

    37,097,263  

 

   39,508,262  

 Other Advances  6 

 

   251,514,708  

 

 164,640,960  

   

 370,717,060  

 

 271,725,093  

       Non Current Assets  

      Loans & Advances to Staff  4 

 

    55,656,004  

 

 55,369,227  

 Deposits  7 

 

76,846,811  

 

 100,171,416  

 Livestock  8 

 

   2,895,925  

 

 1,383,770  

 Knowledge Enhancement  9 

 

       559,181  

 

       573,541  

 Curriculum Revision 10 

 

        173,000  

 

      235,076  

 Primary Establishment Cost 11 

 

      4,083,731  

 

   5,444,974  

 Intangible Assets (Net) 12 

 

   2,890,502  

 

     6,049,485  

 Work In Progress  13 

 

  317,931,993  

 

   92,256,956  

 Property, Plant & Equipment   (Net)  14 

 

3,077,224,440  

 

3,232,286,578  

   

3,538,261,587  

 

3,493,771,023  

       TOTAL ASSETS  

  

3,908,978,647  

 

  3,765,496,116  

      
       LIABILITIES  

     
       Current Liabilities  

      Accrued  Expenses  15 

 

 299,888,185  

 

 337,971,082  

 Payables  16 

 

  149,356,764  

 

 146,891,195  

 Refundable  Deposits and  Funds  17 

 

 119,200,660  

 

99,934,663  

 Provisions for Gratuity  18 

 

  3,666,703  

 

  11,760,442  

   

  572,112,312  

 

     596,557,382  

       Non Current Liabilities  

      Provisions for Gratuity  18 

 

  470,253,105  

 

  448,518,962  

   

 470,253,105  

 

     448,518,962  

       Total Liabilities  

  

1,042,365,417  

 

  1,045,076,344  

       TOTAL  NET  ASSETS  

  

2,866,613,230  

 

  2,720,419,772  
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SABARAGAMUWA UNIVERSITY OF SRI LANKA 

  

     STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORANCE 

  FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER  

  

    

Restated 

  

2020 

 

2019 

  

Rs. 

 

Rs. 

REVENUE Note 

   

     Recurrent Grant 

 

1,806,500,000  

 

    1,629,295,000  

Bursary and Mahapola Grants 23  40,775,850  

 

 53,944,700  

Self Finance Programme Income  24    49,441,617  

 

    53,297,764  

Other  Income 25   21,587,290  

 

  33,958,709  

Differed Income 26   394,617,492  

 

  413,667,067  

     Total  Revenue 

 

2,312,922,248  

 

   2,184,163,240  

     

     OPERATING EXPENSES 

    

     Personnel Emoluments 27-A 1,613,811,336  

 

 1,415,774,481  

Travelling & Subsistence 27-B      3,955,050  

 

      3,505,543  

Supplies & Consumables  27-C     43,188,183  

 

  64,019,794  

Maintenance Expenses 27-D     14,436,830  

 

 19,064,538  

Contractual Services 27-E    220,199,106  

 

216,334,440  

Other Recurrent Expenses 27-F 32,519,850  

 

58,666,703  

Self Finance Programme Expenses  27-G    35,775,531  

 

39,809,398  

Mahapola & Bursaries 27-H  40,775,850  

 

  53,944,700  

Depreciation & Amortization Expenses 27-I 399,365,187  

 

 404,312,033  

Total  Expenses 

 

2,404,026,922  

 

   2,275,431,629  

     Surplus/(Deficit) For the Period 

 

 (91,104,674) 

 

      (91,268,389) 

     Disposal Gain on Cloak  

 

       1,250  

 

                       -    

Disposal Gain on Mortor vehicle 

 

           -    

 

   1,963,000  

     Net Surplus/(Deficit) For the Period 

 

  (91,103,424) 

 

      (89,305,389) 
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SABARAGAMUWA UNIVERSITY OF SRI LANKA 

     COMPARATIVE  STATEMENT  OF  FINANCIAL  PERFORMANCE  WITH  BUDGET 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2020 

 

     

 

Note 

2020 Actual 

Rs. 

 

2020 Budget 

 Rs. 

     

     Revenue 

    

     Recurrent Grant 

 

   1,806,500,000  

 

 1,806,500,000  

Bursary and Mahapola Grants 23         40,775,850  

 

40,775,850  

Self Finance Programme Income  24 49,441,617  

 

                        -    

Other  Income 25 21,587,290  

 

7,885,000  

Differed Income 26 394,617,492  

 

                        -    

     Total  Revenue 

 

  2,312,922,248  

 

    1,855,160,850  

     

     Operating Expenses 

    

     Personal Emoluments 27-A 1,613,811,336  

 

1,582,074,000  

Travelling & Subsistence 27-B 3,955,050  

 

1,433,000  

Supplies & Consumables  27-C 43,188,183  

 

75,285,000  

Maintenance Expenses 27-D 14,436,830  

 

16,502,000  

Contractual Services 27-E 220,199,106  

 

119,626,000  

Other Recurrent Expenses 27-F 32,519,850  

 

17,965,000  

Self Finance Programme Expenses  27-G 35,775,531  

 

                        -    

Mahapola & Bursaries 27-H 40,775,850  

 

40,775,850  

Depreciation & Amortization Expenses 27-I 399,365,187  

 

404,312,033  

     Total  Expenses 

 

  2,404,026,922  

 

    2,257,972,883  

     Surplus/(Deficit) For the Period 

 

     (91,104,674) 

 

                        -    

     Disposal Gain on Cloak  

 
                1,250  

 

                        -    

     Net Surplus/(Deficit) For the Period 

 

     (91,103,424) 

 

                        -    
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SABARAGAMUWA UNIVERSITY OF SRI LANKA  

    STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER  

    
 Resateted  

  
2020 

 

2019 

  
Rs. 

 

 Rs.  

Cash Flow From/(Used in) Operating Activities 

          Surplus / ( Deficit)  from operating activities 

 

 (91,103,424) 

 

 (87,495,768) 

     Adjustment for 

    Non Cash Movements 

    Depreciation of Property Plant & Equipment 

 

387,355,971  

 

376,916,923  

Gain from disposal of vehicles 

 

                  -    

 

 (1,963,000) 

Gain from disposal of cloak 

 

 (1,250) 

 

                  -    

Amortization Expenses 

 

12,009,216  

 

18,851,910  

Provision for Gratuity 

 

25,057,083  

 

44,892,495  

Write off over five year deposits  

 

                  -    

 

 (2,496,599) 

Transfer of university contribution from restricted funds 

 

 (16,685) 

 

 (317,232) 

Symposium income -FSSL 

 

 (47,236) 

  Loan Adjustment account 

   

                  -    

Lease Interest 

 

                  -    

 

122,711  

Interest Income 

 

 (6,968,547) 

 

 (16,226,596) 

Deferred Income 

 

(394,617,492) 

 

(404,624,997) 

Surplus / ( Deficit)  from Operations 

 

  (68,332,365) 

 

  (72,340,153) 

     Decrease/(Increase) in Inventories 

 

2,410,999  

 

 (6,403,387) 

Decrease/(Increase ) current assets 

 

 (6,930,417) 

 

 (1,114,243) 

Increase current liabilities 

 

72,051,367  

 

64,456,976  

Payment  for  Gratuity 

 

 (11,416,678) 

 

 (221,700) 

Net cash flows from Operation Activities 

 

  (12,217,093) 

 

  (15,622,506) 

          Cash Flow From/(Used in) Investing Activities 

    Acquisitions of Property plant & Equipment 

 

(345,688,861) 

 

(460,687,234) 

Proceeds from sale of vehicles 

 

                  -    

 

1,963,000  

Proceeds from sale of cloak 

 

             6,250  

  Purchase of intangible Assets 

 

 (778,289) 

 

 (177,500) 

Payments made for Work in Progress 

 

(136,424,798) 

 

 (70,433,440) 

Loans Payments 

 

 (27,644,946) 

 

 (61,652,872) 

Loans Recoveries 

 

28,856,834  

 

63,031,293  

Interest Income 

 

4,563,324  

 

5,566,098  

Payment for Deposits, Quality Assurance, Career Guidance, 

Knowledge Enhancement,Consultancy fees 

 

 (36,560,718) 

 

 (15,319,656) 

Cash received from mobilization advance 

 

                  -    

 

1,179,621  

Withdrawal of Fixed Deposits 

 

61,571,232  

 

                  -    

Receipt made from Symposiums Activities 

 

150,000  

 

3,115,600  

Payments made for Research & Symposium Activities  

 

 (3,659,794) 

 

 (9,814,145) 

Capital grant for the year 

 

473,000,000  

 

499,000,000  

Net cash flows from /(used in) Investing Activities 

 

   17,390,235  

 

  (44,229,236) 

     Cash Flow From Financing Activities 

    Payments of Lease Creditor 

 

                  -    

 

 (4,284,636) 

Receipt to restricted funds 

 

29,883,255  

 

33,034,864  

Payment made from restricted funds 

 

 (27,362,571) 

 

 (20,874,275) 

Net cash flows from Financing Activities 

 

     2,520,684  

 

     7,875,954  

     Net Increased / (Decreased) in cash and cash equivalents 

 

7,693,826  

 

 (51,975,788) 

Cash & Cash Equivalent as at the beginning of the year 

 

17,324,233  

 

69,300,021  

Cash & Cash Equivalent as at the end of the year 

 

   25,018,058  

 

   17,324,233  

     Note A 

    Cash and Cash Equivalents : 

    Cash and Bank Balances 

 
   25,018,058  

 

   17,324,233  
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SABARAGAMUWA UNIVERSITY OF SRI LANKA 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS/EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST 

DECEMBER 2020 

       Attributable to owners of the controlling entity  Total Net 

Assets/Equity    Contributed 

Capital 

Other 

Reserves 

Accumulated 

Surpluses/ 

(Deficits) 

Total Minority 

Interest 

    

Balance At 31.12.2019 

     

3,263,050,823  

    

58,982,956  

             

(632,243,972) 

      

2,689,789,807             -    

      

2,689,789,807  

Changes in Accounting 

Policy & Errors 

         

31,043,154                  -    

                   

(413,188) 

           

30,629,966    

           

30,629,966  

Restated Balances as at 

01.01.2020 

     

3,294,093,977  

    

58,982,956  

             

(632,657,161) 

      

2,720,419,772             -    

      

2,720,419,772  

      

 

      

Changes in net 

assets/equity for 2020 
       

235,784,726                  -    

 

         

235,784,726             -    

         

235,784,726  

      

 

      

Gain on Revaluation of 

livestock                      -         1,512,155  

                            

-    

            

1,512,155             -    

            

1,512,155  

      

 

      

Gain on revaluation of 

investments                      -                    -    

                            

-    

                       

-               -    

                       

-    

      

 

      

Exchange differences on 

translating                       -                    -    

                            

-    

                       

-               -    

                       

-    

foreign operations                   -            

Net revenue recognized 

directly in net                       -         1,512,155  

                            

-    

            

1,512,155             -    

            

1,512,155  

asset/equity     

 

      

      

 

      

Deficit for the period                      -                    -    

               

(91,103,424) 

         

(91,103,424)            -    

         

(91,103,424) 

Total recognized 

revenue and expenses                      -                    -    

                            

-    

                       

-               -    

                       

-    

for the period             

      

 

      

Balance As At 

31.12.2020 carried 

forward 

 

3,529,878,703   60,495,111  

          

(723,760,585) 

   

2,866,613,229             -    

   

2,866,613,230  
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SABARAGAMUWA UNIVERSITY OF SRI LANKA - COST PER 

STUDENT 2020 

                 Total 

Expenditure 

2020 

Absorption 

Method 

Faculties     

  Agriculture Applied 

Science 

Management Social 

Science 

Geomatics Medicine Technology 

                  

No. of Student  5987   669 1379 1681 1389 424 145 300 

Direct cost 1,291,468,030 Direct 247,299,873  292,071,976  239,082,961  289,254,415  119,459,267  62,392,016 41,907,522 

Direct Cost 

Per Student 

           

215,712    

        

369,656  

          

211,800  

          

142,227  

          

208,247  

         

281,744  430,290 139,692 

Direct 

Administration 

cost                   

General 

     

136,467,767  

No: of 

students 

   

15,249,196  

      

31,432,946  

     

38,316,739  

      

31,660,887  

      

9,664,662  3,305,132 6,838,204 

Finance 

      

31,336,625  

No: of 

students 

     

3,501,621  

       

7,217,840  

       

8,798,541  

        

7,270,181  

      

2,219,263  758,946 1,570,233 

Supplies 

      

14,865,609  

No: of 

students 

     

1,661,114  

       

3,424,031  

       

4,173,892  

        

3,448,861  

      

1,052,784  360,032 744,894 

Transport 

      

53,623,262  

No: of 

students 

     

5,991,976  

      

12,351,174  

     

15,056,072  

      

12,440,740  

      

3,797,605  1,298,709 2,686,985 

Security 

      

85,472,942  

No: of 

students 

     

9,550,927  

      

19,687,187  

     

23,998,666  

      

19,829,951  

      

6,053,203  2,070,081 4,282,927 

Total 321,766,205    35,954,834  74,113,178  90,343,910  74,650,619  22,787,518  7,792,901 16,123,244 

                

  Direct 

Adm.Cost Per 

Student             53,744             53,744  

            

53,744             53,744  

            

53,744  

          

53,744  53,744 53,744 

Academic 

Support 

Service             

 

    

Examination 

      

19,839,715  

No: of 

students 

     

2,216,932  

       

4,569,729  

       

5,570,496  

        

4,602,867  

      

1,405,051  480,501 994,140 

Library 

      

39,382,633  

No: of 

students 

     

4,400,698  

       

9,071,096  

     

11,057,659  

        

9,136,876  

      

2,789,082  953,814 1,973,407 

Educational         

Technology 

      

36,692,702  

No: of 

students 

     

4,100,120  

       

8,451,518  

     

10,302,394  

        

8,512,805  

      

2,598,581  888,666 1,838,619 

Health 

        

4,884,970  

No: of 

students 

        

545,857  

       

1,125,167  

       

1,371,577  

        

1,133,326  

         

345,954  118,310 244,779 

Physical 

Education 

      

14,452,489  

No: of 

students 

     

1,614,952  

       

3,328,876  

       

4,057,898  

        

3,353,016  

      

1,023,527  350,027 724,194 

Staff & Student        

Welfare 

      

33,824,616  

No: of 

students 

     

3,779,634  

       

7,790,905  

       

9,497,107  

        

7,847,401  

      

2,395,463  819,203 1,694,903 

Lands & 

Building 

      

90,336,711  

No: of 

students 

   

10,094,415  

      

20,807,470  

     

25,364,291  

      

20,958,358  

      

6,397,656  2,187,878 4,526,643 

Electricity 

      

22,555,973  

No: of 

students 

     

2,520,452  

       

5,195,371  

       

6,333,154  

        

5,233,046  

      

1,597,416  546,286 1,130,248 

Water 

        

2,214,600  

No: of 

students 

        

247,464  

          

510,094  

          

621,804  

          

513,793  

         

156,838  53,636 110,970 

Landscape Unit 

        

6,933,050  

No: of 

students 

        

774,714  

       

1,596,906  

       

1,946,627  

        

1,608,486  

         

490,999  167,913 347,405 

Ancillary 

Activities 

      

20,265,433  

No: of 

students 

     

2,264,502  

       

4,667,785  

       

5,690,027  

        

4,701,634  

      

1,435,200  490,811 1,015,472 

Total 291,382,892    32,559,739  67,114,917  81,813,035  67,601,610  20,635,769  7,057,043 14,600,780 

Acad. Support 

cost per 

student             48,669             48,669  

            

48,669             48,669  

            

48,669  

          

48,669  48,669 48,669 

Total 

Expenditure 

  

1,904,617,127    

  

315,814,446  

    

433,300,071  

    

411,239,907  

    

431,506,644  

   

162,882,554  77,241,960 72,631,545 

Cost per 

Student 

           

318,125    

        

472,069  

          

314,213  

          

244,640  

          

310,660  

         

384,157  532,703 242,105 
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Notes to the Financial Statements 

 

1. Significant Accounting Policies 

 

1.1 General Policies 

 1.1.1 Reporting Entity 

 

Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka has been incorporated under the 

Universities Act No. 16 of 1978 and located at P.O. Box 02, Belihuloya. This is 

a National University mainly operates on Government funds.  

 

1.1.2 Principal activities and nature of operations 

Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka is situated to the left of the way to 

Samanalawewa reservoir and is approximately 160 kilometers away from the 

Colombo-Badulla highway. The recently established Faculty of Medicine and 

Faculty of Technology are being actively functioned now. The first intake for 

the both faculties had been taken in January 2019. The university comprises of 

eight (08) Academic Faculties, namely: 

 Faculty of Graduate Studies 

 Faculty of Agricultural Sciences 

 Faculty of Applied Sciences 

 Faculty of Geomatics 

 Faculty of Management Studies 

 Faculty of Medicine 

 Faculty of Social Sciences and Languages 

 Faculty of Technology 

 

In addition to these eight Faculties, there are 11 study centers. They are as 

follows: 

 Center for Computer Studies 

 Agri-Business Research and Development Center (ABRDS) 

 Career Guidance Unit 

 Center for Open & Distance Learning (CODL) 

 Staff Development Centre (SDC) 

 Centre for Indigenous Community Studies 

 Centre for Research and Knowledge Dissemination 

 Internal Quality Assurance Centre 

 University Business Linkage Cell 

 Center for Biodiversity and Environmental Studies 

 University Museum  
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1.1.3 Basis of preparation 

(a)  Statement of Compliance 

The Financial Statements comprise the statements of financial position, statement of 

financial performance, statement of changes in equity, statement of cash flows and 

notes to the financial statements. 

The Financial Statements of the Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka are prepared in 

conformity with Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting Standards for the accrual basis of 

accounts. All accounting policies adopted by the University are applied consistently 

with those of the previous year, where necessary comparative figures have been 

adjusted to conform to the changes, in presentation of current year figures. 

 

(b)  Basis of measurement 

 The Financial Statements of the Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka are prepared 

under the Historical Cost convention and do not take into account of changes in money 

values, except where it is stated.  

 

(c)  Functional and presentation currency 

The Financial Statements are presented in Sri Lankan Rupees, which is the University's 

functional and presentation currency. 

 

(d) Going concern  

The Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. 

 

1.2 Assets and the basis of valuation 

1.2.1 Property, Plant & Equipment 

Lands, Buildings, Water Treatment plant, Road Network, Laboratory and Teaching 

Equipment, Fixtures & Fittings, Library Books and Periodicals, Motor Vehicles, 

Computer & Computer accessories, Cloaks and Other Assets include the items 

acquired out of government grant, research grants, internally generated funds, and 

donations. 

 

 a) Basis of Recognition and Measurement 

Property, Plant and Equipment are recognized if it is probable that future economic 

benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity and the cost of the item can be 

reliably measured. Properties, plant and equipment are recorded at cost less 

accumulated depreciation. The cost of property, plant and equipment is the cost of 

purchase or construction together with any incidental expenses thereon. 
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b)  Cost 

The cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase or construction cost 

and any directly attributable cost of bringing the assets working condition for its 

intended use. 

 

c) Subsequent expenditure on existing Fixed Assets 

Expenditure incurred on tangible fixed assets is charged to the Statement of Financial 

Performance in the period it is incurred, unless it meets one of the following criteria, 

in which case it is capitalized and depreciates on the relevant basis. 

 Market value of fixed assets has subsequently increased. 

 Asset capacity increase. 

 Sustainable improvement in the quality of output or reduction in 

operating cost. 

 Significant extension of the asset life beyond that confirmed by repair 

and maintenance. 

 d) Depreciation 

Depreciation is recognized in the Statement of Financial Performance on a Straight –

Line Method over the estimated useful life of Property, Plant and Equipment items 

from the date that they were made available for use. Lands are not depreciated. The 

estimated useful life periods are as follows. 

Description    Estimated useful life period 

Buildings                                                20 years 

Water Treatment plant 20 years 

Road Network 20 years  

Office and Teaching Equipment                    5 years 

Computer & computer accessories     5 years 

Library Books and Periodicals                5 years 

Communication Equipment      5 years 

Motor Vehicles            5 years 

Cloaks                                                     5 years 

              Other Equipment        5 years 

   

Depreciation is provided in full in the year of purchase and no depreciation is charged 

in the year of disposal. This method of depreciation is adopted in using the rates in 

the UGC circular 649 from the financial year 2006 and hope to continue in future. 
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Also this method of calculation of depreciation was approved by our Council at its 

117th meeting held on 20.01.2007. 

 

During the year 2020, following long term construction projects are completed and 

handed over to the University. These assets are   included in Buildings as capital 

assets and above depreciation policy applies from 2020. 

i. Installation & commissioning internet  Rs.1,028,883.06 

Facilities to the mungastanna  

ii. Refurbishment of FGS   Rs.1,755,568.99 

iii. Construction of rooftop-MGT &   Rs.4,660,649.01 

roof Terrance-FSSL 

 

In 2020, cloak has been disposed with the consideration of Rs.6,250. The net book 

values of these assets are as follows, 

   Cost   Depreciation  NBV 

            Rs.6,250  1,250              5,000 

   

 

Disposal gain of Rs.1,250 charged to the statement of financial performances in 2020. 

 

 e)  Capital Works in Progress 

 Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost. These are expenses of a capital nature 

directly incurred in the construction of property, plant and equipment awaiting 

capitalization. Capital work-in-progress would be transferred to the relevant asset 

category in property, plant and equipment, when it is available for use i.e., when it is 

in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner 

intended by the university. 

 

1.2.2 Intangible Assets 

 An Intangible asset is recognized only when its cost can be measured reliably and it is 

probable that the expected future economic benefits attributable that will flow to the 

University.  

 Intangible assets acquired are measured on initial recognition at cost.Intangible assets 

are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and any accumulated 

impairment losses. Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increase the 

future economic benefits embodied in the assets. All other expenditure is expensed as 

incurred. 
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 All intangible assets are considered to have a finite useful life and amortized using 

straight line method to write down the cost of intangible asset to their residual values 

over their estimated useful lives as follows. 

a. Computer software is amortised over a period of 5 years on straight-line 

basis.                                 

b. Cost of development of new curriculum is amortised over a period of 5 

years on                                 

Straight-line basis from the effective date of the new curriculum. 

c. Patent is amortised over a period of 5 years on straight line basis. 

 Intangible assets represent the software purchased under the HETC grant on their 

written down value and software purchased by the entity.  

 

1.2.3 Curriculum Revision 

The university revises the curriculum for all degree programs in every five years and 

amendments are not making within that period. Hence, the expenditure incurred on 

capital funds are amortize over the five years period on the basis that the economic 

benefits would flow to the university during the effective period of the new syllabus 

.Since the faculty of Management Studies and Faculty of Geomatics have 

implemented the revised curriculum w.e.f. 2015, the expenditure incurred on that are 

amortizes w.e.f. 2015.Also since the Faculty of Agricultural Sciences and the Faculty 

of Applied Sciences have implemented the revised curriculum w.e.f.2016, the 

expenditure incurred on that are amortizesw.e.f.2016. 

Further the university amortized the expenditure incurred for Faculty of Technology 

from 2019. In 2019 expenses incurred for the curriculum revision of Faculty of 

Management Studies, Faculty of Social Sciences and Languages and Center for Open 

Distance and Learning shows under work in progress. In 2020, due to the COVID 19 

pandemic situation curriculum revision has not been implemented. Therefore these 

expenses will be amortized after implementing the new curriculum revision. However 

due to the implementation of Curriculum revision of Center for Open Learning, 

expenses have been amortized from 2020. 

 

 

1.2.4 Knowledge Enhancement 

The expenditure incurred to enhance the knowledge of the employees is treated as 

capital expenditure and amortize over 5 year period.  
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1.2.5 Primary Establishment cost 

Faculty of medicine was established in a building which is received from the Auditors 

General’s Department and Faculty of Technology was established at university 

premises in the prevailing buildings. Cost incurred for the renovation and converting 

of these buildings to establishment of these faculties is treated as capital expenditures 

and amortize over 5 year period  from 2019  financial year. Further consultancy 

service which is received after establishing the Faculty of Medicine is considered as 

capital expenses and amortized in incurred year.  

 

1.2.6 Livestock 

Livestock are revalue  end  of  each  financial year and  revaluation surplus   is  add  

to the   revaluation  surplus account .  If  there  is  a  deficit , deficit  is adjusted  to  

opening  balance   of  the  surplus  account   and  different  is charged to the statement 

of financial performance.  In current year   revaluation surplus  is  Rs.1,512,155. 

 

1.2.7  Inventories 

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. In general, cost is 

determined on a first in first out basis and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring 

the inventories and bringing them to their existing condition and location. 

Inventories include all materials and supplies related to provision of services to the 

entity. 

 

1.2.8 Receivables 

Receivables are stated at the amounts they are estimated to realize. 

 

1.2.9 University Research Grant 

As per the SLPSAS 20, no intangible asset arising from research phase of an internal 

project shall be recognized. Expenditure on research phase activities shall be 

recognized as an expense when it is incurred. An intangible assets arising from 

development phase of an internal project shall be recognized if an only if the entity can 

demonstrate the recognition criteria. This Standard is adopted in current financial year 

with retrospectively and hope to continue in future. 

The university has allocated funds to enhance research and development activities 

under the annual capital budget. The total amount spent for the research phase 

activities are shown as an expense in statement of financial performance. The 

aggregate amount of research expenditure recognized as expenditure during the year of 

2020 is Rs.2,630,161. 



 
Draft Annual Report 2020 / Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka 

 

214 

1.2.10 Cash & cash equivalents 

Cash & cash equivalents comprise cash balances at banks and short term deposits (3 

month Fixed Deposits).  

 

1.3 Liabilities & Provisions 

All known liabilities as at the balance sheet date are included in the financial 

statements and adequate provisions are made for liabilities which are known to exit 

but the amount of which cannot be determined accurately. 

Obligations payable on demand or within one year of the balance sheet date are 

treated as current liabilities in the balance sheet. Liabilities payable after one year 

from the balance sheet date are treated as noncurrent liabilities in the balance sheet. 

 

1.3.1  Employee Benefits 

  (a) Defined Benefit Plans 

Defined benefit plans estimate the amount of benefit that an employee will receive on 

retirement. 

 

Provision for retiring Gratuity 

The university has adopted the benefit plan as required under the payment of Gratuity 

Act No. 12 of 1983 for all eligible employees. 

Defined benefit plans define an amount of benefit that an employee will receive on 

retirement usually dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service and 

compensation. In order to meet this liability, a provision carried forward as at the 

reporting date, amount calculated based on an internal management assessment. 

Accordingly liability recognizes for the employees who have completed 5 years of 

service in the university system as at the reporting date. The resulting difference 

between brought forward provision as at the beginning of the period net of any 

payments made, and the carried forward provision at the end of the period is dealt 

with in the statement of profit and loss. 

The gratuity liability are not externally funded nor actuarially valued. 

 

As per the Commission Circular No. 05/2019 issued by the University Grants 

Commission in  2019, Gratuity  payment  to  be  made to  the employees  with 

considering  Academic Allowance and Monthly  Compensations  Allowance  (MCA)  

with effect  from  2019. 
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(b) Defined Contribution Plans  

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment plan under which an entity pays 

fixed contribution into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive 

obligation to pay a further amount. Obligations for contributions to defined 

contribution plans are recognized as an expense in the statement of comprehensive 

income as and when they are due. 

 

University Provident Fund (UPF), Employee Provident Fund and University 

Pension Fund  

Permanent employees and the University monthly contribute 10% and 15% on the 

salary  (Basic  Salary + Cost of  Living  Allowance + Academic Allowance and 

Monthly  Compensations  Allowance)  of each permanent employee to the university 

provident fund in line with the respective statues and legislation in Sri Lanka and 

University Act. From that 15% the University Contributes 8% to University Pension 

Fund and 7% to University Provident Fund for the employees who are the members 

of the University Pension Fund. For other permanent employees total 15% contribute 

to the University Provident Fund.  

From the year 2000 Contribution for the University Pension Fund is compulsory for 

the  all   newly appointed employees. 

The University and temporary employees monthly contribute 12% and 8% to the 

Employees’ Provident Fund. 

 

Employees’ Trust Fund (ETF) 

The university contributes 3% monthly on the  basic salary   and  the  allowances 

considered  to  contribute  to University  Provident Fund of each employee to the 

Employees’ Trust Fund. 

 

1.3.2 Accounting for Grants 

Grants that compensate the University for Expenses incurred are recognized as 

revenue in the income statement in the same period in which the expenses are 

recognized. Grants that compensate the University for the Cost of an asset are 

recognized in the income statement on a systematic basis over the useful life of the 

related asset. 
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As per Sri Lanka Accounting standard 20 the university adopted income approach 

accounting principal when identifying capital grants and donations w.e.f. 2014.01.01 

and hope to continue in future. 

The university has received new capital grants of Rs.31 Million from the Ministry of 

Higher Educations for the Faculty of Medicine in the year 2020. 

 

1.3.3   Contingent Liabilities 

 

Below mentioned all court cases are ongoing and we have to incur legal fees. 

Some compensation cannot be estimated at the moment. Therefore, no 

provision has been made in the accounts with regard to liabilities arising out of 

litigation. Ongoing court cases as at the balance sheet date are stated below. 

 

District Court 

3917 / M  D.M.D.M.L.D.K.Yatavara 

3947 / M  Anuradha Rodrigo 

3555/M               D.M.Rathnayaka 

   4708-special  Mahinda Methsiri Athukorala 

   4995/M   Kumudunie Athukorala 

   4248/M   W.S.D.priyadarshani 

   3918/M Appeal  M.D.M.L.D.K.Yatawara 

   DMR 1419/20  The Associated Newspapers of Ceylon Limited 

 

Supreme Court 

267/2014 (F/R)    B.M.D.G.A.D.Bandara    

   CEFR/45/15  T.D.Matharaarachchi 

   SEFR/09/2015  R.A.H.S.S.Karunarathne 

   SE.HCCA.LA344/16    M.Wimaladasa De Silva 

   SC/FRA/284/2020 M.W.G.R.Pehara 

    

Commercial High Court 

HC /LA38/19  Design Consultant 

HC /LA 39/19  Design Consultant 

 

 

Human Rights Commission 

HRC/642/15  H.M.G.P.Gunathilaka 

HRC/3562/15  W.D.A.S.Wijaya 

HRC/751/2016  Layanal Guruge 

 

Bribery Commission 

 M.M. Wimalasiri 

 M. MilindaWimalasiri 

 M.L.M.K. Dissanayake 
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Industrial Court 

A/7/2049 P.B.M. Prasad 

  Court of Appeal  

   CA/Writ/463/2019 M.N. Vineeshiya 

   CA/Writ/545/2010 K.K.Athukoralage 

   

University Services Appeal Board 

 S.Malawipathirana 

 

1.4 Income Statement 

 

1.4.1 Revenue Recognition 

(a) Financial assets are measured at amortised cost. 

(b) Revenue from grants are recognized in the period in which they were received 

(c) Sponsorship related activities are recognized on receipt. 

(d) Other income is recognized on accrual basis. 

 

(e) Government Grants 

Grant received from General Treasury of Government of Sri Lanka will comprises 

Capital and recurrent. Government grants utilized to acquire assets that will be 

expensed in subsequent period are recognized as differed income.  

Total grants received for the year was Rs2,289,275,850 which has been used as 

follows. 

   2020                           2019 

                                                                                                               Rs.                  Rs. 

Government Grant for Recurrent Expenditure            1,806,500,000           1,629,295,000 

Government Grant for Mahapola Scholarships              220,050                    16,620,600 

Government Grant for Bursaries        40,555,800                37,324,100 

Capital Grants for Rehabilitation         2,588,000                15,800,000 

Capital grants for Equipment, Book & Periodicals     78,475,000              117,000,000 

Capital grants for Constructions                 350,722 ,000              272,850,000 

Knowledge Enhance & Institute Develop (HRD)      10,215,000                22,350,000

                    

Total                    2,289,275,850       2,111,239,700
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1.4.1.1 The effective interest rate method 

Under SLFRS 9, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR) method for 

the all financial instruments in 2020. Financial assets are measured at amortized cost by 

taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees that are an integral part 

of the EIR.  

    1.4.2 Expenditure 

All expenditure incurred in maintaining the university has been recognized on accrual 

basis and charged to the revenue in ascertaining the income over expenditure. 

 

1.5 Events after the Reporting Period 

Design and construction of a New Building Complex for the University Library -Stage I 

at Sabaragamuwa University Sri Lanka was awarded to CML -MTD Construction 

Limited on 27th December 2017 with the Contract period of 24 Calendar Months. 

Awarded value was Rs.315,051,433/-+VAT. Due to a financial crisis of the Company 

the construction of the Library building has become standstill.  Sabaragamuwa 

University has entered tripartite agreement between Romet Construction (Pvt) Ltd, 

CML-MTD Construction Limited with the approval Ministry of Education on 01st 

February 2021. The University has enchased the performance guarantee on 03rd 

February 2021 due to non-compliance with the obligations of the contract by the 

Contractor. (Performance Guarantee No.PFG/CGD/18/003-LKR 15,752, 571/65). 
 

Following figures shows in final account with regard to the above contract. 

  

Working Progress Library Building - Rs. 39,314,427.39 

 

Other than the Library Building Construction, there are no material events subsequent to 

the financial year which requires additional disclosure in the Financial Statements. 

 

1.6 Comparative Information 

The comparative figures have been reorganized where necessary to conform to the 

current year’s presentation. 

 

1.7 Cash flow Statement 

The cash flow statement has been prepared using indirect method. 

 

1.8 Following adjustments have been made to the General Reserves account based on the  

SLPSAS 3. 

Following amounts are debited 

a) Rs. 175,000.00 under provision 

b) Rs. 181,660.00 Web based development project 

c) Rs.7,068.99  Under provision 

d) Rs.32,250.10  Retention 

e) Rs.9,500.00  Recurrent Accrual 
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f) Rs.4,604.60  Recurrent Accrual 

g) Rs.16,675.00  Recurrent Accrual 

h) Rs.317,184.00  Capital Accrual 

i) Rs.392,386.32  Library Books and periodicals 

j) Rs.28,055.00  Library Books and periodicals 

k) Rs.8,020.00  unrecorded others-news papers and magazines expenses 

l) Rs.72,866.26  Under depreciation 

m) Rs.100.43  Retention 

n) Rs.10,000.00  Under amortization of primary establishment cost 

o) Rs.44,000.00  Under provision of Audit fee 

p) Rs.1623,182.00 under provision-FGS 

q) Rs.9,389.91  Under provision  

r) Rs.6,506,966.09 Fixed Deposit income 

s) Rs. 14,280,635 Depreciation of Assets- AHEAD project 

t) Rs.15,859.20  Unrecorded depreciation 

u) Rs.16,675.00  Unrecorded expenses 

v) Rs.3,335.00  Over recorded deferred income 

w) Rs.4,604.60  Unrecorded expenses 

x) Rs.920.92  Over recorded deferred income 

y) Rs.9,500.00  Unrecorded expenses 

z) Rs.1,900.00  Over recorded deferred income  

 

Following amounts are credited 

aa) Rs. 16,000.00  Unrecorded stocks 

bb) Rs.0.53  Retention 

cc) Rs.9,500.00  Recurrent Accrual 

dd) Rs.4,604.60  Recurrent Accrual 

ee) Rs.16,675.00  Recurrent Accrual 

ff) Rs.317,184.00  Capital Accrual   

gg) Rs.364,331.32  Library Books and periodicals 

hh) Rs.28,055.00  Library Books and Periodicals 

ii) Rs.5,611.00  Over Depreciation 

jj)  Rs.10,000.00  Unrecorded deferred income 

kk)  Rs.486,897.29 Over provision 

ll)  Rs.4,401,540.55 Over provision 

mm) Rs.2,034,692.98 Over 2 year deposits 
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nn)  Rs.14,280,634.70 Differed income-AHEAD Project 

oo)  Rs.317,184.00 Over recorded expenses 

pp) Rs.15,859.20  Un-recorded differed income 

qq) Rs.3,335.00  Over depreciation 

rr) Rs. 920.92  Over depreciation 

ss) Rs.1,900.00  Over depreciation  

 

1.9 Higher Education for the 21st Century (HETC) Grant 

  

HETC project has provided funds to increase IT, English and soft skill abilities of under 

graduate students and also in improvement of research and development of Post Graduate 

Students. 

Financial contribution received for both recurrent and capital expenditure of HETC project 

for the period of 2012 to 2016 is given below. These expenses have not been included in the 

Financial Statements in   received financial years  according to  the project agreement. At  

the  end  of  the  project  period when  the  project  assets  handed  over  to  university, 

university  has  taken  to  the accounts in  2016.   

 

 Description       Rs  

University Development Grant    22,435,284    

External Degree Programme Grant                10,028,688 

IDAS Grant      18,234,913 

Quality Improvement Grant    36,141,404 

Human Resource Development Grant   20,847,339 

Total         107,687,628 

 

Out of this, assets purchased under the project valued Rs.77,827,930 and Rs. 

20,078,188.81 spent for PhDs for academics are capitalized based on their written 

down value as at 01.01.2016 of Rs.66,638,815 in the year 2016. These assets are 

capitalized and the respective grant is amortized based on the university policies.  

 

1.10 Grant from Confucius Institute 

Confucius Institute Headquarters Fund has provided fund to build up Confucius 

Classroom at the Faculty of Social Sciences and Languages.Rs.5,257,400 has been 

received in 2019 and Rs.5,154,789 has been received in 2020. Fund or  assets  

received  or  purchased from this  grant  are  not  belong  to  the  university   until  

handover  to  the  university   end  of  the  project  period.  Hence, after completion 
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of the project assets which are constructed and purchased under this fund will be 

taken as the assets of the university at Net Book Value. Up-to the completion of the 

project Net value shows under restricted funds.  

 

 

1.11 Inter Company Accounts 

When preparing the financial statements of the university as  at  31st December 2020 

the amounting to Rs. 17,553,940 and payable to Center for Open and Distance 

Learning (CODL) are set off. Also the amounting to Rs.1,835,348 receivable from  

Faculty of Graduate Studies and payable to Faculty of Graduate Studies are set off. 

 

1.12 Losses and damages 

 Due to the explosion off Chemistry Laboratory of Faculty Applied Sciences damages 

happed to the furniture, Floor area and Glassware items and other equipment in 

2019.Total eatimated value is Rs.617,229.52. Out of this value Rs.454,899.32 are 

capital assets which have been capitalized with the value of the entire faculty 

building. Due to unavailability of original cost of following items losses are not 

taken to the account as an expense. All other items are consumable items which have 

been identified as expenses at the time of purchased. 

 Item         Specification   Qty   Value 

 Plywood Door 2150*840    01              5,500.00 

 Plane glass  5mm(300*1000)      

   0.600cm*200    02   2,624.00 

   

 Plane glass  5mm(910*1230) 

    3.3100*200    03   6,613.20 

 Lab table       02           400,000.00 

 Lab sink       02             14,000.00 

 Floor Tranking  3m   03               3,750.00 

 PVC pipe  diameter 1 ½,2 

    Length * (1700.00)   02   3,400.00 

    Diameter ½,1 

    Length (3*150.00)   03       450.00 

 Casing   4 inch    03               5,100.00 

 Cover slab  (0.5+3.0)1.5m2  1.5               9,225.00 

 Floor rendwing (4*1*1059.33)4m  04    4.237.32 
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1.13 Accounting for the expenditure of AHEAD Operation -Assets 

 Assets donated from AHEAD operation has been taken to the accounts during the 

financial year 2020 and adjustments have been made to restate the previous year 

figures accordingly for better presentation. 

 Details of assets acquired are as follows: 

 

        2020      2019         2018 

          Rs.        Rs.           Rs. 

  

          Office & Teaching Equipment 26,241,342.00  11,832,697.60      102,680,992.11 

          Computers & Accessories   - 1,174,923.50          9,474,954.01 

          Communication Equipment   -           -             819,225.00 

          Other Equipment    -   5,912,868.41        36,611,595.20 

          Library Books     -           -             675,488.00          

                                      _____________      _____________     _____________

                 26,241,342.00 18,920,489.51      149,443,029.32
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

     FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2020 

    

       

Restated 

     

2020 

 

2019  

   

 Note  

   

 Rs.  

Cash & Cash Equivalents 

  

2 

    BOC - Balangoda Recurrent  - 0002246976 

   

41,512  

 

66,457  

BOC - Balangoda Capital       - 0003416128 

   

7,127,771  

 

70,537  

BOC - Balangoda CODL       - 0002246875 

   

8,656,076  

 

9,880,686  

PB - Balangoda Recurrent    - 017100150040960 

   

725,289  

 

5,212,460  

BOC - Balangoda FGS           - 79701001 

   

3,663,424  

 

2,094,093  

Short Term Fixed Deposits 

    

4,803,986  

 

                   -    

     

25,018,058  

 

17,324,233  

        Receivables 

  

3 

     Cash Fraud - Rahangala (Recurrent)  

   

189,303  

 

189,303  

 Sundry Deposits - Recievable  

    

               3,787  

 

3,787  

 Pre Payments  

    

3,065,104  

 

3,682,045  

 Pre Payments -Library Books and periodicals  

   

894,796  

 

400  

 Receivable  from  Staff  

    

133,492  

 

                   -    

 Bursary Receivable  

    

19,964,000  

 

12,228,700  

 Receivable Interest from Fixed Deposits  

   

863,721  

 

3,620,815  

 Receivable Course Fee - FGS  

    

12,761,155  

 

9,816,250  

 Receivable advance-legal case  

    

136,618  

 

136,618  

     

38,011,976  

 

29,677,918  

        
        Loans & Advances to Staff 

  

4 

    

 

 

Recoverable  

during 2021  

 

 

Recoverable  

after  2021  

 

2020 
 

2019 

 Distress Loan  16,147,617  

 

51,649,911  

 

67,797,528  

 

66,708,838  

 Staff Loan          134,640  

 

225,410  

 

360,050  

 

472,470  

 Computer Loan          710,000  

 

975,000  

 

1,685,000  

 

1,906,000  

 Transport Loan  2,068,048  

 

2,805,683  

 

4,873,731  

 

6,105,585  

 Flood Loan  

    

                    -    

 

647,610  

 Festival Advance            14,450  

 

                  -    

 

14,450  

 

26,950  

 Special Advance                300  

 

                  -    

 

                  300  

 

7,300  

 Salary Advance                  -    

 

                  -    

 

                    -    

 

68,194  

 

19,075,055  

 

55,656,004  

 

74,731,059  

 

75,942,947  

       

               

Inventories / Stock 

  

5 

     Stores Advance Account - Recurrent  

   

14,139,093  

 

17,452,636  

 Stock  Adjustment Account    

    

               2,812  

 

2,315  

 Stores AdvanceAccount-mintainance  
   

509,196  

 

495,506  

 Stock Printing Unit  

    

449,664  

 

449,664  

 Stock Agricultural Farm  

    

323,101  

 

204,037  

 Stock Medical Center  

    

512,770  

 

763,747  

 Stock CODL  

    

336,468  

 

276,261  

 Stock Fuel  

    

60,140  

 

60,140  

 Chemical Stock- Faculty of Applied Sciences  

   

9,853,536  

 

8,239,568  

 Chemical Stock- Faculty of Agricultural Sciences  

   

6,842,560  

 

7,939,883  

 Chemical Stock - Faculty of Medicine  

   

4,067,923  

 

3,624,505  

     

37,097,263  

 

39,508,262  



 
Draft Annual Report 2020 / Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka 

 

224 

 

       

 Restated  

   

Note  

 

2020 

 

2019 

     

Rs. 

 

Rs. 

Other Advances 

  

6 

     Capital Advance  

    

675,000  

 

374,900  

 Miscellenious Advance   

    

59,201  

 

933,987  

 Project   Advance  

    

3,444,979  

 

4,818,155  

 Mobilization Advance SUSL  

    

241,489,196  

 

153,492,283  

 Research Advance - Capital  

    

5,702,807  

 

4,938,310  

 Stamp Imprest  

    

143,525  

 

            80,020  

 Petty Cash Imprest  

    

                    -    

 

              3,305  

     

   251,514,708  

 

  164,640,960  

        

       

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        

        Deposits 

  

7 

     Deposit for Fuel  

    

600,000  

 

600,000  

 Fixed Deposits -Staff  

    

166,498  

 

153,519  

 Fixed Deposits - Bond Violation  
   

15,682,403  

 

63,860,914  

 Fixed Deposits - Gold Medle  

    

1,964,687  

 

1,779,371  

 Fixed Deposits - Sport Development  

   

140,589  

 

127,972  

 Fixed Deposits - Durham University  
   

798,130  

 

726,339  

 Deposits - Ceylon Electricity  

    

1,105,500  

 

1,105,500  

 Fixed Deposit People's Bank  

    

98,936  

 

            90,059  

 Fixed Deposit People's Bank  

    

40,168,653  

 

20,634,705  

 Fixed Deposit BOC FGS  

    

15,461,415  

 

10,433,037  

 Legal Deposit  

    

660,000  

 

660,000  

     

     76,846,811  

 

  100,171,416  
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Restated 

   

Note 

 

2020 

 

2019 

     

Rs. 

 

Rs. 

Livestock 

  

8 

    Livestock  

    

2,895,925  

 

1,383,770  

     

       2,895,925  

 

      1,383,770  

        

        Knowledge Enhancement 

  

9 

    Opening Balance as at 1st January 

    

16,233,206  

 

16,178,206  

Additions 

    

341,000  

 

55,000  

Closing Balance as at 31st December 

   

16,574,206  

 

16,233,206  

        Total Amortization  

    

 (16,015,025) 

 

 (15,659,665) 

Carrying Value as at 31st December 
   

          559,181  

 

         573,541  

        

       

  

        Curriculum Revision 

  

10 

    Faculty of Management Studies 

    

377,752  

 

377,752  

Faculty of Geomatics 

    

814,896  

 

814,896  

Faculty of Applied Science 

    

661,415  

 

661,415  

Faculty of Agricultural Science 

    

213,965  

 

213,965  

Technology Stream 

    

75,000  

 

75,000  

Center for Open & Distance Learning 

   

160,000  

 

                   -    

     

2,303,028  

 

2,143,028  

Amortization as at 31st December 

    

 (2,130,028) 

 

 (1,907,952) 

Total 

    

          173,000  

 

         235,076  

        Primary Establishment cost 

  

11 

    Faculty of Medicine 

       Opening Balance as at 1st January 

    

5,719,430  

 

3,761,763  

Additions 

    

                    -    

 

1,957,667  

Closing Balance as at 31st December 

   

5,719,430  

 

5,719,430  

Total Amortization  

    

 (2,287,772) 

 

 (1,143,886) 

Carrying Value as at 31st December 
   

       3,431,658  

 

      4,575,544  

        Faculty of Technology 

       Opening Balance as at 1st January 

    

1,086,788  

 

767,083  

Additions 

    

                    -    

 

319,705  

Closing Balance as at 31st December 

   

1,086,788  

 

1,086,788  

Total Amortization  

    

 (434,715) 

 

 (217,358) 

Carrying Value as at 31st December 
   

          652,073  

 

         869,430  

     

       4,083,731  

 

      5,444,974  
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Restated 

   

Note 

 

2020 

 

2019 

     

Rs. 

 

Rs. 

Intangible Assets 

  

12 

    Computer Software 

       cost : 

       Opening Balance 

    

18,908,070  

 

18,730,570  

Additions 

    

                 2,000  

 

177,500  

Balance as at 31st December 

    

18,910,070  

 

18,908,070  

        Accumulated Amortization : 

       Opening Balance 

    

12,858,585  

 

9,076,971  

Amortization charge 

    

3,782,014  

 

3,781,614  

Balance as at 31st December 

    

16,640,599  

 

12,858,585  

        Net Book Value 

    

         2,269,471  

 

         6,049,485  

        Patent 

       cost: 

       Opening Balance 

    

                      -    

 

                      -    

Additions 

    

776,289  

 
                      -    

Balance as at 31st December 

    

776,289  

 
                      -    

        Accumulated Amortization : 

       Opening Balance 

    

                      -    

 

                      -    

Amortization charge 

    

155,258  

 
                      -    

Balance as at 31st December 

    

155,258  

 

                      -    

        Net Book Value 

    

            621,031  

 

                      -    

     

         2,890,502  

 

         6,049,485  

        Capital Work In Progress 

  

13 

    Work In Progress - Rehabilitation 

    

18,346,200  

 

16,177,404  

Work In Progress - Administration 

    

1,517,543  

 

1,517,543  

Work In Progress - Others 

    

1,085,972  

 

320,143  

Work In Progress - IT Building 

    

1,819,966  

 

1,819,966  

Work In Progress - Fixed Asset Register 

    

1,890,300  

 

1,890,300  

Work In Progress -Land Acquisitions 

    

4,222,500  

 

4,222,500  

Work In Progress -Library Building 

    

39,314,427  

 

39,237,927  

Work In Progress -Faculty of Agricultural Sciences 

   

1,793,759  

 

1,717,759  

Work In Progress -Faculty of Applied Sciences  

    

237,988,126  

 

16,502,308  

Work In Progress -Faculty of Social Science 

    

341,060  

 

341,060  

Work In Progress -Faculty of Management Studies 

   

283,560  

 

283,560  

Work In Progress -Faculty of Technology 

    

865,107  

 

865,107  

Work In Progress -Faculty of Medicine 

    

5,707,504  

 

4,473,700  

Work In Progress -Anatomy Laboratory 

    

1,934,137  

 

1,934,137  

Work In Progress-Curriculum Revision-Mgt 

    

773,112  

 

773,112  

Work In Progress-Curriculum Revision-FSSL 

    

               20,430  

 

               20,430  

Work In Progress-Curriculum Revision-CODL 

    

                      -    

 

160,000  

Work In Progress-Curriculum Revision-Applied Sciences 

 

               28,290  

 

                      -    

     

     317,931,993  

 

       92,256,956  
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Note 

   
      Property Plants and Equipments 14 

    

      Description 

 

Balance as at Additions Disposals  Balance as at 

  

01.01.2020 

  

31.12.2020 

  

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. 

Lands 

 

         68,591,566                      -                  -    68,591,566  

Buildings 

 

     3,902,468,830  51,080,637                -    3,953,549,467  

Water Treatment Plant 

 

           8,213,148                      -                  -    8,213,148  

Road Network 

 

         17,719,614              533,733                -    18,253,347  

Office & Teaching Equipments 

 

     1,002,782,069  113,906,531                -    1,116,688,600  

Computer & Accessories 

 

        383,004,695  12,575,634                -    395,580,329  

Library Books & Periodicals 

 

        161,102,818  9,903,552                -    171,006,369  

Motor Vehicles 

 

        129,353,408                      -                  -    129,353,408  

Communication Equipments 

 

         55,763,676  1,881,268                -    57,644,944  

Cloaks 

 

           4,829,512                      -    6,250  4,823,262  

Other Equipments 

 

        192,267,767  42,417,480                -    234,685,246  

  

  5,926,097,102      232,298,835          6,250    6,158,389,686  

      Provisions for Depreciations 

     Description 

 

Balance as at Charge for 

the year 

Disposals  Balance as at 

  

01.01.2020 

 

31.12.2020 

  

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. 

Provision For Depreciation Building      1,197,350,350  187,191,360                -    1,384,541,709  

Pro. For Dep. Water Treatment 

 

           5,235,341              479,546                -    5,714,887  

Pro.For Road Network 

 

           1,196,412              912,667                -    2,109,080  

Pro. For Dep.Office & Teaching 

 

        719,280,657  131,365,887                -    850,646,545  

Pro. For Dep. Computers & Accessories         302,208,381  31,824,137                -    334,032,517  

Pro. For Dep. Library Books 

 

        142,687,353  8,608,794                -    151,296,147  

Pro. For Dep.Motor Vehicles 

 

        124,220,624  2,273,796                -    126,494,420  

Pro. For Dep. Communication 

 

         39,552,783  5,736,762                -    45,289,545  

Pro. For Depreciation of Cloaks 

 

           3,455,512              364,750  1,250  3,819,012  

Pro. For Depreciation Others 

 

        158,623,112  18,598,271                -    177,221,384  

  

  2,693,810,525      387,355,971  1,250   3,081,165,246  

      Written Down Value 

     Description 

 

Balance as at Additions Disposals  Balance as at 

  

01.01.2020 

  

31.12.2020 

  

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. 

Lands 

 

         68,591,566                      -                  -    68,591,566  

Buildings 

 

     2,705,118,480                      -                  -    2,569,007,757  

Water Treatment Plant 

 

           2,977,807                      -                  -    2,498,261  

Road Network 

 

         16,523,202                      -    

 

16,144,268  

Office & Teaching Equipments 

 

        283,501,411                      -                  -    266,042,055  

Computer & Accessories 

 

         80,796,315                      -                  -    61,547,812  

Library Books & Periodicals 

 

         18,415,464                      -                  -    19,710,222  

Motor Vehicles 

 

           5,132,784                      -                  -    2,858,988  

Communication Equipments 

 

         16,210,893                      -                  -    12,355,399  

Cloaks 

 

           1,374,000                      -                  -    1,004,250  

Other Equipments 

 

         33,644,655                      -                  -    57,463,862  

  

  3,232,286,578                      -                  -      3,077,224,440  
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 Restated  

   

Note 

 

2020 

 

2019 

     

Rs. 

 

 Rs.  

Accrued Expenses 

  

15 

    Accrual Expenses-Recurrent 

    

238,016,875  

 

173,872,978  

Accrual Expenses-Capital 

    

61,871,310  

 

164,098,104  

     

     299,888,185  

 

     337,971,082  

        
        Payables 

  

16 

    Sundry Creditors 

    

144,242,467  

 

143,668,367  

University Grants Commission 

    

               22,613  

 

               18,618  

Payable to Mahapola Trust Fund 

    

2,201,150  

 

          2,201,150  

Unpaid Vouchers 

    

123,075  

 

               45,825  

Unpaid Bursary 

    

                 8,000  

 

                 8,000  

Stamp Duty Payable -Recurrent 

    

               64,800  

 

               12,550  

Stamp Duty Payable -Capital 

    

                 3,325  

 

                 3,350  

Withholding Tax Payable (Recurrent) 

    

                      -    

 

412,130  

Withholding Tax Payable (Capital) 

    

                      -    

 

               38,808  

Cacelled Cheques 

    

694,084  

 

482,397  

Aptitude Test-Social Sciences 

    

857,350  

 

                      -    

Aptitude Test-Applied Sciences 

    

741,550  

 

                      -    

Annual Symposium-MGT 

    

298,350  

 

                      -    

Annual symposium-Geomatics 

    

100,000  

 

                      -    

     

     149,356,764  

 

     146,891,195  

        

   

Note 

 

2020 

 

2019 

     

Rs. 

 

Rs. 

Refundable Deposits & Funds 

  

17 

    Staff Security Deposits 

    

             270,643  

 

249,657  

10% Retention Of Contracts 

    

74,204,934  

 

65,220,209  

Retention from Hostel Rents 

    

219,575  

 

108,000  

Tender Deposits 

    

             168,000  

 

             138,000  

Cloak Deposits 

    

               34,400  

 

               70,100  

Sundry Deposits - Payable 

    

          1,235,430  

 

          1,253,770  

Bid Bond 

    

             194,248  

 

             263,900  

Performance Bond 

    

          1,113,377  

 

          1,000,524  

Foreign Student Scholarship 

    

          2,452,856  

 

          2,591,140  

Scholarship for Medical staudents 

    

                      -    

 

             658,000  

Scholarship from chineese fund 

    

             250,000  

 

             250,000  

Release Library & Laboratory Deposits 

    

          9,154,256  

 

          7,344,756  

Differed income CODL 

    

        27,193,083  

 

        17,026,357  

Differed income FGS 

    

          1,625,833  

 

          3,700,625  

Refundable Course Fee  

    

          1,084,025  

 

               59,625  

     

     119,200,660  

 

       99,934,663  

        Provision for Retiring Gratuity 

  

18 

    Balance as at 1st January 

    

460,279,403  

 

415,608,608  

Charge for the year 

    

        25,057,083  

 

        44,892,495  

     

485,336,486  

 

460,501,103  

Payments made during the year 

    

     (11,416,678) 

 

          (221,700) 

Balance as at 1st December  

    

     473,919,808  

 

     460,279,403  
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 Restated  

     

2020 

 

2019 

     

Rs. 

 

Rs. 

Capital Grants 

  

19 

     Spent Capital Grant  

    

2,248,103,201  

 

2,084,457,094  

 MOHE Grant - Two Girls Hostels  

    

656,573,274  

 

701,734,085  

 QEF Grant - IRQUE Project  

    

4,155,482  

 

4,891,318  

 IBG Grant - IRQUE Project  

    

2,087,234  

 

2,569,579  

 Unspent Capital Grant  

    

7,127,771  

 

               70,537  

 Capital For Lands  

    

5,900,000  

 

5,900,000  

 SDC Capital Grant     

    

1,411,871  

 

1,527,420  

 HETC Grant  

    

8,607,458  

 

11,103,025  

 Grant from Sabaragamuuwa Provincial Council - Inner Roads  

 

3,055,174  

 

3,055,174  

 Capital Grant from MOHE  

    

5,168,563  

 

10,337,126  

 MOHE Grant for Students  

    

               19,302  

 

               38,604  

 UGC Grant for Technology Faculty  

    

48,679,926  

 

51,908,417  

 UGC Grant for Staff Quarters  

    

31,770,000  

 

33,535,000  

 MOHE Grant For Medical Faculty  

    

88,766,898  

 

67,691,482  

 MOHE Grant - Phusical Education Unit  

    

960,000  

 

          1,440,000  

 MOHE Grant Building & Equipments MF  

    

179,104,421  

 

191,053,811  

 Grant from AHEAD Project  

    

142,058,634  

 

30,881,197  

     

  3,433,549,209  

 

  3,202,193,869  

        Other Reserves  

  

20 

     Assets Re-Valuation Account  

    

60,495,111  

 

58,982,956  

     

       60,495,111  

 

       58,982,956  

        Accumulated Surplus and Deficits 

  

21 

    Balance  as  at 1st January 

    

 (629,155,058) 

 

 (346,686,028) 

Adjustments  (Prior  year) 

    

 (3,502,103) 

 

 (196,665,746) 

Net Surplus/(Deficit) For the Period 

    

 (91,103,424) 

 

 (89,305,389) 

Balance as at 31st December  

    

   (723,760,585) 

 

   (632,657,162) 

        Restricted Funds 

  

22 

     Vice Chancellors Fund (VC Fund)  

    

10,175,051  

 

10,257,875  

 Gold Medle Fund  

    

1,189,500  

 

1,189,500  

 Bonds & Agreement Violation  

    

43,521,015  

 

39,790,376  

 Collaborative Project  

    

1,676,971  

 

1,676,971  

 EIA Project Nuwara Eliya  

    

               12,750  

 

               12,750  

 Ceylon Cinnamon Value Chain  

    

181,301  

 

5,288,623  

 N S F Research Fund  

    

1,321,818  

 

1,651,818  

 Stratergic Plan for Industrial Development  

    

               39,375  

 

               39,375  

 Computer Lab Reservation Project  

    

               38,288  

 

                      -    

 Internal Environmental examination Project  

    

761,300  

 

761,300  

 Multi Sectaral Development Plan  

    

               90,000  

 

331,200  

 Workshop on revenue department  

    

111,838  

 

111,838  

 NCAS Research Fund  

    

               80,000  

 

920,000  

 National Agricultural Research Plan  

    

838,520  

 

260,000  

 Illminating Hidden Harvest  

    

464,069  

 

1,732,600  

 Confucius Classroom project  

    

6,973,477  

 

3,852,106  

 Flood Survey project  

    

3,317,604  

 

7,983,302  

 Britae Project 

    

4,960,470  

   Urban Waste to Sustainable Value Chain Project 
   

937,568  

   Web Based Developing Teaching Project 

    

               81,110  

 

181,660  

     

       76,772,025  

 

       76,041,294  
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Restated 

 

Note 

 

2020 

 

2019 

   

Rs. 

 

Rs. 

Bursary and Mahapola 23 

    Bursary  

  

40,555,800  

 

37,324,100  

Mahapola  

  

220,050  

 

        16,620,600  

   

    40,775,850  

 

       53,944,700  

      Self Finance Programme Income 24 

    CODL Programme Income 

  

16,931,958  

 

27,418,583  

Msc Ayurvedic Hospital Management 

  

60,000  

 

120,000  

Indigenous Community Programme 

  

2,562,500  

 

485,000  

FGS Income 

  

29,887,159  

 

25,274,181  

   

    49,441,617  

 

       53,297,764  

      
      Other Income 25 

    Registration Fees (Undergraduate) 

  

1,255,276  

 

886,656  

Examination Fees (Undergraduate) 

  

                   -    

 

302,025  

External Examination 

  

58,400  

  Interest From Loans & Advance 

  

3,080,246  

 

3,146,378  

Interest From Investments 

  

3,781,631  

 

6,694,499  

Sale Of Old Stocks 

  

61,398  

 

261,720  

Sale Of Produce 

  

3,027,592  

 

2,854,954  

Rent From Properties 

  

1,718,111  

 

1,824,644  

Medical Fees 

  

1,060,201  

 

889,023  

Library Fines 

  

72,931  

 

142,328  

Ancillary Activities 

  

1,603,950  

 

1,035,810  

Miscellaneous Receipts 

  

5,820,318  

 

15,920,673  

Symposium income- FSSL 

  

47,236  

 

                      -    

   

    21,587,290  

 

       33,958,710  

      Differed Income 26 

    Differed Income Capital Grants 

  

271,296,658  

 

296,640,881  

Differed Income IRQUE QEF Grants 

  

735,836  

 

735,836  

Differed Income IRQUE QEF IBG 

  

482,345  

 

482,345  

Differed Income SDC Grants 

  

115,549  

 

1,036,723  

Differed Income MOHE 

  

45,160,811  

 

45,160,811  

Differed Income Donation 

  

2,710,579  

 

4,100,935  

Differed Income Research Grant-Tangible Assets 
 

                   -    

 

265,205  

Differed Income HETC 

  

2,495,567  

 

5,429,608  

Differed Income MOHE Grant for Library Books 
 

19,302  

 

               19,302  

Differed Income -Capital Grant Hostel Furniture 

  

5,168,563  

 

5,168,563  

Differed Income -MOHE Grant Physical Education Unit 

 

480,000  

 

480,000  

Dfiffered income- UGC Grant Technology 

  

3,228,491  

 

13,091,583  

Differed income -Staff Quaeters 

  

1,765,000  

 

1,765,000  

Differed income -Faculty of Medicine 

  

9,924,584  

 

18,308,518  

Differed income - Capital Grant for Faculty of Medicine 

 

11,949,390  

 

11,949,390  

Differed income-AHEAD Project 

  

39,084,817  

 

9,032,366  

   

  394,617,492  

 

     413,667,066  
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     Total Expenditure 

   

Restated 

 

Note 2020 

 

2019 

  

Rs. 

 

 Rs.  

Personal Emoluments 

    

     Academic 27 - A 

   Salaries & Wages 

 

341,634,001  

 

284,415,276  

U.P.F 

 

70,866,273  

 

59,195,212  

Pension 

 

47,225,115  

 

39,094,252  

E.T.F. 

 

23,618,280  

 

19,658,102  

Interim Allowance 

 

                        -  

 

                     -    

M.C.A. 

 

                        -  

 

                     -    

Academic Allowance 

 

414,166,443  

 

341,146,301  

Equalization Allowance 

 

               20,520  

 

20,520  

Other Allowance 

 

10,203,471  

 

8,965,939  

Visiting Lecturer Fee 

 

8,902,253  

 

14,332,219  

Gratuity 

 

13,641,241  

 

32,964,172  

Research Allowances 

 

90,463,328  

 

75,862,745  

Cost of Living Allowance 

 

25,925,401  

 

24,470,461  

Property Loan Interest 

 

5,384,062  

 

4,939,522  

Additional Allowance 20% 

 

56,459,658  

 

46,801,720  

  

  1,108,510,046  

 

    951,866,441  

     

     Non Academic 

    Salaries & Wages 

 

220,966,494  

 

192,260,979  

U.P.F 

 

30,832,732  

 

27,291,813  

Pension 

 

21,824,681  

 

18,860,449  

E.T.F. 

 

10,571,658  

 

9,280,198  

Acting Pay 

 

                        -  

  Interim Allowance (10%)  

 

                        -  

  M.C.A. 

 

95,349,276  

 

82,602,041  

Over Time 

 

19,721,138  

 

30,888,203  

Holiday Payments  

 

133,166  

 

207,264  

Other Allowances 

 

1,941,410  

 

5,698,239  

Language Proficiency Allowance 

 

                        -  

 

                     -    

Gratuity 

 

11,415,843  

 

11,928,323  

Research Allowances 

 

4,244,240  

 

4,072,048  

Cost of Living Allowance 

 

42,689,764  

 

41,017,776  

Property Loan Interest 

 

3,271,135  

 

3,230,779  

Interim Allowances (2015-1000 

 

                      -    

 

                     -    

Additional Allowance 20% 

 

42,339,753  

 

36,569,928  

  

     505,301,290  

 

    463,908,040  

     Total 

 

  1,613,811,336  

 

 1,415,774,481  
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 Restated  

 

 Note  2020 

 

2019 

  

 Rs.  

 

 Rs.  

     Travelling & Subsistence 27-B 

   Domestic 

 

1,730,483  

 

1,696,708  

Foreign 

 

2,224,567  

 

1,808,835  

  

         3,955,050  

 

        3,505,543  

     

     Supplies 27-C 

   Stationery & Office Requisites 

 

10,148,409  

 

12,113,844  

Fuel & Lubricants 

 

15,538,060  

 

19,569,778  

Uniform & Tailoring Charges 

 

1,612,276  

 

1,375,352  

Mechanical & Electric  

 

1,401,084  

 

3,438,181  

Chemical & Glassware 

 

2,887,347  

 

12,308,086  

Medical Supplies 

 

942,102  

 

1,566,026  

Other Supplies 

 

10,658,905  

 

13,648,527  

  

       43,188,183  

 

      64,019,794  

     

     Maintenance 27-D 

   Vehicles 

 

7,517,184  

 

7,690,298  

Plant, Machinery  & Equipments 

 

4,933,196  

 

7,161,935  

Building & Structure 

 

1,835,680  

 

3,254,819  

Furniture 

 

                        -  

 

498,108  

Others 

 

150,770  

 

459,379  

  

       14,436,830  

 

      19,064,539  

     
     

     Contractual Services 27-E 

   Transport 

 

               91,718  

 

208,160  

Telecommunication 

 

20,410,932  

 

20,976,233  

Postal  Charges 

 

1,280,832  

 

1,028,781  

Electricity 

 

19,504,043  

 

25,678,936  

Security Service 

 

86,212,562  

 

81,909,551  

Water 

 

               42,116  

 

168,103  

Cleaning Service 

 

62,615,561  

 

55,752,271  

Rents & Hire Charges 

 

21,514,586  

 

20,154,736  

Rates & Tax to Local Authorities 

 

                        -  

 

                     -    

Printing  & Advertising 

 

6,990,048  

 

8,224,405  

Others 

 

1,536,708  

 

2,233,264  

  

     220,199,106  

 

    216,334,440  
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 Restated  

 

 Note  2020 

 

2019 

  

Rs. 

 

 Rs.  

Other Recurrent Expenses 27-F 

   Travel Grants To University Teachers 

 

677,592  

 

           733,400  

Special Service-Council & Committees 

 

1,463,000  

 

1,342,120  

Special Service-Professionals 

 

7,697,216  

 

8,089,254  

Workshop, Seminars 

 

2,370,119  

 

4,678,766  

Academic Research 

 

1,483,236  

 

1,823,343  

Staff Development 

 

                     -  

 

             50,000  

Holiday Warrants & Season Tickets 

 

47,035  

 

             51,280  

Entertainment Expense 

 

5,885,723  

 

6,001,643  

Bank Charges 

 

                     -  

 

                   -    

Awards & Indemnities 

 

47,500  

 

                   -    

Contribution & Membership Fees 

 

849,329  

 

           610,927  

Convocation 

 

                     -  

 

11,202,574  

Examination Expenses 

 

9,980,950  

 

15,376,125  

Others-News Papers, Magazines etc 

 

891,448  

 

2,840,474  

Industry Internships & Practical 

 

                     -  

 

             30,125  

Student Development Initiative 

 

852,502  

 

           476,621  

University Development Activities 

 

274,200  

 

5,280,050  

Student Welfare, Employee Welfare 

 

                     -  

 

             80,000  

  

    32,519,850  

 

     58,666,702  

     Self Finance Programme Expenses 27-G 

   CODL Expenses 

 

15,763,756  

 

19,525,232  

Msc Ayurvedic Hospital Management 

 

                     -  

 

             55,000  

Indigenous Community Programme 

 

255,315  

 

           112,343  

Faculty of Graduate Studies 

 

19,756,460  

 

20,116,823  

  

    35,775,531  

 

     39,809,398  

     Financial Assistants to Students 27-H 

   Mahapola Scholarship 

 

220,050  

 

16,620,600  

Bursaries 

 

40,555,800  

 

37,324,100  

  

    40,775,850  

 

     53,944,700  

     Depreciation & Amortisation Expenses 27-I 

    Dep.for building  

 

187,191,360  

 

195,449,805  

 Dep.for office & teaching equipment  

 

131,365,887  

 

118,661,047  

 Dep.for communication equipment  

 

5,736,762  

 

6,392,863  

 Dep.for water treatment plant  

 

479,546  

 

           479,546  

 Dep.for library book  

 

8,608,794  

 

8,584,067  

 Dep.for motor vehicle  

 

2,273,796  

 

10,399,323  

 Dep.for other equipment  

 

18,598,271  

 

11,829,799  

 Dep. for computer assessories  

 

31,824,137  

 

33,013,170  

 Dep.for cloaks  

 

364,750  

 

           366,000  

 Dep.for road network  

 

912,667  

 

           783,372  

 Amortisation of Software 

 

3,782,014  

 

3,781,614  

 Amortisation of Patent 

 

155,258  

 

                   -    

 Amortization of knowledge enhancement  

 

355,360  

 

1,421,621  

 Amortization of Curriculum   Revision  Expenses  

 

190,076  

 

           428,606  

 Amortisation of International Symposium Expenses                     -    

 

1,248,398  
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Amortization of Curriculum   Revision  Expenses  1,038,354  2,546,584 

Amortisation of International Symposium 

Expenses  2,630,161  4,970,069 

Amortisation of Quality Assurance Unit  -  98,155 

Amortisation of University Research Grant  1,143,886  1,143,886 

Amortisation of Career Guidance Unit  217,358  217,358 

Amortisation of Faculty of Medicine Establishment cost 1,143,886  1,143,886 

Amortisation of Faculty of Technology Establishment cost 217,358  217,358 

Amortisation of Consultancy fee Faculty of Medicine 2,100,000  2,100,000 

Amortisation of Virus Guard  396,750  396,750 

 399,365,187  404,312,033 
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14. CONTRIBUTION OF SABARAGAMUWA UNIVERSITY OF SRI LANKA TO 

ACHIEVE SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT GOALS IN 2020 

 

The Sustainable Development Procedures of Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka under 

Section 17 (d) of the National Audit Act No. 19 are as follows. 

 

Sustainable Development Agenda -2030 of Staff Development Centre 

 

Staff Development Centre in the Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka provides training 

opportunities for all members of the workforce in Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka to 

become active, efficient providers and facilitators of higher education in Sri Lanka. 

 

The Staff Development Centre provides training for the academic staff to be experts in 

education who are competent in providing highest quality teaching and to influence the 

undergraduates to be contributors to the manpower requirement of the country and the 

world. 

 

The Staff Development Centre, Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka organize activities and 

programs (formal or informal and on or off campus) to help all the staff members to learn 

about responsibilities, develop skills and competencies necessary to accomplish institutional 

and divisional goals. We also conduct programs for personality and professional 

development of all the staff to prepare themselves for academic, administrative and 

academic support staff who will play a keynote in the economy towards achieving 

sustainable goals – 2030.  
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15. Audit Report - 2020 

 

SGP/RP/D/SUSL/FA/01/20/01      31st of May 2021 

                                    

 

The Vice Chancellor, 

Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka. 

 

The Report of the Auditor General in terms of section 12 of the National Audit Act No. 19 

of 2018 on financial statements and other legal and regulatory requirements of the 

Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka for the year ending on 31st December 2020. 

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

 

1. Financial Statements 

----------------------------------- 

1.1 Opinion 

------------------ 

Financial Statement of the Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka as at 31st December 2020 

and Financial Performance Statement, Net Asset Change Statement and Cash Flow 

Statement for the year ending on that day and notes on Financial Statements, Summary 

Important Accounting Policies Financial Statements for the Final Year as at 31st December 

2020jointly read  with the subsection 107 (5) of the Universities Act, No. 16 of 1978 were 

audited under my direction in terms of the provisions provided in the article 154 (6) of the 

Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka and National Audit Act No. 19 of 2018. This report 

contains my views and observations which I intend to publish with the Annual Report of the 

University in terms of subsection 108 (1) of the Universities Act. My Report will be tabled in 

Parliament in due course in accordance with the article 154 (6) of the Constitution. 

 

Apart from the impact of the facts described in the base section for the qualitative opinion 

in my report, I firmly believe that the financial status of the University as at 31st December 

2020 and its financial performance and cash flow for the final year ending 31st December 

2020 is in factual and equitable position in accordance with the Sri Lanka Public Sector 

Accounting Standards.  

 

1.2 The Basis for the Statistical Opinion 

------------------------------------------------------- 

(a) Although fixed assets amounting Rs. 893,887,711 have been completely depreciated due 

to failure in reviewing the productive lifetime of immobile assets as per the 07 and 65 

paragraphs of Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting Standards, assets were being further 

utilized. Accordingly, measures have not been taken to revise the estimated error as per 

the Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting Standards - 03. 
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 (b) The mobile liabilities were higher than that value as the audit fees payable for the year 

2018 had been over accounted by an amount of Rs. 1,104,000. 

 

(c) Previous year the cost of the work done amounting to Rs. 1,934,137 for the renovation of 

Anatomy Laboratories at the Faculty of Medicine has been accounted as work under 

financial statements without capitalizing it under refurbished buildings of the university. 

 

(d) The water purification plant attached to the university and two lands of 2 acres and 1 

rood had been removed without any formal transference of ownership on behalf of the 

Pambahinna water supply scheme and its value of Rs. 1,600,000 and Rs. 900,000 

respectively had been removed from accounts. 

 

(e) Measures have not been taken to disclose or allocate within the financial statements by 

identifying the contingent responsibility as per the court order dated 29th September 

2017 to pay the relevant fee in relation to a case filed by the contractor on acquiring the 

fee for consultation service. 

 

(f) Cash Receipts and Cash Payments from Accelerating Higher Education Development 

Project (AHEAD) during the year under review were Rs. 207,169,036 and Rs. 207,105,986 

as on 31st December of the year. The cash balance of Rs. 63,050 had not been 

mentioned in the cash flow statement. 

 

(g) The total amount received as the postgraduate fee revenue of Rs. 1,873,417 for previous 

year was taken into account for the year under review as income and the deficit of the 

year had been mentioned as less than the amount.   

 

(h) The year's income was accounted as low, and the deferred income was accounted as 

high due to the total of Rs. 1,667,000 which has been reimbursed to students from the 

revenue of the English Certificate course fees of the year under review had been 

erroneously debited and credited to the Income Account and the Deferred Income 

Account respectively. 

 

(i) An amount of Rs.1,235,430 as at the last day of the year under review relating to the 

schedules and various deposit balances, have not been submitted to the Audit Division. 

 

(j) have done auditing as per Sri Lanka Audit Standards. My responsibility as per such audit 

standards is further described in the “Responsibility of the Auditor in relation to the 

auditing of financial statements”. I firmly believe that the auditing evidences I have 

gathered are adequate and appropriate to provide a base for my statistical opinion. 
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1.3 Other information included in the 2020 Annual Report of Sabaragamuwa University 

of Sri Lanka 

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

“Other information” include the information that are entered in the university annual report 

2020 which is to be handed over to me after the date of this audit report, but the 

information which are not included in the financial statements and in my audit report. The 

management should hold responsibility for these other information 

 

My opinion on financial statements does not cover these other information and I do not 

provide any certification or present an opinion on these information 

 

As per my auditing on financial statements, my responsibility is to read the “other 

information” when received and to check whether there is a quantitative misinterpretation 

between the other information and the financial statements as per my knowledge 

 

When reading the annual report 2020 of the university, If I conclude that there is a 

quantitative misinterpretation, such should be communicated to the management. Further, 

if there are misinterpretations which are not rectified, such will be included in the report 

that is going to be tabled in the parliament as per the article 154 (6) in the constitution in 

due course 

 

1.4    Responsibilities of the parties in the management and control of financial statements 

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

It is the responsibility of the management to prepare and present these financial statements 

in accordance with the accounting standards of the Sri Lankan public sector and to 

determine the internal controls required to enable the preparation of financial statements 

without quantitative misrepresentations due to fraud or errors. 

 

In preparing the financial statements, it is the responsibility of the management to 

determine the viability of the University and to disclose matters relating to the continued 

existence of the University unless the management intends to liquidate the University or 

discontinue operations in the absence of any other option.  

 

Responsibility for the financial reporting process of the University rests with the governing 

parties. 

 

As mentioned in sub-section 16 (1) of the National Audit Act No. 19 of 2018, The University 

shall maintain proper books and records on its own income, expenditure, assets and 

liabilities so as to prepare the Annual and Current Financial Statements of the University. 
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1.5    Responsibility of the Auditor in relation to the auditing of financial statements 

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

Overall, my goal is to provide a fair proof that there is no quantitative misrepresentation of 

financial statements, fraud and errors, and to issue an auditor's report that includes my 

opinion. While fair certification is a high level of certification, auditing in accordance with Sri 

Lanka Audit Standards does not always guarantee that it will detect quantitative 

misrepresentations. Fraud and misconduct, individually or collectively, can lead to 

quantitative misrepresentations and are expected to affect the economic decisions made by 

users based on these financial statements. 

 

I conducted the audit in accordance with the Sri Lanka Audit Standards with professional 

judgment and professional skepticism.  

 

 Furthermore, base of my opinion is to obtain adequate and appropriate audit evidence 

to avoid risks posed by fraud or error by designing appropriate audit procedures in time 

to identify and assess the risk of quantitative misrepresentations in financial statements 

due to fraud or errors. The effects of fraud are far greater than the effects of 

quantitative misrepresentations, which can lead to fraud, misrepresentation, forgery, 

intentional evasion, or evasion of internal controls. 

 

 Gained an understanding of the internal governance of the University in order to design 

appropriate audit procedures from time to time, but does not intend to express an 

opinion on the effectiveness of internal governance. 

 

 The fairness of the accounting policies and accounting estimates used and the relevance 

of the relevant disclosures made by management were evaluated. 

 

 The relevance of using the basis of the continuity of the University for accounting was 

determined on the basis of the audit evidence obtained as to whether there is 

quantitative uncertainty about the continuity of the university due to events or 

circumstances. If I conclude that there is sufficient uncertainty, my audit report should 

focus on the disclosures made in the financial statements, and if those disclosures are 

not sufficient, my opinion should be distorted. However, continued existence may end 

on future events or circumstances. 

 

 The presentation, structure and content of financial statements, including disclosures, 

were evaluated, and the transactions and events on which they were based were 

evaluated to be appropriately and reasonably included in the financial statements. 

 

The governing parties were briefed on the important audit findings identified during my 

audit, key internal governance weaknesses and other issues. 
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2. Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 

2.1  The National Audit Act No. 19 of 2018 contains special provisions regarding the 

following requirements. 
 

2.1.1 In accordance with the requirements set forth in Section 12 (a) of the National Audit 

Act No. 19 of 2018, I have obtained all the information and clarification required for 

the audit, except for the effect of the facts described in the Basis for the Assessed 

Opinion in my report. The investigation revealed that the University had maintained 

proper financial records. 
 

2.1.2 The financial statements submitted by the University as per the requirement 

mentioned in Section 6 (1) (d) (III) of the National Audit Act No. 19 of 2018 correspond 

with the previous year. 
 

2.1.3 The recommendations made by me during the last year as per the requirement 

mentioned in Section 6 (i) (d) (iv) of the National Audit Act No. 19 of 2018 are included 

in the financial statements submitted. 
 

2.2  In restricting the action taken and the evidence obtained to quantitative facts, none of 

the following statements came to my notice. 
 

2.2.1 In accordance with the requirement of Section 12 (d) of the National Audit Act No. 19 

of 2018, any member of the Council of the University may be directly or indirectly 

involved in any contract other than the normal business situation, except for the 

following observations. 
 

2.2.2 Not acting in accordance with the requirement of Section 12 € of the National Audit 

Act No. 19 of 2018 or in accordance with any applicable written law or other general 

or special directives issued by the Board of Governors of the University. 

 

 Refer to Rules, Rules / 

Command 

------------------------------------ 

                                                Observation 

 

                                               ------------------ 

   

(a) 2.2.2. (a) Section 11 of the 

Finance Act No. 38 of 1971 

and paragraph 8.2.2 of PED / 

12 Circular of the Director 

General of Public Enterprises 

dated June 02, 2003 

Although the excess money in the institution could 

be invested subject to the approval of the Minister 

of Finance, a sum of Rs. 56,568,786 had been 

invested in 11 fixed deposits at the end of the year 

under review without such approval. 
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(b) Code of Financial Regulations 

of the Democratic Socialist 

Republic of Sri Lanka 
 

(i) 371 (2) Regulation                       

 

 

 

 

 
 

There was a delay of 22 to 363 days to settle the 99 

recurring advances amounting Rs. 6,020,818 issued 

in the year under review 
 

 (ii) Financial Regulation 371 

(5) 

 

On 29 occasions from 2016 to the year under 

review, project, recurrence, and research advances 

amounting to Rs. 9,206,526 had not been settled. 
 

 

 

(iii) Financial Regulations 571 

 

 
 

(iv) Financial Regulations 394 

and 396396 
 

The total with holdings of Rs. 19,549,083 for the 

period from 2015 to 2018 had not been released 
 

Measures had not been taken as per the financial 

regulations regarding the expired and rejected 

cheques amounting Rs. 1,319,084 
 

(c) Paragraph 7 of Chapter 5 of 

the Establishments Code for 

University Grants Commission 

and Higher Education 

Institutions 

  

As of April 2021, Rs. 55,368,659 had not been 

recovered from 12 officers who had gone abroad on 

study leave from 2000 to 2017 due to bond 

breaches. The total amount due from the three 

officers who agreed to pay the installments 

including Rs. 28,079,397 had not been charged any 

installments since 2018 
 

(d) Circulars of University Grants 

Commission 

(i) Circular No 09/2019 dated 

on 25th November 2019 

 

 

Due to non-payment of fees by the Resident Officers 

in 30 official quarters as per the provisions in the 

circular, a total of Rs. 2,266,030 for the period from 

December 2019 to December of the year under 

review had been charged less. 
 

 (ii) Circular No. 737 dated 

18th August 1998 

 

In order to bear other expenses apart from the 

expenses allowed by the circular, 17 Fixed Deposits 

at the Bond Breach fund valued at Rs. 54,550,464 

had been withdrawn during the year under review  
 

 (iii) Circular No. 04/2016 

dated 01 March 2016 

Although all self-financing activities should be 

implemented on a policy by cost recovery basis and 

on a non-profited basis as a policy, a net financial 

surplus of Rs. 11, 298, 902 has been achieved as at 

31st December in the year under review. 



 
Draft Annual Report 2020 / Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka 

 

242 

2.2.3 The powers, tasks and functions of the University have not been complied with as 

required by Section 12 (g) of the National Audit Act No. 19 of 2018. 

 

2.2.4 As per the requirement mentioned in Section 12 (d) of the National Audit Act No. 19 of 

2018, the resources of the University have not been procured and utilized in 

accordance with the relevant rules in a timely manner, efficiently and effectively 

except for the following observations. 

 

(a) A contract was made and entered into with the contractor on 30th January to 

complete the phase I of the new library building within 24 months at a cost of Rs. 

315,051,433 (Without VAT) The contractor has been paid an amount of Rs. 

83,010,286 as an advance for the commencement of the work and for the work 

done. However, the value valuated by the Work Engineer was Rs. 43,058,226. 

Due to this reason, the construction activities had been abandoned since 

February 2020, when the contractor had a surplus value of Rs. 39,951, 460. No 

action was taken to cash in on or to extend the term of the advance bond (B) A 

three-member board of inquiry was appointed in February 2018 regarding the 

purchasing of 130 desktop computers in June 2016 at a cost of Rs. 15,964,000 

which were non-compliance with the specified specifications.  It was observed 

that without obtaining the relevant investigation report, Rs. 110,000 had been 

paid the board in June 2018. Also, without being satisfied that it complies with 

the specifications of the detention of Rs. 1,596,400 was released to the 

contractor on June 21, 2018. 

 

(b) A three member inquiry board was appointed in February 2018 regarding the 

purchasing of 130 desktop computers in June 2016 at a cost of Rs. 15,964,000 

which was noncompliant with the specifications. As per the report of the three 

member inquiry board dated 19 May 2018, it was recommended to take 

disciplinary actions against the officers who have acted irresponsibly throughout 

the procurement process; such actions were not initiated even by April 2021. 

Further the detentions amounting to Rs. 1,596,400 was released to the 

Contractor on 21st of June 2018 

 

2.3 Other Audit Observations 

----------------------------------- 

(a) Although an amount of Rs. 1,370,300 has been paid from 2016 to develop a 

software and enter data for a fixed asset register, such was not prepared by 31st of 

December of the year under review 
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(b)  Although products and equipment of a value of Rs. 2,725,000 have been provided 

by the “Higher Education Project for 21st Century” to establish an Out Bound 

Training Centre attached to the faculty of Applied sciences of the university, due to 

the shortage of required infrastructure and planning, those equipment have been 

underutilized and most of the equipment were not in a usable condition.  
 

(c) The university funds amounting to Rs. 1,200,000 have been spent for the 

participation of the former Registrar in the PIM International on Management 

which was held from 21st of August to 30th August 2018 in Netherland without the 

approval of the ministry. Although the council of the university has decided to 

recover the total cost, without doing such, the officer was released to Kothelawela 

Defence University in effective from 31st of March 2020 by the Council of the 

university. 
 

(d) Since the funds provided by the local and foreign institutes for research and 

environmental studies projects have not been utilized, by the end of the year 

under review, an amount of Rs. 4,418,209 had become useless  
 

(e) As at December 2019, there were 110 vacancies out of 506 approved posts in the 

academic staff and 132 vacancies out of 530 approved posts in the non - academic 

staff. Due to those vacancies in the non – academic staff, holiday and overtime 

allowances amounting to Rs. 19,854,304 has to be paid  
 

(f) No action had been taken to settle the 08 different credit balances amounting to Rs. 

62,686,386 which was brought forward from the year 2015 and to settle an 

amount of Rs. 2,201,150 which should be paid to the Mahapola Higher Education 

Scholarship Trust Fund. 
 

(g) Although an amount of Rs. 23,024,892 was paid as research grants for 21 

proposals, of which the research period has been already completed by December 

2018, final research reports have not been released by March 2021 
 

(h) Despite an initial cost of Rs. 1,494,543, as of April 2021, no action was taken to 

start the construction activities of an administrative building for the university 

which was approved by the Cabinet in 2007 
 

 

 

W.P.C. Wickramaratne, 

Auditor General. 
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16. Replies to the Audit Report – 2020 
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